OMB Control No: 0970-0114 Expiration date: 03/31/2027

THE PAPERWORK REDUCTION ACT OF 1995 (Pub. L. 104-13)

The purpose of this information collection is the application for CCDF funds and provides ACF and the public with a description of, and assurance about, the States' and Territories' child care programs. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 150 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing the form. This is a mandatory collection of information (Pub. L. 113–186), and 42 U.S.C. 9858.

An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information subject to the requirements of the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. The OMB # is 0970-0114 and the expiration date is 03/31/2027. If you have any comments on this collection of information, please contact ACF's Office of Child Care.



Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF) Plan

for

State/Territory Kansas

FFY 2025 - 2027

This Plan describes the Child Care and Development Fund program to be administered by the State or Territory for the period from 10/01/2024 to 9/30/2027, as provided for in the applicable statutes and regulations. The Lead Agency has the flexibility to modify this program at any time, including amending the options selected or described.

For purposes of simplicity and clarity, the specific provisions of applicable laws printed herein are sometimes paraphrases of, or excerpts and incomplete quotations from, the full text. The Lead Agency acknowledges its responsibility to adhere to the applicable laws regardless of these modifications.

Table of Contents

Ov	Overview4						
1	CCE	DF Program Administration	ε				
	1.1	CCDF Leadership	6				
	1.2	CCDF Policy Decision Authority	7				
	1.3	Consultation in the Development of the CCDF Plan	11				
2	Chil	ld and Family Eligibility and Enrollment and Continuity of Care	17				
		Reducing Barriers to Family Enrollment and Redetermination					
		Eligible Children and Families					
	2.3	Prioritizing Services for Vulnerable Children and Families	32				
		Lead Agency Outreach to Families Experiencing Homelessness, Families with Limited English					
		Proficiency, and Persons with Disabilities	38				
	2.5	Promoting Continuity of Care	40				
3	Chi	ld Care Affordability	46				
		Family Co-payments					
	3.2	Calculation of Co-Payment	48				
	3.3	Waiving Family Co-payment	50				
4	Parental Choice, Equal Access, Payment Rates, and Payment Practices5						
	4.1	Access to Full Range of Provider Options	51				
	4.2	Assess Market Rates and Analyze the Cost of Child Care	53				
	4.3	Adequate Payment Rates	57				
	4.4	Payment Practices to Providers	61				
	4.5	Supply Building	63				
5	Hea	alth and Safety of Child Care Settings	76				
	5.1	Licensing Requirements	77				
	5.2	Ratios, Group Size, and Qualifications for CCDF Providers	80				
	5.3	Health and Safety Standards for CCDF Providers	85				
	5.4	Pre-Service or Orientation Training on Health and Safety Standards	101				
	5.5	Monitoring and Enforcement of Licensing and Health and Safety Requirements	103				
		Ongoing Health and Safety Training					
		Comprehensive Background Checks					
	5.8	Exemptions for Relative Providers	123				
6	Sup	port for a Skilled, Qualified, and Compensated Child Care Workforce	123				
		Supporting the Child Care Workforce					
		Professional Development Framework					
		Ongoing Training and Professional Development					
	6.4	Early Learning and Developmental Guidelines	137				
7	Quality Improvement Activities13						
	7.1	Quality Activities Needs Assessment	139				
	7.2	Use of Quality Set-Aside Funds	140				

8	Lead Agency Coordination and Partnerships to Support Service Delivery	143
	8.1 Coordination with Partners to Expand Accessibility and Continuity of Care	144
	8.2 Optional Use of Combined Funds, CCDF Matching, and Maintenance-of-Effort Funds	162
	8.3 Coordination with Child Care Resource and Referral Systems	165
	8.4 Public-Private Partnerships	166
	8.5 Disaster Preparedness and Response Plan	168
9	Family Outreach and Consumer Education	169
	9.1 Parental Complaint Process	169
	9.2 Consumer Education Website	172
	9.3 Increasing Engagement and Access to Information	179
	9.4 Providing Information on Developmental Screenings	183
10	Program Integrity and Accountability	185
	10.1 Effective Internal Controls	
	10.2 Fraud Investigation, Payment Recovery, and Sanctions	198
Ар	pendix 1: Lead Agency Implementation Plan	241
	Appendix 1: Form	

Overview

Introduction

The Child Care and Development Block Grant Act (CCDBG) (42 U.S.C. 9857 *et seq.*), together with section 418 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 618), authorize the Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF), the primary federal funding source devoted to supporting families with low incomes afford child care and increasing the quality of child care for all children. The CCDF program is administered by the Office of Child Care (OCC) within the Administration for Children and Families (ACF) at the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and provides resources to State, Territory, and Tribal governments via their designated CCDF Lead Agency.

CCDF plays a vital role in supporting family well-being and child development; facilitating parental employment, training, and education; improving the economic well-being of participating families; and promoting safe high-quality care and learning environments for children when out of their parents' care.

As required by CCDBG, this CCDF Plan serves as the State/Territory Lead Agency's application for a three-year cycle of CCDF funds and is the primary mechanism OCC uses to determine Lead Agency compliance with the requirements of the statute and regulations. CCDF Lead Agencies must comply with the rules set forth in CCDBG and corresponding ACF-issued rules and regulations. The CCDF Plan is a fundamental part of OCC's oversight of CCDF and is designed to align with and complement other oversight mechanisms including administrative and financial data reporting, the monitoring process, error rate reporting, audits, and the annual Quality Progress Report.

Organization of Plan

In their CCDF Plans, State/Territory Lead Agencies must describe how they implement the CCDF program. The Plan is organized into the following sections:

- 1. CCDF Program Administration
- 2. Child and Family Eligibility and Enrollment and Continuity of Care
- 3. Child Care Affordability
- 4. Parental Choice, Equal Access, Payment Rates, and Payment Practices
- 5. Health and Safety of Child Care Settings
- 6. Support for a Skilled, Qualified, and Compensated Child Care Workforce
- 7. Quality Improvement Activities
- 8. Lead Agency Coordination and Partnerships to Support Service Delivery
- 9. Family Outreach and Consumer Education
- 10. Program Integrity and Accountability

Completing the Plan

This revised Plan aims to capture the most accurate and up-to-date information about how a State/Territory is implementing its CCDF program in compliance with the requirements of CCDF. In responding to plan questions, Lead Agencies should provide concise and specific summaries and/or bullet points as appropriate to the question. Do not insert tables or charts, add attachments, or copy manuals into the Plan. A State/Territory's CCDF Plan is intended to stand on its own with sufficient information to describe how the Lead Agency is implementing its CCDF program without need for added attachments, tables, charts, or State manuals.

OCC recognizes that Lead Agencies use different mechanisms to establish CCDF policies, such as State statute, regulations, administrative rules, policy manuals, or policy issuances. Lead Agencies must submit their CCDF Plan no later than July 1, 2024.

Review and Amendment Process

OCC will review submitted CCDF Plans for completeness and compliance with federal policies. Each Lead Agency will receive a letter approximately 90 days after the Plan is due that includes all Plan non-compliances to be addressed. OCC recognizes that Lead Agencies continue to modify and adapt their programs to address evolving needs and priorities. Lead Agencies must submit amendments to their Plans as they make substantial policy and program changes during the three-year plan cycle, including when addressing non-compliances.

Appendix 1: Implementation Plan

As part of the Plan review process, if OCC identifies any CCDF requirements that are not fully implemented, OCC will communicate a preliminary notice of non-compliance for those requirements via an emailed letter. OCC has created a standardized template for Lead Agencies to submit as their 60-day response to that preliminary notice. This template is found at Appendix 1: Lead Agency Implementation Plan. This required response via the Appendix will help create a shared understanding between OCC and the Lead Agency on which elements of a requirement are unmet, how they are unmet, and the Lead Agency's steps and associated timelines needed to fully implement those unmet elements.

CCDF Plan Submission

CCDF Lead Agencies will submit their Plans electronically through the Child Care Automated Reporting System (CARS). CARS will include all language and questions included in the final CCDF Plan template approved by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB). Note that the format of the questions in CARS could be modified from the Word version of the document to ensure compliance with Section 508 policies regarding accessibility to electronic and information technology for individuals with disabilities.

1 CCDF Program Administration

Strong organizational structures, operational capacity, and partnerships position States and Territories to administer CCDF efficiently, effectively, and collaboratively.

This section identifies the CCDF Lead Agency, CCDF Lead Agency leadership, and the entities and individuals who will participate in the implementation of the program. It also identifies the partners who were consulted to develop the Plan.

1.1 CCDF Leadership

The governor of a State or Territory must designate an agency (which may be an appropriate collaborative agency) or establish a joint interagency office to represent the State or Territory as the Lead Agency. The Lead Agency agrees to administer the program in accordance with applicable federal laws and regulations and the provisions of this Plan, including the assurances and certifications.

1.1.1 Designated Lead Agency

Identify the Lead Agency or joint interagency office designated by the State or Territory. OCC will send official grant correspondence, such as grant awards, grant adjustments, Plan approvals, and disallowance notifications, to the designated contact identified here.

- a. Lead Agency or Joint Interagency Office Information:
 - i. Name of Lead Agency: Kansas Department for Children and Families
 - ii. Street Address: *Kansas Avenue*, 4th Floor
 - iii. City: Topekaiv. State: Kansas
 - v. ZIP Code: 66603-3444
 - vi. Web Address for Lead Agency: http://www.dcf.ks.gov
- b. Lead Agency or Joint Interagency Official contact information:
 - i. Lead Agency Official First Name: *Laura*
 - ii. Lead Agency Official Last Name: Howard
 - iii. Title: Secretary
 - iv. Phone Number: 785-296-3274
 - v. Email Address: laura.howard@ks.gov

1.1.2 CCDF Administrator

Identify the CCDF Administrator designated by the Lead Agency, the day-to-day contact, or the person with responsibility for administering the State's or Territory's CCDF program. The OCC will send programmatic communications, such as program announcements, program instructions, and data collection instructions, to the designated contact identified here. If there is more than one designated contact with equal or shared responsibility for administering the CCDF program,

identify the Co-Administrator or the person with administrative responsibilities and include their contact information.

a. CCDF Administrator contact information:

i. CCDF Administrator First Name: Carla

ii. CCDF Administrator Last Name: Whiteside-Hicks

iii. Title of the CCDF Administrator: EES Director

iv. Phone Number: 785-296-4717

v. Email Address: carla.whitesidehicks@ks.gov

b. CCDF Co-Administrator contact information (if applicable):

i. CCDF Co-Administrator First Name: Nichelle

ii. CCDF Co-Administrator Last Name: Adams

iii. Title of the CCDF Co-Administrator: Social Services Program Collaboration Deputy

Director

iv. Phone Number: 785-368-8130

v. Email Address: nichelle.adams@ks.gov

vi. Description of the Role of the Co-Administrator: *Equal responsibility for administering the CCDF Program.*

1.2 CCDF Policy Decision Authority

The Lead Agency has broad authority to administer (i.e., establish rules) and operate (i.e., implement activities) the CCDF program through other governmental, non-governmental, or public or private local agencies as long as the Lead Agency retains overall responsibility for the administration of the program. Administrative and implementation responsibilities undertaken by agencies other than the Lead Agency must be governed by written agreements that specify the mutual roles and responsibilities of the Lead Agency and other agencies in meeting the program requirements.

1.2.1 Entity establishing CCDF program rules

Which of the following CCDF program rules and policies are administered (i.e., set or established) at the State or Territory level or local level? Identify whether CCDF program rules and policies are established by the State or Territory (even if operated locally) or whether the CCDF policies or rules are established by local entities, such as counties or workforce boards.

Check one of the following:

oxtimes All program rules and policies are set or established by the State or Territory. (If checked, skip to question 1.2.2.)
\square Some or all program rules and policies are set or established by local entities or agencies. If checked, indicate which entities establish the following policies. Check all that apply:

i. Eligibility rules and policies (e.g., income limits) are set by the:

	☐ State or Territory.
	\square Local entity (e.g., counties, workforce boards, early learning coalitions).
	\Box Other. Identify the entity and describe the policies the entity can set: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
ii.	Sliding-fee scale is set by the:
	\square State or Territory.
	\square Local entity (e.g., counties, workforce boards, early learning coalitions).
	\Box Other. Identify the entity and describe the policies the entity can set: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
iii.	Payment rates and payment policies are set by the:
	☐ State or Territory.
	\square Local entity (e.g., counties, workforce boards, early learning coalitions).
	\Box Other. Identify the entity and describe the policies the entity can set: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
iv.	Licensing standards and processes are set by the:
	☐ State or Territory.
	\square Local entity (e.g., counties, workforce boards, early learning coalitions).
	\Box Other. Identify the entity and describe the policies the entity can set: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
٧.	Standards and monitoring processes for license-exempt providers are set by the:
	☐ State or Territory.
	\square Local entity (e.g., counties, workforce boards, early learning coalitions).
	\Box Other. Identify the entity and describe the policies the entity can set: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
vi.	Quality improvement activities, including QIS, are set by the:
	\square State or Territory.
	\square Local entity (e.g., counties, workforce boards, early learning coalitions).
	\Box Other. Identify the entity and describe the policies the entity can set: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
vii.	Other. List and describe any other program rules and policies that are set at a level other than the State or Territory level: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .

1.2.2 Entities implementing CCDF services

The Lead Agency has broad authority to operate (i.e., implement activities) through other agencies, as long as it retains overall responsibility for CCDF. Complete the table below to identify which entity(ies) implements or performs CCDF services.

Check the box(es) to indicate which entity(ies) implement or perform CCDF services.

CCDF Activity	CCDF Lead Agency	TANF Agency	Local Government Agencies	CCR&R
Who conducts eligibility determinations?	\boxtimes	\boxtimes		
Who assists parents in locating child care (consumer education)?	\boxtimes	\boxtimes		\boxtimes
Who issues payments?	\boxtimes			
Who monitors licensed providers?			×	
Who monitors license-exempt providers?	\boxtimes			
Who operates the quality improvement activities?	\boxtimes			

Other. List and describe any other State or Territory agencies or partners that implement or perform CCDF services and identify their responsibilities. The monitoring of licensed providers is done through an interagency agreement between the CCDF lead agency and Kansas Department of Health and Environment, which is another state agency. CCDF Lead Agency issues child care benefits to eligible parents. Parents pay child care providers through an Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) system, so parents issue payments.

1.2.3 Written agreements and oversight

For any activities performed by agencies other than the Lead Agency as reported above in 1.2.1 and 1.2.2, identify the processes the Lead Agency uses to oversee and monitor CCDF administration and implementation activities to retain overall responsibility for the CCDF program.

Check and describe how the Lead Agency includes in its written agreements the required elements. Note: The contents of the written agreement may vary based on the role the agency is asked to assume or type of project but must include, at a minimum, the elements below.

a. Tasks to be performed.

☑ Yes. If yes, describe: The lead agency is also the Cash Assistance agency under the same Economic and Employment Services program unit at the Department for Children and Families, therefore responsibility is retained. The CCR&R work assisting parents in locating child care is completed through a Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral Grant. The specific services to be provided by the grant are specified in the Notice of Grant

	and Environment for health, safety, and increased quality in child care. Within this agreement, there is an agreed upon scope of work and details about the expectations that the lead agency has for Kansas Department of Health and Environment with regards to their contracts with the County Health Departments and/or other contractors.
	☐ No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
b.	Schedule for completing tasks.
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe: The Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral Grant includes specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-bound performance measures which are specified in the Notice of Grant Award. Deliverables are also included in the Notice of Grant award. Status reports and regular meetings allow for the monitoring of progress. The lead agency interagency agreement with Kansas Department of Health and Environment for health, safety, and increased quality in child care contains deliverables with set schedules, duties and responsibilities and terms of the agreement. Regular meetings also occur in a variety of settings.
	☐ No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
C.	Budget which itemizes categorical expenditures in accordance with CCDF requirements.
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe: The Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral Grant includes the requirement for detailed financial reports, including itemization reports, submitted monthly, details of the payment process, and details regarding the audit responsibilities and requirements. All Grantee and Sub-Grantee awards issued by the lead agency are also subject to federal and state audit. The lead agency interagency agreement with Kansas Department of Health and Environment for health, safety, and increased quality in child care includes reporting requirements for quarterly detailed financial reports with expenditures listed. All appropriate regulations and requirements are included in the agreements. Financial reports are reviewed by multiple lead agency staff to ensure compliance.
	☐ No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
d.	Indicators or measures to assess performance of those agencies.
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe: The Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral Grant includes specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-bound performance measures which are specified in the Notice of Grant Award. The lead agency interagency agreement with Kansas Department of Health and Environment for health, safety, and increased quality in child care includes quarterly program reports including outcome measures that the lead agency compares to annual targeted goals/objectives to ensure compliance.
	☐ No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .

In addition to the written agreements identified above, describe any other monitoring and e. auditing processes used to oversee CCDF administration. The agreements include the requirements that audits be conducted with provisions contained in 2 CFR Chapter I, Chapter II, Part 200, et al. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit requirements for federal awards; Final rule. Entities that expend \$750,000 or more during their fiscal year in Federal awards must have an audit in compliance with the provisions of Uniform Requirements and be conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards. According to the OMB Uniform Grants Guidance §200.343, the grant recipient must submit all financial, performance, and other reports required under the grant within 90 days after the grant award expires or is terminated. The lead agency uses a Contract vs. Grant determination checklist to help inform the decision on pursuing a grant or a contract. The lead agency also uses a Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Vendor or Sub-recipient Determination Checklist. This informs the decision on award type as well as establishes the correct federal and/or state award funding and amounts to be used for the award. Checklists are reviewed and completed by program staff, The Office of Grants and Contracts, and the Office of Audit Services

1.2.4 Information systems availability

Certification of shareable information systems.

Does the Lead Agency certify that to the extent practicable and appropriate, any code or software for child care information systems or information technology for which a Lead Agency or other agency expends CCDF funds to develop is made available to other public agencies? This includes public agencies in other States for their use in administering child care or related programs.

imes Yes.							
☐ No. If n	o, describe:	Click o	r tap	here	to	enter	text

1.2.5 Confidential and personally identifiable information

Certification of policies to protect confidential and personally identifiable information

Does the Lead Agency certify that it has policies in place related to the use and disclosure of confidential and personally identifiable information about children and families receiving CCDF assistance and child care providers receiving CCDF funds?

≚ Yes.			
\square No. If no, describe: <i>Click or ta</i>	p here to	o enter	text

1.3 Consultation in the Development of the CCDF Plan

The Lead Agency is responsible for developing the CCDF Plan, and consultation with and meaningful input and feedback from a wide range of representatives is critical for CCDF programs to continually adapt to the changing needs of families, child care programs, and the workforce. Consultation involves meeting with or otherwise obtaining input from an appropriate agency in the development of the State or Territory CCDF Plan. As part of the Plan development process, Lead Agencies must consult with the following:

- Appropriate representatives of general-purpose local government. General purpose local governments are defined by the U.S. Census at https://www2.census.gov/govs/cog/g12_org.pdf.
- (2) The State Advisory Council (SAC) on Early Childhood Education and Care (pursuant to 642B(b)(I)(A)(i) of the Head Start Act) or similar coordinating body pursuant to 98.14(a)(1)(vii).
- (3) Tribe(s) or Tribal organization(s) within the State. This consultation should be done in a timely manner and at the option of the Tribe(s) or Tribal organization(s).

1.3.1 Consultation efforts in CCDF Plan development

Describe the Lead Agency's consultation efforts in the development of the CCDF Plan, including how and how often the consultation occurred.

a. Describe how the Lead Agency consulted with appropriate representatives of general-purpose local government: Within the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure, there is an Early Childhood Recommendations Panel with the role in providing recommendation around the implementation of the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic plan. Membership includes one or more representative of local school districts, per the executive order. The All in for Kansas Kids' needs assessment and strategic plan serve as the foundation for the work in Kansas around early childhood. This information is agreed upon and used by the state to guide the coordination of statewide efforts, including CCDF plan development and use of funding. This Early Childhood Recommendations Panel has panel members from county health departments and public schools. The recommendations panel meets monthly.

- b. Describe how the Lead Agency consulted with the State Advisory Council or similar coordinating body: The Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund plays the statutory role to assist the Governor in developing and implementing a coordinated, comprehensive service delivery system to the children and families of Kansas and meets every other month. The Secretary of the Kansas Department for Children and Families, the lead agency, serves as an ex-officio member on the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund. There is a state Directors' team that meets every two weeks and is composed of designees from the Children's Cabinet. The lead agency has representation at these meetings, including the two co-CCDF Administrators. There is a recommendations panel who provide an advisory role to the Cabinet and the lead agency has required membership on the panel and has current members serving a one-year term. The recommendations panel meets monthly. Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas Department of Health and Environment, a major partner in the administration of the CCDF state plan, consult with many different groups within the state on areas that connect to the plan content throughout the year. These groups are considered part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure that work together to inform the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund and provide recommendations. These groups include, but are not limited to, the Child Care Licensing Systems Improvement Team, Home Visiting Leadership group, the workforce development advisory group, the Kansas Family Leadership Team, Links to Quality Advisory Group, and Maternal Child Health Council. Through the work done within these groups and through information gathered as part of a statewide needs assessment, the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic Plan was built and serves as the foundation for the work in Kansas around early childhood. This information is agreed upon and used by the state to guide the coordination of statewide efforts, including CCDF plan development and use of funding. In the state Directors' team meetings, we talk in more detail about CCDF funded work and have shared responsibility in the administration of many statewide efforts around building access to quality. This group, which is part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure, regularly communicates on many areas that involve the CCDF state plan related work between these meetings that occur every two weeks. Feedback is gathered for CCDF funded request for proposals from members of this group so that the work being done meets the needs identified across the agencies and in the strategic plan. Feedback is also gathered around the prioritization of funding to help with CCDF planning. The existing Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure ensures that the state can be responsible to the changing needs and continued collaboration and discussions help inform the work to support early childhood education and families in Kansas.
- c. Describe, if applicable, how the Lead Agency consulted with Indian Tribes(s) or Tribal organizations(s) within the State: The lead agency has staff in the Prevention and Protection Services program area that join meetings monthly with ACF and with Prairie Band Potawatomi Nation, the Kickapoo Tribe of Kansas, The Iowa Tribe of Kansas and Nebraska, and Sack and Fox Nation of Missouri in Kansas and Nebraska. At the tribe's discretion, CCDF related topics are discussed. The draft CCDF State plan was shared with this group on XXXX.

d. Identify other entities, agencies, or organizations consulted on the development of the CCDF Plan (e.g., representatives from the child care workforce, or statewide afterschool networks) and describe those consultation efforts: The All in for Kansas Kids' needs assessment and strategic plan serve as the foundation for the work in Kansas around early childhood. This information is agreed upon and used by the state to quide the coordination of statewide efforts, including CCDF plan development and use of funding. Intensive engagement efforts to gather input for the All in for Kansas Kids' needs assessment and strategic plan were collected from a wide range of partners. These included feedback and engagement sessions with early childhood professionals in 2022 and 2023. There were almost 20 feedback sessions with various existing groups such as Early Childhood Higher-Education Options (ECHO) Consortium, Early Childhood Quality Instructional Partners (EQIP), and the Child Care Provider Coalition of Kansas. These groups helped inform the CCDF funded Career Pathway for Kansas Early Childhood Care and Education Professionals. In partnership with the agencies involved in the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure, including the lead agency, the CCDF funded Workforce Development agreement partner has been leading the implementation of the Career Pathway since April 2023 and hosted 17 virtual listening sessions during August and September 2023 across the state to inform planning and implementation activities. Input on barriers and needs regarding Career Pathway implementation was gathered from over 46 early childhood professionals in 21 counties across Kansas. Seven of the 17 virtual listening sessions targeted groups that train and support the early childhood workforce. These sessions included professionals from various organizations that provide training and technical assistance, the Workforce Development Advisory Group members, Kansas Department of Health and Environment child care specialists, and faculty from Kansas community colleges, technical institutes, and 4-year universities. Information from these sessions informed the revision of the Career Pathway Implementation Plan, Comprehensive Workforce Study, and helped to operationalize the Career Pathway and supporting materials. Interviews were conducted with child care administrators who closed child care facilities at least once during the pandemic. This input and other data was used to guide the 2024 Needs Assessment Findings and set goals for the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic *Plan, which guides the CCDF work.*

1.3.2 Public hearing process

Lead Agencies must hold at least one public hearing in the State or Territory, with sufficient Statewide or Territory-wide distribution of notice prior to such a hearing to enable the public to comment on the provision of child care services under the CCDF Plan.

Describe the Statewide or Territory-wide public hearing process held to provide the public with an opportunity to comment on the provision of child care services under this Plan.

- i. Date of the public hearing: June 3, 2024
 - Reminder: Must be no earlier than January 1, 2024. If more than one public hearing was held, enter one date (e.g., the date of the first hearing, the most recent hearing date, or any hearing date that demonstrates this requirement).
- ii. Date of notice of public hearing: May 6, 2024
- iii. Was the notice of public hearing posted publicly at least 20 calendar days prior to the date of the public hearing?

\boxtimes	Yes.
П	No. If no. describe: Click or tan here to enter text.

- iv. Describe how the public was notified about the public hearing, including outreach in other languages, information on interpretation services being available, etc. Include specific website links if used to provide notice. Electronic notice was published in the Kansas Register, provided to local resource and referral agencies, provided to local licensing surveyors, child care professional organizations, other state agencies, through the All in For Kansas Kids newsletter, and the Lead Agency local offices. Kansas Registry Link: XXX Electronic notices were sent to other partners and stakeholders. Notification of the public hearing were given at multiple stakeholder and partner meetings in which the Lead Agency participated and posted on the DCF Website. DCF Website:

 (http://www.dcf.ks.gov/services/ees/Pages/Child_Care/ChildCareDevelopmentFundPlan.aspx)
- v. Describe how the approach to the public hearing was inclusive of all geographic regions of the State or Territory: *Hearing was held virtually via TEAMS, which has an option to join by phone.*
- vi. Describe how the content of the Plan was made available to the public in advance of the public hearing (e.g., the Plan was made available in other languages, in multiple formats, etc.): The draft CCDF state plan was posted on the DCF website at https://www.dcf.ks.gov/services/ees/Pages/Child_Care/ChildCareDevelopmentFundPlan.aspx on April 18, 2024 and the DCF Facebook page. The information was shared within the All in For Kansas Kids Newsletter.
- vii. Describe how the information provided by the public was taken into consideration regarding the provision of child care services under this Plan: All comments provided were recorded and reviewed for consideration. Each individual comment was looked at by the lead agency to determine if it was something already happening and included in the state plan, if it was something that needed added or included, if it was something that required additional action before it could be included, or if the suggestion was not possible due to fiscal restraints, other agencies providing the services, or outside of the funding requirements. Those suggestions that were deemed not possible were still captured and stored for the statewide early childhood system building work.
- 1.3.3 Public availability of final Plan, amendments, and waivers

Lead Agencies must make the submitted and approved final Plan, any approved Plan amendments, and any approved requests for temporary waivers publicly available on a website.

- b. Describe any other strategies that the Lead Agency uses to make submitted and approved CCDF Plan and approved Plan amendments available to the public. Check all that apply and describe the strategies below, including any relevant website links as examples.
 - i. ⊠ Working with advisory committees. Describe: The public hearing notice and state plan were shared via the All in For Kansas Kids newsletter.
 - ii.

 Working with child care resource and referral agencies. Describe: The public hearing notice and state plan were shared via Child Care Aware of Kansas' website and Facebook. https://ks.childcareaware.org/
 - iii. Providing translation in other languages. Describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - iv. A Sharing through social media (e.g., Facebook, Instagram, email). Describe:

 Hearing notice and state plan link were shared via DCF's agency website,

 Facebook, Twitter and Email, in addition to sharing via the Child Care in Kansas website. XXX (link to website)
 - v.

 Providing notification to key constituents (e.g., parent and family groups, provider groups, advocacy groups, foundations, and businesses). Describe: The Lead agency shared the public hearing notice and posting of the CCDF state plan draft notice with multiple early childhood partners across Kansas, including but not limited to: Kansas Dept. for Health and Environment Child Care licensing, Kansas Head Start Association, MIECHV, Part C- Infant Toddler Services, Part C 619, Parents As Teachers, Healthy Families of America, Families Together, Kansas Parent Information Resource Center (KPRIC), the Children's Cabinet, Kansas Action for Children, Kansas Association for Infant Mental Health, Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities (KCCTO), Kansas Inservice Training (KITS), the State Interagency Coordinating Council (SICC) Links to Quality(L2Q) Advisory Group and participants, and Child & Adult Care Food Program(CACFP).
 - vi. \boxtimes Working with Statewide afterschool networks or similar coordinating entities for out-of-school time. Describe: *The Lead agency shared the public hearing notice and posting of the CCDF state plan draft notice with Kansas Enrichment Network.*
 - vii. \square Direct communication with the child care workforce. Describe: The Lead agency shared the public hearing notice and posting of the CCDF state plan draft notice with Child Care Providers Coalition of Kansas.
 - viii. ☐ Other. Describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

2 Child and Family Eligibility and Enrollment and Continuity of Care

Stable and reliable child care arrangements facilitate job stability for parents and healthy development of children. CCDF eligibility and enrollment policies can contribute to these goals. Policies and procedures that create barriers to families accessing CCDF, like inaccessible subsidy applications and onerous reporting requirements, interrupt a parent's ability to work and may deter eligible families from participating in CCDF.

To address these concerns, Lead Agencies must provide children with a minimum of 12 months between eligibility determinations, limit reporting requirements during the 12-month period, and ensure eligibility determination and redetermination processes do not interrupt a parent's work or school.

In this section, Lead Agencies will identify how they define eligible children and families and how the Lead Agency's eligibility and enrollment policies support access for eligible children and families.

2.1 Reducing Barriers to Family Enrollment and Redetermination

Lead Agency enrollment and redetermination policies may not unduly disrupt parents' employment, education, or job training activities to comply with the Lead Agency's or designated local entity's requirements. Lead Agencies have broad flexibility to design and implement the eligibility practices that reduce barriers to enrollment and redetermination.

Examples include developing strategies to inform families and their providers of an upcoming redetermination and the information that will be required of the family, pre-populating subsidy renewal forms, having parents confirm that the information is accurate, and/or asking only for the information necessary to make an eligibility redetermination. In addition, Lead Agencies can offer a variety of family-friendly methods for submitting documentation for eligibility redetermination that considers the range of needs for families in accessing support (e.g., use of languages other than English, access to transportation, accommodation of parents working non-traditional hours).

2.1.1 Eligibility practices to reduce barriers to enrollment

a.	Does the Lead Agency implement any of the following eligibility practices to reduce
	barriers at the time of initial eligibility determination? Check all that apply and describe
	those elements checked.

i.	\square Establishing presumptive eligibility while eligibility is being determined.
	Describe the policy, including the populations benefiting from the policy, and
	identify how long the period of presumptive eligibility is: Click or tap here to enter
	text.

- ii. \times Leveraging eligibility from other public assistance programs. Describe: If any member of the nuclear family receives Cash Assistance, no financial eligibility determination is done. The nuclear family consists of the individuals who live together that are considered a family group. In addition, if a member of the nuclear family needs child care to participate in a Cash Assistance or Food Assistance work program, no application is required. For families participating in the Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership program, Kansas Department for Children and Families' eligibility staff accept the financial eligibility determination of the Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership grantee in determining eligibility for child care assistance.
- iii.

 Coordinating determinations for children in the same household (while still ensuring each child receives 12 months of eligibility). Describe: When a family applies for child care assistance, financial eligibility is determined for the nuclear family, the individuals who live together that are considered a family group. Eligibility for all children for whom child care is requested is determined based on other eligibility factors and individual plans are written for each child who is eligible. The child care plans for each eligible child are then combined into one family plan, and one family share deduction (co-pay) is assigned based on income and family size.
- iv. Self-assessment screening tools for families. Describe: Families using the self-service portal of the Kansas Eligibility and Enforcement System can access a screening tool to determine whether they may be eligible to receive child care assistance.
- v. \Box Extended office hours (evenings and/or weekends).
- vi. \boxtimes Consultation available via phone.
- vii.

 Other. Describe the Lead Agency policies to process applications efficiently and make timely eligibility determinations: All applications shall be approved or denied on a timely basis except when a determination of eligibility cannot be made within the required period due to the failure of the applicant or a collateral to provide required information. Written notice must be given the applicant by the end of the required period giving the reason(s) for the delay. Applications for Child Care Assistance are to be processed within 30 days of the application date for all applications except those from families participating in the Kansas Early Head Start Care Partnership program, which are to be processed within 7 days. The application process is tracked and monitored by field supervisors through the business process model and use of various tracking tools.

viii.

None.

b. Does the Lead Agency use an online subsidy application?

 \boxtimes Yes.

□ No. If no, describe why an online application is impracticable. *Click or tap here to enter text*.

c. Does the Lead Agency use different policies for families receiving TANF assistance?

		basis f the file transit detern contin	The file by EES staff. The for the number of hours approved for childcare benefits must also be documented in the number of hours approved for childcare benefits must also be documented in the second section of the second section is not be required for those clients in the second section from Cash Assistance child care to Income Eligible child care and the system the system that there is no family share deduction assigned to the case. The need for used child care and financial eligibility shall be documented in the case file using the information.			
		□ No.				
2.1.2	Prever	nting dis	ruption of eligibility activities			
	a.	Identify, where applicable, the Lead Agency's procedures and policies to ensure that parents do not have their employment, education, or job training unduly disrupted to comply with the State's/Territory's or designated local entity's requirements for the redetermination of eligibility. Check all that apply.				
		i.	oxtimes Advance notice to parents of pending redetermination.			
		ii.	\square Advance notice to providers of pending redetermination.			
		iii.	\square Pre-populated subsidy renewal form.			
		iv.	☑ Online documentation submission.			
		٧.	☑ Cross-program redeterminations.			
		vi.	\square Extended office hours (evenings and/or weekends).			
		vii.	☑ Consultation available via phone.			
		viii.	oxtimes Leveraging eligibility from other public assistance programs.			
		ix.	☐ Other. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.			
	b.	Does t	the Lead Agency use different policies for families receiving TANF assistance?			
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe the policies: For Cash Assistance recipients, the request care assistance may be made verbally and must be documented in the file by E basis for the number of hours approved for childcare benefits must also be documented the file. For ease of administration, an application is not be required for those transition from Cash Assistance child care to Income Eligible child care. The necessition continued child care and financial eligibility shall be documented in the case file current information.					
		□ No.	•			
2.2	Eligib	le Chilo	dren and Families			

⊠ Yes. If yes, describe the policies: For Cash Assistance recipients, the request for a child

2..

At eligibility determination or redetermination, children must (1) be younger than age 13; (2) reside with a family whose income does not exceed 85 percent of the State's median income (SMI) for a family of the same size and whose family assets do not exceed \$1,000,000; and (3)(a) reside with a parent or parents who are working or attending a job training or educational program

(which can include job search) or (b) receive, or need to receive, protective services as defined by the Lead Agency.

2.2.1 Eligibility criteria: age of children served

Lead Agencies may provide child care assistance for children less than 13 years of age, including continuing to provide assistance to children if they turn 13 during the eligibility period. In addition, Lead Agencies can choose to serve children up to age 19 if those children are unable to care for themselves.

a.	Does age 1	your Lead Agency serve the full federally allowable age range of children through 2?			
	⊠ Ye	⊠ Yes.			
		\square No. If no, describe the age range of children served and the reason why you made that decision to serve less than the full range of allowable children. Click or tap here to enter text.			
		<i>Note:</i> Do not include children incapable of self-care or under court supervision, who are reported below in 2.2.1b and 2.2.1c.			
b.		Does the Lead Agency extend eligibility for CCDF-funded child care to children ages 13 and older but below age 19 who are physically and/or mentally incapable of self-care?			
	□ No.				
	⊠ Ye	⊠ Yes.			
	i.	If yes, the upper age is (may not equal or exceed age 19): 18			
	ii.	If yes, provide the Lead Agency definition of physical and/or mental incapacity: The child must be physically or mentally incapable of caring for him or herself (as established by a qualified professional), or under court supervision.			
C.		Does the Lead Agency extend eligibility for CCDF-funded child care to children ages 13 and older but below age 19 who are under court supervision?			
	□ No.				
	⊠ Ye	oxtimes Yes. If yes, and the upper age is (may not equal or exceed age 19): 18			
d.	How	How does the Lead Agency define the following eligibility terms?			
	i.	"residing with": Living in the same household with (including living away from home if maintaining permanent residence with and continuing to function as a family member, even if maintenance provided is inadequate).			
	ii.	"in loco parentis": Caretaker-any person with the legal right and responsibility to			

2.2.2 Eligibility criteria: reason for care

Lead Agencies have broad flexibility on the work, training, and educational activities required to qualify for child care assistance. Lead Agencies do not have to set a minimum number of hours for families to qualify for work, training, or educational activities, and there is no requirement to limit authorized child care services strictly based on the work, training, or educational schedule/hours

act as a parent, "in the place of a parent", assuming the duties of a parent.

of the parent(s). For example, the Lead Agency can include travel or study time in calculating the amount of needed services.

How does the Lead Agency define the following terms for the purposes of determining CCDF eligibility?

a.	Identify which of the following activities are included in your definition of "working" by checking the boxes below:			
	i.	oxtimes An activity for which a wage or salary is paid.		
	ii.	⊠ Being self-employed.		
	iii.	oxtimes During a time of emergency or disaster, partnering in essential services.		
	iv.	$\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ $		
	v.	☑ Time for meals or breaks.		
	vi.	☑ Time for travel.		
	vii.	\square Seeking employment or job search.		
	viii.	☐ Other. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
b.	Identify which of the following activities are included in your definition of "attending job training" by checking the boxes below:			
	i.	☑ Vocational/technical job skills training.		
	ii.	oxtimes Apprenticeship or internship program or other on-the-job training.		
	iii.	\square English as a Second Language training.		
	iv.	\square Adult Basic Education preparation.		
	V.	oxtimes Participation in employment service activities.		
	vi.	oxtimes Time for meals and breaks.		
	vii.	oxtimes Time for travel.		
	viii.	oxtimes Hours required for associated activities such as study groups, lab experiences.		
	ix.	oxtimes Time for outside class study or completion of homework.		
	x.	☐ Other. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
C.	Identify which of the following diplomas, certificates, degrees, or activities are included in your definition of "attending an educational program" by checking the boxes below:			
	i.	\square Adult High School Diploma or GED.		
	ii.	□ Certificate programs (12-18 credit hours).		
	iii.	oxtimes One-year diploma (36 credit hours).		
	iv.			
	v.	□ Four-year degree.		

	vi.	oximes Travel to and from classrooms, labs, or study groups.
	vii.	⊠ Study time.
	viii.	oxtimes Hours required for associated activities such as study groups, lab experiences.
	ix.	oxtimes Time for outside class study or completion of homework.
	х.	oxtimes Applicable meal and break times.
	xi.	☐ Other. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
d.		ne Lead Agency impose a Lead Agency-defined minimum number of hours of for eligibility?
		□ No.
		⊠ Yes.
		If yes, describe any Lead Agency-imposed minimum requirement for the following:
		☑ Work. Describe: Adults included in a child care case must be employed a minimum of 20 hours per week when they need child care to maintain their employment and they must be earning at least the federal minimum wage per hour.
		☑ Job training. Describe: Adults included in a child care case and participating in an approved job training plan must be engaged in paid employment for a minimum of 15 hours per week and must be earning the equivalent of the federal minimum wage per hour.
		☑ Education. Describe: Adults included in a child care case and participating in an approved education plan must be engaged in paid employment for a minimum of 15 hours per week and must be earning the equivalent of the federal minimum wage per hour.
		\Box Combination of allowable activities. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
		☐ Other. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
е.		ne Lead Agency allow parents to qualify for CCDF assistance based on education ining without additional work requirements?
	☐ Yes.	
	case an	If no, describe the additional work requirements: Adults included in a child care and participating in an approved job training or education plan must be engaged in apployment for a minimum of 15 hours per week and must be earning the equivalent federal minimum wage per hour.
f.	eligible	ne Lead Agency extend eligibility to specific populations of children otherwise not by including them in its definition of "children who receive or need to receive tive services?"

	Note: A Lead Agency may elect to provide CCDF-funded child care to children in foster care when foster care parents are <i>not</i> working or are <i>not</i> in education/training activities, but this provision should be included in the Lead Agency's protective services definition.
	\square No. If no, skip to question 2.2.3.
	☑ Yes. If yes, answer the questions below:
	Provide the Lead Agency's definition of "protective services" by checking below the sub-populations of children that are included:
	□ Children in foster care.
	☑ Children in kinship care.
	☐ Children who are in families under court supervision.
	$\ oxed{oxed}$ Children who are in families receiving supports or otherwise engaged with a child welfare agency.
	$\ oxed{oxed}$ Children participating in a Lead Agency's Early Head Start - Child Care Partnerships program.
	☐ Children whose family members are deemed essential workers under a governor-declared state of emergency.
	☐ Children experiencing homelessness.
	\square Children whose family has been affected by a natural disaster.
	☑ Other. Describe: In addition to the populations checked, Child Care benefits may be provided under the "protective services" or "social service" need reason to: 1) "Parents with crisis", including parents who are hospitalized or otherwise temporarily unable to provide adequate care for the child. This could be inpatient or outpatient, for physical health, mental health or substance abuse treatment, and there is no other adult to care for the child. Families in the process of Kansas Department for Children and Families Intake and Assessment through Prevention and Protection Services, or families receiving services through a family preservation contractor or Kansas Department for Children and Families PPS Social Worker; 2) Juvenile offenders in the custody of the Kansas Department of Corrections-Juvenile Services when the foster parent is employed and needs child care; 3) Children whose caretaker has placed them with a "Safe Families for Children" host family due to a family crisis, thereby avoiding placement of the children in Foster Care. These children are not in Foster Care. Child care for these children must be needed due to the employment or education/training of the adults in the "Safe Families for Children" host family.
g.	Does the Lead Agency waive the income eligibility requirements for cases in which children receive, or need to receive, protective services on a case-by-case basis?
	□ No.
	⊠ Yes.

	n.	requirements for cases in which children receive, or need to receive, protective services on a case-by-case basis?
		□ No.
		⊠ Yes.
	i.	Does the Lead Agency use CCDF funds to provide respite care to custodial parents of children in protective services?
		⊠ No.
		☐ Yes.
2.2.3	Eligibil	ity criteria: deciding entity on family income limits
	How a	re income eligibility limits established?
		oxtimes There is a statewide limit with no local variation.
		☐ There is a statewide limit with local variation. Provide the number of income eligibility tables and describe who sets the limits: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
		☐ Eligibility limits are established locally only. Provide the number of income eligibility tables and describe who sets the limits: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
		☐ Other. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
224	Initial	aligibility: income limits

2.2.4 Initial eligibility: income limits

- a. Complete the appropriate table to describe family income limits.
 - i. Complete the table below to provide the statewide maximum income eligibility percent and dollar limit or threshold:

Family Size	100% of SMI (\$/Month)	Maximum Initial Eligibility Limit (or Threshold) %	Maximum Initial Eligibility Limit (or Threshold) \$
1	N/A	\$N/A	N/A
2	\$5,573	\$4,737	\$4,737
3	\$6,884	\$5,851	\$5,851
4	\$8,195	\$6,966	\$6,966
5	\$9,425	\$8,081	\$8,081

ii. Does the Lead Agency certify that they use other funds if the income eligibility limit percent exceeds 85% SMI?

☑ Not applicable. The Lead Agency does not allow income eligibility limits above 85% SMI.

\square Yes, the Lead Agency certifies that they use other funds (non-CCDF funds) for
families with income that exceeds 85% SMI.
\square No. The Lead Agency establishes income eligibility limits above SMI and
includes CCDF funds to pay for families with income that exceeds 85% SMI. If
checked, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.

- b. Complete the table below if the Lead Agency has local variation in the maximum income eligibility limit. Complete the table for the region/locality with the highest eligibility limit, region/locality with the lowest eligibility limit, and the region/locality that is most populous:
 - i. Region/locality with the highest eligibility limit:

Family Size	100% of SMI (\$/Month)	Maximum Initial Eligibility Limit (or Threshold) %	Maximum Initial Eligibility Limit (or Threshold) \$
1	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
2	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
3	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
4	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
5	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.

ii. Region/locality with the lowest eligibility limit:

Family Size	100% of SMI (\$/Month)	Maximum Initial Eligibility Limit (or Threshold) %	Maximum Initial Eligibility Limit (or Threshold) \$
1	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
2	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
3	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
4	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
5	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.

iii. Region/locality that is most populous:

Family Size	100% of SMI (\$/Month)	Maximum Initial Eligibility Limit (or Threshold) %	Maximum Initial Eligibility Limit (or Threshold) \$
1	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
2	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
3	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
4	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
5	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.

	iv.	Does the Lead Agency certify that they use other funds if the income eligibility limit percent exceeds 85% SMI?
		$\ oxdots$ Not applicable. The Lead Agency does not allow income eligibility limits above 85% SMI.
		\Box Yes, the Lead Agency certifies that they use other funds (not CCDF funds) for families with income that exceeds 85% SMI.
		\square No. The Lead Agency establishes income eligibility limits above 85% SMI and includes CCDF funds to pay for families with income that exceeds 85% SMI. If checked, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
c. How does the Lead Agency define "income" for the purposes initial determination? Check all that apply:		pes the Lead Agency define "income" for the purposes of eligibility at the point of etermination? Check all that apply:
	i.	
	ii.	oxtimes Disability or unemployment compensation.
	iii.	
	iv.	⊠ Spousal support, child support.
	v.	oxtimes Survivor and retirement benefits.
	vi.	oxtimes Rent for room within the family's residence.
	vii.	☑ Pensions or annuities.
	viii.	☐ Inheritance.
	ix.	☐ Public assistance.

- x.
 \times Other. Describe: Income includes money received from such sources as wages, self-employment, property rentals, pensions, benefits, and contributions. Kansas divides income into two types: earned and unearned income. Earned income is income which is received as wages, salary, or profit resulting from the performance of services, including managerial responsibilities, by the family. Unearned income is any income that is not earned and may be derived from benefits (unemployment compensation, Social Security, Veterans Affairs, etc.), pensions, contributions, and settlements. There are no income deductions used in determining eligibility for child care services.
- d. What is the effective date for these income eligibility limits? *April 1, 2024*
- e. Income limits must be established and reported in terms of current SMI based on the most recent data published by the Bureau of the Census, even if the federal poverty level is used in implementing the program.

What federal data does the Lead Agency use when reporting the income eligibility limits?

- ☑ LIHEAP. If checked, provide the publication year of the LIHEAP guideline estimates used by the Lead Agency: 2023
- ☑ Other. Describe: 2024 Federal Poverty Guidelines
- f. Provide the direct URL/website link, if available, for the income eligibility limits. https://content.dcf.ks.gov/EES/KEESM/Appendix/F-1MonthlyFamilyIncomeAndFamilyShareDeductionSchedule.xlsx

2.2.5 Income eligibility: irregular fluctuations in earnings

Lead Agencies must take into account irregular fluctuations in earnings in initial eligibility determination and redetermination processes. The Lead Agency must ensure that temporary increases in income, including temporary increases that can result in a monthly income exceeding 85 percent of SMI from seasonal employment or other temporary work schedules, do not affect eligibility or family co-payments.

Check the processes that the Lead Agency uses to take into account irregular fluctuations in earnings.

- i. extstyle Average the family's earnings over a period of time (e.g., 12 months). Identify the period of time: <math>30 days.
- ii. Request earning statements that are most representative of the family's monthly income.
- iii. extstyle extstyle

iv. Other. Describe the other ways the Lead Agency takes into account irregular fluctuations in earnings: A prospective (income estimate or conversion) or income average method of budgeting is used to determine eligibility and amount of assistance. Earned income information is analyzed to accurately prospect income. Past information is evaluated to determine if it represents the future. Paystubs provided are evaluated to determine if any are not reflective of future earnings, such as a high check due to one-time overtime or a bonus, a low check due to illness or missed work, or a first partial check. If overtime, bonuses, or commissions are on the pay stub, these are evaluated to determine whether this income is recurring. If the person is employed where tips are paid, it is determined if tips are actual or allocated. (Certain employers must allocate tips if the percentage of tips reported by employees falls below a required minimum percentage of gross sales. To "allocate tips" means to assign an additional amount as tips to each employee whose reported tips are below the required percentage.) Pay information provided is evaluated to determine if there was a recent pay raise that will impact future earnings. If the recent past 30 days is reflective of the future, that information is used and documented to support the determination. If the past 30 days are not reflective of future earnings due to fluctuating income, more paystubs are obtained to project future income.

2.2.6 Family asset limit

a.	not have assets that exceed \$1,000,000?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
b.	Does the Lead Agency waive the asset limit on a case-by-case basis for families defined as receiving, or in need of, protective services?
	□ No.
	Yes. If yes, describe the policy or procedure: KEESM 5140 states that the resource limit is waived for families in which at least one person receives Cash Assistance, families receiving Food Assistance when at least one adult is participating in the Food Assistance Education and Training program, as well as for families receiving child care for a qualified social service reason or participating in the Kansas Early Head Start/Child Care Partnership program. Families defined as receiving or in need of protective services are those receiving child care for a qualified social service reason.

2.2.7 Additional eligibility criteria

Aside from the eligibility conditions or rules which have been described in 2.2.1 - 2.2.6, is any additional eligibility criteria applied during:

- ☐ Eligibility determination? If checked, describe: Although Kansas currently provides child a. care for all families who apply and meet financial and non-financial eligibility criteria, priority rules exist for eligibility determination in the event of a wait list. Priority areas include: 1) Families participating in Work Programs who are receiving Cash Assistance or food assistance, and Tribal recipients; 2) Families receiving child care for a qualified Social Service reason; 3) Families no longer eligible for Cash Assistance transitioning to employment whose income is at or below 250% of the federal poverty level; 4) Teen parents completing high school/GED; 5) Families who claim to be homeless (selfdeclaration is accepted) and need child care to maintain employment or participate in an approved educational plan; and 6) Employed families whose income is at or below 250% of the federal poverty level. Additional eligibility requirements include that a person must apply and be able to act on their own behalf. The client must supply information essential to the establishment of eligibility or give written permissions for release of information when needed. The family and the child must live in Kansas. They must provide requested income information and meet the income limits, the identity of the person making the application and any other adult in the household will need to be verified, the family must pass the resource test, and documentation of US citizenship or of eligible non-citizen status for the children being applied for will be needed. If parents are absent from the home, the one in the home must work with Child Support Enforcement unless good cause for not cooperating is established. To be eligible, the client must have a qualifying personal need for child care and care for a child that is under the age of 13 or 13 through 18 if the child is incapable of caring for themselves.
- b. ☐ Eligibility redetermination? If checked, describe: At redetermination, unless financial eligibility requirements are waived, a family's countable income must be at or below 85% of the State Median Income for eligibility to continue. At redetermination, many of the same additional eligibility requirements remain. The person must complete the renewal application and continue to be able to act on their own behalf. The client must supply information essential to the establishment of eliqibility or give written permissions for release of information when needed. The family and the child must live in Kansas. They must provide requested income information and meet the income limits, the identity of the person making the application and any other adult in the household will need to be verified unless previously verified, the family must pass the resource test, and documentation of US citizenship or of eligible non-citizen status for the children being applied for will be needed unless previously provided. If parents are absent from the home, the one in the home must work with Child Support Enforcement unless good cause for not cooperating is established. To be eligible, the client must have a qualifying personal need for child care and care for a child that is under the age of 13 or 13 through 18 if the child is incapable of caring for themselves.

2.2.8 Documentation of eligibility determination

Lead Agencies must document and verify that children receiving CCDF funds meet eligibility criteria at the time of eligibility determination and redetermination.

Check the information that the Lead Agency documents and verifies at initial determination and redetermination and describe what information is required and how often.

Required at Initial Determination	Required at Redetermination	Description
		Applicant identity. Describe how you verify: At application, the identity of the person making application and any other adult in the assistance household is verified. Identity of any new adult added to the household during the eligibility period is also verified for all adults. Identity may be verified with any number of documents, including a driver's license, voter registration, religious record, or school record - no specific document is required. This does not need reverified at redetermination if previously verified for each required individual.
		Applicant's relationship to the child. Describe how you verify: Click or tap here to enter text.
		Child's information for determining eligibility (e.g., identity, age, citizen/immigration status). Describe how you verify: Documentation of date of birth must be provided for each child for whom child care assistance is requested and must only be verified one time. Date of birth may be verified by any documents which reasonably establish the child's date of birth. Documentation of U.S. citizenship is required for everyone for whom child care is requested. US Citizenship may be verified with a birth certificate, religious records, certificates of citizenship or naturalization, U.S. passport, or receipt of medical assistance if verification of citizenship was obtained. If the above forms of documentation cannot be obtained and the individual can provide a reasonable explanation as to why documentation is not available, the agency accepts a signed statement form some who is a U.S. citizen who declares, under penalty of perjury, that the person in question is a U.S. citizen. This verification is only required one time. This does not need reverified at redetermination if previously verified for each required individual.
		Work. Describe how you verify: Work/school schedule is needed to write child care plan and determine benefits. When employment is the reason for child care and it is not related to cash assistance, it must be documented that adults included in the child care case is employed a minimum of 20 hours per week. This is verified at initial application, at review, and with reported changes that increase the need for child care. Reviews occur after 12 full months of assistance. This 12 full month eligibility period starts the 1st day of the month following the month that

Required at Initial Determination	Required at Redetermination	Description
		benefits are authorized or the first month for which benefits are authorized, whichever is later.
		Job training or educational program. Describe how you verify: Clients participating in job training or educational programs are required to complete a form that includes their occupational goal and estimated date of completion of their programs. That form is maintained in the case file. This form is only required one time of each new job training or educational program which is approved.
		Family income. Describe how you verify: Check stubs or employer statements are used to document income. Kansas Department for Children and Families requests most recent 30 days of pay stubs and 3 months of child support income received when available. Income is verified at initial application, with reported changes and at review. Reviews occur after 12 full months of assistance. This 12 full month eligibility period starts the 1st day of the month following the month that benefits are authorized or the first month for which benefits are authorized, whichever is later.
		Household composition. Describe how you verify: Household information is documented on the application form and attested to by the applicant through the application and signature process. The applicant's statement is accepted to document household composition. This includes the relationship of the household members that may be required to be included in the child care case.
		Applicant residence. Describe how you verify: This information is documented on the application or redetermination form and attested to by the applicant through the application and signature process. Reviews occur after 12 full months of assistance. This 12 full month eligibility period starts the 1st day of the month following the month that benefits are authorized or the first month for which benefits are authorized, whichever is later.
		Other. Describe how you verify: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .

2.2.9 Exception to TANF work requirements

Lead Agencies must ensure that families with young children participating in TANF will be informed of their right not to be sanctioned under the TANF work requirement if the custodial

parent has a demonstrated inability to obtain child care for a child under age six, in accordance with Section 407(e)(2) of the Social Security Act.

- a. Identify the TANF agency that established these criteria or definitions: *Kansas Department* for Children and Families
- b. Provide the following definitions established by the TANF agency:
 - i. "Appropriate child care": "Appropriate child care": A regulated facility that meets or exceeds minimum licensing regulations. If requested and enrolled with the Kansas Department for Children, this can include a non-regulated legally exempt provider who has completed a Health and Safety Standards Checklist and maintains a facility that meets or exceeds minimum standards.
 - ii. "Reasonable distance": Total daily transport time to and from home and to the child care provider not to exceed 2 hours. If a longer transport time is generally accepted in the community, the round-trip time shall not exceed the generally accepted community standards.
 - iii. "Unsuitability of informal child care": Care for which the agency would not enter into a Provider Agreement (such as a relative unwilling to care for a child; documentation of family services/protective services case histories).
 - iv. "Affordable child care arrangements": Care for which the family has the ability to pay the cost through sufficient income or assistance through child care subsidy program. The definition of sufficient income to pay for the cost of child care is based on client self-declaration.
- c. How are parents who receive TANF benefits informed about the exception to the individual penalties associated with the TANF work requirements?
 - i. \boxtimes In writing
 - ii. ⊠ Verbally

2.3 Prioritizing Services for Vulnerable Children and Families

Lead Agencies must give priority for child care assistance to children with special needs, families with very low incomes (considering family size), and children experiencing homelessness. A Lead Agency has the flexibility to prioritize other populations of children.

Note: Statute defines children with disabilities, and CCDF rule gives flexibility to Lead Agencies to include vulnerable populations in their definition of children with special needs.

CCDF defines "child experiencing homelessness" as a child who is homeless, as defined in Section 725 of Subtitle VII-B of the McKinney-Vento Act (42 U.S.C. 11434a).

2.3.1 Lead Agency definition of priority groups

Describe how the Lead Agency defines:

- a. "Children with special needs." A child who requires special services due to developmental/intellectual or social emotional disabilities, sensory or motor impairment, or chronic illness. Child Care benefits may be provided to protect children who cannot protect themselves from abuse, neglect, and exploitation, to enable a child to remain in the home while the parent(s) work toward rehabilitation or when the child is at risk of a health or social condition which may adversely affect the child. The social service child care reason is used for this purpose and may include: 1. "Parents with Crisis": a. Parent hospitalized or otherwise temporarily unable to provide adequate care for the child. This could be inpatient or outpatient, for physical health, mental health, or substance abuse treatment. There is no other adult to care for the child. b. Family in the process of Kansas Department for Children and Families Intake and Assessment through Prevention and Protection Services (PPS). c. Family receiving services through a family preservation contractor or Kansas Department for Children and Families PPS Social Worker. 2. Juvenile offenders in the custody of the Kansas Department of Corrections - Juvenile Services when the foster parent is employed and needs child care. 3. Children in Foster Care who are in the custody of the Secretary of Kansas Department for Children and Families who have been placed with a relative or non-related kin not licensed for Foster Care. This does not include foster children placed in a licensed foster home, as child care for those children is provided by the state's foster care contractors. 4. Children whose caretaker has placed them with a "Safe Families for Children" host family due to a family crisis, thereby avoiding placement of the children in Foster Care. These children are not in Foster Care. Child care for these children must be needed due to the employment or education/training of the adults in the "Safe Families for Children" host family. Parents Performing Essential Functions during a Disaster or Emergency. When a disaster or emergency has been declared by Kansas Government and child care is needed for parents to continue performing essential functions, eligibility for Child Care Assistance may be granted under the social service need reason. When a disaster or emergency has been declared, specific quidance will be provided in a separate Policy Memo for each event due to the limitations of funds and variations in the number of parents who may be eligible. Any financial eliqibility tests applicable for these families will be outlined in the Policy Memo. In addition to an application, reasonable verification that the parent performs an essential function that was approved in the Policy Memo will be required.
- b. "Families with very low incomes." Families participating in work programs who are receiving Cash Assistance or Food Assistance or who are Tribal TANF Work Program recipients.

2.3.2 Prioritization of child care services

Identify how the Lead Agency will prioritize child care services for the following children and families.

a. Complete the table below to indicate how the identified populations are prioritized.

Population Prioritized	Prioritize for enrollment in child care services	Serve without placing on waiting list	Waive co- payments as described in 3.3.1	Pay higher rate for access to higher quality care	Use grants or contracts to reserve spots	Other
Children with special needs	\boxtimes		\boxtimes	\boxtimes		☐ Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
Families with very low incomes	\boxtimes		\boxtimes			☐ Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
Children experiencing homelessness, as defined by CCDF						☐ Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
(Optional) Families receiving TANF, those attempting to transition off TANF, and those at risk of becoming dependent on TANF			×			☐ Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.

b. Does the Lead Agency define any other priority groups? $\hfill \square$ No.

⊠ Yes. If yes, identify the populations prioritized and describe how the Lead Agency prioritizes services: The priority list for Kansas also includes: Families receiving child care for a qualified Social Service reason. (This would include families with a temporary emergency need due to parents with crisis, juvenile offenders in the custody of the Kansas Department of Corrections Juvenile Services when the foster parent is employed and needs child care, children in foster care who are in the custody of the Secretary of the Department for Children and Families who have been placed with a relative or non-related kin not licensed for foster care, children whose caretaker has placed them with a Safe Families for Children host family due to a family crisis, thereby avoiding placement of the children in foster care, and children whose parents are performing essential functions during a disaster or emergency.); Teen parents completing high school/GED; Employed families whose income is at or below 185% of the federal poverty level. Priorities established by the lead agency for Child Care Assistance may be found at Kansas Economic and Employment Services Manual 2840.

2.3.3 Enrollment and grace period for children experiencing homelessness

Lead Agencies must allow (after an initial eligibility determination) children experiencing homelessness to receive CCDF services while required eligibility documentation is obtained.

Lead Agencies must establish a grace period that allows children experiencing homelessness and children in foster care to receive CCDF assistance while providing their families with a reasonable time to take any necessary actions to comply with State, Territory, or local immunization and other health and safety requirements. The length of such a grace period must be established in consultation with the State, Territorial, or Tribal public health agency.

Note: Any payment for such a child during the grace period may not be considered an error or improper payment.

- Describe the strategies to allow CCDF enrollment of children experiencing homelessness a. while required eligibility documentation is obtained: When a child experiencing homelessness needs child care assistance, the agency may delay citizenship verification according to the following policy. This policy can apply to other situations when needed. As per Kansas Economic and Employment Services Manual 2145.1 - Citizenship Documentation Delay for Cash Assistance and Child Care Subsidy the application shall be processed and approved granting a reasonable opportunity period to the individual to provide verification. This period shall be 3 calendar months commencing from the date the case is authorized. If the verification is not received by the end of the reasonable opportunity period, benefits shall end allowing for timely and adequate notice. The reasonable opportunity period may be extended in situations where the individual is making a bona fide effort to obtain the verification, but circumstances outside his/her control are delaying the effort. A decision to extend the period must be thoroughly documented and supported in the case file. As per Kansas Child Care Regulation - The Kansas Department of Health and Environment grants the following allowances in Kansas Child Care Regulation to ease any barriers in community efforts to accommodate displaced families, children, and youth into existing regulated child care facilities. Displaced children and youth entering regulated child care facilities for temporary emergency care not required to provide documentation of current immunizations and health assessment for up to 60 days and facilities must obtain as much information as possible about the children's/youth's health needs including any current medications being taken and any know medication, food, or other allergies.
- b. Describe the grace period for each population below and how it allows them to receive CCDF assistance while providing their families with a reasonable time to take any necessary actions to comply with immunization and other health and safety requirements.
 - i. Provide the policy for a grace period for:

Children experiencing homelessness: Kansas Department of Health and Environment grants the following allowances in Kansas Child Care Regulation to ease any barriers in community efforts to accommodate displaced families, children, and youth into existing regulated child care facilities: Displaced children and youth entering regulated child care facilities for temporary emergency care are not required to provide documentation of current immunizations and health assessment for up to 60 days. Kansas Department of Health and Environment considers a homeless child "displaced". Providers are to obtain as much information as possible about the children's/youth's health needs including any current medications being taken and any known medication, food, or other allergies. If during enrollment for child care subsidy Kansas Department for

Children and Families is unable to verify citizenship, verification shall be waived and a three (3) month reasonable opportunity period for the individual to provide the information shall be applied. If otherwise eligible, the applicant may be approved for assistance. The individual shall be contacted to provide the information and notified of the reasonable opportunity period.

Children who are in foster care: Kansas Department of Health and Environment grants the following allowances in Kansas Child Care Regulation to ease any barriers in community efforts to accommodate displaced families, children, and youth into existing regulated child care facilities: Displaced children and youth entering regulated child care facilities for temporary emergency care are not required to provide documentation of current immunizations and health assessment for up to 60 days. Providers are to obtain as much information as possible about the children's/youth's health needs including any current medications being taken and any known medication, food, or other allergies. If during enrollment for child care subsidy Kansas Department for Children and Families is unable to verify citizenship, verification shall be waived and a three (3) month reasonable opportunity period for the individual to provide the information shall be applied. If otherwise eligible, the applicant may be approved for assistance. The individual shall be contacted to provide the information and notified of the reasonable opportunity period.

ii.	Does the Lead Agency certify that the length of the grace period was established in consultation with the State, Territorial, or Tribal public health agency?
	⊠ Yes.
	☐ No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>

c. Describe how the Lead Agency coordinates with licensing agencies and other relevant State, Territorial, Tribal, and local agencies to provide referrals and support to help families with children receiving services during a grace period comply with immunization and other health and safety requirements: Kansas Department for Children and Families designed an Early Childhood Program Services brochure and distributed to Food Assistance Programs across the state, which included The Emergency Food Assistance Program, Commodity Supplemental Food Program sites, soup kitchens, food banks and homeless shelters. Programs were asked to post the information and share with families utilizing their programs. The brochure is emailed out annually and may be accessed on Kansas Department for Children and Families' website. It includes information for early childhood programs in Kansas such as Early Head Start, Head Start, Part C Infant-Toddler Services, Part B Special Education Services and Parents as Teachers. Another informational document that was developed and distributed to all Head Start and Early Head Start programs was the McKinney- Vento and Head Start: Ensuring Access to Early Education. This resource guide was designed to provide information on where the McKinney-Vento Programs are located and how to contact a local McKinney-Vento liaison. The purpose of this document is to promote better communication and coordination between Head Start and the local school districts. In addition, Kansas Department for Children and Families has awarded funding for a Statewide Infant-Toddler Network to Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities and funding for Consumer Education/Resource & Referral services awarded to Child Care Aware of Kansas (CCAK). Both contracts address homelessness education and outreach as part of these agreements. The Kansas Child Care Regulation through the Kansas Department of Health and Environment, which is funded primarily through lead agency CCDF funding, granted a policy exception that allows any child experiencing displacement due to a natural disaster, foster care placement or homelessness be permitted for enrollment while documentation of immunizations and/or a heath assessment is obtained. A facility is allowed up to 60 days to obtain documents. This was shared publicly by emails and letters to all licensed child care providers and sponsoring agencies. Per the instructions in the email and/or letters the exception will be posted next to the providers license on the parent board in plain view for everyone to see. This information and these instructions were also added to the Kansas Department of Health and Environment's website. Communication about this policy is also part of the onsite survey process, where surveyors are expected to inquire and ask questions when children's files are incomplete. The Child Care Facility Surveyor Policy and Procedure Manual explains to the surveyors that documentation of current immunizations and health assessments are not required for up to 60 days for displaced children and youth. This policy was clarified with surveyors as this directive included all home displacement scenarios. An email directive along with all Kansas Department of Health and Environment nonregulatory consultation reminders was provided to the surveyors. Surveyors participate in quarterly training which always include retraining on the correct use of violations and consultations. Kansas Department of Health and Environment reviews all field violations and/or consultations statewide quarterly to ensure correct application. If violations are noted in which a consultation should have been offered, an immediate correction will be made with the surveyor and the notice provided to the facility will be amended. An explanation of the policy was added to the Kansas Department for Children and Families Provider Handbook given to all providers who apply to become a Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider. To ensure that families are aware of these policies, along with having providers post the information on the parent boards, this wording regarding the policy was added to the Parent/Provider Partnership Handbook in October 2022. It has also been added to the Child Care in Kansas Consumer Education Website. This policy is found in the Kansas Economic and Employment Services Manual 10034.

2.4 Lead Agency Outreach to Families Experiencing Homelessness, Families with Limited English Proficiency, and Persons with Disabilities

The Lead Agency must conduct outreach and provide services to families with limited English proficiency, families experiencing homelessness, and persons with disabilities.

- 2.4.1 Families with limited English proficiency and persons with disabilities: outreach and services
 - a. Check the strategies the Lead Agency or partners utilize to conduct outreach and provide services to eligible families with limited English proficiency. Check all that apply.
 - i. Application in languages other than English (application and related documents, brochures, provider notices).
 - ii.

 Informational materials in languages other than English.
 - iii.

 Website in languages other than English.
 - iv. \square Lead Agency accepts applications at local community-based locations.
 - v.

 Bilingual caseworkers or translators available.
 - vi.

 Bilingual outreach workers.
 - vii. Partnerships with community-based organizations.
 - viii.

 Collaboration with Head Start, Early Head Start, or Migrant and Seasonal Head Start.
 - ix. \square Home visiting programs.
 - x.
 Solution Other. Describe: The agency's workforce development contractor, Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities provides coursework in Spanish, taught by a bi-lingual instructor. The agency's Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership grantees have translation services available and most have bilingual staff available. The KEHS grantees work with the Lead Agency to identify families in their service area that qualify for assistance.
 - b. Check the strategies the Lead Agency or partners utilize to conduct outreach and provide services to eligible families with a person(s) with a disability. Check all that apply.
 - i. Applications and public informational materials available in braille and other communication formats for access by individuals with disabilities.
 - ii. Mebsites that are accessible (e.g., Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act).

 - iv. \boxtimes Ensuring accessibility of environments and activities for all children.

- v. \boxtimes Partnerships with State and local programs and associations focused on disability- related topics and issues.
- vi. \boxtimes Partnerships with parent associations, support groups, and parent-to-parent support groups, including the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) federally funded Parent Training and Information Centers.
- vii. \boxtimes Partnerships with State and local IDEA Part B, Section 619 and Part C providers and agencies.
- viii.

 Availability and/or access to specialized services (e.g., mental health, behavioral specialists, therapists) to address the needs of all children.
- ix.

 Other. Describe: The Lead Agency's Kansas Early Head Start program works with the agency to identify and recruit families in their service areas that qualify for assistance. Kansas Early Head Start Makes 10% of their funded enrollment opportunities available for children with disabilities.
- 2.4.2 Families experiencing homelessness: Outreach and technical assistance efforts
 - a. Check, where applicable, the procedures used to conduct outreach for children experiencing homelessness and their families.
 - i. \square Lead Agency accepts applications at local community-based locations.
 - ii. \square Partnerships with community-based organizations.
 - iii.

 Partnering with homeless service providers, McKinney-Vento liaisons, and others who work with families experiencing homelessness to provide referrals to child care.
 - iv. \square Other. Describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - b. The Lead Agency must provide training and technical assistance (TA) to providers and appropriate Lead Agency (or designated entity) staff on identifying and serving children and families experiencing homelessness.
 - i. Describe the Lead Agency's training and TA efforts for providers in identifying and serving children and their families experiencing homelessness. Lead Agency identifies this topic as a CCDF priority course in the Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement. At a minimum, the course must cover identifying, serving, and providing resources for families experiencing homelessness under the McKinney-Vento definition. The course, Recognizing and Supporting Families Experiencing Homelessness, is available through our Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement. Another course, Trauma and Adverse Childhood Experiences, incorporates homelessness into this course to assist providers in finding strategies to develop resiliency in young children. Infant-Toddler Specialist Network offers specialists who are available with the knowledge and skills to provide technical assistance on serving special populations that includes homelessness.

Describe the Lead Agency's training and TA efforts for Lead Agency (or designated entity) staff in identifying and serving children and their families experiencing homelessness. Lead Agency staff throughout the state are involved in varying ways with targeted work with families experiencing homelessness and have been involved in a variety of training and technical assistance efforts to complete this work. In the East region, staff participate in the Topeka Impact Project, where Economic and Employment services staff members are present at the community center to work with individuals on their applications and updates to their cases every other Thursday. Employment Service staff help clients navigate to partners or talk about next steps in their employment preparations. The Wichita region has out- stationed staff at various homeless shelters and homes for victims of domestic violence one day a week. The Wichita region has staff located at Women's Recovery Center five days a week. Staff members attend monthly homeless initiatives and board meetings, and report back what they are doing to help inform other case managers and provide updated information. They have provided technical assistance in daily meetings with eligibility staff about services provided. The Wichita region also has a Supervisor on the Child Start Policy Council to provide monthly updates regarding Department for Children and Families' business and programs. Eligibility staff connect clients to Child Start staff with outstationed workers to fulfill training and resource needs, and to answer policy questions. Child Start representatives spend intermittent days in the Wichita Service Center lobby connecting clients with services and recruiting for their program. The Kansas City region participate in the Impact Kansas City Kansas event where staff attend and participate. They also participate in Project Home with Shawnee Mission Schools and Impact Olathe with Olathe Schools. These events are outreach-connection events that provide holistic services and supports to those families identified by the McKinney-Vento school liaison. Families identified are then directed to specific staff for interview and overview of available services. Kansas City Community Affairs staff also attend many community agency meetings and provide contact for any needed services that is identified for any household or agency staff. Economic and Employment Services staff also provide direct training for programs, including child care, to community agency staff as requested. The training for the Kansas City staff is hands-on. Bridges Out of Poverty Training is a common training for new staff within Economic and Employment Services.

2.5 Promoting Continuity of Care

Lead Agencies must consider children's development and promote continuity of care when authorizing child care services and must establish a minimum 12-month period for each child, both at the initial eligibility determination and redetermination.

2.5.1 Children's development

ii.

Describe how the Lead Agency's eligibility, enrollment, reporting, and redetermination policies promote continuity of care in order to support children's development. *Child care policy specifically states that child care and family plans are developed on a case-by-case basis depending on the needs of the parent and the child. The Child Care Assistance program coordinates with Head Start, Prekindergarten, other learning programs and school age programs to create a package of*

arrangements that accommodates parents' work schedules. The child care assistance program partners with Kansas Early Head Start to provide child care for families participating in the Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership Program, serving families with children with multiple risk factors and accommodating the parents' work schedules as well as time needed to work on those other risk factors. Licensed Head Start and Kansas Pre-School Programs may enter into an agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families to provide wrap around care for families eligible for child care subsidy. In writing child care plans, consideration is given to a child's Individualized Education Plan or Individual Family Services Plan if applicable. Families applying for Child Care Assistance may apply for Cash Assistance and/or Food Assistance at the same time submitting only one application, and eligibility for the three programs may be determined simultaneously. Families are provided with a link to the Child Care in Kansas with information about other services they may need. When eligibility is determined, plans are written for 12 full months of eligibility, with that period beginning the month after benefits are authorized or the first full month of eligibility, whichever is later. No interview is required at application or review. Following approval of eligibility, parents/caretakers are only required to report if their gross income increases to more than 85% of the State Median Income, changes in residence, and changes in their choice of a child care provider and/or hours of care needed or used, including when child care is no longer being used, or has not been used for an entire calendar month. At review, it is not required to reverify general eligibility factors, but it must be verified that income remains below 85% of the State Median Income.

2.5.2 Minimum 12-month eligibility

Lead Agencies must establish a minimum 12-month eligibility period for each child, both at the initial eligibility determination and at redetermination to support continuity in child care assistance and reduce barriers to families retaining eligibility. This requirement is:

- Regardless of changes in income, Lead Agencies may not terminate CCDF assistance during the minimum 12-month period if a family has an increase in income that exceeds the Lead Agency's income eligibility threshold but not the federal threshold of 85 percent of SMI; and
- Regardless of temporary changes in participation in work, training, or educational activities.

a.	Does the Lead Agency certify that their policies or procedures provide a minimum 12-month eligibility period for each child at initial eligibility determination?
	⊠ Yes.
	☐ No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
h	Does the Lead Agency certify that its definition of "temporary change" includes each of

- b. Does the Lead Agency certify that its definition of "temporary change" includes each of the minimum required elements?
 - 1. Any time-limited absence from work for an employed parent due to such reasons as the need to care for a family member or an illness.
 - 2. Any interruption in work for a seasonal worker who is not working between regular industry work seasons.
 - 3. Any student holiday or break for a parent participating in a training or educational program.

- 4. Any reduction in work, training, or education hours, as long as the parent is still working or attending a training or educational program.
- 5. Any cessation of work or attendance at a training or educational program not listed above. In these cases only, Lead Agencies may establish a period of 3 months or longer.
- 6. Any change in age, including a child turning 13 years old during the minimum 12-month eligibility period.
- 7. Any changes in residency within the State or Territory.

 ⊠ Yes.
- c. Are the policies different for redetermination?

☐ No. If no, describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

⊠ No.

 \square Yes. If yes, provide the additional/varying policies for redetermination: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

2.5.3 Job search and continued assistance

- a. Does the Lead Agency consider seeking employment (engaging in a job search) as an eligible activity at initial eligibility determination and/or at the minimum 12-month eligibility redetermination? (Note: If yes, Lead Agencies must provide a minimum of 3 months of job search.) Check all that apply:

 - iii. \boxtimes No. The Lead Agency does not consider seeking employment (engaging in a job search) as an eligible activity at initial eligibility determination or redetermination.
- b. Does the Lead Agency continue assistance during the minimum 12-month eligibility period when a parent has a non-temporary loss or cessation of eligible activity?

 \square Yes. The Lead Agency continues assistance.

☑ No, the Lead Agency discontinues assistance.

- i. If no, describe the Lead Agency's policies for discontinuing assistance due to a parent's non-temporary change: When a non-temporary change is reported, lead agency staff notify the parent that they have a three-month period in which to reestablish participation in an eligible activity, and they are given a deadline to report their resumption of an eligible activity. If there is no response from the parent by the deadline given, child care assistance is ended at the end of the third month. If the parent reports that they have resumed an eligible activity, child care assistance continues through the remainder of the 12-month eligibility period. During that period, benefits continue at the same number of hours as before, and the family share deduction may go down if income level has decreased. There is no limit to the number of times a family may be eligible for a three-month period of continued receipt of benefits to re-establish participation in an eligible activity.
- ii. If no, describe what specific actions/changes trigger the job-search period after each such loss or cessation: *The job search period is triggered when the parent is no longer participating in an eligible activity.*
- iii. If no, how long is the job-search period where a family can continue assistance (must be at least 3 months)? *Three months.*
- c. The Lead Agency may discontinue assistance prior to the next minimum 12-month redetermination in the limited circumstances listed below. Check and provide the policy for all circumstances in which the Lead Agency chooses to discontinue assistance prior to the next minimum 12-month redetermination:
 - i. \square Not applicable.
 - ii. \boxtimes Excessive unexplained absences despite multiple attempts by the Lead Agency or designated entity to contact the family and provider, including the prior notification of a possible discontinuation of assistance.

Provide the Lead Agency's policy defining the number of unexplained absences identified as excessive: If the parent stops using their child care benefits or stops paying the provider with whom their child care plan is written, this is considered a possible indicator of excessive absences. The agency sends a notice at 60 days advising the parent that their benefits (non)usage has been noted, and that they need to either pay their provider or contact the agency to make needed changes in their plan. If the parent has not remedied the situation at 90 days, the child care plans are ended. A notice is sent to the family at that time letting them know about the closure and giving them the opportunity to contact the agency. Providers are notified that the plans will be ending. Kansas Economic and Employment Services Manual 7640.

iii.

A change in residency outside of the State or Territory.

Provide the Lead Agency's policy for a change in residency outside the State or Territory: When a recipient moves out of state. These cases will be closed allowing for timely and adequate notice. Kansas Economic and Employment Services Manual 7640.

iv. \boxtimes Substantiated fraud or intentional program violations that invalidate prior determinations of eligibility.

Provide the Lead Agency's definition of fraud/intentional program violations that lead to discontinued assistance: When a family for whom verification was delayed at initial eligibility subsequently fails to provide the required verification. These cases or plans will be closed allowing for timely and adequate notice.

2.5.4 Reporting changes during the minimum 12-month eligibility period

Lead Agencies may only require families to report changes that impact a family's eligibility, including only if the family's income exceeds 85 percent of the SMI, taking into account irregular fluctuations in income, or there is a non-temporary change in the parent's work, training, or education status, during the 12-month eligibility period. Lead Agencies may also require families to report that enable the lead agency to contact the family or pay providers, such as a new telephone number or address.

Note: The response below should exclude reporting requirements for a graduated phase-out, which are described in question 2.5.5.

Does the Lead Agency limit what families must report during the 12-month eligibility period to the changes described above?

 \boxtimes Yes.

☐ No. If no, describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

2.5.5 Policies and procedures for graduated phase-out of assistance at redetermination

Lead Agencies that establish initial family income eligibility below 85 percent of SMI must provide a graduated phase-out of assistance for families whose income has increased above the Lead Agency's initial income threshold at the time of redetermination but remains below the federal threshold of 85 percent of SMI.

Lead Agencies that provide a graduated phase-out must implement a two-tiered eligibility threshold, with the second tier of eligibility (used at the time of eligibility redetermination) to be set at:

- (i) 85 percent of SMI for a family of the same size; or,
- (ii) An amount lower than 85 percent of SMI for a family of the same size but above the Lead Agency's initial eligibility threshold that:
 - (A) Takes into account the typical household budget of a family with a low income
 - (B) Provides justification that the second eligibility threshold is:
 - (1) Sufficient to accommodate increases in family income over time that are typical for workers with low incomes and that promote and support family economic stability
 - (2) Reasonably allows a family to continue accessing child care services without unnecessary disruption

At redetermination, a child must be considered eligible if their parents are participating in an eligible activity even if their income exceeds the Lead Agency's initial eligibility income limit as long as their income does not exceed the second tier of eligibility. Note that once determined

eligible, the child must be considered eligible for a full minimum 12-month eligibility period, even if the parents' income exceeds the second tier of eligibility during the eligibility period, as long as it does not exceed 85 percent of SMI.

A child eligible for services via the graduated phase-out of assistance is considered eligible under the same conditions as other eligible children with the exception of the co-payment restrictions, which do not apply to a graduated phase-out. To help families transition from child care assistance, Lead Agencies may gradually adjust co-payment amounts in proportion to a family's income growth for families whose children are determined eligible under a graduated phase-out. Lead Agencies may require additional reporting on changes in family income but must still ensure that any additional reporting requirements do not constitute an undue burden on families.

Check and describe the option that best identifies the Lead Agency's policies and procedures regarding the graduated phase-out of assistance.

a.	☑ Not applicable. The Lead Agency sets its initial eligibility threshold at 85 percent of SMI and therefore is not required to provide a graduated phase-out period. (If checked, skip to question 3.1.1.)						
b.		☐ The Lead Agency sets the second tier of eligibility at 85 percent of SMI. If checked, describe the policies and procedures: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .					
	i.	□ Lead Agency adjusts the family's co-pay during the graduated phase-out period. If checked, describe how the Lead Agency gradually adjusts co-payment for families under a graduated phase-out period in proportion to a family's income growth. Include information on the percentage or amount of change made in the co-payment during graduated phase-out: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .					
	ii.	☐ Lead Agency requires additional reporting requirements during the graduated phase-out period. If checked, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .					
c.		Lead Agency sets the second tier of eligibility at an amount lower than 85 percent for a family of the same size but above the Lead Agency's initial eligibility					

- i. Provide the income level (\$/month) and the percent of SMI for the second tier of eligibility for a family of three: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- ii. Describe how the second eligibility threshold takes into account the typical household budget of a low-income family: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

threshold. If checked, provide the following information:

- iii. Describe how the second eligibility threshold is sufficient to accommodate increases in family income over time that are typical for low-income workers and that promote and support family economic stability: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- iv. Describe how the second eligibility threshold reasonably allows a family to continue accessing child care services without unnecessary disruption: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

- v.
 \[
 \sum_{\text{Lead}} \text{Agency adjusts the family's co-pay during the graduated phase-out period. If checked, describe how the Lead Agency gradually adjusts co-payment for families under a graduated phase-out period in proportion to a family's income growth. Include information on the percentage or amount of change made in the co-payment during graduated phase-out: Click or tap here to enter text.
- vi. Lead Agency requires additional reporting requirements during the graduated phase-out period. If checked, describe: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

3 Child Care Affordability

CCDF subsidies make child care more affordable for eligible families, providing access to a greater range of child care options that allow parents to work, go to school, or enroll in training and they allow parents to access higher quality care options that better support children's development. CCDF requires some families participating in CCDF to pay an affordable co-payment set by the Lead Agency to cover a part of their care. But co-payments can be a significant and destabilizing financial strain on family budgets and a barrier to parent employment, and the CCDBG Act requires that the co-payment amount not be a barrier to families participating in CCDF. Lead Agencies may not set parent co-payments above 7% of family income regardless of gradual phase-out policies and regardless of the number of children receiving assistance. Lead Agencies are encouraged to set co-payments much lower than 7% to make child care more affordable for more families and have broad flexibility to waive co-payments for many participants. Lead Agencies must ensure that the total payment to a child care provider is not reduced because of a family's lowered or waived co-payment.

In this section, Lead Agencies will identify how they determine an eligible family's co-payment, the policies in place to waive or ensure co-payments are affordable for families, and how the Lead Agency improves access for children and families in economically and/or socially marginalized communities.

3.1 Family Co-payments

Lead Agencies must establish and periodically revise a sliding-fee scale for families receiving CCDF services that varies based on income and the size of the family to determine each family's contribution (i.e., co-payment) and does not create a barrier to receiving CCDF assistance. In addition to income and the size of the family, the Lead Agency may use other factors as appropriate when determining family contributions/co-payments. Lead Agencies may not use price of care or amount of subsidy payment in determining co-payments. Lead Agencies must ensure that the total payment to a child care provider is not reduced because of a family's lowered or waived co-payment.

3.1.1 Family co-payment

Lead Agencies may not charge any family more than 7% of a family's gross income, regardless of the number of children participating in CCDF.

a. What is the maximum percent of a family's gross income any family could be charged as a co-payment? The maximum amount of a family share deduction assigned to a case is 3% of the family's countable gross income.

	b.	Does the	e Lead Agency	certify that t	heir sliding fee	e scales are al	ways based o	n income and
		family si	ze (regardless	of how many	different scal	es they may i	use)?	
		extstyle ext						
		☐ No. If	no, describe:	Click or tap h	ere to enter te	ext.		
3.1.2	Sliding	fee scale						
	Provide			s for eligible f	amilies in the	table(s) belov	w according to	family size
	a.	Is the sli	ding fee scale	set statewide	?			
		⊠ Yes.						
		☐ No. If	no, describe	how the slidir	ng fee scale is s	set: <i>Click or to</i>	ap here to ent	er text.
	b.	-	e the table be		ding fee scale	is not set stat	tewide, compl	ete the table
			Α	В	С	D	Ε	F
		Family Size 1 2 3 4	Lowest income at initial eligibility where the family is first charged a co-pay (greater than \$0). N/A \$1703.01 \$2152.01 \$2600.01	What is the monthly co-payment for a family of this size based on the income level in (A)? N/A \$51 \$65 \$78	What percentage of income is the copayment in (B)? N/A 3.0 3.0 3.0	eligibility where a family is charged a co-pay before a family is no longer eligible. N/A \$4737 \$5851 \$6966	What is the monthly copayment for a family of this size based on the income level in (D)? N/A \$95 \$119 \$144	What percentage of income is this copayment in (E)?
		5	\$3048.01	\$91	3.0	\$8081	\$169	2.1
	C.	What is	the effective (date of the sli	ding-fee scale(s)? <i>April 1, 2</i> 0	024	
	d.	https://d	content.dcf.ks		scale(s): SM/Appendix/ eductionSched			
	e.		co-payment		ers to charge for the prov			
		□ No.						
		⊠ Yes.						
		If yes:						

- i. Provide the rationale for the Lead Agency's policy to allow providers to charge families additional amounts above the required co-payment, including a demonstration of how the policy does not provide a barrier and promotes affordability and access for families: Kansas encourages families to negotiate with providers regarding their terms of payment, including the rate charged and frequency of payment. (Terms of payment are to be included in the parent/provider contract used by all licensed providers.) This encourages increased provider participation in the subsidy program, thereby providing families with more choices in deciding which provider is best for their needs. This also ensures that families are fully informed of private pay child care practices, including the real cost of child care so that it is no surprise if/when they are able to increase their income beyond the eliqibility standards. All child care benefits are issued at the Kansas Department for Children and Families' rate, regardless of the provider's private pay rate. if a provider's private pay is less than the Kansas Department for Children and Families' rate, they may choose to charge families receiving child care assistance up to the Kansas Department for Children and Families rate. If a provider's private pay rate is more than the Kansas Department for Children and Families' rate, they may also charge families receiving child care assistance up to their private pay rate. This policy allows providers to recover some of their costs of providing the care in instances where they may not feel that the market would allow them to charge a private pay rate that is high enough cover those costs.
- ii. Provide data (including data on the size and frequency of such amounts) on the extent to which CCDF providers charge additional amounts to families: (Will be updated for new MRS information) Within our current Market Rate Analysis child care providers who participate in the Kansas Department for Children and Families' subsidy program were asked if they charge families receiving child care assistance the same as private pay families. Just over 82.1% of child care centers and 92.5% of family child care providers reported charging families the same amount whether they received child care assistance or not. No provider reported charging families receiving child care assistance more than private pay families. Providers were asked if they charge families additional fees. Eight hundred twelve (812) providers responded, and of those, of the 220 child care centers responding, 62.3% reported charging additional fees, but only 23.3% of the 592 family child care providers responding reported charging additional fees. Of the 274 providers who responded as to the type of fee charged, the top three for both types of providers were late pick-up fees, late payment fees and enrollment/registration fees. Other fees charged include early drop-off, activity, supply, credit card processing, transportation, curriculum and other fees. Some providers reported charging enrollment/registration fees annually while others only charged those fees once upon initial admission. Most of the other fees are charged only as the situation occurs.

3.2 Calculation of Co-Payment

Lead agencies must calculate a family's contribution (or co-payment), taking into account income and family size, and Lead Agencies may choose to consider other factors in their calculation.

3.2.1 Family co-payment calculation

a.	dolla	is the family's contribution calculated, and to whom is it applied? Check if the fee is a ramount or if the fee is a percent of income below, and then check all that apply r the selection, as appropriate.
	i.	oxtimes The fee is a dollar amount and (check all that apply):
		\Box The fee is per child, with the same fee for each child.
		\Box The fee is per child and is discounted for two or more children.
		\square The fee is per child up to a maximum per family.
		\square No additional fee is charged after a certain number of children.
		oxtimes The fee is per family.
		☐ The contribution schedule varies because it is set locally/regionally (as indicated in 1.2.1). Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
		☑ Other. Describe: The fee applies to most household's whose income is 100% or higher of the Federal Poverty Level and is referred to in Kansas as the "family share deduction". It is based on family size and income and is a set dollar amount that is deducted from the total child care benefit to the family. For families assigned a family share deduction at 3% or less of a family's income. The family share deduction does not apply to: 1) families whose income falls below 100% of the federal poverty level; 2) families in which at least one person receives Cash Assistance; 3) families receiving child care for a qualifying social service reason; 4) two parent families in which one parent is employed and the second parent is participating in Food Assistance Education and Training work programs; 5) families participating in the Kansas Early Head Start/Child Care Partnership program.
	ii.	\square The fee is a percent of income and (check all that apply):
		\square The fee is per child, with the same percentage applied for each child.
		$\hfill\Box$ The fee is per child, and a discounted percentage is applied for two or more children.
		\square The fee is per child up to a maximum per family.
		\square No additional percentage is charged after a certain number of children.
		\square The fee is per family.
		☐ The contribution schedule varies because it is set locally/regionally (as indicated in 1.2.1). Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
		☐ Other. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
b.	each	the Lead Agency use other factors in addition to income and family size to determine family's co-payment? (Lead Agencies may not use price of care or amount of subsidy ent in determining co-payments).
	⊠ No).

		\square Yes.						
		If yes, c	check and describe those additional factors below:					
		i.	\square Number of hours the child is in care. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>					
		ii.	\Box Quality of care (as defined by the Lead Agency). Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.					
		iii.	☐ Other. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .					
	c.		be any other policies the Lead Agency uses in the calculation of family co-payment are it does not create a barrier to access. Check all that apply:					
		i.	$\hfill\Box$ Base co-payments on only a portion of the family's income. For instance, only consider the family income over the federal poverty level.					
		ii.	\Box Base co-payments on the number of children in the family and reduce a portion of the co-payments as the number of children being served increases.					
		iii.	☐ Other. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .					
3.3	Waivir	ng Fam	ily Co-payment					
3.3.1	Waivin	g family	co-payment					
	costs a	nd maxii	d Agency may waive family contributions/co-payments for many families to lower their nd maximize affordability for families. Lead Agencies have broad flexibility in determining the families they will waive co-payments.					
	Does th	ne Lead A	Agency waive family contributions/co-payments?					
			the Lead Agency does not waive any family contributions/co-payments. (Skip to on 4.1.1.)					
		⊠ Yes.	If yes, identify and describe which family contributions/co-payments waived.					
		i.	$\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ $					
		ii.	\Box Families with an income above 100% but at or below 150% of the Federal Poverty Level for families of the same size.					
		iii.	\square Families experiencing homelessness.					
		iv.	\square Families with children with disabilities.					
		٧.	☐ Families enrolled in Head Start or Early Head Start.					
		vi.	☐ Children in foster care or kinship care, or otherwise receiving or needing to receive protective services. Describe the policy: <i>The family share deduction does not apply to families receiving child care for a qualifying social service reason.</i>					

vii. A Families meeting other criteria established by the Lead Agency. Describe the policy: Kansas also waives family contributions/co-payment requirements for families in which at least one person receives Cash Assistance, two-parent families in which one-parent is employed and the second parent is participating in Food Assistance Education and Training work programs.

4 Parental Choice, Equal Access, Payment Rates, and Payment Practices

Core purposes of CCDF are to provide participating parents choice in their child care arrangements and provide their children with equal access to child care compared to those children not participating in CCDF. CCDF requirements approach equal access and parental choice comprehensively to meet these foundational program goals. Providing access to a full range of child care providers helps ensure that families can choose a child care provider that meets their family's needs. CCDF payment rates and practices must be sufficient to support equal access by allowing child care providers to recruit and retain skilled staff, provide high-quality care, and operate in a sustainable way. Supply-building strategies are also essential.

This section addresses many of the CCDF provisions related to equal access, including access to the full range of providers, payment rates for providers, co-payments for families, payment practices, differential payment rates, and other strategies that support parental choice and access by helping to ensure that child care providers are available to serve children participating in CCDF.

In responding to questions in this section, OCC recognizes that each Lead Agency identifies and defines its own categories and types of care. OCC does not expect Lead Agencies to change their definitions to fit the CCDF-defined categories and types of care. For these questions, provide responses that closely match the CCDF categories of care.

4.1 Access to Full Range of Provider Options

Lead Agencies must provide parents a choice of providers and offer assistance with child care services through a child care certificate (or voucher) or with a child care provider that has a grant or contract for the provision of child care services. Lead Agencies are reminded that policies and procedures should not restrict parental access to any type or category of care or provider (e.g., center care, home care, in-home care, for-profit provider, non-profit provider, or faith-based provider, etc.).

4.1.1 Parent choice

Identify any barriers to provider participation, including barriers related to payment rates a. and practices, (including for family child care and in-home providers), based on provider feedback, public comment, and reports to the Lead Agency: (Will be updated with new MRS information) Of participating providers responding to the 2021 market survey with barriers to participation, the following top challenges were identified: difficulty collecting the balance from parents, difficulty meeting eligibility requirements and difficulty with Kansas Department for Children and Families staff. Providers currently not participating indicated their top two reasons they did not participate were because private pay families kept their child care full, and families served did not ask for it. Over 75% of providers responding reported difficulty collecting the balance from parents and over 60% reported parents not wanting to pay the family share (copayment). A total of 1,031 child care providers responded to the survey, representing a little over one fifth (21.6%) of all providers in the state, with 810 providing complete survey responses. Based on earlier such feedback, in October 2020 the lead agency implemented part-time and full-time blocks of time to decrease the balance owed out of the parents' pockets and increase the collection rates.

b.	Does the Lead Agency offer child care assistance through vouchers or certificates?
	⊠ Yes.
	□ No.
c.	Does the Lead Agency offer child care assistance through grants or contracts?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No.

d. Describe how the parent is informed that the child care certificate allows the option to choose from a variety of child care categories, such as private, not-for-profit, faith-based providers; centers; family child care homes; or in-home providers: At application, if an interview is conducted and a family does not already have a provider selected, they are referred to the local resource and referral agency for assistance in locating and selecting a provider who can meet their needs. Also at application, all families are provided with access to the Parent Provider Partnership Handbook which explains the range of provider types available, including licensed day care homes, licensed group day care homes, child care centers, Early Head Start/Head Start, preschools, school-age programs, out-of-home relative care and in-home relative care. For those families who are not interviewed and do not have a provider chosen, the handbook also provides information about resource and referral services and how to select a provider. This handbook is also available to the general public on the agency's public website. There is a link to the handbook on the Kansas Quality Network web page. For those families who already have a provider in mind, if that provider is not currently enrolled with the lead agency, but is interested in it, the provider enrollment staff will help the provider become enrolled.

e. Describe what information is included on the child care certificate: The child care certificate (plan) is issued after the parent has selected a child care provider. It includes the child's name, the provider's name, the hours of child care that were authorized for the child, the family share deduction (co-payment) information, and the amount of child care benefits authorized for the child for each month of the eligibility period. If the family is approved for child care assistance for more than one child, information is included on the plan for each child. This information is not shared directly with the providers by the agency.

4.2 Assess Market Rates and Analyze the Cost of Child Care

To establish subsidy payment rates that ensure equal access, Lead Agencies must collect and analyze statistically valid and reliable data and have the option to conduct either a (1) market rate survey (MRS) reflecting variations in the price to parents of child care services by geographic area, type of provider, and age of child, or (2) an ACF pre-approved alternative methodology, such as a cost estimation model, which estimates the cost of care by incorporating both data and assumptions to estimate what expected costs would be incurred by child care providers and parents under different scenarios. All Lead Agencies must analyze the cost of providing child care through a narrow cost analysis or pre-approved alternative methodology.

Prior to conducting the MRS or pre-approved alternative, Lead Agencies must consult with the State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care (designated or established pursuant to the Head Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9837b(b)(1)(A)(i)) or similar coordinating body, local child care program administrators, local child care resource and referral agencies, and other appropriate entities; and organizations representing child care caregivers, teachers, and directors. Prior to conducting the MRS or pre-approved alternative methodology, Lead Agencies must consult with the State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care (designated or established pursuant to the Head Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9837b(b)(1)(A)(i)) or similar coordinating body, local child care program administrators, local child care resource and referral agencies, and other appropriate entities; and organizations representing child care caregivers, teachers, and directors.

Note: Any Lead Agency considering using an alternative methodology instead of a market rate survey to set payment rates, is required to submit a description of its proposed approach to OCC for pre-approval in advance of developing and conducting the alternative methodology. Advance approval is not required if the Lead Agency plans to implement both an MRS and an alternative methodology to set rates at a percentile of the market rate, but a Lead Agency conducting a limited market rate survey and using it to inform their cost model would need pre-approval for this approach. In its request for ACF pre-approval, a Lead Agency must provide details on the following elements of their proposed alternative methodology:

- Overall approach and rationale for using proposed methodology
- Description of stakeholder engagement
- Data collection timeframe (if applicable)
- Description of the data and assumptions included in the methodology, including how these elements will yield valid and reliable results from the model
- Description of how the methodology will capture the universe of providers, and reflect variations by provider type, age of children, geographic location, and quality

4.2.1 Completion of the market rate survey or ACF pre-approved alternative methodology

Did the Lead Agency conduct a statistically valid and reliable MRS or ACF pre-approved alternative methodology to meet the CCDF requirements to assess child care prices and/or costs and determine payment rates? Check only one based on which methodology was used to determine your payment rates.

- a. \square Market rate survey.
 - i. When were the data gathered (provide a date range; for instance, September December 2023)? Click or tap here to enter text.
- b. \square ACF pre-approved alternative methodology.
 - i. \Box The alternative methodology was completed.
 - ii. \Box The alternative methodology is in process.

If the alternative methodology was completed:

When were the data gathered and when was the study completed? *Click or tap here to enter text.*

Describe any major differences between the pre-approved methodology and the final methodology used to inform payment rates. Include any major changes to stakeholder engagement, data, assumptions or proposed scenarios. *Click or tap here to enter text.*

If the alternative methodology is in progress:

Provide a status on the alternative methodology and timeline (i.e., dates when the alternative methodology activities will be conducted, any completed steps to date, anticipated date of completion, and expected date new rates will be in effect using the alternative methodology). *Click or tap here to enter text*.

c. Consultation on data collection methodology.

Describe when and how the Lead Agency engaged the following partners and how the consultation informed the development and execution of the MRS or alternative methodology, as appropriate.

- State Advisory Council or similar coordinating body: Click or tap here to enter text.
- ii. Local child care program administrators: Click or tap here to enter text.
- iii. Local child care resource and referral agencies: Click or tap here to enter text.
- iv. Organizations representing child care caregivers, teachers, and directors from all settings and serving all ages: Click or tap here to enter text.
- v. Other. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
- d. An MRS must be statistically valid and reliable.

An MRS can use administrative data, such as child care resource and referral data, if it is representative of the market. Please provide the following information about the market rate survey:

When was the market rate survey completed? Click or tap here to enter text.

- ii. What was the time period for collecting the information (e.g., all of the prices in the survey are collected within a three-month time period)? Click or tap here to enter text.
- iii. Describe how it represented the child care market, including what types of providers were included in the survey: Click or tap here to enter text.
- iv. What databases are used in the survey? Are they from multiple sources, including licensing, resource and referral, and the subsidy program? Click or tap here to enter text.
- v. How does the survey use good data collection procedures, regardless of the method for collection (mail, telephone, or web-based survey)? Click or tap here to enter text.
- vi. What is the percent of licensed or regulated child care centers responding to the survey? Click or tap here to enter text.
- vii. What is the percent of licensed or regulated family child care homes responding to the survey? Click or tap here to enter text.
- viii. Describe if the survey conducted in any languages other than English: Click or tap here to enter text.
- ix. Describe if data were analyzed in a manner to determine price of care per child: Click or tap here to enter text.
- x. Describe if data were analyzed from a sample of providers and if so, how the sample was weighted: Click or tap here to enter text.

e. Price variations reflected.

The market rate survey data or ACF pre-approved alternative methodology data must reflect variations in child care prices or cost of child care services in specific categories.

- i. Describe how the market rate survey or pre-approved alternative methodology reflected variation in geographic area (e.g., county, region, urban, rural). Include information on whether parts of the State or Territory were not represented by respondents and include information on how prices or costs could be linked to local geographic areas. Click or tap here to enter text.
- ii. Describe how the market rate survey or pre-approved alternative methodology reflected variation in type of provider (e.g., licensed providers, license-exempt providers, center-based providers, family child care home providers, home based providers). Click or tap here to enter text.
- Describe how the market rate survey or pre-approved alternative methodology reflected age of child (e.g., infant, toddler, preschool, school-age): *Click or tap here to enter text*.
- iv. Describe any other key variations examined by the market rate survey or ACF preapproved alternative methodology, such as quality level: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

4.2.2 Cost analysis

If a Lead Agency does not complete a cost-based pre-approved alternative methodology, they must analyze the cost of providing child care services through a narrow cost analysis. A narrow cost analysis is a study of what it costs providers to deliver child care at two or more levels of quality: (1) a base level of quality that meets health, safety, staffing, and quality requirements, and (2) one or more higher levels of quality as defined by the Lead Agency. The narrow cost analysis must estimate costs by levels of quality; include relevant variation by provider type, child's age, or location; and analyze the gaps between estimated costs and payment rates to inform payment rate setting. Lead agencies are not required to complete a separate narrow cost analysis if their pre-approved alternative methodology addresses all of the components required in the narrow cost analysis.

Describe how the Lead Agency analyzed the cost of child care through a narrow cost analysis or pre-approved alternative methodology for the FFY 2025–2027 CCDF Plan, including:

- a. How did the Lead Agency conduct a narrow cost analysis (e.g., a cost model, a cost study, existing data or data from the Provider Cost of Quality Calculator)? Click or tap here to enter text.
- b. In the Lead Agency's analysis, were there any relevant variations by geographic location, category of provider, or age of child? Click or tap here to enter text.
- c. What assumptions and data did the Lead Agency use to determine the cost of care at the base level of quality (e.g., ratios, group size, staff compensations, staff training, etc.)? Click or tap here to enter text.
- d. How does the Lead Agency define higher quality and what assumptions and data did the Lead Agency use to determine cost at higher levels of quality (e.g., ratio, group size, staffing levels, staff compensation, professional development requirements)? A Lead Agency can use a quality improvement system or other system of quality indicators (e.g., accreditation, pre-Kindergarten standards, Head Start Program Performance Standards, or State-defined quality measures). Click or tap here to enter text.
- e. What is the gap between cost and price, and how did the Lead Agency consider this while setting payment rates? Did the Lead Agency target any rate increases where gaps were the largest or develop any long-term plans to increase rates based on this information? Click or tap here to enter text.

4.2.3 Publicly available report on the cost and price of child care

The Lead Agency must prepare a detailed report containing the results of the MRS or ACF preapproved alternative methodology and include the Narrow Cost Analysis if an ACF pre-approved alternative methodology was not conducted.

The Lead Agency must make this report widely available no later than 30 days after completion of the report, including posting the results on the Lead Agency website. The Lead Agency must describe in the detailed report how the Lead Agency took into consideration the views and comments of the public or stakeholders prior to conducting the MRS or ACF pre-approved alternative methodology.

Describe how the Lead Agency made the results of the market rate survey or ACF pre-approved alternative methodology report widely available to the public by responding to the questions below.

- i. Provide the date the report was completed: Click or tap here to enter text.
- ii. Provide the date the report containing results was made widely available (no later than 30 days after the completion of the report): Click or tap here to enter text.
- iii. Provide a link to the website where the report is posted and describe any other strategies the Lead Agency uses to make the detailed report widely available: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
- iv. Describe how the Lead Agency considered partner views and comments in the detailed report. Responses should include which partners were engaged and how partner input influenced the market rate survey or alternative methodology: Click or tap here to enter text.

4.3 Adequate Payment Rates

The Lead Agency must set CCDF subsidy payment rates in accordance with the results of the current MRS or ACF pre-approved alternative methodology and at a level to ensure equal access for eligible families to child care services comparable with those provided to families not receiving CCDF assistance. Lead Agencies are also required to provide a summary of data and facts to demonstrate how payment rates ensure equal access, which means the Lead Agency must also consider the costs of base level care and higher quality care as part of its rate setting. Finally, the Lead Agency must re-evaluate its payment rates at least every 3 years.

The ages and types of care listed in the base payment rate tables are meant to provide a snapshot of the categories of rates and are not intended to be comprehensive of all categories that might exist or to reflect the terms used by the Lead Agency for particular ages. If rates are not statewide, please provide all variations of payment rates when reporting base payment rates below.

Base rates are the lowest, foundational rates before any differentials are added (e.g., for higher quality or other purposes) and must be sufficient to ensure that minimum health, safety, quality, and staffing requirements are covered. These are the rates that will be used to determine compliance with equal access requirements.

4.3.1 Payment rates

a.	Are the Agency	payment rates that the Lead Agency is reporting in 4.3.2 set statewide by the Lead?
	☐ Yes.	
	i.	If yes, check if the Lead Agency:
		☐ Sets the same payment rates for the entire State or Territory.
		\square Sets different payment rates for different regions in the State or Territory.
	□ No.	
	ii.	If no, identify how many jurisdictions set their own payment rates: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
b.		the date the current payment rates became effective (i.e., date of last payment
		date based on most recent MRS or ACF pre-approved alternative methodology as d in 4.2.1). Click or tap here to enter text.

c. If the Lead Agency does not publish weekly rates, then how were the rates reported in 4.3.2 or 4.3.3 calculated (e.g., were daily rates multiplied by 5 or monthly rates divided by 4.3)? Click or tap here to enter text.

4.3.2 Base payment rates

a. Provide the base payment rates in the tables below. If the Lead Agency completed a market rate survey (MRS), provide the percentiles based on the most recent MRS for the identified categories. If the Lead Agency sets different payment rates for different regions in the State or Territory (and checked 4.3.1aii), provide the rates for the most populous region as well as the region with payment rates set at the lowest percentile. Percentiles are not required if the Lead Agency also conducted an ACF pre-approved alternative methodology but must be reported if the Lead Agency conducted an MRS only.

The preamble to the 2016 final rule states that a benchmark for adequate payment rates is the 75th percentile of the most recent MRS. The 75th percentile benchmark applies to the base rates. The 75th percentile is the number separating the lowest 75 percent of rates from the highest 25 percent. Setting rates at the 75th percentile, while not a requirement, would ensure that eligible families can afford three out of four child care providers. In addition to reporting the 75th percentile in the tables below, the Lead Agency must also report the 50th percentile and 60th percentile for each identified category.

If the Lead Agency conducted an ACF pre-approved alternative methodology, provide the estimated cost of care for the identified categories, as well as the percentage of the cost of care covered by the established payment rate. If the Lead Agency sets different payment rates for different regions in the State or Territory (and checked 4.3.1aii), provide the estimated cost of care and the percentage of the cost of care covered by the established payment rate for the most populous region as well as the region with rates established at the lowest percent of the cost of care.

For each identified category below, provide the percentage of providers who are receiving the base rate without any add-ons or differential payments.

Provide the full-time weekly base payment rates in the table below. If weekly payment rates are not published, then the Lead Agency will need to calculate its equivalent.

Care Type	Base payment rate (specify unit, e.g., per day, per week, per month)	% of providers receiving Base rate	Full-Time Weekly Base Payment Rate	What is the percentile of the rate? (MRS)	What is the 50th percentile of the rate? (MRS)	What is the 60th percentile of the rate? (MRS)	What is the 75th percentile of the rate? (MRS)	What is the estimated cost of care? (Alternative Methodology)	What percent of the estimated cost of care is the rate?
<mark>Center</mark>	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or tap	Click or tap
Care for	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	here to enter	here to enter
Infants (6	<mark>to enter</mark>	<mark>to enter</mark>	to enter	<mark>to enter</mark>	<mark>to enter</mark>	<mark>to enter</mark>	<mark>to enter</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>	text.
months)	<mark>text.</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>		
Family Pamily	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or	Click or tap	Click or tap
Child Care	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	<mark>tap here</mark>	here to enter	<mark>here to enter</mark>
for Infants	<mark>to enter</mark>	to enter	to enter	<mark>to enter</mark>	<mark>to enter</mark>	<mark>to enter</mark>	<mark>to enter</mark>	text.	text.
(6 months)	<mark>text.</mark>	text.	text.	<mark>text.</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>	<mark>text.</mark>		

<mark>Care</mark> Type	Base payment rate (specify unit, e.g., per day, per week, per month)	% of providers receiving Base rate	Full-Time Weekly Base Payment Rate	What is the percentile of the rate? (MRS)	What is the 50th percentile of the rate? (MRS)	What is the 60th percentile of the rate? (MRS)	What is the 75th percentile of the rate? (MRS)	What is the estimated cost of care? (Alternative Methodology)	What percent of the estimated cost of care is the rate?
Center Care for Toddler (18 months	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
Family Child Cae for Toddler (18 months	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
Center Care for Preschol ers (4 years)	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
Family Child Cae for Preschol ers (4 years)	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
Center Care for School- Age (6 years)	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.
Family Child Cae for School- Age (6 years)	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.	Click or tap here to enter text.

b. Does the Lead Agency certify that the percentiles reported in the table above are calculated based on their most recent MRS or ACF pre-approved Alternative Methodology?

☐ Yes.

☐ No. If no, what is the year of the MRS or ACF pre-approved alternative methodology that the Lead Agency used? What was the reason for not using the most recent MRS or ACF pre-approved alternative methodology? Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.

4.3.3 Tiered rates, differential rates, and add-ons

Lead Agencies may establish tiered rates, differential rates, or add-ons on top of their base rates as a way to increase payment rates for targeted needs (e.g., a higher rate for serving children with special needs).

a. Does the Lead Agency provide any rate add-ons above the base rate?

		If yes, describe the add-ons, including what they are, who is eligible to receive the
		is, and how often are they paid: Click or tap here to enter text.
_	□ No.	
b.		e Lead Agency chosen to implement tiered reimbursement or differential rates?
	Yes.	
	☐ No.	Tiered or differential rates are not implemented.
	proces	identify below any tiered or differential rates, and, at a minimum, indicate the s and basis used for determining the tiered rates, including if the rates were based MRS or an ACF pre-approved alternative methodology. Check and describe all that
	i.	☐ Differential rate for non-traditional hours. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
	ii.	☐ Differential rate for children with special needs, as defined by the Lead Agency. Describe <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
	iii.	☐ Differential rate for infants and toddlers. Note: Do not check if the Lead Agency has a different base rate for infants/toddlers with no separate bonus or add-on. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
	iv.	☐ Differential rate for school-age programs. Note: Do not check if the Lead Agency has a different base rate for school-age children with no separate bonus or add-on. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
	v.	☐ Differential rate for higher quality, as defined by the Lead Agency. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
	vi.	Other differential rates or tiered rates. For example, differential rates for geographic area or for type of provider. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
	vii.	If applicable, describe any additional add-on rates that you have besides those identified above. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
C.	<mark>private</mark>	he Lead Agency reduce provider payments if the price the provider charges to e-pay families not participating in CCDF is below the Lead Agency's established nt rate?
	☐ Yes.	. If yes, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
	☐ No.	
Establi	<mark>shing pa</mark>	<mark>yment rates</mark>
<mark>Descril</mark>	<mark>be how t</mark>	he Lead Agency established payment rates:

<mark>4.3.4</mark>

- What was the Lead Agency's methodology or process for setting the rates or how did the Lead Agency use their data to set rates? Click or tap here to enter text.
- How did the Lead Agency determine that the rates are adequate to meet health, safety, quality, and staffing requirements under CCDF? Click or tap here to enter text.

- c. How did the Lead Agency use the cost of care, either from the narrow cost analysis or the ACF pre-approved alternative methodology to inform rate setting, including how using the cost of care promotes the stabilization of child care providers? Click or tap here to enter text.
- d. How did the Lead Agency account for the cost of higher quality while setting payment rates? Click or tap here to enter text.
- e. Identify and describe any additional facts (not covered in responses to 4.3.1 4.3.3) that the Lead Agency considered in determining its payment rates to ensure equal access. *Click or tap here to enter text.*

4.4 Payment Practices to Providers

Lead Agencies must use subsidy payment practices that reflect practices that are generally accepted in the private pay child care market. The Lead Agency must ensure timeliness of payment to child care providers by paying in advance or at the beginning of delivery of child care services. Lead Agencies must also support the fixed cost of child care services based on paying by the child's authorized enrollment, or if impracticable, an alternative approach that will not undermine the stability of child care programs as justified and approved through this Plan.

Lead Agencies must also (1) pay providers based on established part-time or full-time rates rather than paying for hours of service or smaller increments of time, and (2) pay for reasonable, mandatory registration fees that the provider charges to private-paying parents. These policies apply to all provider types unless the Lead Agency can demonstrate that in limited circumstances the policies would not be considered generally-accepted payment practices.

In addition, Lead Agencies must ensure that child care providers receive payment for any services in accordance with a payment agreement or an authorization for services, ensure that child care providers receive prompt notice of changes to a family's eligibility status that could impact payment, and have timely appeal and resolution processes for any payment inaccuracies and disputes.

4.4.1 Prospective and enrollment-based payment practices

Lead Agencies must use payment practices for all CCDF child care providers that reflect generally-accepted payment practices of providers serving private-pay families, including paying providers in advance or at the beginning of the delivery of child care services and paying based on a child's authorized enrollment or an alternative approach for which the Lead Agency must demonstrate paying for a child's authorized enrollment is not practicable and it will not undermine the stability of child care programs. Lead Agencies may only use alternate approaches for subsets of provider types if they can demonstrate that prospective payments and authorized enrollment-based payment are not generally-accepted for a type of child care setting. Describe the Lead Agency payment practices for all CCDF child care providers:

- a. Does the Lead Agency pay all provider types prospectively (i.e., in advance of or at the beginning of the delivery of child care services)?
 - ☑ Yes. If yes, describe: After initial approval, authorized benefits are paid on a prospective basis, available at 6:00 am on the first day of the month. The family can then transfer benefits at any time during the month to make payment to their provider.

	□ No, it is not a generally-accepted payment practice for each provider type. If no, describe the provider type not paid prospectively and the data demonstrating it is not a generally-accepted payment practice for that provider type, and describe the Lead Agency's payment practice that ensures timely payment for that provider type: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
b.	Does the Lead Agency pay based on authorized enrollment for all provider types?
	\boxtimes Yes. The Lead Agency pays all providers by authorized enrollment and payment is not altered based on a child's attendance or the number of absences a child has.
	☐ No, it is not a generally-accepted practice for each provider type. If no, describe the provider types not paid by authorized enrollment, including the data showing it is not a generally-accepted payment practice for that provider type, and describe how the payment policy accounts for fixed costs: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
	□ No, it is impracticable. Describe provider type(s) for which it is impracticable, why it is impracticable, and the alternative approach the Lead Agency uses to delink provider payments from occasional absences, including evidence that the alternative approach will not undermine the stability of child care programs, and thereby accounts for fixed costs: Click or tap here to enter text.
Other p	payment practices
paying registra provide	gencies must (1) pay providers based on established part-time or full-time rates rather than for hours of service or smaller increments of time, and (2) pay for reasonable, mandatory ation fees that the provider charges to private-paying parents, unless the Lead Agency es evidence that such practices are not generally-accepted for providers caring for children ticipating in CCDF in its State or Territory.
a.	Does the Lead Agency pay all providers on a part-time or full-time basis (rather than paying for hours of service or smaller increments of time)?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe the policies or procedures that are different than paying on a part-time or full-time basis and the Lead Agency's rationale for not paying on a part-time or full-time basis: Click or tap here to enter text.
b.	Does the Lead Agency pay for reasonable mandatory registration fees that the provider charges to private-paying parents?
	⊠ Yes. If yes, identify the fees the Lead Agency pays for: <i>Kansas pays a registration fee of up to \$50 per child per year.</i>
	\square No. If no, identify the data and how data were collected to show that paying for fees is not a generally-accepted payment practice: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .

4.4.2

- c. Describe how the Lead Agency ensures that providers are paid in accordance with a written payment agreement or an authorization for services that includes, at a minimum, information regarding provider payment policies, including rates, schedules, any fees charged to providers, and the dispute-resolution process: In Kansas, child care benefits are paid via Electronic Benefits Transfer (EBT) card to a family's child care account. The family transfers those benefits to their provider's bank account to assist in payment for their child care expenses. This allows the provider to receive payments in accordance with the same payment practices used with private pay families. All payment arrangements are between the families and providers. Providers have the same options for dealing with payment issues with subsidy eligible families as they do with private pay families.
- d. Describe how the Lead Agency provides prompt notice to providers regarding any changes to the family's eligibility status that could impact payments, and such a notice is sent no later than the day that the Lead Agency becomes aware that such a change will occur: Kansas Department for Children and Families provides notice to providers when a child is determined eligible for child care benefits and when eligibility ends. Those notices to providers are sent the same day the agency makes the change in the KEES eligibility system that results in a change in eligibility.
- e. Describe the Lead Agency's timely appeal and resolution process for payment inaccuracies and disputes: Parents have the right to appeal any decision regarding their child care benefits and may appeal if they believe the decision is not accurate. Appeals must be in writing and must be received within 33 days from the date the notice of action was mailed. Attempts are made to resolve the issue, but if that fails, an administrative hearing is held in which the agency and the parent have the opportunity to present oral or written statements and evidence. A hearing officer makes the decision within 90 days and notifies both parties. Kansas does not pay child care providers. Child Care benefits are issued to the parent/caretaker's child care Electronic Benefits Transfer (EBT) card account. Then the parent transfers those benefits to their provider to pay for child care services. Payments are made based on the terms of the contract between the parent and the provider. This allows the provider to receive payments in accordance with the same payment practices used with private pay parents. Providers are notified when eligibility is determined for Child Care Assistance for families and when eligibility ends. All payment arrangements are between parents and providers. Providers have the same options for dealing with payment issues with subsidy eligible families as they do with private pay families.
- f. Other. Describe any other payment practices established by the Lead Agency: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

4.4.3 Payment practices and parent choice

How do the Lead Agency's payment practices facilitate provider participation in all categories of care? The Lead Agency supports the following payment practices that are similar to private pay: benefits are allowed for days a child is absent, benefits are issued on a prospective basis to families, benefits are made available electronically to parents at the first of the month and payment is established between the family and the provider, and an allowance is provided for enrollment fees. Since payment is between the family and the provider, the provider has the same resolutions available to them for payment disputes as they do any of their private pay families.

4.5 Supply Building

Building a supply of high-quality child care that meets the needs and preferences of parents participating in CCDF is necessary to meet CCDF's core purposes. Lead Agencies must support parent choice by providing some portion of direct services via grants or contracts, including at a minimum for children in underserved geographic areas, infants and toddlers, and children with disabilities.

	disabilities.								
4.5.1	Child care services available through grants or contracts								
	Does the Lead Agency provide direct child care services through grants or contracts for child care slots?								
	☐ Yes, statewide. Describe how the Lead Agency ensures that parents who enroll with a provider who has a grant or contract have choices when selecting a provider: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .								
	☑ Yes, in some jurisdictions, but not statewide. Describe how many jurisdictions use grants or contracts for child care slots and how the Lead Agency ensures that parents who enroll with a provider who has a grant or contract have choices when selecting a provider: Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships provides intensive, comprehensive program designed services to individualize to the unique strengths and needs of each child and family. KEHS programs are required to involve parents and community representatives in all areas of the program, including policy, program design, curriculum, and management decisions. All KEHS programs follow Head Start Performance Standards that require at least 10 percent of total enrollment slots be made available to children with disabilities. Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships also offer comprehensive services to childcare partner programs that exhibit needs, desires to participate, and has willingness to follow enhanced program regulations. KEHS grantees also offer their own center-based classes. (will need updated with new agreements)Three hundred and sixtysix slots are available in 34 Counties in Kansas. Counties included are Ford, Clay, Washington, Republic, Cloud, Ottawa, Shawnee, Douglas, Franklin, Lyon, Ellis, Rush, Russell, Rooks, Johnson, Saline, Dickinson, McPherson, Finney, Grant, Gray, Hamilton, Haskell, Kearny, Morton, Scott, Seward, Stanton, Stevens, Wichita, Wyandotte, Cherokee, Crawford, Labette and Montgomery. Services are provided by these entities: Bright Beginnings (KEHS CCP), Clay County Child Care (KEHS CCP), Community Action, Inc. (KEHS CCP), Early Childhood Connections (KEHS CCP), Growing Futures (KEHS CCP), Heartland Early Education (KEHS CCP), Kansas Children's Service League (KCSL) (KEHS CCP), Project Eagle (KEHS CCP), and Southeast Kansas-Community Action Program (SEK-CAP) (KEHS CCP).								
	☐ No. If no, describe any Lead Agency plans to provide direct child care services through grants and contracts for child care slots: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .								
	If no, skip to question 4.5.2.								

 If yes, identify the populations of children served through grants or contracts for child care slots (check all that apply). For each population selected, identify the number of slots allocated through grants or contracts for direct service of children receiving CCDF.

☐ Children with disabilities. Number of slots allocated through grants or contracts: 37, all Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership programs

		of total enrollment slots be made available to children with disabilities.	
		☑ Infants and toddlers. Number of slots allocated through grants or contracts: 366, all Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership slots are for infants and toddlers.	
		□ Children in underserved geographic areas. Number of slots allocated through grants or contracts: 366, all Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership grantees have completed community needs assessments to determine the need for their services in their community and help them determine the numbers that they serve. (After agreements in place, will add the counties that were identified as high need)	
		☐ Children needing non-traditional hour care. Number of slots allocated through grants or contracts: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
		☐ School-age children. Number of slots allocated through grants or contracts: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
		☐ Children experiencing homelessness. Number of slots allocated through grants or contracts: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
		☐ Children in urban areas. Percent of CCDF children served in an average month: Click or tap here to enter text.	
		☐ Children in rural areas. Percent of CCDF children served in an average month: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>	
		\Box Other populations. If checked, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>	
	ii.	If yes, how are rates for slots funded by grants and contracts determined by the Lead Agency? Families that participate in Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership, must be eligible for child care assistance, which serves as the base payment for the services. These rates are the same as used to determine benefits for other subsidy eligible families. The lead agency uses a request for procuremen process with programs that participate in the federal early head start program to determine the extra that we pay on top of the subsidy payment to the grantees so that they can cover the quality cost for their operation and for their partners. This amount is agreed upon between these grantees and the lead agency. The lead agency does complete an analysis with the Narrow Cost Analysis to determine what amount may be reasonable for the cost of operating under the requirements in this agreement, which include most Head Start Program Performance Standards.	
4.5.2	Care in the child's home (in-home care)		
	The Lead Agency must allow for in-home care (i.e., care provided in the child's own home) but may limit its use.		
	Will the Lead A	gency limit the use of in-home care in any way?	
	⊠ Yes.		
		65 Page	

follow Head Start Performance Standards that require at least 10 percent

	If yes, what	limits will the Lead Agency set on the use of in-home care? Check all that apply.
	i.	Restricted based on the minimum number of children in the care of the inhome provider to meet the Fair Labor Standards Act (minimum wage) requirements. Describe: Care is for six or fewer related children under 16 years of age, including their own. The In-Home Relative Provider is considered an employee of the client. Clients must contact IRS regarding their responsibilities as an employer and to receive a Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN).
	ii.	☐ Restricted based on the in-home provider meeting a minimum age requirement. Describe: <i>Is at least 18 years of age.</i>
	iii.	⊠ Restricted based on the hours of care (i.e., certain number of hours, non-traditional work hours). Describe: <i>Plans are not approved for more than 215 hours per month</i> .
	iv.	⊠ Restricted to care by relatives. (A relative provider must be at least 18 years of age based on the definition of eligible child care provider.) Describe: An In-Home Relative child care provider must be a relative of the child. Relative for child care purposes is defined as a grandchild, great-grandchild, sibling (if the provider lives in a separate residence), or niece/nephew of the provider. Relationship can be through marriage, blood relationship, or court decree to the child.
	٧.	☐ Restricted to care for children with special needs or a medical condition. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
	vi.	☐ Restricted to in-home providers that meet additional health and safety requirements beyond those required by CCDF. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
	vii.	☐ Other. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
.5.3	Shortages in th	ne supply of child care
	Lead Agencies	must identify shortages in the supply of child care providers that meet parents'

4.

☐ No.

needs and preferences.

What child care shortages has the Lead Agency identified in the State or Territory, and what is the plan to address the child care shortages?

- In infant and toddler programs:
 - Data sources used to identify shortages: The main source used is the annual Child Care Supply and Demand Report completed by Child Care Aware of Kansas. This report typically uses the following data sources; Kansas Department for Children and Families reports, Kansas Department of Health and Environment reports, U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Center for American Progress, Child Care Aware of Kansas WorkLife Systems, Center for Disease Control and Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, and Child Care Aware of America.

- ii. Method of tracking progress: The Lead Agency uses the information obtained and reported through the annual Child Care Supply and Demand report to track progress. Analysis is completed for all 105 counties with a specific focus on capacity for infants and toddlers comparing information from the current data to the previous years' data. Each year the extent that the desired capacity meets the potential demand is determined and compared to the previous year.
- iii. What is the plan to address the child care shortages using family child care homes? The Lead Agency uses the information obtained through the annual Child Care Supply and Demand Report to track progress. Analysis is completed for all 105 counties with a specific focus on capacity for infants and toddlers comparing information from the current data to the previous years' data. Each year the extent that the desired capacity meets the potential demand is determined and compared to the previous year. The Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral agreement requires the delivery of supportive community engagement to increase early childhood and child care capacity in local communities and to provide consumer education on the importance of child care. These services include equipping and supporting community coalitions in their efforts and engagement activities, and administering community level grants to meet individual community goals and needs. In determining the unique needs of the community, the community coalitions may determine a shortage of infant and toddler care and choose to focus on addressing this need. The Lead Agency also uses grant agreements in combination with Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, to fund Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership, a program open to federally recognized Early Head Start Programs in Kansas to provide early care and education services for infants and toddlers. Priority consideration is given to counties identified by the Office of Child Care by using the Census American Community Survey 2019 5-year estimate of the top 5 counties with the highest official poverty rate and the 5 counties with the most persons in poverty. The high priority counties are Riley, Crawford, Stevens, Kearny, Woodson, Sedgwick, Johnson, Wyandotte, Douglas, and Shawnee. If funding is available and after system changes have been made to allow for more differential payment types, the lead agency is considering expanding differential Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, payments with an aim to increase infant/toddler child care slots.

iv. What is the plan to address the child care shortages using child care centers? The Lead Agency uses the information obtained through the annual Child Care Supply and Demand Report to track progress. Analysis is completed for all 105 counties with a specific focus on capacity for infants and toddlers comparing information from the current data to the previous years' data. Each year the extent that the desired capacity meets the potential demand is determined and compared to the previous year. The Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral agreement requires the delivery of supportive community engagement to increase early childhood and child care capacity in local communities and to provide consumer education on the importance of child care. These services include equipping and supporting community coalitions in their efforts and engagement activities, and administering community level grants to meet individual community goals and needs. In determining the unique needs of the community, the community coalitions may determine a shortage of infant and toddler care and choose to focus on addressing this need. The Lead Agency also uses grant agreements in combination with Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, to fund Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership, a program open to federally recognized Early Head Start Programs in Kansas to provide early care and education services for infants and toddlers. Priority consideration is given to counties identified by the Office of Child Care by using the Census American Community Survey 2019 5-year estimate of the top 5 counties with the highest official poverty rate and the 5 counties with the most persons in poverty. The high priority counties are Riley, Crawford, Stevens, Kearny, Woodson, Sedqwick, Johnson, Wyandotte, Douglas, and Shawnee. If funding is available and after system changes have been made to allow for more differential payment types, the lead agency is considering expanding differential Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, payments with an aim to increase infant/toddler child care slots.

b. In different regions of the State or Territory:

- i. Data sources used to identify shortages: The main source used is the annual Child Care Supply and Demand Report completed by Child Care Aware of Kansas. This report typically uses the following data sources; Kansas Department for Children and Families reports, Kansas Department of Health and Environment reports, U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Center for American Progress, Child Care Aware of Kansas WorkLife Systems, Center for Disease Control and Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, and Child Care Aware of America.
- ii. Method of tracking progress: The Lead Agency uses the information obtained and reported through the annual Child Care Supply and Demand report to track progress. Analysis is completed for all 105 counties to determine the extent that desired capacity meets the demand. Progress can be tracked through a comparison from year to year.

- iii. What is the plan to address the child care shortages using family child care homes? One method the Lead Agency utilizes is the use of CCDF funds to support new child care businesses through technical assistance, professional development, and resources through our Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral, Child Care Workforce Professional Development, Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, and Child Care Quality Improvement and Support agreements. The Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral agreement requires the delivery of supportive community engagement to increase early childhood and child care capacity in local communities and to provide consumer education on the importance of child care. These services include equipping and supporting community coalitions in their efforts and engagement activities and administer community level grants to meet individual community goals and needs. The Lead Agency also uses grant agreements in combination with Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, to fund Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership, a program open to federally recognized Early Head Start Programs in Kansas to provide early care and education services for infants and toddlers. Priority consideration is given to counties identified by the Office of Child Care by using the Census American Community Survey 2019 5-year estimate of the top 5 counties with the highest official poverty rate and the 5 counties with the most persons in poverty. The high priority counties are Riley, Crawford, Stevens, Kearny, Woodson, Sedgwick, Johnson, Wyandotte, Douglas and Shawnee.
- iv. What is the plan to address the child care shortages using child care centers? One method the Lead Agency utilizes is the use of CCDF funds to support new child care businesses through technical assistance, professional development, and resources through our Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral, Child Care Workforce Professional Development, Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, and Child Care Quality Improvement and Support agreements. The Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral agreement requires the delivery of supportive community engagement to increase early childhood and child care capacity in local communities and to provide consumer education on the importance of child care. These services include equipping and supporting community coalitions in their efforts and engagement activities and administer community level grants to meet individual community goals and needs. The Lead Agency also uses grant agreements in combination with Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, to fund Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership, a program open to federally recognized Early Head Start Programs in Kansas to provide early care and education services for infants and toddlers. Priority consideration is given to counties identified by the Office of Child Care by using the Census American Community Survey 2019 5-year estimate of the top 5 counties with the highest official poverty rate and the 5 counties with the most persons in poverty. The high priority counties are Riley, Crawford, Stevens, Kearny, Woodson, Sedqwick, Johnson, Wyandotte, Douglas and Shawnee.
- c. In care for special populations:

- i. Data sources used to identify shortages: The main source used is the annual Child Care Supply and Demand Report completed by Child Care Aware of Kansas. This report typically uses the following data sources; Kansas Department for Children and Families reports, Kansas Department of Health and Environment reports, U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Center for American Progress, Child Care Aware of Kansas WorkLife Systems, Center for Disease Control and Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, and Child Care Aware of America.
- ii. Method of tracking progress: The Lead Agency uses the information obtained and reported through the annual Child Care Supply and Demand report to track progress. Analysis is completed for all 105 counties to determine the extent that desired capacity meets the demand. Progress can be tracked through a comparison from year to year. The Child Care Supply and Demand report shall determine needs at both the state and county level, including the quality of child care services for children in underserved areas, infants and toddlers, children with disabilities, and children who receive care during nontraditional hours for parents who work evening, overnight, weekend, rotating or irregular shifts.
- iii. What is the plan to address the child care shortages using family child care homes? One method the Lead Agency utilizes is the use of CCDF funds to support new child care businesses through technical assistance, professional development, and resources through our Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral, Child Care Workforce Professional Development, Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, and Child Care Quality Improvement and Support agreements. The Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral agreement requires the delivery of supportive community engagement to increase early childhood and child care capacity in local communities and to provide consumer education on the importance of child care. These services include equipping and supporting community coalitions in their efforts and engagement activities and administer community level grants to meet individual community goals and needs. The Lead Agency also uses grant agreements in combination with Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, to fund Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership, a program open to federally recognized Early Head Start Programs in Kansas to provide early care and education services for infants and toddlers. Priority consideration is given to counties identified by the Office of Child Care by using the Census American Community Survey 2019 5-year estimate of the top 5 counties with the highest official poverty rate and the 5 counties with the most persons in poverty. The high priority counties are Riley, Crawford, Stevens, Kearny, Woodson, Sedgwick, Johnson, Wyandotte, Douglas and Shawnee. The Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership grantees must ensure that the Additional Services for Children with Disabilities requirements in the Head Start Program Performance Standards in 1302.60-1302.63 are met. If funding is available and after system changes have been made to allow for more differential payment types, the lead agency is considering expanding differential Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, payments with an aim to increase the number of professionals providing child care services for children with special health care needs and those needing care during non-traditional hours.

iv. What is the plan to address the child care shortages using child care centers? One method the Lead Agency utilizes is the use of CCDF funds to support new child care businesses through technical assistance, professional development, and resources through our Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral, Child Care Workforce Professional Development, Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, and Child Care Quality Improvement and Support agreements. The Child Care Consumer Education Resource and Referral agreement requires the delivery of supportive community engagement to increase early childhood and child care capacity in local communities and to provide consumer education on the importance of child care. These services include equipping and supporting community coalitions in their efforts and engagement activities and administer community level grants to meet individual community goals and needs. The Lead Agency also uses grant agreements in combination with Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, to fund Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership, a program open to federally recognized Early Head Start Programs in Kansas to provide early care and education services for infants and toddlers. Priority consideration is given to counties identified by the Office of Child Care by using the Census American Community Survey 2019 5-year estimate of the top 5 counties with the highest official poverty rate and the 5 counties with the most persons in poverty. The high priority counties are Riley, Crawford, Stevens, Kearny, Woodson, Sedgwick, Johnson, Wyandotte, Douglas and Shawnee. The Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership grantees must ensure that the Additional Services for Children with Disabilities requirements in the Head Start Program Performance Standards in 1302.60-1302.63 are met. If funding is available and after system changes have been made to allow for more differential payment types, the lead agency is considering expanding differential Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, payments with an aim to increase the number of professionals providing child care services for children with special health care needs and those needing care during non-traditional hours.

4.5.4 Strategies to increase the supply of and improve quality of child care

Lead Agencies must develop and implement strategies to increase the supply of and improve the quality of child care services. These strategies must address child care in underserved geographic areas; infants and toddlers; children with disabilities, as defined by the Lead Agency; and children who receive care during non-traditional hours.

How does the Lead Agency identify any gaps in the supply and quality of child care services and what strategies are used to address those gaps for:

a. Underserved geographic areas. Describe: Kansas Early Head Start Child Care partnership grants are used to help build support for various populations including children in underserved areas. These funds are awarded only to existing federally funded early head start programs that are meeting the Head Start Program Performance Standards through a procurement process where priority for funding goes first to the top half of the counties that had been identified as high needs due to high poverty rates, high unemployment and high out of home placements. Links to Quality, Kansas' Quality Improvement System, was initially piloted in 18 county locations that had high poverty rates, high unemployment and high out of home placements, but is now available statewide. The program helps ensure access to programs that are in underserved areas by their focus on improving business practices and quality through individualized pathways, financial supports, resources, tools and supports. Links to quality also includes coaching, mentoring, technical assistance, reviewing and assessing, to assist programs as they continuously improve and meet Links to Quality indicators, therefore building quality. Another support that has been made available is a Shared Service Networks, which include substitute pools, translation services, human resource services, legal services, and health consultation, all of which can be accessed through the Share Services Hub program. The business practice supports, and shared services share the idea that quality can't be increased unless providers are also able to remain open. L2Q is open to all licensed child care providers in Kansas, including those providing care in underserved areas. KCCTO has an agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families using CCDF funds for the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network. It uses training, technical assistance and financial supports to help build quality and support for providers caring for underserved populations. Technical assistance is also available through the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, and it also includes topics to meet the individual needs of Early Childhood Care and Education professionals. Financial supports are available for Early Childhood Care and Education professionals to support progression towards their quality improvement goals, with priority given to goals around underserved populations and those programs that are enrolled with Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Assistance. Scholarships are also made available to increase access to professional development opportunities, which improve the quality of care provided and allow providers more access to the trainings as mentioned previously. Financial support from CCDF has also been used to cover background checks and licensing fees for new and existing child care facilities, grants are issued to assist in the cost of minor renovations to ensure the health and safety of children, the cost of operating a new child care program prior to serving children and improving the licensing fingerprinting process. Communities-in-Action, a community coalition support model developed by Child Care Aware of Kansas, has supported several Kansas communities in building local child care solutions along with grant funding to support coalition efforts.

b. Infants and toddlers. Describe: Kansas Early Head Start Child Care partnership grants are also used to build the supply of quality child care for infants and toddlers. They only serve children from birth to three. These agreements do include additional quality funding, in addition to subsidy funds, to allow the grantees and their community partners to meet the higher quality standards and lower ratios associated with the program. Links to Quality, Kansas' Quality Improvement System, helps ensure access to programs that are for infants and toddlers by their focus on improving business practices and quality through individualized pathways, financial supports, resources, tools and supports. Links to quality also includes coaching, mentoring, technical assistance, reviewing and assessing, to assist programs as they continuously improve and meet Links to Quality indicators, therefore building quality. Another support that has been made available is a Shared Service Networks, which include substitute pools, translation services, human resource services, legal services, and health consultation, all of which can be accessed through the Share Services Hub program. The business practice supports, and shared services share the idea that quality can't be increased unless providers are also able to remain open. Links to Quality focuses on early care and education programs and therefore is a program designed to increase access to quality child care for infants and toddlers. KCCTO has an agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families using CCDF funds for the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network. It uses training, technical assistance and financial supports to help build quality and support for providers caring for underserved populations. Technical assistance is also available through the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, and it also includes topics to meet the individual needs of Early Childhood Care and Education professionals. ITSN employes 10 Infant-toddler specialist to focus on infant-toddler care. Financial supports are available for Early Childhood Care and Education professionals to support progression towards their quality improvement goals, with priority given to goals around underserved populations and those programs that are enrolled with Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Assistance. Scholarships are also made available to increase access to professional development opportunities, which improve the quality of care provided and allow providers more access to the trainings as mentioned previously. Financial support from CCDF has also been used to cover background checks and licensing fees for new and existing child care facilities, grants are issued to assist in the cost of minor renovations to ensure the health and safety of children, the cost of operating a new child care program prior to serving children and improving the licensing fingerprinting process. Communitiesin-Action, a community coalition support model developed by Child Care Aware of Kansas, has supported several Kansas communities in building local child care solutions along with grant funding to support coalition efforts.

c. Children with disabilities. Describe: The Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership program use their head start income standards when most families must be 100% or below the federal poverty level, with 10% that can have income up to 85% SMI that are for children who meet the definition for children with disabilities. Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership grantees must complete a community needs assessment every three years and use this to develop the most effective plan for their services. Links to Quality, Kansas' Quality Improvement System, helps ensure access to programs that provide care for children with disabilities by their focus on improving business practices and quality through individualized pathways, financial supports, resources, tools and supports. Links to quality also includes coaching, mentoring, technical assistance, reviewing and assessing, to assist programs as they continuously improve and meet Links to Quality indicators, therefore building quality. Another support that has been made available is a Shared Service Networks, which include substitute pools, translation services, human resource services, legal services, and health consultation, all of which can be accessed through the Share Services Hub program. The business practice supports, and shared services share the idea that quality can't be increased unless providers are also able to remain open. L2Q is open to all licensed child care providers in Kansas, including those that care for children with disabilities. KCCTO has an agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families using CCDF funds for the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network. It uses training, technical assistance and financial supports to help build quality and support for providers caring for underserved populations. Training courses are developed and offered on a recurring basis by the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network (ITSN). Courses may be delivered online, in-person, or live virtually to all Early Childhood Care and education professionals, including those that serve underserved populations. Underserved populations are the primary topic of many courses including 36 on caring for infants and toddlers, 18 on children with disabilities, and 34 for other areas of high needs. Technical assistance is also available through the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, and it also includes topics to meet the individual needs of Early Childhood Care and Education professionals. ITSN employes 4 Development al inclusion specialist who focus on the inclusion of children with disabilities and 3 Mental Health Specialist focused on mental health of children and adults and topics such as trauma informed care, foster care, and homelessness. Financial supports are available for Early Childhood Care and Education professionals to support progression towards their quality improvement goals, with priority given to goals around underserved populations and those programs that are enrolled with Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Assistance. Scholarships are also made available to increase access to professional development opportunities, which improve the quality of care provided and allow providers more access to the trainings as mentioned previously. Financial support from CCDF has also been used to cover background checks and licensing fees for new and existing child care facilities, grants are issued to assist in the cost of minor renovations to ensure the health and safety of children, the cost of operating a new child care program prior to serving children and improving the licensing fingerprinting process. Communities-in-Action, a community coalition support model developed by Child Care Aware of Kansas, has supported several Kansas communities in building local child care solutions along with grant funding to support coalition efforts.

- d. Children who receive care during non-traditional hours. Describe: Links to Quality, Kansas' Quality Improvement System, helps ensure access to programs operate during nontraditional hours by their focus on improving business practices and quality through individualized pathways, financial supports, resources, tools and supports. Links to quality also includes coaching, mentoring, technical assistance, reviewing and assessing, to assist programs as they continuously improve and meet Links to Quality indicators, therefore building quality. Another support that has been made available is a Shared Service Networks, which include substitute pools, translation services, human resource services, legal services, and health consultation, all of which can be accessed through the Share Services Hub program. The business practice supports, and shared services share the idea that quality can't be increased unless providers are also able to remain open. L2Q is open to all licensed child care providers in Kansas, including those that operate with nontraditional hours. KCCTO has an agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families using CCDF funds for the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network. It uses training, technical assistance and financial supports to help build quality and support for providers caring for underserved populations. Training courses are developed and offered on a recurring basis by the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network (ITSN). Courses may be delivered online, in-person, or live virtually to all Early Childhood Care and education professionals, including those that serve underserved populations. Underserved populations are the primary topic of many courses including 36 on caring for infants and toddlers, 18 on children with disabilities, and 34 for other areas of high needs. Financial support from CCDF has also been used to cover background checks and licensing fees for new and existing child care facilities, grants are issued to assist in the cost of minor renovations to ensure the health and safety of children, the cost of operating a new child care program prior to serving children and improving the licensing fingerprinting process. Communities-in-Action, a community coalition support model developed by Child Care Aware of Kansas, has supported several Kansas communities in building local child care solutions along with grant funding to support coalition efforts.
- e. Other. Specify what population is being focused on to increase supply or improve quality. Describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- 4.5.5 Prioritization of investments in areas of concentrated poverty and unemployment

Lead Agencies must prioritize investments for increasing access to high-quality child care and development services for children of families in areas that have significant concentrations of poverty and unemployment and do not currently have sufficient numbers of such programs.

Describe how the Lead Agency prioritizes increasing access to high-quality child care and development services for children of families in areas that have significant concentrations of poverty and unemployment and that do not have access to high-quality programs. Kansas Early Head Start Child Care partnership grants are used to help build support for various populations including children in areas with high concentrations of poverty and unemployment. These funds are awarded only to existing federally funded early head start programs that are meeting the Head Start Program Performance Standards through a procurement process where priority for funding goes first to the top half of the counties that had been identified as high needs due to high poverty rates, high unemployment and high out of home placements. Links to Quality, Kansas' Quality Improvement System, was initially piloted in 18 county locations that had high poverty rates, high

unemployment and high out of home placements, but is now available statewide. The program helps ensure access to programs that are in high need areas by their focus on improving business practices and quality through individualized pathways, financial supports, resources, tools and supports. Links to quality also includes coaching, mentoring, technical assistance, reviewing and assessing, to assist programs as they continuously improve and meet Links to Quality indicators, therefore building quality. Another support that has been made available is a Shared Service Networks, which include substitute pools, translation services, human resource services, legal services, and health consultation, all of which can be accessed through the Share Services Hub program. The business practice supports, and shared services share the idea that quality can't be increased unless providers are also able to remain open. L2Q is open to all licensed child care providers in Kansas, including those providing care in high need areas. KCCTO has an agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families using CCDF funds for the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network. It uses training, technical assistance and financial supports to help build quality and support for providers caring for all populations, including those in high need areas. Technical assistance is also available through the Workforce Professional Development program and the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, and it also includes topics to meet the individual needs of Early Childhood Care and Education professionals. Financial supports are available for Early Childhood Care and Education professionals to support progression towards their quality improvement goals, with priority given to those programs that are enrolled with Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Assistance. Scholarships are also made available to increase access to professional development opportunities, which improve the quality of care provided and allow providers more access to the trainings as mentioned previously. Financial support from CCDF has also been used to cover background checks and licensing fees for new and existing child care facilities, grants are issued to assist in the cost of minor renovations to ensure the health and safety of children, the cost of operating a new child care program prior to serving children and improving the licensing fingerprinting process. Communities-in-Action, a community coalition support model developed by Child Care Aware of Kansas, has supported several Kansas communities in building local child care solutions along with grant funding to support coalition efforts.

5 Health and Safety of Child Care Settings

Child care health and safety standards and enforcement practices are essential to protect the health and safety of children while out of their parents' care. CCDF provides a minimum threshold for child care health and safety policies and practices but leaves authority to Lead Agencies to design standards that appropriately protect children's safety and promote nurturing environments that support their healthy growth and development. Lead Agencies should set standards for ratios, group size limits, and provider qualifications that help ensure that the child care environment is conducive to safety and learning and enable caregivers to promote all domains of children's development.

CCDF health and safety standards help set clear expectations for CCDF providers, form the foundation for health and safety training for child care workers, and establish the baseline for monitoring to ensure compliance with health and safety requirements. These health and safety requirements apply to all providers serving children receiving CCDF services — whether the providers are licensed or license-exempt, must be appropriate to the provider setting and age of the children served, must include specific topics and training on those topics, and are subject to monitoring and enforcement procedures by the Lead Agency. CCDF-required annual monitoring

and enforcement actions help ensure that CCDF providers are adopting and implementing health and safety requirements.

Through child care licensing, Lead Agencies set minimum requirements, including health and safety requirements, that child care providers must meet to legally operate in that State or Territory. In some cases, CCDF health and safety requirements may be integrated within the licensing system for licensed providers and may be separate for CCDF providers who are license-exempt.

This section addresses CCDF health and safety requirements, Lead Agency licensing requirements and exemptions, and comprehensive background checks.

When responding to questions in this section, OCC recognizes that each Lead Agency identifies and defines its own categories of care. OCC does not expect Lead Agencies to change their definitions to fit the CCDF-defined categories of care. For these questions, provide responses that best match the CCDF categories of care.

5.1 Licensing Requirements

Each Lead Agency must ensure it has in effect licensing requirements applicable to all child care services provided within the State/Territory (not restricted to providers receiving CCDF funds).

5.1.1 Providers subject to licensing

For each category of care listed below, identify the type of providers subject to licensing and describe the licensing requirements.

a. Identify the center-based provider types subject to child care licensing: A licensed child care center is defined in which care and educational activities are provided for 13 or more children two weeks to 16 years of age for more than three hours and less than 24 hours per day including day time, evening, and night-time care, or which provides before and after school care for school-age children. K.S.A.65-501, K.S.A. 65-504 (Child Care Licensing Laws) Kansas Economic and Employment Services Manual (KEESM) - Section 10020-10033. Pursuant to State statute, it shall be unlawful for any person, firm, corporation, or association to conduct or maintain a maternity center or a child care facility for children under 16 years of age without having a license or temporary permit therefor from the secretary of health and environment. The State of Kansas has licensing requirements for Child Care Centers and Preschools, and School Age Programs. Drop-In Programs are not eligible to be CCDF providers. A qualified program director must be employed. Each unit must have qualified staff. A comprehensive background check or name-based background check is required on all persons working or volunteering in the facility. The center-based program must be inspected, and compliance must be found with all statues and regulations prior to a license being issued. A preschool is defined as being a child care facility which provides learning experiences for children who have not attained the age of eligibility to enter kindergarten prescribed in K.S.A 72-1107(c) and any amendments thereto, and who are 30 months of age or older; which conducts sessions not exceeding three hours per session; which does not enroll any child more than one session per day; and which does not serve a meal. the term "preschool" shall include education preschools, Montessori schools, nursery schools, church-sponsored preschools, and cooperatives. A preschool may have fewer than 13 children and be licensed as a preschool if the program and facility meet preschool regulation. In lieu of being licensed, preschool operated in the same building as private schools providing kindergarten through grade six shall be governed by Kansas statutes applicable to private school. The license for the preschool states the maximum number of children than can be in care at any one time and states the maximum number of children than can be in care in any one unit by age group. Staff to child ratios must be always maintained.

Are there other categories of licensed, regulated, or registered center providers the Lead Agency does not categorize as license-exempt?
\square Yes. If yes, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
⊠ No.

b. Identify the family child care providers subject to licensing: Licensed child care home is a child care facility in which care is provided for a maximum of ten (10) children under 16 years of age and includes children under eleven (11) years of age related to the provider. The total number of children in care at any one time is based on the ages of the children in care. A group child care home is defined as a child care facility in which care is provided for a maximum of twelve (12) children under 16 years of age and includes children under eleven (11) years of age related to the provider. The total number of children in care at any one time is based on the ages of the children in care.

Are there other categories of regulated or registered family child care providers
the Lead Agency does not categorize as license-exempt?
☐ Yes. If yes, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>

 \boxtimes No.

c. Identify the in-home providers subject to licensing: *There are no in-home providers subject to licensing in Kansas.*

Are there other categories of regulated or registered in-home providers the Lead Agency does not categorize as license-exempt?

☐ Yes. If yes, describe: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

 \boxtimes No.

5.1.2 CCDF-eligible providers exempt from licensing

Identify the categories of CCDF-eligible providers who are exempt from licensing requirements, the types of exemptions, and describe how these exemptions do not endanger the health, safety, and development of children. -Relative providers, as defined in CCDF, are addressed in subsection 5.8.

- a. License-exempt center-based child care. Describe by answering the questions below.
 - i. Identify the categories of CCDF-eligible center-based child care providers who are exempt from licensing requirements. *No categories*.
 - ii. Describe the exemptions based on length of day, threshold on the number of children in care, ages of children in care, or any other factors applicable to the exemption. N/A
 - iii. Describe how the exemptions for these CCDF-eligible providers do not endanger the health, safety, and development of children. *N/A*
- b. License-exempt family child care. Describe by answering the questions below.
 - i. Identify the categories of CCDF-eligible family child care providers who are exempt from licensing requirements. *No categories*.
 - ii. Describe the exemptions based on length of day, threshold on the number of children in care, ages of children in care, or any other factors applicable to the exemption. N/A
 - iii. Describe how the exemptions for these CCDF-eligible providers do not endanger the health, safety, and development of children. N/A
- c. In-home care (care in the child's own home by a non-relative). Describe by answering the questions below.
 - i. Identify the categories of CCDF-eligible in-home care (care in the child's own home by a non- relative) providers who are exempt from licensing requirements. *No categories*.
 - ii. Describe the exemptions based on length of day, threshold on the number of children in care, ages of children in care, or any other factors applicable to the exemption. N/A
 - iii. Describe how the exemptions for these CCDF-eligible providers do not endanger the health, safety, and development of children. *N/A*

5.2 Ratios, Group Size, and Qualifications for CCDF Providers

Lead Agencies must have child care standards for providers receiving CCDF funds, appropriate to the type of child care setting involved, that address appropriate staff:child ratios, group size limits for specific age populations, and the required qualifications for providers. Lead Agencies should map their categories of care to the CCDF categories. Exemptions for relative providers will be addressed in subsection 5.8.

5.2.1 Age classifications

Describe how the Lead Agency defines the following age classifications (e.g., Infant: 0-18 months).

- a. Infant. Describe: K.A.R. 28-4-420(k) infant means a child who is between two weeks and 12 months of age, or a child over 12 months who has not learned to walk.
- b. Toddler. Describe: K.A.R. 28-4-420(dd), Toddler means a child who has learned to walk and who is between 12 and 30 months of age
- c. Preschool. Describe: K.A.R. 28-4-420(u), Preschool age means a child who is between 30 months of age and the age of eligibility to enter kindergarten as prescribed in K.S.A. 72-1107(c).
- d. School-Age. Describe: Child Care Center: K.A.R. 28-4-420(x) School age means a child who will attain the age of six years on or before the first day of September of any school year, but who is not 16 years of age or older. School Age Program: K.A.R. 28-4-576(hh) "School age" and "child" mean an individual who is kindergarten age through the academic year in which the child is in the sixth grade and who is attending the program.

5.2.2 Ratio and group size limits

Provide the ratio and group size limits for settings and age groups below.

- a. Licensed CCDF center-based care:
 - i. Infant.

Ratio: Minimum staff-child ratio is 1 to 3.

Group size: Maximum number of children per unit is 9.

ii. Toddler.

Ratio: Minimum staff-child ratio is 1 to 5.

Group size: Maximum number of children per unit is 10.

iii. Preschool.

Ratio: Minimum staff-child ratio is 1 to 12.

Group size: Maximum number of children per unit is 32.

iv. School-Age.

Ratio: Minimum staff-child ratio is 1 to 16.

Group size: Minimum staff-child ratio is 1 to 12.

v. Mixed-Age Groups (if applicable).

Ratio: Minimum staff-child ratio is 1 to 4, including not more than 2 infants.

Group size: Maximum number of children per unit is 8, including not more than 4 infants.

- b. If different, provide the ratios and group size requirements for the license-exempt center-based providers who receive CCDF funds under the following age groups:
 - i.

 Not applicable. There are no differences in ratios and group size requirements.
 - ii. Infant: Click or tap here to enter text.
 - iii. Toddler: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - iv. Preschool: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - v. School-Age: Click or tap here to enter text.
 - vi. Mixed-Age Groups: Click or tap here to enter text.
- c. Licensed CCDF family child care home providers:
 - i. Infant (if applicable)

Ratio: Click or tap here to enter text.

Group size: Click or tap here to enter text.

ii. Toddler (if applicable)

Ratio: Click or tap here to enter text.

Group size: Click or tap here to enter text.

iii. Preschool (if applicable)

Ratio: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

Group size: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

iv. School-Age (if applicable)

Ratio: Click or tap here to enter text.

Group size: Click or tap here to enter text.

v. Mixed-Age Groups

Ratio: K.A.R. 28-4-114 Licensed Day Care Home ratio is 1:10. Group Day Care Home is 2:12.

Group size: Licensed Day Care Home maximum capacity is 10. The youngest child in care determines to total number of children that can be in care. Maximum number of children under 18 months is 3, maximum number of children at least 18 months to 5 years of age is 7, maximum number of children at least 5 years but under 11 years of age is 10. Group Day Care Home maximum capacity is 12. The youngest child in care determines to total number of children that can be in care. Maximum

number of children under 18 months is 4, maximum number of children at least 18 months to 5 years of age is 8, maximum number of children at least 5 years but under

d. Are any of the responses above different for license-exempt family child care			
		□ No.	
		☐ Yes. If yes, describe how the ratio and group size requirements for license-exempt providers vary by age of children served. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
		$\ensuremath{\boxtimes}$ Not applicable. The Lead Agency does not have license-exempt family child care homes.	
e.	License	d in-home care (care in the child's own home):	
	i.	Infant (if applicable)	
		Ratio: Click or tap here to enter text.	
		Group size: Click or tap here to enter text.	
	ii.	Toddler (if applicable)	
		Ratio: Click or tap here to enter text.	
		Group size: Click or tap here to enter text.	
	iii.	Preschool (if applicable)	
		Ratio: Click or tap here to enter text.	
		Group size: Click or tap here to enter text.	
	iv.	School-Age (if applicable)	
		Ratio: Click or tap here to enter text.	
		Group size: Click or tap here to enter text.	
	٧.	Mixed-Age Groups (if applicable)	
		Ratio: Click or tap here to enter text.	
		Group size: Click or tap here to enter text.	
f.	Are any	of the responses above different for license-exempt in-home care?	
		$oxed{oxed}$ No.	
		\square Yes. If yes, describe how the ratio and group size requirements for license-exempt in-home care vary by age of children served. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>	
Teache	r/caregi	ver qualifications for licensed, regulated, or registered care	
Provide	the tea	cher/caregiver qualifications for each category of care.	
a.	Licensed center-based care		

5.2.3

Describe the teacher qualifications for licensed CCDF center-based care (e.g., degrees, credentials, etc.), including any variations based on the ages of children in care: K.A.R. 28-4-429. Each unit must have one staff person who is at least 18 years of age and who has a high school diploma or its equivalent. Units enrolling fewer than 13 children must have a staff person who meets the training requirements by one of the following options: Option 1: Six months' teaching experience in licensed facilities with children of the same age as enrolled in present facility. Option 2: Five sessions of observation for not less than 2 1/2 consecutive hours per observation in licensed facilities with children of the same age as enrolled in present facility; and 10 clock hours of workshops approved by the state licensing staff; Option 3: A minimum of three semester hours of academic credit or equivalent training in child development, early childhood education, and curriculum resources; and supervised observation in high school or college or three months' work experience with children of the same age as enrolled in present facility; or Option 4: A child development associate credential. Units enrolling 13 to 24 children must have a staff person who meets the training requirements by one of the following options: Option 1: Five sessions of observation for not less than 2 1/2 consecutive hours per observation in licensed preschools or child care centers. or one year of supervised practicum in licensed centers or preschools; or Option 2: Seven to nine semester hours of academic credit or equivalent training in child development or early childhood education; and three months' teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools, or one year of supervised practicum in licensed centers or preschools; or Option 3: A child development associate credential. specified in subsection (c) of this rule and regulation. Units enrolling more than 24 school-age children must have a staff person who meets the training requirements by one of the following options: Option 1: Twelve semester hours of academic study or equivalent training in child development, early childhood education, curriculum resources, nutrition, child guidance, parent education, supervised practicum, and administration of early childhood programs; and six months' teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools; Option 2: A child development associate credential and one year of teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools, or supervised practicum in licensed centers or preschools; Option 3: An associate of arts degree or a two-year certificate in child development; and one year of teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools, or a supervised practicum in licensed centers or preschools; Option 4: An A.B. or B.S. degree in child development or early childhood education, including a supervised practicum; and three months' teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools; or Option 5: An A.B. or B.S. degree in a related academic discipline, and 12 hours of academic study or equivalent training in child development, early childhood education, curriculum resources, nutrition, child quidance, parent education, supervised practicum, and administration of early childhood programs; and six months teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools. Assistant teachers must be at least 16 years of age and must participate in staff orientation at time of employment.

i.

Describe the director qualification for licensed CCDF center-based care, including any variations based on the ages of children in care or the number of staff employed: .A.R. 28-4-429. Program directors must be 18 years of age or older and meet training requirements for the license capacity of the facility. Facilities with fewer than 13 children must have a program director who meets the training requirements by one of the following options: Six months' teaching experience in licensed facilities with children of the same age as enrolled in present facility; Five sessions of observation for not less than 2 1/2 consecutive hours per observation in licensed facilities with children of the same age as enrolled in present facility and 10 clock hours of workshops approved by the state licensing staff; A minimum of three semester hours of academic credit or equivalent training in child development, early childhood education, and curriculum resources; and supervised observation in high school or college or three months' work experience with children of the same age as enrolled in present facility; or a child development associate credential. Facilities licensed for not less than 13 and not more than 24 children must have a program director who meets the training requirements by one of the following options: Five sessions of observation for not less than 2 1/2 consecutive hours per observation in licensed preschools or child care centers, or one year of supervised practicum in licensed centers or preschools; or seven to nine semester hours of academic credit or equivalent training in child development or early childhood education and three months' teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools, or one year of supervised practicum in licensed centers or preschools; or a child development associate credential. Facilities licensed for more than 24 children must have a program director who meets the training requirements by one of the following options: Twelve semester hours of academic study or equivalent training in child development, early childhood education, curriculum resources, nutrition, child guidance, parent education, supervised practicum, and administration of early childhood programs; and six months' teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools; a child development associate credential and one year of teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools, or supervised practicum in licensed centers or preschools; an associate of arts degree or a two-year certificate in child development and one year of teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools, or a supervised practicum in licensed centers or preschools; a A.B. or B.S. degree in child development or early childhood education, including a supervised practicum; and three months' teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools; or a A.B. or B.S. degree in a related academic discipline, and 12 hours of academic study or equivalent training in child development, early childhood education, curriculum resources, nutrition, child quidance, parent education, supervised practicum, and administration of early childhood programs; and six months teaching experience in licensed centers or preschools. Facilities licensed for more than one hundred children must have a program director who meets the following requirements: A degree in child development or early childhood education; or an A.B. or B.S. degree in a related academic discipline and 12 hours of academic study or equivalent training in child development, early childhood education, curriculum resources, nutrition, child quidance, parent education, supervised practicum, and administration of early childhood programs; and one year of experience as a program director in a center licensed for more than 24 children, or one year of experience as an assistant

ii.

program director in a center licensed for more than 100 children. Facilities licensed for more than 100 children must have an assistant program director who meets the requirements for program director. Facilities licensed for more than 160 children must have an assistant program director who meets the requirements for program director and determined by the license capacity, and who has no other assigned responsibilities.

b. Licensed family child care

Describe the provider qualifications for licensed family child care homes, including any variations based on the ages of children in care: Each applicant, if an individual, and each licensee, if an individual, must meet the following requirements: Be at least 18 years of age K.A.R. 28-4-113 Care provider and provider mean an individual who cares for and supervises children in a facility and has responsibility for the health, safety, and well-being of children, including the following: A primary care provider is an individual who is at least 16 years of age. K.A.R. 28-4-126 Each person regularly caring for children must have a health assessment conducted by a licensed physician or by a nurse trained to perform health assessments. The health assessment must be conducted no earlier than one year before the date of employment or initial application for a license or certificate of registration, or not later than 30 days after the date of employment or initial application. K.A.R 28-4-114a, a provider must meet all initial training requirements before being allowed unsupervised care of the children.

c. Licensed, regulated, or registered in-home care (care in the child's own home by a non-relative)

Describe the provider qualifications for licensed, regulated, or registered in-home care providers (care in the child's own home) including any variations based on the ages of children in care: N/A

5.2.4 Teacher/caregiver qualifications for license-exempt providers

Provide the teacher/provider qualification requirements (for instance, age, high school diploma, specific training, etc.) for the license-exempt providers under the following categories of care:

- a. License-exempt center-based child care. N/A
- b. License-exempt home-based child care. N/A
- c. License-exempt in-home care (care in the child's own home). N/A

5.3 Health and Safety Standards for CCDF Providers

Lead Agencies must have health and safety standards for providers serving children receiving CCDF assistance relating to the required health and safety topics as appropriate to the provider setting and age of the children served. This requirement is applicable to all child care programs receiving CCDF funds regardless of licensing status (i.e., licensed or license-exempt). The only exception to this requirement is for relative providers, as defined by CCDF. Lead Agencies have the option of exempting certain relatives from any or all CCDF health and safety requirements.

Exemptions for relative providers' standards requirements will be addressed in question 5.8.1.

Describe the following health and safety standards for programs serving children receiving CCDF assistance on the following topics (note that monitoring and enforcement will be addressed in subsection 5.5):

- 5.3.1 Prevention and control of infectious diseases (including immunizations) health and safety standard
 - a. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the prevention and control of infectious diseases for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: Each staff member who is counted in the staff-child ratio, each volunteer who is counted in the staffchild ratio, and each program director shall complete health and safety training either before employment or volunteering or not later than 30 calendar days after the date of employment or volunteering. Each staff member shall complete the training before being given sole responsibility for the care and supervision of children.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: Each applicant and each applicant with a temporary permit shall complete the training not later than 30 calendar days after applying for a license. Each provider shall complete the training before the date of employment or not later than 30 calendar days after the date of employment.
 - iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *Kansas does not have license exempt CCDF center-based child care programs*.
 - v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: Kansas does not have license exempt CCDF family child care homes.
 - vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *Kansas does not have license exempt CCDF in-home care*
 - vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: Each operator shall provide orientation training to each program director and each staff member who is counted in the supervisory ratio. The training shall be provided before or within the first week the program director or staff member works with children or youth. Each staff member shall complete the training before being given sole responsibility for the care and supervision of children or youth.
 - b. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address that children attending child care programs under CCDF are age-appropriately immunized, according to the latest recommendation for childhood immunizations of the respective State public health agency, for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: Click or tap here to enter text.

- ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: Click or tap here to enter text.
- iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: Click or tap here to enter text.
 - ☐ Not applicable.
- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap* here to enter text.
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: Click or tap here to enter text.
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: Click or tap here to enter text.
- 5.3.2 Prevention of sudden infant death syndrome and the use of safe-sleep practices health and safety standard

Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the prevention of sudden infant death syndrome and use of safe sleeping practices for the following CCDF-eligible providers:

i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: A child must only be placed to sleep on a surface and in an area that has been approved for use, Children 12 months of age and younger must be provided a sleep surface that is free from soft or loose bedding and toys. If the child falls asleep on a surface other than a crib or playpen, the child must be moved to a crib or playpen. The child must not nap or sleep in the same crib or playpen as that occupied by another child at the same time. The child must be placed on the child's back to nap or sleep. Each licensee will develop and implement and follow safe sleep practices for all children in care who are napping or sleeping and must ensure that the safe sleep practices are discussed with the parent or legal guardian of each child before the first day of care. Each child who is napping or sleeping must be within sight or hearing distance of the provider and must be visually checked on by the provider at least once every 15 minutes. When any child is napping or sleeping in a room separate from the provider, the door to that room must remain open.

- ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: A child must only be placed to sleep on a surface and in an area that has been approved for use, Children 12 months of age and younger must be provided a sleep surface that is free from soft or loose bedding and toys. If the child falls asleep on a surface other than a crib or playpen, the child must be moved to a crib or playpen. The child must not nap or sleep in the same crib or playpen as that occupied by another child at the same time. The child must be placed on the child's back to nap or sleep. Each licensee will develop and implement and follow safe sleep practices for all children in care who are napping or sleeping and must ensure that the safe sleep practices are discussed with the parent or legal guardian of each child before the first day of care. Each child who is napping or sleeping must be within sight or hearing distance of the provider and must be visually checked on by the provider at least once every 15 minutes. When any child is napping or sleeping in a room separate from the provider, the door to that room must remain open.
- iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

 \boxtimes Not applicable.

- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF child care centers*
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF family child care homes.
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF in-home care.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: School age Program- defined as a child care facility that serves exclusively school-age children and youth, do not care for infants.
- 5.3.3 Administration of medication, consistent with standards for parental consent health and safety standard
 - a. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the administration of medication for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: Each program director and each staff member designated to administer medications who is employed at the facility on or after July 1, 2017, shall complete the training before administering medication to any child. Each medication must be in the original container and clearly labeled with the instructions. The parent/caregiver must give written permission and instructions to the provider allowing the administration of medication to a child
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Each* provider designated to administer medications who is employed at the facility on or after July 1, 2017, shall complete the training before administering medication to any child.

- iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - \boxtimes Not applicable.
- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF child care centers*
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF family child care homes.
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF in-home care.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: In a licensed school age program, a child may self-administer some medication. Any operator may permit each child or youth with a chronic illness, a condition requiring prescription medication on a regular basis, or a condition requiring the use of an inhaler to administer the medication under staff supervision. The operator must obtain written permission for the child or youth to self- administer medication from the child's or youth's parent or other adult responsible for the child or youth, and from the licensed physician or nurse practitioner treating the condition of the child or youth. Written permission for self- administration of medication must be kept in the child's or youth's file. Each child or youth who is authorized to self-administer medication must have immediate access to that child's or youth's medication for administration purposes. Each operator must safely store each medication to prevent unauthorized access by others. Each operator must record the date and time each medication was self-administered.
- b. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address obtaining permission from parents to administer medications to children for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: Licensed child care centers and preschools, that receive CCDF funding must follow medication administration requirements. Each licensee must designate at least one provider to administer medications to children. If nonprescription medication is to be administered to a child, each designated provider must obtain written permission from child's parent or legal quardian before administering, require that each medication be in the original container, ensure that the container is labeled with the first and last name of the child for whom the medication is intended and administer according to the instructions on the label. If prescription medication is administered to a child, each designated provider must obtain written permission from child's parent or legal quardian, keep each medication in the original container labeled by a pharmacist with the child's first and last name and complete instructions for administering. Medication may only be administered to the child designated on the prescription label. Documentation of each medication administered must be kept on a form provided by the department and maintained in each child's file. If pre-service/orientation for medication administration has not been completed, staff may not dispense medications to children.

- ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: All licensed child care homes and group child care homes, that receive CCDF funding must follow medication administration requirements. Each licensee must designate at least one provider to administer medications to children.
- iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

 \boxtimes Not applicable.

- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF center care.*
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF family child care homes.
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does have license exempt CCDF in-home care.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: In a licensed school age program, a child may self-administer some medication. Any operator may permit each child or youth with a chronic illness, a condition requiring prescription medication on a regular basis, or a condition requiring the use of an inhaler to administer the medication under staff supervision. The operator must obtain written permission for the child or youth to self- administer medication from the child's or youth's parent or other adult responsible for the child or youth, and from the licensed physician or nurse practitioner treating the condition of the child or youth. Written permission for self- administration of medication must be kept in the child's or youth's file. Each child or youth who is authorized to self-administer medication must have immediate access to that child's or youth's medication for administration purposes. Each operator must safely store each medication to prevent unauthorized access by others. Each operator must record the date and time each medication was self-administered.
- 5.3.4 Prevention of and response to emergencies due to food and allergic reactions health and safety standard
 - a. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the *prevention* of emergencies due to food and allergic reactions for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: In a child care center/preschool food allergies or special dietary needs of specific children must be known to cooks, staff members, child care workers, and substitutes. Menus must be posted where parents can see them. Copies of menus served the previous month must be kept on file (child care center/preschool requirement).
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: *In a licensed child care home, any child who has a food allergy or special dietary need, the provider and the parent or legal guardian of the child must plan for the provision of alternative foods or beverages.*

- iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - \boxtimes Not applicable.
- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF center care.*
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF family child care homes.
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF in-home child care.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: School age program regulations require the operator to develop a plan that ensures that known allergies do not interfere with program activities.
- b. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the *response* to emergencies due to food and allergic reactions for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: Each operator must have an individual signed medical record of the child using the form provided by the licensing agency. The child's record must include a list of the child's allergies and intolerance to food, insect bites, or stings, or other factors that result in a medical reaction, and clear instructions in the event of an exposure to the factor. The record must include the telephone number of physician, hospital and name and phone number of the person that can be notified in case of an emergency.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: Each operator must have an individual signed medical record of the child using the form provided by the licensing agency. The child's record must include a list of the child's allergies and intolerance to food, insect bites, or stings, or other factors that result in a medical reaction, and clear instructions in the event of an exposure to the factor. The record must include the telephone number of physician, hospital and name and phone number of the person that can be notified in case of an emergency.
 - iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - \boxtimes Not applicable.
 - iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF center care.*
 - v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF family child care homes.
 - vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF in-home child care.*

- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: Each operator shall obtain a health history for each child or youth, on a form supplied by the department or approved by the secretary. Each health history shall be maintained in the child's or youth's file on the premises and a copy that can be taken with them if going off the premises. The child's record must include a list of the child's allergies and intolerance to food, insect bites, or stings, or other factors that result in a medical reaction, and clear instructions in the event of an exposure to the factor. The record must include the telephone number of physician, hospital and name and phone number of the person that can be notified in case of an emergency.
- 5.3.5 Building and physical premises safety, including the identification of and protection from hazards, bodies of water, and vehicular traffic health and safety standard
 - a. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the identification of and protection from building and physical premises hazards for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: Each facility must be approved for fire safety by a fire inspector. A basement or a second floor used for child care in a facility must be approved for fire safety by a fire inspector before use. A third floor must not be used for child care. Each child care facility must be properly heated, plumbed, lighted and ventilated. Plumbing, water, and sewerage systems must conform to all applicable state and local laws. Each stairway with more than two stairs must be railed. If any children under 2 1/2 years of age are in care, each stairway must be equipped with balusters not more than four inches apart or guarded to prevent a child's head or body from falling through. Each stairway will be quarded by a secured door or gate to prevent unsupervised access by the child. Window coverings with strings or cords must not be accessible to children in care. Refrigerated medications must be in a locked box. All household cleaning supplies and bodily care products bearing warning labels, dangerous chemicals and other household or personal use items deemed hazardous, including weapons, must be in locked storage or stored out of reach of children. Outdoor play equipment that is safely constructed in good repair, and anchored if required, and must be placed in an area free of health, safety, and environmental hazards. If a trampoline is on the premises, the trampoline must be made inaccessible to children during the facility's hours of operation. Impact-absorbent surfacing material must be installed in each use zone under and around anchored and climbing equipment. Steps must be removed from the pool when the pool is not in use. Each hot tub or spa must be covered with an insulated cover secured by straps or locks.

- ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: Each facility must be approved for fire safety by a fire inspector. A basement or a second floor used for child care in a facility must be approved for fire safety by a fire inspector before use. A third floor must not be used for child care. Each child care facility must be properly heated, plumbed, lighted and ventilated. Plumbing, water, and sewerage systems must conform to all applicable state and local laws. Each stairway with more than two stairs must be railed. If any children under 2 1/2 years of age are in care, each stairway must be equipped with balusters not more than four inches apart or guarded to prevent a child's head or body from falling through. Each stairway will be guarded by a secured door or gate to prevent unsupervised access by the child. Window coverings with strings or cords must not be accessible to children in care. Refrigerated medications must be in a locked box. All household cleaning supplies and bodily care products bearing warning labels, dangerous chemicals and other household or personal use items deemed hazardous, including weapons, must be in locked storage or stored out of reach of children. Outdoor play equipment that is safely constructed in good repair, and anchored if required, and must be placed in an area free of health, safety, and environmental hazards. If a trampoline is on the premises, the trampoline must be made inaccessible to children during the facility's hours of operation. Impactabsorbent surfacing material must be installed in each use zone under and around anchored and climbing equipment. Steps must be removed from the pool when the pool is not in use.
- iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - \boxtimes Not applicable.
- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF center child care.*
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF home care.
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF in-home child care.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: Some regulations are not applicable to School Age Programs; however, all programs have requirements to ensure building and physical premises safety in statute and regulation.
- b. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the identification of and protection from bodies of water for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: All child care centers and preschools if offering outdoor play are required to have in place a four-foot fence and shade.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: A home licensed program is required to have a fence if a hazard such as a body of water or high traffic roadway is nearby.

- iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - \boxtimes Not applicable.
- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF center child care.*
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF home care.
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF in-home child care.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: Each operator will ensure that children are protected from and do not have unsupervised access to environmental hazards such as: a ditch, irrigation ditch, pond, lake, and any standing body of water over 24 inches deep.
- c. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the identification of and protection from vehicular traffic hazards for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: When a vehicle used i. for transportation of children is owned or leased by the facility, the driver must be 18 years of age or older and hold an operator's license of a type appropriate for the vehicle being used. Each transporting vehicle must be maintained in safe operating condition. A record of the date of the annual safety check and corrections made must be kept on file at the facility. The vehicle must be covered by accident and liability insurance. Emergency release forms and health assessment records for children must be in the vehicle when children are transported. A first-aid kit is required in the transporting vehicle. Each vehicle must be equipped with an age and weight appropriate restraint for each child. Child Care Center regulations require that a second adult must ride in the rear seat of the vehicle when three or more children with special needs are being transported. The capacity of the transporting vehicle must be exceeded. The driver shall transport the child to the intended location, person, agency, or institution as designated by the child's parent or legal guardian, or by the agency person in charge. Staff child ratios will be always maintained.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: When a vehicle used for transportation of children is owned or leased by the facility, the driver must be 18 years of age or older and hold an operator's license of a type appropriate for the vehicle being used. Each transporting vehicle must be maintained in safe operating condition. A record of the date of the annual safety check and corrections made must be kept on file at the facility. The vehicle must be covered by accident and liability insurance. Emergency release forms and health assessment records for children must be in the vehicle when children are transported. A first-aid kit is required in the transporting vehicle. Each vehicle must be equipped with an age and weight appropriate restraint for each child.

- iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - \boxtimes Not applicable.
- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF center child care.*
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF home care.
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF in-home child care.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: School age program regulations specify that use of a cellular phone while the vehicle is in motion is prohibited.
- 5.3.6 Prevention of shaken baby syndrome, abusive head trauma, and maltreatment health and safety standard
 - a. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the prevention of shaken baby syndrome and abusive head trauma and indicate the age of children it applies to for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: Each person caring for children must be free from physical, mental, or emotional handicaps as necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the children, and be qualified by temperament, emotional maturity, sound judgment, and understand children. Punishment, which is humiliating, frightening or physically harmful to the child are prohibited. Behavior management practices must be consistent with the goals and purposes of the program and appropriate to the age and developmental level of the child or youth. Each staff member must practice methods of behavior management that are designed to help each child or youth develop inner controls and manage the child's or youth's own behavior in a socially acceptable manner.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: Each person caring for children must be free from physical, mental, or emotional handicaps as necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the children, and be qualified by temperament, emotional maturity, sound judgment, and understand children. Punishment, which is humiliating, frightening or physically harmful to the child are prohibited. Behavior management practices must be consistent with the goals and purposes of the program and appropriate to the age and developmental level of the child or youth. Each staff member must practice methods of behavior management that are designed to help each child or youth develop inner controls and manage the child's or youth's own behavior in a socially acceptable manner.
 - iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - \boxtimes Not applicable.

- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF center child care.*
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have CCDF license exempt family child care homes.
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF in-home child care.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: *School age programs serving school age children do not require standards related to shaken baby syndrome*.
- b. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the prevention of child maltreatment and indicate the age of children it applies to for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: All CCDF child care providers must be trained in recognizing and reporting any signs of abuse and neglect, including maltreatment and shaken baby syndrome. Each provider shall report to the Kansas Department for Children and Families or to law enforcement any suspected child abuse or neglect within 24 hours. Child care providers who have not completed the mandatory orientation and training will not be given sole responsibility of the care and supervision of children.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: All CCDF eligible licensed family child care home providers must be trained in recognizing and reporting any signs of abuse and neglect, including maltreatment and shaken baby syndrome. Each provider shall report to the Kansas Department for Children and Families or to law enforcement any suspected child abuse or neglect within 24 hours. Child care providers who have not completed the mandatory orientation and training will not be given sole responsibility of the care and supervision of children.
 - iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - \boxtimes Not applicable.
 - iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF center child care.*
 - v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: The Lead Agency does not have CCDF license exempt family child care homes.
 - vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *The Lead Agency does not have license exempt CCDF in-home child care.*
 - vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: *School age programs serving school age children do not require standards related to shaken baby syndrome.*
- 5.3.7 Emergency preparedness and response planning standard

	natura	l disaster	s and human-caused events standard includes procedures in the following areas:
		i.	
		ii.	⊠ Relocation
		iii.	Shelter-in-place
		iv.	☐ Lock down
		٧.	Staff emergency preparedness
			□ Training
			☑ Practice drills
		vi.	Volunteer emergency preparedness
			☐ Training
			☐ Practice drills
		vii.	□ Communication with families
		viii.	☑ Reunification with families
		ix.	\square Continuity of operations
		х.	Accommodation of
			☐ Infants
			☐ Toddlers
			☐ Children with disabilities
			\square Children with chronic medical conditions
5.3.8		_	corage of hazardous materials and the appropriate disposal of biocontaminants ty standard
	a.		e the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that is the handling and storage of hazardous materials for the following CCDF-eligible ers:
		i.	All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
		ii.	All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
		iii.	All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
			☐ Not applicable.
		iv.	All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>

Identify by checking below that the emergency preparedness and response planning due to

- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
- b. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the disposal of bio contaminants for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - ☐ Not applicable.
 - iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- 5.3.9 Precautions in transporting children health and safety standard

Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address precautions in transporting children for the following CCDF-eligible providers:

- i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - ☐ Not applicable.
- iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

- vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
- 5.3.10 Pediatric first aid and pediatric cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) health and safety standard
 - a. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address pediatric first aid for all staff for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - \square Not applicable.
 - iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - b. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address pediatric cardiopulmonary resuscitation for all staff for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - ☐ Not applicable.
 - iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

- vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
- 5.3.11 Identification and reporting of child abuse and neglect health and safety standard
 - a. Provide the standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the identification of child abuse and neglect for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - ☐ Not applicable.
 - iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - b. Provide your standards, appropriate to the provider setting and age of children, that address the reporting of child abuse and neglect for the following CCDF-eligible providers:
 - i. All CCDF-eligible licensed center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - ii. All CCDF-eligible licensed family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - iii. All CCDF-eligible licensed in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
 - ☐ Not applicable.
 - iv. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt center care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - v. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt family child care homes. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - vi. All CCDF-eligible license-exempt in-home care. Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
 - vii. All CCDF-eligible out-of-school programs (afterschool programs, summer camps, day camps, etc.). Provide the standard: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

	C.	Confirm if child care providers must comply with the Lead Agency's procedures for reporting child abuse and neglect as required by the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act (42 U.S.C. 5106a(b)(2)(B)(i):		
		\square Yes, confirmed.		
		☐ No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .		
5.3.12	Additio	nal optional standards		
		tion to the required health and safety standards, does the Lead Agency require providers to with the following optional standards?		
		☐ Yes.		
		\square No. If no, skip to Section 5.4		
	If yes, o	describe the standard(s).		
	Nutritio	on. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.		
	Access	to physical activity. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.		
	Caring for children with special needs. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.			
	•	ner areas determined necessary to promote child development or to protect children's and safety. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.		
5.4	Pre-Se	ervice or Orientation Training on Health and Safety Standards		
	provide health setting	gencies must have requirements for all caregivers, teachers, and directors at CCDF ers to complete pre-service or orientation training (within 3 months of starting) on all CCDF and safety standards and child development. The training must be appropriate to the and the age of children served. This training must address the required health and safety rds and the content area of child development. Lead Agencies have flexibility in		

Exemptions for relative providers' training requirements are addressed in question 5.8.1.

determining the minimum number of training hours to require, and are encouraged to consult

5.4.1 Health and safety pre-service/orientation training requirements

with Caring for our Children Basics for best practices.

Lead Agencies must certify staff have pre-service or orientation training on each standard that is appropriate to different settings and age groups. Lead Agencies may require pre-service or orientation to be completed before staff can care for children unsupervised. In the table below, check the boxes for which you have training requirements.

		Is this standard addressed in the pre-service or orientation training?	Is the pre-service or orientation training on this standard appropriate to different settings and age groups?	Does the Lead Agency require staff to complete the training before caring for children unsupervised?
a.	Prevention and control of infectious diseases (including immunizations)			
b.	SIDS prevention and use of safe sleep practices			
C.	Administration of medication			
d.	Prevention and response to food and allergic reactions			
e.	Building and physical premises safety, including identification of and protection from hazards, bodies of water, and vehicular traffic			
f.	Prevention of shaken baby syndrome, abusive head trauma and child maltreatment			
g.	Emergency preparedness and response planning and procedures			
h.	Handling and storage of hazardous materials and disposal of biocontaminants			

		Is this standard addressed in the pre-service or orientation training?	Is the pre-service or orientation training on this standard appropriate to different settings and age groups?	Does the Lead Agency require staff to complete the training before caring for children unsupervised?
i.	Appropriate Precautions in transporting children, if applicable			
j.	Pediatric first aid and pediatric CPR (age-appropriate)			
k.	Child abuse and neglect recognition and reporting		\boxtimes	
I.	Child development including major domains of cognitive, social, emotional, physical development and approaches to learning.			

- m. If the Lead Agency does not certify implementation of all the health and safety preservice/orientation training requirements for staff in programs serving children receiving CCDF assistance, please describe: *Click or tap here to enter text*.
- n. Are there any provider categories to whom the above pre-service or orientation training requirements do not apply?

 \boxtimes No

☐ Yes. If yes, describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

5.5 Monitoring and Enforcement of Licensing and Health and Safety Requirements

5.5.1 Inspections for licensed CCDF providers

Licensing inspectors must perform at least one annual, unannounced inspection of each licensed CCDF provider for compliance with all child care licensing standards, including an inspection for compliance with health and safety and fire standards. Lead Agencies must conduct at least one pre-licensure inspection for compliance with health, safety, and fire standards of each child care provider and facility in the State/Territory.

a. Licensed CCDF center-based providers

1.	compliance with health standards, safety standards, and fire standards?
	☐ Yes.
	No. If no, describe: A prelicensure inspection requires a minimum of two onsite visits. The initial inspection is scheduled, and the second onsite inspection is unannounced. Pursuant to K.S.A. 65-504 (pg. 2 Child Care Licensing Laws) the applicant must be in full compliance with all health and safety regulations to receive a license. The initial inspection is scheduled, and the second onsite inspection is unannounced. Kansas law requires that all child care facilities comply with all applicable fire codes and rules and regulations of the state fire marshal. The lead agency does not enroll any temporarily licensed child care provider with CCDF until they have completed this unannounced inspection as required to obtain their permanent license.
ii.	Identify the frequency of annual unannounced inspections for licensed center-based providers addressing compliance with health, safety, and fire standards:
	☐ Annually.
	More than once a year. If more than once a year, describe: An annual inspection is conducted every 12 months and is unannounced. If compliance is not found at the first onsite survey, a second unannounced inspection is required to complete the annual survey. A complete walk through of the entire facility, both inside and outside, is to be conducted, including a count of staff and children present.
	\Box Other. If other, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
iii.	Does the Lead Agency implement a differential monitoring approach when monitoring licensed center-based providers?
	☐ Yes. If yes, describe how the differential monitoring approach is representative of the full complement of health and safety requirements. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
	☑ No. If no, describe: The Lead Agency does not use a differential monitoring approach to access the full complement of health and safety requirements.
iv.	Identify which department or agency is responsible for completing the inspections for licensed center-based providers. Kansas Department of Health and Environment-Division of Public Health.
Licen	sed CCDF family child care providers
i.	Does your pre-licensure inspection for licensed family child care homes assess compliance with health standards, safety standards, and fire standards?
	☐ Yes.
	No. If no, describe: A prelicensure inspection requires a minimum of two onsite visits. The initial inspection is scheduled, and the second onsite inspection is unannounced. Pursuant to K.S.A. 65-504 (pg. 2 Child Care Licensing Laws) the applicant must be in full compliance with all health and safety regulations to

b.

receive a license. The initial inspection is scheduled, and the second onsite inspection is unannounced. Kansas law requires that all child care facilities comply with all applicable fire codes and rules and regulations of the state fire marshal. The lead agency does not enroll any temporarily licensed child care provider with CCDF until they have completed this unannounced inspection as required to obtain their permanent license.

ii.	Identify the frequency of annual unannounced inspections for licensed family child care homes addressing compliance with health, safety, and fire standards:
	☐ Annually.
	More than once a year. If more than once a year, describe: An annual inspection is conducted every 12 months and is unannounced. If compliance is not found at the first onsite survey, a second unannounced inspection is required to complete the annual survey. A complete walk through of the entire facility, both inside and outside, is to be conducted, including a count of staff and children present. Note: For a licensed or group day care home the entire premises is licensed. K.S.A. 65-512 (pg 8 Child Care Licensing Laws) grants authority to inspect all areas even if they are made inaccessible. Rooms that the licensee designates as "not used by children" should be evaluated for presence of children or hazards that present a health or safety risk. During the inspection the licensing specialist focuses on reviewing and assessing compliance with the licensing statutes and regulations, observes child care practices and asks questions to determine compliance, and provides technical assistance as needed on regulations and whatever issues are relevant to the provider. Findings of noncompliance are documented according to licensing procedures and reviewed and with the provider to establish and understanding of what was out of compliance and why. This review of non-compliance is considered the exit interview. Consultations and technical assistance provided is documented if warranted. Answering questions posed by the provider is not typically considered technical assistance or consultation. Significant non- compliance may result in an additional onsite inspection and request for a corrective action plan. Additional unannounced inspections may be required. Compliance inspections are requested to determine if compliance has been obtained or is being maintained.
	☐ Other. If other, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
iii.	Does the Lead Agency implement a differential monitoring approach when monitoring licensed family child care providers?
	\square Yes. If yes, describe how the differential monitoring approach is representative of the full complement of health and safety requirements. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
	☑ No. If no, describe: The Lead Agency does not use a differential monitoring approach to access the full complement of health and safety requirements
iv.	Identify which department or agency is responsible for completing the inspections for licensed family child care providers. <i>Kansas Department of Health and Environment-Division of Public Health.</i>

		i.	Does your Lead Agency license CCDF in-home child care (care in the child's own home) providers?
			⊠ No.
			\square Yes. If yes, does your pre-licensure inspection for licensed in-home providers assess compliance with health, safety, and fire standards? \square Yes.
			☐ No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
		ii.	Identify the frequency of annual unannounced inspections for licensed in-home child care providers for compliance with health, safety, and fire standards completed:
			☐ Annually.
			\Box More than once a year. If more than once a year, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
			☑ Other. If other, describe: <i>Kansas Department of Health and Environment does not license or inspect in-home providers.</i>
		iii.	Does the Lead Agency implement a differential monitoring approach when monitoring licensed in-home child care providers?
			\square Yes. If yes, describe how the differential monitoring approach is representative of the full complement of health and safety requirements. Click or tap here to enter text.
			⊠ No.
		iv.	Identify which department or agency is responsible for completing the inspections for licensed in-home providers. N/A
5.5.2	Inspect	tions for	license-exempt providers
	Licensing inspectors must perform at least one annual monitoring visit of each license-exen CCDF provider for compliance with health, safety, and fire standards. Inspections for relative providers will be addressed in subsection 5.8.		
	Describ	e the po	olicies and practices for the annual monitoring of:
	a.	License	e-exempt CCDF center-based child care providers
		i.	Identify the frequency of inspections for compliance with health, safety, and fire standards for license-exempt center-based providers:
			☐ Annually.
			\Box More than once a year. If more than once a year, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
			oxtimes Other. If other, describe: Kansas does not have license-exempt CCDF centerbased providers.

Licensed in-home CCDF child care providers

c.

		ii.	Does the Lead Agency implement a differential monitoring approach when monitoring license-exempt center-based providers?	
			\square Yes. If yes, describe how the differential monitoring approach is representative of the full complement of health and safety requirements. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
			⊠ No.	
		iii.	Identify which department or agency is responsible for completing the inspections for license-exempt center-based CCDF providers. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
	b.	License	e-exempt CCDF family child care providers	
		i.	Identify the frequency of the inspections of license-exempt family child care providers to determine compliance with health, safety, and fire standards:	
			☐ Annually.	
			\Box More than once a year. If more than once a year, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>	
			☑ Other. If other, describe: <i>Kansas does not have license exempt CCDF family child care providers.</i>	
		ii.	Does the Lead Agency implement a differential monitoring approach when monitoring license-exempt family child care providers?	
			\square Yes. If yes, describe how the differential monitoring approach is representative of the full complement of health and safety requirements. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
			⊠ No.	
		iii.	Identify which department or agency is responsible for completing the inspections for license-exempt family child care providers. <i>N/A</i>	
5.5.3	Inspec	tions for	CCDF license-exempt in-home child care providers	
	Lead Agencies may develop alternate monitoring requirements for care provided in the child's home that are appropriate to the setting. This flexibility cannot be used to bypass the monitoring requirement altogether.			
	a.	Describe the requirements for the annual monitoring of CCDF license-exempt in-hol child care (care in the child's own home) providers, including if monitoring is annual or unannounced, occurs more frequently than once per year, and if differential monitoring procedures are used. Kansas does not have CCDF license-exempt in-hom care providers that are not qualifying relatives		
	b.	license	e entity(ies) in your State/Territory responsible for conducting inspections of exempt CCDF in-home child care (care in the child's own home) providers: Kansas ot have CCDF license-exempt in-home child care providers that are not qualifying es.	
5.5.4	Posting	g monito	oring and inspection reports	

Lead Agencies must post monitoring and inspection reports on their consumer education website for each licensed and CCDF child care provider, except in cases where the provider is related to all the children in their care. These reports must include the results of required annual monitoring visits and visits due to major substantiated complaints about a provider's failure to comply with health and safety requirements and child care policies. A full report covers everything in the monitoring visit, including areas of compliance and non-compliance. If the Lead Agency does not produce any reports that include areas of compliance, the website must include information about all areas covered by a monitoring visit.

The reports must be in plain language or provide a plain language summary Lead Agency and be timely to ensure that the results of the reports are available and easily understood by parents when they are deciding on a child care provider. Lead Agencies must post at least 3 years of monitoring and inspection reports.

a. Does the Lead Agency post:

	i.	\square Pre-licensing inspection reports for licensed programs.
	ii.	☐ Full monitoring and inspection reports that include areas of compliance and non-compliance for all non-relative providers eligible to provide CCDF services.
	iii.	☐ Monitoring and inspection reports that include areas of non-compliance only, with information about all areas covered by a monitoring visit posted separately on the website (e.g., a blank checklist used by monitors) for all non-relative providers eligible to provide CCDF services. Note: This option is only allowable if the Lead Agency does not produce monitoring reports that include both areas of compliance and non-compliance. If checked, provide a direct URL/website link to the website where a blank checklist is posted: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
b.	Check if	the monitoring and inspection reports and any related plain language summaries
	i.	☐ Date of inspection.
	ii.	☐ Health and safety violations, including those violations that resulted in fatalities or serious injuries occurring at the provider. Describe how these health and safety violations are prominently displayed: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>

	iii.	☑ Corrective action plans taken by the Lead Agency and/or child care provider. Describe: Child care providers are required to correct the non-compliance that was cited during an inspection within 5 days of the inspection date. Non-compliance cited during an onsite survey that is deemed low or mid-level risk to children may require a statement of Notice of Survey Findings Corrections, which is an external means to document steps taken by the licensee to obtain and maintain compliance. A Corrective Action Plan (CAP) procedure was implemented on September 30th, 2019, and is a provider's statement of correction to non-compliance deemed significant and adverse. A CAP may be requested for any survey type; initial, annual, compliance or complaint, and is requested during the exit review of the survey by a licensing specialist. The provider is instructed to return the CAP to KDHE within 15 days. All CAPs are requested but are not required to be returned. When the CAP is received at KDHE it is uploaded to the system of record, CLARIS, and will post on the public portal when the survey closes, and the notice of survey findings can be viewed. The public portal view will indicate that a CAP was not required, not received, or will display a view link if the CAP has been uploaded. This is a provider's voluntary statement and is not considered verification of compliance. Failure to obtain and/or maintain compliance may result in a request for a KDHE legal enforcement of a civil penalty, modification, suspension, or revocation of the license. Administrative Orders issued and effective are viewable on the public portal within the facility page. Administrative Orders that have been appealed do not show on the portal until the appeal is resolved. A
		closed facility's information is not made available on the public portal but may be requested through open records.
	iv.	☐ A minimum of 3 years of results, where available.
	V.	If any of the components above are not selected, please explain: Click or tap here to enter text.
c.		Agencies must post monitoring and inspection reports and/or any related summaries imely manner. Provide the direct URL/website link to where the reports are posted: Click or tap here to enter text. Identify the Lead Agency's established timeline for posting monitoring reports and describe how it is timely: Click or tap here to enter text.
d.	are in □ Ye	the Lead Agency certify that the monitoring and inspection reports or the summaries plain language that is understandable to parents and other consumers?
e.	moni Ye	the Lead Agency certify that there is a process for correcting inaccuracies in the toring and inspection reports? s. o. If no, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.

Does the Lead Agency maintain monitoring and inspection reports on the consumer education website?
Yes.
No. If no, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.

5.5.5 Qualifications and training of licensing inspectors

Lead Agencies must ensure that individuals who are hired as licensing inspectors (or qualified monitors designated by the Lead Agency) are qualified to inspect child care providers and facilities and have received health and safety training appropriate to the provider setting and age of the children served.

Describe how the Lead Agency ensures that licensing inspectors (or qualified monitors designated by the Lead Agency) are qualified and have received training on health and safety requirements that are appropriate to the age of the children in care and the type of provider setting. *Licensing inspectors, (referred to as licensing specialist), are qualified as an RN or have a 4- year degree in nursing, early childhood or elementary education, child development, human development, social work or related field. All licensing specialists are trained one-on-one with a seasoned inspector and/or a Kansas Health and Environment, Child Care Licensing District Specialist. The initial licensing specialist training includes conducting observed initial and annual inspections, conducting an inspection during a complaint investigation, a full review of child care laws and regulations and field application, including health and safety required trainings, as well as how to determine if health and safety training and requirements are met by a child care provider. A minimum of 6 clock hours of professional development related to the work of an inspector is required annually. Licensing specialists are also required to attend 3 of 4 quarterly Kansas Department of Health and Environment Regional Meetings with ongoing regulation and procedure training.*

5.5.6 Ratio of licensing inspectors

Lead Agencies must ensure the ratio of licensing inspectors to child care providers and facilities in the State/Territory are maintained at a level sufficient to enable the Lead Agency to conduct effective inspections of child care providers and facilities on a timely basis in accordance with federal, State, and local laws.

Provide the ratio of licensing inspectors to child care providers (i.e., number of inspectors per number of child care providers) and facilities in the State/Territory and include how the ratio is sufficient to conduct effective inspections on a timely basis. Kansas has approximately 60 licensing specialists (vacancies fluctuate) to cover approximately 4,500 child care facilities. Kansas uses a hybrid approach, as some licensing specialists are state employed, while the majority are contracted through local health departments. This is an average of 75 facilities per surveyor. However, the number of facilities per surveyor could fluctuate given the rural geography of the state of Kansas. A surveyor may be tasked to cover multiple counties and fewer facilities due to time and distance needed to travel to cover facilities. A surveyor may also be tasked to cover more facilities if covering a more densely populated geographical area, as travel times are of less concern. The Kansas Department of Health and Environment Child Care Licensing Aid to Local (ATL) process involves tracking total FTE and number of local licensing surveyors for every local agency contract. Each contractor identifies staffing and Kansas Department of Health and Environment Child Care Licensing approve proposals and budgets based on need (child care facilities, child care capacity, geography/coverage area, etc.). Ratio of surveyors to facilities is tracked but varies for

each local agency and from year to year as workloads, staffing, and available funding fluctuates. Kansas Department of Health and Environment follows HHS and NARA guidance related to ratios and strives to manage the program as effectively as possible based on capacity and funding. Kansas Department of Health and Environment continues to review the current ratios and make recommendations for increasing local surveyor FTE as needed. This will illustrate in 2023 with the loss of a parttime contractor replaced with full time licensing specialists in southeast Kansas. By state law, Kansas Department of Health and Environment is required to inspect facilities at least once every 12 month and has an established framework around initial, annual and complaint surveys. Kansas Department of Health and Environment internally monitors overall timeliness quarterly and works directly with contracted health departments and state staff to ensure timeliness for inspections.

5.6 Ongoing Health and Safety Training

Lead Agencies must have ongoing training requirements for all caregivers, teachers, and directors of eligible CCDF providers for health and safety standards but have discretion on frequency and training content (e.g., pediatric CPR refresher every year and recertification every 2 years). Lead Agencies have discretion on which health and safety standards are subject to ongoing training. Lead Agencies may exempt relative providers from these requirements.

5.6.1 Required ongoing training of health and safety standards

Describe any required ongoing training of health and safety standards for caregivers, teachers, and directors of the following CCDF eligible provider types.

- a. Licensed child care centers: *The requirement is 4 hours annually.*
- b. License-exempt child care centers: *The lead agency does not have any license-exempt eligible CCDF providers*
- c. Licensed family child care homes: *The requirement is 4 hours annually.*
- d. License-exempt family child care homes: *The lead agency does not have any license-exempt eligible CCDF providers.*
- e. Regulated or registered in-home child care: *The lead agency only enrolls in-home child care providers that meet the CCDF relative definition.*
- f. Non-regulated or registered in-home child care: *The lead agency does not specify a certain number of hours for ongoing training for enrolled in-home relative providers.*

5.7 Comprehensive Background Checks

Lead Agencies must conduct comprehensive background checks for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of all child care providers that are (1) licensed, regulated, or registered under State/Territory law, regardless of whether they receive CCDF funds; or (2) all other child care providers eligible to deliver CCDF services (e.g., license-exempt CCDF eligible child care providers). Family child care home providers must also submit background check requests for all household members age 18 or older.

A comprehensive background check must include: three in-state checks, two national checks, and three interstate checks if the individual resided in another State or Territory in the preceding 5 years. The background check components must be completed at least once every five years.

All child care staff members must receive a qualifying result from either the FBI criminal background check or an in-state fingerprint criminal history check before working (under supervision) with or near children. Lead Agencies must apply a CCDF-specific list of disqualifying crimes for child care providers serving families participating in CCDF.

These background check requirements do not apply to individuals who are related to all children for whom child care services are provided. Exemptions for relative providers will be addressed in subsection 5.8.

5.7.1

5.7.2

In-state	e criminal history check with fingerprints
a.	Does the Lead Agency conduct in-state criminal history background checks with fingerprints for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers, regardless of CCDF participation?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe any categories of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers for whom you do not conduct in-state criminal background checks with fingerprints. Click or tap here to enter text.
b.	Does the Lead Agency conduct in-state criminal history background checks with fingerprints for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of all other child care providers eligible for CCDF participation (i.e., license-exempt providers) other than relative providers?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe any categories of child care providers eligible for CCDF participation for whom you do not conduct in-state criminal background checks with fingerprints. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
С.	Does the Lead Agency conduct the in-state criminal background check with fingerprints for all individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home who do not receive an in-state criminal background check with fingerprints. Click or tap here to enter text.
Nationa	al Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) criminal history check with fingerprints
a.	Does the Lead Agency conduct FBI criminal history background checks with fingerprints for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers, regardless of CCDF participation?
	⊠ Yes.
	☐ No. If no, describe any categories of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers for whom you do not conduct FBI criminal background checks with fingerprints. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .

b.	Does the Lead Agency conduct FBI criminal history background checks with fingerprints for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of all other child care providers eligible for CCDF participation (i.e., license-exempt providers)?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe any categories of child care providers eligible for CCDF participation for whom you do not conduct FBI criminal background checks. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
c.	Does the Lead Agency conduct the FBI criminal background check with fingerprints for all individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home who do not receive an FBI criminal background check with fingerprints. Click or tap here to enter text.
Nation check	al Crime Information Center (NCIC) National Sex Offender Registry (NSOR) name-based
FBI fing	ajority of NCIC NSOR records are fingerprint records and are automatically included in the gerprint criminal background check. But a small percentage of NCIC NSOR records are only based records and must be accessed through the required name-based search of the NCIC
a.	Does the Lead Agency conduct NCIC NSOR name-based background checks for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers, regardless of CCDF participation?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe any categories of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers for whom you do not conduct NCIC NSOR name-based background checks. Click or tap here to enter text.
b.	Does the Lead Agency conduct NCIC NSOR name-based background checks for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of all other child care providers eligible for CCDF participation (i.e., license-exempt providers)?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe any categories of child care providers eligible for CCDF participation for whom you do not conduct NCIC NSOR name-based background checks. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
C.	Does the Lead Agency conduct the NCIC NSOR name-based background check for all individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home?
	⊠ Yes.
	☐ No. If no, describe individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home who do not receive a NCIC NSOR name-based background check. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .

5.7.3

5.7.4	In-state sex offender registry (SOR) check		
	a.	Does the Lead Agency conduct in-state SOR checks for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers, regardless of CCDF participation?	
		⊠ Yes.	
		☐ No. If no, describe any categories of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers for whom you do not conduct in-state SOR background checks. <i>Click or taphere to enter text</i> .	
	b.	Does the Lead Agency conduct in-state SOR background checks for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of all other child care providers eligible for CCDF participation (i.e., license-exempt providers)?	
		☐ Yes.	
		⊠ No. If no, describe any categories of child care providers eligible for CCDF participation for whom you do not conduct in-state SOR background checks. <i>The lead agency does not have any license exempt eligible CCDF providers</i> .	
	c.	Does the Lead Agency conduct the in-state SOR background check for all individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home?	
		⊠ Yes.	
		\square No. If no, describe individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home who do not receive an in-state SOR background check. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>	
5.7.5	In-state child abuse and neglect (CAN) registry check		
	a.	Does the Lead Agency conduct CAN registry checks for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers, regardless of CCDF participation?	
		⊠ Yes.	
		☐ No. If no, describe any categories of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers for whom you do not conduct CAN registry checks. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
	b.	Does the Lead Agency conduct CAN registry checks for all child care staff members (including prospective staff members) of all other child care providers eligible for CCDF participation (i.e., license-exempt providers)?	
		☐ Yes.	
		⊠ No. If no, describe any categories of child care providers eligible for CCDF participation for whom you do not conduct CAN registry checks. <i>The lead agency does not have any license exempt eligible CCDF providers.</i>	
	c.	Does the Lead Agency conduct the CAN registry check for all individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home?	
		⊠ Yes.	

		☐ No. If no, describe individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home who do not receive a CAN registry check. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
5.7.6	Interst	ate criminal history check	
	These questions refer to requirements for a Lead Agency to conduct an interstate check for a child care staff member (including prospective child care staff members) who currently lives in their State or Territory but has lived in another State, Territory, or Tribal land within the previous 5 years.		
	a.	Does the Lead Agency conduct interstate criminal history background checks for any staff member (or prospective staff member) who resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers, regardless of CCDF participation?	
		⊠ Yes.	
		☐ No. If no, describe any categories of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers for whom you do not conduct interstate criminal history background checks. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
	b.	Does the Lead Agency conduct interstate criminal history background checks for any staff member (or prospective staff member) who resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years eligible for CCDF participation (i.e., license-exempt providers)?	
		☐ Yes.	
		☑ No. If no, describe any categories of child care providers eligible for CCDF participation for whom you do not conduct interstate criminal history background checks. <i>The lead agency does not have any license exempt eligible providers</i> .	
	C.	Does the Lead Agency conduct interstate criminal history background checks for all individuals age 18 or older who reside in a family child care home and resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years.	
		⊠ Yes.	
		□ No. If no, describe why individuals age 18 or older that resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years who reside in a family child care home that do not receive an interstate criminal history background check. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
5.7.7	Interstate Sex Offender Registry (SOR) check		
	These questions refer to requirements for a Lead Agency to conduct an interstate check for a chil care staff member (including prospective child care staff members) who currently lives in their State or Territory but has lived in another State, Territory, or Tribal land within the previous 5 years.		
	a.	Does the Lead Agency conduct interstate SOR checks for any staff member (or prospective staff member) who resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers, regardless of CCDF participation?	
		⊠ Yes.	

	\square No. If no, describe any categories of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers for whom you do not conduct interstate SOR checks. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
b.	Does the Lead Agency conduct interstate SOR checks for any staff member (or prospective staff member) who resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years eligible for CCDF participation (i.e., license-exempt providers)?
	☐ Yes.
	⊠ No. If no, describe any categories of child care providers eligible for CCDF participation for whom you do not conduct interstate SOR checks. <i>The lead agency does not have any license exempt eligible CCDF providers</i> .
c.	Does the Lead Agency conduct the interstate SOR checks for all individuals age 18 or older who resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years who reside in a family child care home?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe individuals age 18 or older that resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years who reside in a family child care home that do not receive an interstate SOR check. Click or tap here to enter text.
Intersta	ate child abuse and neglect (CAN) registry check
care sta	questions refer to requirements for a Lead Agency to conduct an interstate check for a child aff member (including prospective child care staff members) who currently lives in their r Territory but has lived in another State, Territory, or Tribal land within the previous 5
a.	Does the Lead Agency conduct interstate CAN registry checks for any staff member (or prospective staff member) that resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers, regardless of CCDF participation?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe any categories of licensed, regulated, or registered child care providers for whom you do not conduct interstate CAN registry checks. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
b.	Does the Lead Agency conduct interstate CAN registry checks for any staff member (or prospective staff member) who resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years eligible for CCDF participation (i.e., license-exempt providers)?
	☐ Yes.
	⊠ No. If no, describe any categories of child care providers eligible for CCDF participation for whom you do not conduct interstate CAN registry checks. <i>The lead agency does not have any license exempt eligible CCDF providers</i> .
C.	Does the Lead Agency conduct the interstate CAN registry checks for all individuals age 18 or older who resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years who reside in a family child care home?
	⊠ Yes.

5.7.8

	☐ No. If no, describe individuals age 18 or older that resided in other state(s) in the past 5 years who reside in a family child care home that do not receive interstate CAN registry checks. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
Disqua	alifications for child care employment
	ead Agency must prohibit employment of individuals with child care providers receiving subsidy payment if they meet any of the following disqualifying criteria:
•	Refused to consent to a background check.
•	Knowingly made materially false statements in connection with the background check.
•	Are registered, or are required to be registered, on the State/Territory sex offender registry or repository or the National Sex Offender Registry.
•	Have been convicted of a felony consisting of murder, child abuse or neglect, crimes against children (including child pornography), spousal abuse, crimes involving rape or sexual assault, kidnapping, arson, physical assault, or battery.
•	Have a violent misdemeanor committed as an adult against a child, including the following crimes: child abuse, child endangerment, sexual assault, or any misdemeanor involving child pornography.
•	Convicted of a felony consisting of a drug-related offense committed during the preceding 5 years.
a.	Does the Lead Agency disqualify the employment of child care staff members (including prospective staff members) by child care providers receiving CCDF subsidy payment for CCDF-identified disqualifying criteria?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe the disqualifying criteria: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
b.	Does the Lead Agency use the same criteria for licensed, regulated, and registered child care providers regardless of CCDF participation?
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe any disqualifying criteria used for licensed, regulated, and registered child care providers: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .
C.	How does the Lead Agency use results from the in-state child abuse and neglect registry check?
	\square Does not use them to disqualify employment.
	☑ Uses them to disqualify employment. If checked, describe: When notified that a person is on the in-state Child Abuse and Neglect Registry, Kansas Department of Health and Environment issues a Notice of Prohibited Status to the person notifying them that they

are listed on an out-of-state Child Abuse and Neglect Registry. The Notice of Prohibited Status contains their appeal rights. The Notice states that they have the right to challenge the accuracy of their inclusion on the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry. The Notice further states that if the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry is from another state, they must contact the entity that is responsible for maintaining the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry in the

5.7.9

State where the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry is maintained to challenge the accuracy of their inclusion on the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry in that State. The Notice also gives the person the right to request a hearing on the accuracy of their inclusion on the Child Abuse/Neglect Registry and their status as a prohibited person in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas Administrative Procedure Act (K.S.A. 77-501 et seq.). To request a hearing, they must file a written request for a hearing with the Office of Administrative Hearings. The Notice provides the contact information for the Office of Administrative Hearings.

	Administrative nearings.		
d.	How does the Lead Agency use results from the interstate child abuse and neglect registry check?		
	\square Does not use them to disqualify employment.		
	☑ Uses them to disqualify employment. If checked, describe: When notified that a person is on an interstate Child Abuse and Neglect Registry, Kansas Department of Health and Environment issues a Notice of Prohibited Status to the person notifying them that they are listed on an out-of-state Child Abuse and Neglect Registry. The Notice of Prohibited Status contains their appeal rights. The Notice states that they have the right to challenge the accuracy of their inclusion on the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry. The Notice further states that if the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry is from another state, they must contact the entity that is responsible for maintaining the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry in the State where the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry is maintained to challenge the accuracy of their inclusion on the Child Abuse and Neglect Registry in that State. The Notice also gives the person the right to request a hearing on the accuracy of their inclusion on the Child Abuse/Neglect Registry and their status as a prohibited person in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas Administrative Procedure Act (K.S.A. 77-501 et seq.). To request a hearing, they must file a written request for a hearing with the Office of Administrative Hearings. The Notice provides the contact information for the Office of Administrative Hearings.		
Privacy			
provide results	gencies must ensure the privacy of a prospective staff member by notifying child care ers of the individual's eligibility or ineligibility for child care employment based on the of the comprehensive background check without revealing any documentation of criminal or disqualifying crimes or other related information regarding the individual.		
prospe	ne Lead Agency certify they ensure the privacy of child care staff members (including ctive child care staff member) when providing the results of the comprehensive ound check?		
	⊠ Yes.		
	☐ No. If no, describe the current process of notification: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .		
Appeal	s processes for background checks		
prospe	gencies must provide for a process that allows child care provider staff members (and ctive staff members) to appeal the results of a background check to challenge the accuracy pleteness of the information contained in the individual's background check report.		

5.7.10

5.7.11

Does the appeals process:

i.	Provide the affected individual with information related to each disqualifying crime in a report, along with information/notice on the opportunity to appeal.
	⊠ Yes.
	□ No.
ii.	Provide the affected individual with clear instructions about how to complete the appeals process for each background check component if they wish to challenge the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in such individual's background report.
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No.
iii.	Ensure the Lead Agency attempts to verify the accuracy of the information challenged by the individual, including making an effort to locate any missing disposition information related to the disqualifying crime.
	⊠ Yes.
	□ No.
iv.	Get completed in a timely manner.
	⊠ Yes.
	□ No.
v.	Ensure the affected individual receives written notice of the decision. In the case of a negative determination, the decision must indicate (1) the Lead Agency's efforts to verify the accuracy of information challenged by the individual, (2) any additional appeals rights available to the individual, and (3) information on how the individual can correct the federal or State records at issue in the case.
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No.
vi.	Facilitate coordination between the Lead Agency and other agencies in charge of background check information and results (such as the Child Welfare office and the State Identification Bureau), to ensure the appeals process is conducted in accordance with the Act.
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No.

5.7.12 Provisional hiring of prospective staff members

Lead Agencies must at least complete and receive a qualifying result for either the FBI criminal background check or a fingerprint-based in-state criminal background check where the individual resides before prospective staff members may provide services or be in the vicinity of children.

Until all the background check components have been completed, the prospective staff member must be supervised at all times by someone who has already received a qualifying result on a background check within the past five years.

Check all background checks for which the Lead Agency requires a qualifying result before a prospective child care staff member begins work with children.

FBI criminal background check.		
⊠ Yes.		
\square No. If no, describe. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
In-state criminal background check with fingerprints.		
⊠ Yes.		
\square No. If no, describe. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
In-state Sex Offender Registry.		
⊠ Yes.		
\square No. If no, describe. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
In-state child abuse and neglect registry.		
⊠ Yes.		
\square No. If no, describe. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
Name-based national Sex Offender Registry (NCIC NSOR).		
⊠ Yes.		
\square No. If no, describe. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
Interstate criminal background check, as applicable.		
⊠ Yes.		
\square No. If no, describe. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
Interstate Sex Offender Registry check, as applicable.		
⊠ Yes.		
\square No. If no, describe. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
Interstate child abuse and neglect registry check, as applicable.		
⊠ Yes.		
\square No. If no, describe. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
Does the Lead Agency require provisional hires to be supervised by a staff member who received a qualifying result on the comprehensive background check while awaiting results from the provisional hire's full comprehensive background check?		
⊠ Yes.		
\square No. If no, describe. <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		

5.7.13	Comple	eting the criminal background check within a 45-day timeframe	
	The Lead Agency must carry out a request from a child care provider for a criminal background check as expeditiously as possible, and no more than 45 days after the date on which the provider submitted the request.		
	a.	Does the Lead Agency ensure background checks are completed within 45 days (after the date on which the provider submits the request)?	
		⊠ Yes.	
		\square No. If no, describe the timeline for completion for categories of providers, including which background check components take more than 45 days. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .	
	b.	Does the Lead Agency ensure child care staff receive a comprehensive background check when they work in your State but reside in a different State?	
		⊠ Yes.	
		\square No. If no, describe the current policy: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>	
5.7.14	Respor	nses to interstate background check requests	
		gencies must respond as expeditiously as possible to requests for interstate background from other States/Territories/Tribes in order to meet the 45-day timeframe.	
	a.	Does your State participate in the National Crime Prevention and Privacy Compact or National Fingerprint File programs?	
		⊠ Yes.	
		□ No.	
	b.	Describe how the State/Territory responds to interstate criminal history, Sex Offender Registry, and Child Abuse and Neglect Registry background check requests from another state. Click or tap here to enter text.	
	C.	Does your State/Territory have a law or policy that prevents a response to CCDF interstate background check requests from other States/Territories/Tribes?	
		☐ Yes. If yes, describe the current policy. Click or tap here to enter text.	
		□ No.	
5.7.15	Consumer education website links to interstate background check processes		
	Agenci backgr	gencies must include on their consumer education website and the website of local Lead es if the CCDF program is county-run, the policies and procedures related to comprehensive ound checks. This includes the process by which a child care provider or other State or ry may submit a background check request.	
	a.	Provide the direct URL/website link that contains instructions on how child care providers and other States and Territories should initiate background check requests for prospective and current child care staff members: https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/background-checks/	

Check to certify that the required elements are included on the Lead Agency's consumer and provider education website for each interstate background check component.

	and provider education website for each interstate background check of		
b.	Interstate criminal background check:		
	i.	□ Agency name	
	ii.		
	iii.	□ Phone number	
	iv.	⊠ Email	
	٧.		
	vi.		
	vii.	⊠ Forms	
	viii.	⊠ Fees	
	ix.	oxtimes Is the State a National Fingerprint File (NFF) State?	
	х.	oxtimes Is the State a National Crime Prevention and Privacy Compact State?	
	xi.	If not all boxes above are checked, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.	
C.	Interstate sex offender registry (SOR) check:		
	i.	☑ Agency name	
	ii.	☑ Address	
	iii.	☑ Phone number	
	iv.	☑ Email	
	v.		
	vi.		
	vii.	⊠ Forms	
	viii.	⊠ Fees	
	ix.	If not all boxes above are checked, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.	
d.	Interstate child abuse and neglect (CAN) registry check:		
	i.	☑ Agency name	
	ii.	\boxtimes Is the CAN check conducted through a county administered registry or centralized registry?	
	iii.		
	iv.	□ Phone number	
	٧.		
	vi.		

vii.

 \boxtimes Instructions

		viii.	⊠ Forms			
		ix.	⊠ Fees			
		x.	If not all boxes above are checked, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.			
5.7.16	Backgro	ound che	eck fees			
	The Lead Agency must ensure that fees charged for completing the background checks do not exceed the actual cost of processing and administration.					
	Does the Lead Agency certify that background check fees do not exceed the actual cost of processing and administering the background checks?					
	⊠ Yes.					
	\square No. If no, describe what is currently in place and what elements still need to be implemented. Click or tap here to enter text.					
5.7.17	Renewa	al of the	comprehensive background check Renewal of comprehensive background check			
	Does th	e Lead <i>i</i>	Agency conduct the background check at least every 5 years for all components?			
		⊠ Yes.				
		□ No. enter to	If no, what is the frequency for renewing each component? Click or tap here to ext.			
5.8 E	Exempt	ions fo	r Relative Providers			
	grandp	arents, s	may exempt relatives (defined in CCDF regulations as grandparents, greatsiblings if living in a separate residence, aunts, and uncles) from certain health and nents. This exception applies only if the individual cares only for relative children.			
5.8.1	Exempt	ions for	relative providers			
	Does the Lead Agency exempt any federally defined relative providers from licensing requirements, the CCDF health and safety standards, preservice/orientation training, ongoing training, inspections, or background checks?					
		\square No.				
		(licensii training All relat standal	If yes, which type of relatives do you exempt, and from what requirements ng requirements, CCDF health and safety standards, preservice/orientation g, ongoing training, inspections, and/or background checks) do you exempt them? tive providers are exempt from licensing requirements, CCDF health and safety rds, ongoing health and safety training, pre-service orientation training, inspections ring and enforcement requirements and a portion of the background check ments.			

6 Support for a Skilled, Qualified, and Compensated Child Care Workforce

A skilled child care workforce with adequate wages and benefits underpins a stable high-quality child care system that is accessible and reliable for working parents and that meets their needs

and promotes equal access. Positive interactions between children and caregivers provide the cornerstone of quality child care experiences. Responsive caregiving and rich interactions support healthy socio-emotional, cognitive, and physical development in children. Strategies that successfully support the child care workforce address key challenges, including low wages, poor benefits, and difficult job conditions. Lead Agencies can help mitigate some of these challenges through various CCDF policies, including through ongoing professional development and supports for all provider types and embedded in the payment policies and practices covered in Section 4. Lead Agencies must have a framework for training, professional development, and post-secondary education. They must also incorporate health and safety training into their professional development. Lead Agencies should also implement policies that focus on improving wages and access to benefits for the child care workforce. When implemented as a cohesive approach, the initiatives support the recruitment and retention of a qualified and effective child care workforce, and improve opportunities for caregivers, teachers, and directors to advance on their progression of training, professional development, and postsecondary education.

This section addresses Lead Agency efforts to support the child care workforce, the components and implementation of the professional development framework, and early learning and developmental guidelines.

6.1 Supporting the Child Care Workforce

Lead Agencies have broad flexibility to implement policies and practices to support the child care workforce.

5.1.1	Strategies to improve recruitment, retention, compensation, and well-being				
	a.	Identify any Lead Agency activities related to strengthening workforce recruitment and retention of child care providers. Check all that apply:			
		i.	$\hfill\Box$ Providing program-level grants to support investments in staff compensation.		
		ii.	$\hfill\Box$ Providing bonuses or stipends paid directly to staff, like sign-on or retention bonuses.		
		iii.	$\hfill\Box$ Connecting family child care providers and center-based child care staff to health insurance or supporting premiums in the Marketplace.		
		iv.	$\hfill \square$ Subsidizing family child care provider and center-based child care staff retirement benefits.		
		v.	$\hfill\Box$ Providing paid sick, personal, and parental leave for family child care providers and center-based child care staff.		
		vi.	$\hfill\Box$ Providing student loan debt relief or loan repayment for family child care providers and center-based child care staff.		
		vii.	$\ oxed{oxed}$ Providing scholarships or tuition support for center-based child care staff and family child care providers.		
		viii.	☐ Other. Describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		

- b. Describe any Lead Agency ongoing efforts and future plans to assess and improve the compensation of the child care workforce in the State or Territory, including increasing wages, bonuses, and stipends. The Lead Agency, Kansas Department for Children and Families, is a partner on the Early Childhood State Directors Team, with Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, and Kansas State Department of Education. The Director's team is part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure which includes the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund, the designated State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care. As part of the advisory council and early childhood system work, needs assessments have been completed to represents a comprehensive view of our early childhood care and education system and these needs inform the early childhood strategic plan. Compensation and financial sustainability of the early childhood professionals is an area of focus in the strategic plan. There are plans for comprehensive studies and the identification of compensation strategies from Kansas communities that may help inform potential local and state investments in this area. A Tactic Work Group for the Early Childhood Recommendation Panel works to develop recommendations to increase compensation and benefits for early childhood care and education professionals. One way that the Lead Agency has been working to help improve compensation is through the Market Rate Survey and Narrow Cost Analysis work, which are used to ensure that the Child Care Assistance, or subsidy, rates are adequate to enable providers to meet the CCDF requirements, including staffing requirements.
- c. Describe any Lead Agency ongoing efforts and future plans to expand access to benefits, including health insurance, paid sick, personal, and parental leave, and retirement benefits. The Lead Agency, Kansas Department for Children and Families, is a partner on the Early Childhood State Directors Team, with Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, and Kansas State Department of Education. The Director's team is part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure which includes the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund, the designated State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care. As part of the advisory council and early childhood system work, needs assessments have been completed to represents a comprehensive view of our early childhood care and education system and these needs inform the early childhood strategic plan. The support of policies that increase availability of benefit packages (e.g., paid leave, health insurance) for early childhood professionals is an area of focus in the strategic plan. A Tactic Work Group for the Early Childhood Recommendation Panel works to develop recommendations to increase compensation and benefits for early childhood care and education professionals. The Shared Service Network, which is available statewide, can also help programs enhance their shared buying power to access and afford benefit opportunities for their staff more easily.
- d. Describe any Lead Agency ongoing efforts and future plans to support the mental health and well-being of the child care workforce. The Lead Agency's agreement for Infant and Toddler Specialist Network includes the requirement that they implement tiered systems of support through both training and technical assistance to address the need for child care professionals throughout Kansas, in both family and center programs, to support healthy social-emotional development of children and the establishment of positive relationships, which is shaped by the providers well-being and must be included in this effort.

- Describe any other strategies the Lead Agency is developing and/or implementing to e. support providers' recruitment and retention of the child care workforce. The Workforce Professional Development Advisory Group, which is funded by the Lead Agency, focus includes subgroups addressing diversity, equity, and inclusion; career pathways and review and revisions to the core competencies; components of the workforce registry; and professional development needs assessment. The diversity, equity and inclusion work will inform training needs and practices to improve diversity, equity, and inclusion for child care programs. The purpose of the Early Childhood Advisory Council Recommendations Panel is to advance implementation of the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic Plan. A Tactic Work Group for the Early Childhood Recommendation Panel works to develop recommendations to document and address recruitment and retention challenges. The Lead Agency continues to coordinate in statewide early childhood efforts and use CCDF to fund the development of the career pathway and initial implementation of the workforce registry that will support early childhood and education professionals to access, track and quide career advancement, and increase compensation, recruitment, and retention. Kansas uses CCDF funding to improve the quality of early care and education, retain providers and stabilize the workforce by offering low or no cost professional development and Infant Toddler Specialist Network services at no cost. Financial incentives through the workforce professional development contract include trainer mini grants and scholarships for progression of professional development. Trainer mini grants are designed to expand professional development opportunities for child care workforce population state-wide with priority of funding awards aimed to increase professional development in rural areas. The Lead Agency also supports scholarships towards professional development progression which requires applicants to complete an Individualized Professional Development Plans. Scholarships include progression of professional development through clock-hour training, continuing education unit training, higher education courses to obtain an associate degree, early childhood certification, director's credential, and Child Development Associate Credential training and application fees. The Infant-Toddler Specialist Network offers financial incentives to providers and programs serving infants and toddlers who need assistance in meeting goals for quality improvements. The Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement collects data related to recruitment and retention and uses the information to improve and/or enhance the professional development system. They are also required to be part of the support for recruitment and retention initiatives for early childhood educators.
- 6.1.2 Strategies to support provider business practices

- a. Describe other strategies that the Lead Agency is developing and/or implementing to strengthen child care providers' business management and administrative practices. Business practices is a CCDF priority topic in the Lead Agency's Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement. A business course for family child care providers and training module on strengthening business practices is offered through our Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement. Many workforce development trainers are certified or credentialed in Strengthening Business Practices. Infant-Toddler Specialist Network offers training and technical assistance support for child care providers serving infants and toddlers. Infant-Toddler Specialist Network provides outreach to all new child care licensing applicants and sends out a new provider packet followed by contact for technical assistance. Infant-Toddler Specialist Network has an early childhood toolkit course available for new providers to learn about resources and supports that are available. Access is provided to resources for one-year following the course end date for all online courses offered through the Child Care Workforce Professional Development and Infant-Toddler Specialist Network. Infant-Toddler Specialist Network trainings offered virtually, or in-person include relevant resources either by email or hard copy. All courses, regardless of format do include contact information to receive technical assistance or additional resources. Lead Agency partners offer opportunities for business practice courses that are not CCDF funded and include fiscal management, budgeting and recordkeeping. Links to Quality's Health and Safety Link, which is still in development, includes quality standards for health nutrition, and safety of child care settings and physical activity and physical development in child care settings. The Learning and Development Link includes quality standards for learning environment, teacher/providerchild relationships, and teacher/provider instructional practices. The Family Partnership Link includes quality standards for family partnership and family strengthening. Finally, the Program Administration Link includes quality standards for business related practices.
- b. Check the topics addressed in the Lead Agency's strategies for strengthening child care providers' administrative business practices. Check all that apply:

i.	□ Fiscal management.
ii.	⋈ Budgeting.
iii.	⊠ Recordkeeping.
iv.	oxtimes Hiring, developing, and retaining qualified staff.
v.	☑ Risk management.
vi.	oxtimes Community relationships.
vii.	\square Marketing and public relations.
viii.	oxtimes Parent-provider communications.
ix.	oxtimes Use of technology in business administration.
х.	\square Compliance with employment and labor laws.
xi.	☐ Other. Describe any other efforts to strengthen providers' a business: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .

dministrative

Lead Agencies must facilitate participation of child care providers and staff with limited English proficiency and disabilities in the child care subsidy system. Describe how the Lead Agency will facilitate this participation, including engagement with providers to identify barriers and specific strategies used to support their participation:

- a. Providers and staff with limited English proficiency: Lead Agency's agreement for Child Care Workforce Professional Development require trainers to respond to each learner's ability and linguistic background. The agreement requires provision of translations and accommodations in all professional development trainings for non-English speaking learners. Online health and safety courses are available in Spanish and are monitored by a Spanish-speaking trainer. In-person trainers will utilize translators on staff or within the community when not available through the contractor. Early childhood care and education professionals can utilize Google Translate; licensing surveyors have access to the bilingual hotline at any time. Consumer education materials, child care provider forms, and licensing applications and information are available in English and Spanish.
- b. Providers and staff who have disabilities: All CCDF funded online and in-person courses adhere to Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement provides opportunities for providers to identify disabilities during course enrollment. Accommodations are made based on individual abilities.

 Accommodations include interpreters for the deaf or auxiliary aid for hard of hearing. The Department for Children and Families public website has a link to the Kansas Commission for the Deaf & Hard of Hearing that offers resources and support for individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing, or have speech and language impairments. Online trainers can sometimes identify those individuals who are struggling and will offer individualized assistance for the discussion and response requirements of the course.

6.2 Professional Development Framework

A Lead Agency must have a professional development framework for training, professional development, and post-secondary education for caregivers, teachers, and directors in child care programs that serve children of all ages. The framework must include these components:

(1) professional standards and competencies, (2) career pathways, (3) advisory structures, (4) articulation, (5) workforce information, and (6) financing. CCDF provides Lead Agencies flexibility on the strategies, breadth, and depth of the framework. The professional development framework must be developed in consultation with the State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care or a similar coordinating body.

6.2.1 Updates and consultation

a. Did the Lead Agency make any updates to the professional development framework since the FFY 2022-2024 CCDF Plan was submitted?

☑ Yes. If yes, describe the elements of the framework that were updated and describe if and how the State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care (if applicable) or similar coordinating body was consulted: *The All in For Kansas Kids Strategic Plan goals included actions aimed at workforce development to unify and professionalize the workforce. The All in For Kansas Kids Strategic Plan was developed as part of the effort to coordinate initiatives and outcomes by the Kansas Early Childhood Advisory Council, Kansas Children's Cabinet. These actions included the adoption of new Core Competencies,*

the building of a Career Pathway which included efforts to increase articulation between both two-year and four-year university, and the creation of a Workforce Registry. All of this work is part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure collaboration, which includes many Early Childhood advisory or workgroups, the Early childhood Recommendation Panel, the State Directors Team, the State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care, and the Governor. Federal relief funds helped with the development of many of these activities. Part of the All In For Kansas Kids activities included fiscal mapping to try to increase alignment between funding sources. The Kansas Early Learning Standards, revised in 2023 and adopted by the Kansas Children's Cabinet in its role as state Early Childhood Advisory Council in 2024.

Oid the Lead Agency consult with other key groups in the days

b. Did the Lead Agency consult with other key groups in the development of their professional development framework?

☑ Yes. If yes, identify the other key groups: Core Competencies: The Workforce Development Advisory Group consists of members from Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities, state agencies, non-profits, and early childhood care and education professionals across the early childhood ecosystem. Kansas Early Learning Standards: Kansas State Department of Education, Kansas Head Start Association, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, Child Care Aware of Kansas, Kansas State University, Kansas University, Hutchinson Community College, The Kansas Children's Cabinet Trust staff, and Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities were involved in the efforts to revise The Kansas Early Learning Standards. Career Pathways: The Career Pathway was developed by the Professional Development Implementation Team, in consultation with the Workforce Development Advisory Group. The Professional Development Implementation Team was comprised of leaders from three state agencies, the Kansas Children's Cabinet Trust Fund, Kansas Department for Children and Families, and Kansas Department of Health and Environment, and the two lead Kansas workforce development and technical assistance contractors: Child Care Aware of Kansas and Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities. The Professional Development Implementation Team facilitated more than 80 meetings with early childhood professionals who work in various settings: child care, infant/toddler programs, preschool, among others, to solicit input and address feedback. Workforce Registry: Technical development on the early childhood Workforce Registry in Kansas is underway and being led by the Kansas Children's Cabinet Trust Fund and Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities, which has made significant progress towards permanently elevating and professionalizing the early childhood workforce in Kansas. State agencies, specifically Kansas Department of Health and Environment and Kansas Department for Children and Families, and Child Care Aware of Kansas are vital collaborative partners in this work.

 \square No.

□ No.

6.2.2 Description of the professional development framework

a. Describe how the Lead Agency's framework for training and professional development addresses the following required elements:

- i. Professional standards and competencies. For example, Lead Agencies can include information about which roles in early childhood education are included (such as teachers, directors, infant and toddler specialists, mental health consultants, coaches, licensors, QIS assessors, family service workers, home visitors). Kansas Core Competencies for Early Childhood Care and Education Professionals provides a competency-based foundation for the professional development of early childhood care and education professionals by defining what adults working with children and families need to know and be able to do to provide quality early care and education. By defining the levels of competencies, it allows early childhood care and education professionals to evaluate professional growth from one competency level to the next supported by training, education, and selfassessment. Lead Agency Workforce Professional Development agreement requires all professional development content align with and identify competency content areas. The Kansas Department of Health and Environment approves child care training and requires that core competency content area and skill level of audience be identified. The Kansas Early Learning Standards provide information and guidance to early childhood care and education professionals on the developmental sequence of learning for children from birth through kindergarten. It is a resource that providers and teachers can use to plan activities and engage in conversations with young children and their families around early learning. The Kansas Family Engagement and Partnership Standards for Early Childhood are structured to align with the Kansas Early Learning Standards and the Kansas School Readiness Framework. The standards provide information and quidance for early childhood care and education professionals, including individuals working with children from birth through age five on the engagement of families.
- ii. Career pathways. For example, Lead Agencies can include information about professional development registries, career ladders, and levels. The Lead Agency's Workforce Professional Development agreement will implement a comprehensive Career Pathway inclusive of professionals working in a variety of early child care and education settings in Kansas, providing consultation and technical assistance to administrative and program staff working on professional growth, which will include progression on the career pathway. The agreement will also promote and operationalize components of the pathway within a competency-based framework in alignment with existing design principles including but not limited to, supporting the goal of developing a highly qualified and effective workforce for professionals providing care for children birth to school age.

- iii. Advisory structure. For example, Lead Agencies can include information about how the professional development advisory structure interacts with the State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care. The Lead Agency solicits and receives recommendations through regularly scheduled meetings with early childhood education partners. The Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund has been recognized by the governor as the Kansas Early Childhood Advisory Council. The council includes the State Directors Team which is comprised of members from key state agencies that support Kansas children and families. Agencies represented include the Lead Agency Kansas Department for Children and Families, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, Kansas State Department of Education, and Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund. The Lead Agency sponsored Workforce Professional Development Advisory Group aligns their work with the All in For Kansas Kids Strategic Plan. The advisory group is part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure and recommendations from the group help inform the Kansas Early Childhood Advisory Council Recommendations Panel and/or the State Directors Team. Decisions are made in coordination with these entities and other early childhood advisory or workgroups.
- iv. Articulation. For example, Lead Agencies can include information about articulation agreements, and collaborative agreements that support progress in degree acquisition. Historically, agreements have been individually negotiated between two-year and four-year postsecondary programs. The Career Pathway aligns with higher education requirements and supports degree acquisition at the associate's and bachelor's level. To be more representative of the entire early childhood workforce expansion of the Career Pathway to include levels reflecting graduate certification is planned during 2024-2025. Throughout this period, Career Pathway-focused meetings around articulation agreements will be held with individuals who represent both community colleges and universities. These individuals will engage with the Workforce Development Advisory Group to discuss with the broader workforce how these articulation agreements will impact the training and professional development system.
- Workforce information. For example, Lead Agencies can include information ٧. about workforce demographics, educator well-being, retention/turnover surveys, actual wage scales, and/or access to benefits. The Lead Agency's partner Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities, in partnership with the Office of Educational Innovation and Evaluation administered a workforce survey in 2023 to gather feedback from early childhood care and education professionals who work or worked in the state of Kansas, seeking to better understand the workforce and the systems that affect turnover and workplace satisfaction. The survey includes data on demographics including role, full time/part time, type of setting, county, annual salary, other income supports, and benefits. The identifiable information is collected separately and not tied to the survey responses. However, there is no data to compare the feedback with because this survey had not been previously administered. Kansas is developing a Workforce Registry to better capture needed workforce data, including workforce demographics, education levels, and other provider specific data that can be used as part of improvements in the future to the professional framework.

- vi. Financing. For example, Lead Agencies can include information about strategies including scholarships, apprenticeships, wage enhancements, etc. *The Lead Agency provides CCDF funding to support progression of professional development through agreements for Child Care Workforce Professional Development, Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, Child Care Quality Improvement Systems, Kansas Department of Health and Environment's Licensing Agreement, and also (while not funded with CCDF) Child Care Health Consultants. In service clock-hour training, continuing education unit training, higher education for early childhood education associate degrees, early childhood certification, director's credential, and Child Development Associate credential training and application fees are available through the Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement. The Infant-Toddler Specialist Network and Links to Quality provide financial incentives to participants as they work through and accomplish goals on their Quality Improvement Plans.*
- b. Does the Lead Agency use additional elements?

 \boxtimes Yes.

If yes, describe the element(s). Check all that apply.

- ii.

 Engagement of training and professional development providers, including higher education, in aligning training and educational opportunities with the Lead Agency's framework. Describe: The Workforce Development Advisory Group and subgroups, and the Kansas Early Childhood Recommendations Panel include training and professional development providers and higher education professionals.
- iii.

 Other. Describe: The Workforce Development Advisory Group conducted a child care workforce survey and received feedback from 1,660 early childhood care and education professionals to help inform work involved with the professional framework.

☐ No.

6.2.3 Impact of the Professional Development Framework

Describe how the framework improves the quality, diversity, stability, and retention of caregivers, teachers, and directors and identify what data are available to assess the impact.

- a. Professional standards and competencies. For example, do the professional standards and competencies reflect the diversity of providers across role, child care setting, or age of children served? The Kansas Core Competencies for Early Childhood Care and Education Professionals are based on 8 domains, skill areas based on each domain, and 4 levels of competencies, which were developed using Bloom's Taxonomy. Bloom's Taxonomy states that learners must begin by learning basic, foundational knowledge about a given subject before they can progress to more complex types of thinking, such as analysis and evaluation. The competencies and levels relate to all early care and education settings and early educator roles. Each level addresses the skills needed to know and care for young children, regardless of the setting. The Kansas Core Competencies are aligned for ages infants to school age through alignment and crosswalk with the following: National Association for the Education of Young Children Professional Standards and Competencies, Division of Early Childhood Recommended Practices, National Association for Family Child Care Quality Standards, National Afterschool Association Core Knowledge, Skills, and Competencies and Child Development Associate Competency Goals and Functional Areas.
- b. Career pathways. For example, has the Lead Agency developed a wage ladder that provides progressively higher wages as early educators gain more experience and credentials? What types of child care settings and staff roles are addressed in career pathways, such as licensed centers and family child care homes? The Career Pathway visually represents the career, support, and training options available to professionals in the Early Childhood Care and Education system. The Career Pathway is a competency-based pathway and offers a clearly articulated path for professional development that recognizes credit bearing and non-credit bearing avenues as well as professional experience with children with multiple entry points. Every early childhood care and education professional should be on the pathway and opportunities for further education and training. The Career Pathway outlines professional support to advance along the pathway including advising, coaching, and mentoring for early childhood care and education professionals including those working in licensed child care facilities as well as family child care homes.
- c. Advisory structure. For example, has the advisory structure identified goals for child care workforce compensation, including types of staff and target compensation levels? Does the Lead Agency have a Preschool Development Birth-to-Five grant and is part of its scope of work child care compensation activities? Are they represented in the advisory structure? The Kansas Early Childhood Advisory Council and Recommendations Panel and Workforce Professional Development Advisory Group are utilized to provide feedback and support for the professional development framework to improve the quality, diversity, stability, and retention of early childhood care and education professionals. These are both multi-agency teams that include a cross-section of early childhood care and education professionals. The Workforce Professional Development Advisory Group focus includes subgroups addressing Equity, Inclusion, and Diversity; Career Pathways, Core Competencies; Workforce Registry; Individual Professional Development Plan, Collaborative Technical Assistance Network, Collaborative Professional Development Group, and Yearly Professional Development Needs Assessment.

- d. Articulation. For example, how does the advisory structure include training and professional development for providers, including higher education, to assist in aligning training and education opportunities? The Workforce Development Advisory Group includes members representing 2- and 4- year institutes of higher education, from Kansas Department of Education Family and Consumer Sciences, support service professionals, and direct service professionals. All members of the Workforce Development Advisory Group have the opportunity to participate in workgroups focusing on professional development topics such as individualized professional development plans, trainer and training approval processes, core competencies, and technical assistance alignment and referrals.
- Workforce information. For example, does the Lead Agency have data on the existing e. wages and benefits available to the child care workforce? Do any partners such as the Quality Improvement System, child care resource and referral agencies, Bureau of Labor Statistics, and universities and research organizations collect compensation and benefits data? Does the Lead Agency monitor child care workforce wages and access to benefits through ongoing data collection and evaluation? Can the data identify any disparities in the existing compensation and benefits (by geography, role, child care setting, race, ethnicity, gender, or age of children served)? The Lead Agency's partner, Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities, in partnership with the Office of Educational Innovation and Evaluation administered a workforce survey in 2023 to gather feedback from early childhood care and education professionals who work or worked in the state of Kansas, seeking to better understand the workforce and the systems that affect turnover and workplace satisfaction. The survey contains data to help identify disparities in the existing compensation and benefits with demographics collected including role, full time/part time, type of setting, county, annual salary, other income supports, and benefits. The identifiable information is collected separately and not tied to the survey responses. However, there is no data to compare the feedback with because this survey had not been previously administered. On the 2020 Kansas Child Care Market Analysis survey, questions were asked regarding annual wage/salaries for child care owners, directors/assistant directors, administrative assistants, full time classroom teachers, full-time assistant teachers, consultants, and other full and part-time staff. For smaller facilities and family homes, questions were asked about owners' wages/salaries, and full /part-time staff. Questions were also asked about benefits available and how much those benefits cost in operational expenses. This information was used in the Kansas Narrow Cost Analysis to determine gaps with the subsidy payments and cost of meeting the base licensing requirements, which contains the CCDF Health and Safety requirements. This information was separated by child care settings of centers and family homes, including roles, which informed the Narrow Cost Analysis cost model. The costs varied by age of the children served. Neither the survey nor the analysis separated by geography, race, ethnicity, or gender. Because the Kansas Cost Model, developed by P5 Fiscal Strategies, uses wages in the assumptions, the wage information is gathered in the 2024 survey also. The data has not been used to identify disparities by child care settings in compensation and benefits, but instead it has been used to inform subsidy payment rates.

f. Financing. For example, has the Lead Agency set a minimum or living wage as a floor for all child care staff? Do Lead Agency-provider subsidy agreements contain requirements for staff compensation levels? Do Lead Agencies provide program-level compensation grants to support staff base salaries and benefits? Does the Lead Agency administer bonuses or stipends directly to workers? Kansas uses CCDF funding to improve the quality of early childhood care and education, retain providers and stabilize the workforce by offering low or no cost workforce professional development and infant-toddler services at no cost. Financial incentives through the Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement include trainer mini-grants and scholarships for progression of professional development. Trainer mini grants are designed to expand professional development opportunities for the child care workforce population state-wide with priority of funding awards aimed to increase professional development in rural areas. Kansas Department for Children and Families also supports scholarships towards professional development progression which requires applicants to complete an Individualized Professional Development Plans. Scholarships include progression of professional development through clock-hour training, continuing education unit training, higher education courses, early childhood certification, director's credential, and Child Development Associate Credential training and application fees. The Infant-Toddler Specialist Network offers financial incentives to providers and programs serving infants and toddlers who need assistance in meeting goals for quality improvements. The lead agency does provide individual grants for the Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships. Kansas Early Head Start grantees pay a quality payment to participating child care providers, on top of the base subsidy payment that is issued to and paid by the parents. Amounts vary based on the individual grantees' agreements with their participating providers. These grants are regularly used to help offset the cost of salaries related to reduced ratios in accordance with Head Start Program Performance Standards.

6.3 Ongoing Training and Professional Development

6.3.1 Required hours of ongoing training

Provide the number of hours of ongoing training required annually for CCDF-eligible providers in the following settings:

- a. Licensed child care centers: 16 hours
- b. License-exempt child care centers: The lead agency does not have any license-exempt eligible CCDF providers.
- c. Licensed family child care homes: 16 hours
- d. License-exempt family child care homes: *The lead agency does not have any license-exempt eligible CCDF providers.*
- e. Regulated or registered in-home child care: *The lead agency only enrolls in-home child care providers that meet the CCDF relative definition.*
- f. Non-regulated or registered in-home child care: *The lead agency does not specify a certain number of hours for ongoing training for enrolled in-home relative providers.*

6.3.2 Accessibility of professional development for Tribal organizations

Describe how the Lead Agency's training and professional development are accessible to providers supported through Indian tribes or Tribal organizations receiving CCDF funds (as applicable). All training and professional development through CCDF funded Child Care Workforce Professional Development and Infant-Toddler Specialist Network agreements are accessible to all child care providers, anyone planning to become a provider, or anyone who has interest in childhood education. There are no limitations to who may take the trainings or participate in ongoing professional development.

6.3.3 Professional development appropriate for the diversity of children, families, and child care providers

Describe how the Lead Agency's training and professional development requirements reflect the diversity of children, families, and child care providers participating in CCDF. To the extent practicable, how does professional development include specialized training or credentials for providers who care for infants or school-age children; individuals with limited English proficiency; children who are bilingual; children with developmental delays or disabilities; and/or Native Americans, including Indians, as the term is defined in Section 900.6 in subpart B of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (including Alaska Natives) and Native Hawaiians? The Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement provides online, live virtual, and inperson training and technical assistance appropriate for all providers of all age groups. The Infant-Toddler Specialist Network agreement also provides training, specific to the needs of infant-toddler care and education professionals. Between these two agreements, there are a variety of trainings available to providers based on their individual needs and the needs of the children in their care. Courses that support providers working with children of families that are English-language learners include Building Skills in Two Languages and Beyond a Celebration: Exploring Culture in Practice. To support bilingual child care providers courses in Spanish are available online and live virtual. When possible, interpreters or the use of translation headsets are available for in-person training. Courses that support providers working with children with developmental delays include Early Intervention, Special Education Basics, Inclusive Care for Infants and Toddlers, and Inclusive Care for Preschoolers. Courses that support providers working with school-age children include Fostering Critical Thinking Skills After School and School Age Care: Guidance for Youth Development. ADA and accessibility review checklists and cultural awareness checklists are utilized during development to ensure content reflects the diversity of the workforce. Providers who participate in trainings through Child Care Workforce Professional Development or the Infant-Toddler Specialist Network can request additional information and/or technical assistance. Technical assistance is based on provider requests to meet the needs of their individual child care setting. Providers who receive subsidy must take an online course, Supporting Kansas Families: Department for Children and Families Child Care Subsidy Program to learn the process and program requirements to become a Kansas Department for Children and Families provider for families eligible for child care assistance.

6.3.4 Child developmental screening

Describe how all providers receive, through training and professional development, information about: (1) existing resources and services the State/Territory can make available in conducting developmental screenings and providing referrals to services when appropriate for children who receive assistance under this part, including the coordinated use of the Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment program (42 U.S.C. 1396 et seq.) and developmental screening services available under section 619 and part C of the Individuals with Disabilities

Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1419, 1431 et seq.); and (2) how child care providers may utilize these resources and services to obtain developmental screenings for children who receive assistance and who may be at risk for cognitive or other developmental delays, which may include social, emotional, physical, or linguistic delays: Through the Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement and Infant-Toddler Specialist Network, training and technical assistance is available on typical child development, observation and assessment of children, communicating with families regarding developmental concerns, and inclusive care, including services and supports available for children with disabilities and their families. Training and technical assistance is also available on the use of screening tools, and the screening tools are made available to participating programs as funding is available.

6.4 Early Learning and Developmental Guidelines

Lead Agencies must develop, maintain, or implement early learning and developmental guidelines appropriate for children from birth to kindergarten entry. Early learning and developmental guidelines should describe what children should know and be able to do at different ages and cover the essential domains of early childhood development, which at a minimum includes cognition, including language arts and mathematics; social, emotional, and physical development; and approaches toward learning.

6.4.1 Early learning and developmental guidelines

- a. Check the boxes below to certify the Lead Agency's early learning and developmental guidelines are:
 - i.

 Research-based.
 - ii. ⊠ Developmentally appropriate.
 - iii.

 Culturally and linguistically appropriate.
 - iv.

 Aligned with kindergarten entry.
 - v. Appropriate for all children from birth to kindergarten entry.

 - vii. If any components above are not checked, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
- b. Check the boxes below to certify that the required domains are included in the Lead Agency's early learning and developmental guidelines.
 - i. \boxtimes Cognition, including language arts and mathematics.
 - ii. \boxtimes Social development.
 - iii.

 Emotional development.
 - iv.

 Physical development.
 - v. \(\times \text{ Approaches toward learning.} \)

- vii. If any components above are not checked, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
- c. When were the Lead Agency's early learning and developmental guidelines most recently updated and for what reason? The standards were updated in 2024 based on new and current research. A specific focus was placed on developmentally appropriate practices, ease of use and accessibility, as well as the incorporation of practices to ensure commitment to responsive and respectful early learning environments and supporting children from diverse backgrounds.
- d. Provide the Web link to the Lead Agency's early learning and developmental guidelines. https://www.ksde.org/Portals/0/Early%20Childhood/Kansas_Early_Learning_Standards.pdf

6.4.2 Use of early learning and developmental guidelines

- a. Describe how the Lead Agency uses its early learning and developmental guidelines.

 Kansas Early Learning Standards is a document that provides information and guidance to early childhood providers and teachers, including early primary grade teachers, on the developmental continuum of learning for children from birth through kindergarten. It serves as resource that providers and teachers can use as they plan activities, choose and implement curriculum, and engage young children and their families. The standards are not to be used as an assessment tool, but as a cornerstone to support adults in making appropriate instructional decisions that will benefit young learners.
- b. Check the boxes below to certify that CCDF funds are not used to develop or implement an assessment for children that:
 - i. \boxtimes Will be the primary or sole basis to determine a child care provider ineligible to participate in the CCDF.
 - ii. extstyle extstyle
 - iii.

 ⊠ Will be used as the primary or sole method for assessing program effectiveness.
 - iv. \square Will be used to deny children eligibility to participate in CCDF.
 - v. If any components above are not checked, describe: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

7 Quality Improvement Activities

The quality of child care directly affects children's safety and healthy development while in care settings, and high-quality child care can be foundational across the lifespan. Lead Agencies may use CCDF for quality improvement activities for all children in care, not just those receiving child care subsidies. OCC will collect the most detailed Lead Agency information about quality improvement activities in annual reports instead of this Plan.

Lead Agencies must report on CCDF child care quality improvement investments in three ways:

1. In this Plan, Lead Agencies will describe the types of activities supported by quality investments over the 3-year period.

- An annual expenditure report (the ACF-696). Lead Agencies will provide data on how much CCDF funding is spent on quality activities. This report will be used to determine compliance with the required quality and infant and toddler spending requirements.
- An annual Quality Progress Report (the ACF-218). Lead Agencies will provide
 a description of activities funded by quality expenditures, the measures used
 to evaluate its progress in improving the quality of child care programs and
 services within the State/Territory, and progress or barriers encountered on
 those measures.

In this section of the Plan, Lead Agencies will describe their quality activities needs assessment and identify the types of quality improvement activities where CCDF investments are being made using quality set-aside funds.

7.1 Quality Activities Needs Assessment

7.1.1 Needs assessment process and findings

a. Describe the Lead Agency needs assessment process for expending CCDF funds on activities to improve the quality of child care, including the frequency of assessment, how a diverse range of parents and providers were consulted, and how their views are incorporated: The annual professional development needs assessment is a requirement in the Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement. In the past, the providers were asked to complete a survey to determine their general wellness, their training needs, preferences, and interests of early childhood care and education professionals in Kansas. The survey also asked participants to identify the supports needed to achieve their career goals, their knowledge of existing CCDF funded quality programs and their utilization of those programs, and areas where providers identify a need for additional support. These survey finding were incorporated into the All in For Kansas needs assessment 2024, which is used to inform the Strategic Plan, and therefore CCDF State Plan.

b. Describe the findings of the assessment, including any findings related to needs of different populations and types of providers, and if any overarching goals for quality improvement were identified: Kansas child care professionals earn an average salary of \$25,570 according to 2023 Bureau of Labor Statistics , which is below the Federal Poverty Level for a family of four at \$30,000 and far below the estimated annual income of \$46,645 needed to afford a three-bedroom apartment in Kansas. Kansas has an unmet child care need of about 56%, according to Child Care Aware of Kansas, which is in part attributable to the shortage of child care professionals. Respondents to the KCCTO Statewide Workforce Needs Assessment indicate that 60% are unaware of early childhood core competencies, and 44% do not have professional development plans. According to Child Care Aware of Kansas, many families need care outside of traditional work hours, but only 6.4% of licensed programs offer evening hour care, 1.2% offer overnight care, and 3.6% offer weekend care. Findings related to the Kansas early childhood workforce were developed through in-depth review of existing data and relevant reports, collection of perspectives from across the Kansas early childhood ecosystem, and data synthesis of these important yet distinct insights. As a result of these findings integrated initiatives are being launched to recruit, retain, and elevate highly qualified early childhood professionals. Kansas is also implementing statewide strategies to help child care administrators keep their doors open despite workforce shortages. Some of the overarching goals that have come out of these needs assessments center mainly around the need to recruit and retain quality staff. To do this, quality improvement efforts will focus on the need to engage the providers in the new Core Competencies, the development of their staff through Individual Professional Development Plans as a part of the Career Pathway, and the utilization of the Workforce Registry. Shared Service Networks, funded by CCDF quality funds, represent one model that is working to reduce administrative costs and other barriers to the child care industry long-term. These Share Service Network Hubs are designed to reduce operating costs for participating child care programs by offering a range of shared services and supports, including administrative services, substitute pools, and telehealth options. The need for care outside of traditional hours helped inform the work that is being done to allow the use of differential payments above the Child Care Assistance maximum for child care services offered during non-traditional hours to encourage child care supply outside of typical business hours.

7.2 Use of Quality Set-Aside Funds

Lead Agencies must use a portion of their CCDF expenditures for activities designed to improve the quality of child care services and to increase parental options for and access to high-quality child care. They must use the quality set-aside funds on at least one of 10 activities described in CCDF and the quality activities must be aligned with a Statewide or Territory-wide assessment of the State's or Territory's need to carry out such services and care.

7.2.1 Quality improvement activities

a. Describe how the Lead Agency will make its Quality Progress Report (ACF – 218) and expenditure reports, available to the public. Provide a link if available. Once accepted by the Office of Childcare, the final Quality Progress Report is shared under the Department for Children and Families economic and employment services childcare and early education webpage, which is available to the public. https://www.dcf.ks.gov/services/ees/Pages/EESreports.aspx

b.	Identify Lead Agency plans, if any, to spend CCDF funds for each of the following quality improvement activities. If an activity is checked "yes", describe the Lead Agency's current and/or future plans for this activity.		
	i.	Supporting the training and professional development of the child care workforce, including birth to five and school-age providers.	
		\square No plans to spend in this category of activities at this time.	
		☑ Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. Lead Agency's Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement has the following required outcomes; Improve the skills and knowledge of the future and existing workforce; Demonstrate availability to work with all early childhood care and education professionals and local, regional, and state-level agencies and organizations; Offer coaching, consultation, professional development advising and planning, and technical assistance; Coordinate and collaborate a network of services to support Department for Children and Families' CCDF quality programs, including but not limited to, Links to Quality, the Kansas quality rating improvement system, and Infant-Toddler Specialist Network.	
	ii.	Developing, maintaining, or implementing early learning and developmental guidelines.	
		\square No plans to spend in this category of activities at this time.	
		☑ Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. The Lead agency's Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement does assist in the implementation of early learning and developmental guidelines by requiring they provide ongoing training in the priority training topics of Kansas Early Learning Standards as determined by CCDBG regulations. Within that agreement, they must also align professional development with Kansas Family Engagement and Partnership Standards, and Kansas Core Competencies. The Lead Agency's Infant-Toddler Specialist Network agreement requires promotion of the use of the Kansas Early Learning Standards.	
	iii.	Developing, implementing, or enhancing a quality improvement system.	
		\square No plans to spend in this category of activities at this time.	
		☑ Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. Lead Agency's Child Care Quality Initiative System agreement has the following required outcomes; Improve the quality and support the future and existing workforce; Demonstrate availability to work with all early childhood care and education professionals, and local, regional, and state-level agencies and organizations; Offer coaching, consultation, mentoring, peer to peer technical assistance, advising and technical assistance; Coordinate and collaborate a network of services to support Department for Children and Families' CCDF quality programs, including but not limited to, Child Care Health Consultant Network, and Infant-Toddler Specialist Network; Support stabilization of the child care sector in Kansas through improved business practices, improved quality of care, and connection of support services to children to improve their social and emotional development.	
	iv.	Improving the supply and quality of child care services for infants and toddlers.	

	in this category of activities at this time.
	≥ Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. Lead agency's Infant-Toddler Specialist Network agreement has the following required outcomes; Increase the number of infants and toddlers reached; Improve the skills and knowledge of the existing workforce; Demonstrate availability to work with all infant and toddler programs; Offer coaching, consultation, professional development advising, and technical assistance; Assist in partnerships between programs such as Early Head Start and licensed child care; Coordinate and collaborate a network of services to support Department for Children and Families' CCDF quality programs, including but not limited to, Links to Quality, the Kansas quality rating improvement system, and Child Care Workforce Professional Development. Lead agency's Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships provided services to Kansas children through the Kansas Early Head Start program, delivered by Kansas Early Head Start grantees. Kansas Early Head Start provides comprehensive services to child care partner programs that exhibit need, desire to participate, and have willingness to follow enhanced program regulations and requirements related to quality Kansas Early Head Start services including those related to child development, continuity of care, parent involvement, and professional development. Kansas Early Head Start offers parents opportunities for individual and parental growth, as well as support in identifying and meeting goals, including a goal of self-sufficiency. Kansas Early Head Start programs offer family strengthening and father engagement activities and education. Kansas Early Head Start programs also provide financial literacy and health literacy education.
٧.	Establishing or expanding a statewide system of CCR&R services.
	\square No plans to spend in this category of activities at this time.
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. Lead agency's Child Care Resource and Referral Consumer Education agreement services include providing customized referrals to families for child care, consumer education on what to look for in quality child care, resources to providers to encourage quality improvement and meet family's needs, and outreach and partnership with businesses and community organizations to build capacity for high-quality child care programs.
vi.	Facilitating compliance with Lead Agency child care licensing, monitoring, inspection and health and safety standards.
	\square No plans to spend in this category of activities at this time.
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. The Lead agency's Interagency agreement with Kansas Department of Health and Environment for Health, Safety and Increased Quality in Child Care oversees the health and safety of children in child care settings through the establishment of licensing requirements and standards and the monitoring and enforcement of policies and practices.
vii.	Evaluating and assessing the quality and effectiveness of child care services within the State/Territory.

	\square No plans to spend in this category of activities at this time.
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. The Lead agency's Interagency agreement with Kansas Department of Health and Environment for Health, Safety and Increased Quality in Child Care utilizes data from the web-based survey tool to pull information for most frequent violations per region or county. Non- compliance data is provided to surveyors. Some counties use this information to build specific training or to guide further training topics in their contracted county.
vii	i. Accreditation support.
	\square No plans to spend in this category of activities at this time.
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. The lead agency's Child Care Workforce Professional Development agreement requires establishment of procedures and criteria for financial incentives and scholarships for early childhood care and education professionals seeking accreditation.
ix.	Supporting State/Territory or local efforts to develop high-quality program standards relating to health, mental health, nutrition, physical activity, and physical development.
	\square No plans to spend in this category of activities at this time.
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. The Lead agency's Child Care Quality Initiative System agreement includes the administration of Links to Quality. Links to Quality's Health and Safety Link, which is still in development, includes quality standards for health nutrition, and safety of child care settings and physical activity and physical development in child care settings. The Learning and Development Link includes quality standards for learning environment, teacher/provider-child relationships, and teacher/provider instructional practices. The Family Partnership Link includes quality standards for family partnership and family strengthening. Finally, the Program Administration Link includes quality standards for business related practices.
x.	Other activities determined by the Lead Agency to improve the quality of child care services and the measurement of outcomes related to improved provider preparedness, child safety, child well-being, or kindergarten entry.
	\square No plans to spend in this category of activities at this time.
	\square Yes. If yes, describe current and future investments. <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .

8 Lead Agency Coordination and Partnerships to Support Service Delivery

Coordination and partnerships help ensure that the Lead Agency's efforts accomplish CCDF goals effectively, leverage other resources, and avoid duplication of effort. Such coordination and partnerships can help families better access child care, can assist in providing consumer education to parents, and can be used to improve child care quality and the stability of child care providers. Such coordination can also be particularly helpful in the aftermath of disasters when the provision

of emergency child care services and the rebuilding and restoring of child care infrastructure are an essential part of ensuring the well-being of children and families in recovering communities.

This section identifies who the Lead Agency collaborates with to implement services, how match and maintenance-of-effort (MOE) funds are used, coordination with child care resource and referral (CCR&R) systems, and efforts for disaster preparedness and response plans to support continuity of operations in response to emergencies.

8.1 Coordination with Partners to Expand Accessibility and Continuity of Care

Lead Agencies must coordinate child care services supported by CCDF with other federal, State/Territory, and local level programs. This includes programs for the benefit of Indian children, infants and toddlers, children with disabilities, children experiencing homelessness, and children in foster care.

8.1.1 Coordination with required and optional partners

Describe how the Lead Agency coordinates and the results of this coordination of the provision of child care services with the organizations and agencies to expand accessibility and continuity of care and to assist children enrolled in early childhood programs in receiving full-day services that meet the needs of working families.

The Lead Agency must coordinate with the following agencies:

a. State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care or similar coordinating body (pursuant to 642B(b)(I)(A)(i) of the Head Start Act). Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: The Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund plays the statutory role to assist the Governor in developing and implementing a coordinated, comprehensive service delivery system to the children and families of Kansas and meets every other month. The Secretary of the Kansas Department for Children and Families, the lead agency, serves as an ex-officio member on the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund. There is a state Directors' team that meets every two weeks and is composed of designees from the Children's Cabinet. The lead agency has representation at these meetings, including the two co-CCDF Administrators. There is a recommendations panel who provide an advisory role to the Cabinet and the lead agency has required membership on the panel and has current members serving a one-year term. The recommendations panel meets monthly. Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas Department of Health and Environment consult with many different groups within the state on areas that connect to the plan content throughout the year. These groups are considered part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure that work together to inform the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund and provide recommendations. These groups include, but are not limited to, the Child Care Licensing Systems Improvement Team, Home Visiting Leadership group, the workforce development advisory group, the Kansas Family Leadership Team, Links to Quality Advisory Group, and Maternal Child Health Council. The Lead Agency's goal is to coordinate with relevant groups regarding CCDF reauthorization and topic areas impacted by the CCDBG Act of 2014. Groups address goals for children ages infancy through school age. Policy, licensing regulations, and quality initiatives are all addressed within these groups. The main coordination with the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund and the lead agency is done through the overlapping requirements of CCDF and the goals in the All in For Kansas Kids Early Childhood Strategic Plan and the work efforts involved to meet the goals of this plan. Some of the efforts include the building of workforce capacity to provide high-quality early childhood services. The expected outcomes would include the creation of additional degree advancement opportunities for the workforce that align with the Kansas Early Childhood Career Pathway, more resources for contingency plans for operating during and after major disruptions and identify challenges for early childhood professionals to stay in the workforce. The All in For Kansas Kids Early Childhood Strategic Plan includes promoting agreements between public and private sectors to expand early childhood supports and specifically calls out an action that supports the CCDF funded support for early childhood coalitions across Kansas through the Child Care Resource and Referral Consumer Education agreement. A goal to support polices and efforts that increase capacity, enhance quality, improve access to services, and contribute to economic security for families includes the development of an emergency response plan, which aligns with the CCDF requirements around a child care related emergency response plan. Another strategic plan goal is to support the early childhood professionals to reach their professional development goals. These connect to the lead agency CCDF goals of increasing access to quality early education, which is accomplished through many CCDF quality funded agreements that help support all the elements of the Professional Development Framework such as the Core Competencies, the Career Pathway, and support for the registry development. Goals around financial sustainability for early childhood professionals align with the work of the expansion of differential payments through subsidy, the Shared Service Network delivery and the business operation supports that are included in CCDF funded agreements. These are just some of

the shared goals and visions between the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund and the lead agency. The existing Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure ensures that the state can be responsible to the changing needs and continued collaboration and discussions help inform the work to support early childhood education and families in Kansas.

b. Indian Tribe(s) and/or Tribal organization(s), at the option of the Tribe or Tribal organization. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination, including which Tribe(s) was (were) involved: The lead agency works with Prairie Band Potawatomi Nation to coordinate the Tribal Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Program. The lead agency is available and willing to assist in verifying eligibility status to decrease duplication of benefits and services. The lead agency also allows child care assistance, with no family share/co-payment assigned, for tribal members who are subject to requirements under the Tribal Temporary Assistance for Needy Family Program if child care is not available through that program. This ensures that members who are participating with Tribal Temporary Assistance for Needy Families are able to fully participate due to access to affordable child care. The lead agency also has staff in the Prevention and Protection Services program area that join meetings monthly with ACF and with Prairie Band Potawatomi Nation, the Kickapoo Tribe of Kansas, The lowa Tribe of Kansas and Nebraska, and Sack and Fox Nation of Missouri in Kansas and Nebraska.

\square Not applicable. Check here if th	ere are no India	an Tribes and/or	Tribal
organizations in the State/Territory	·.		

c. State/Territory agency(ies) responsible for programs for children with disabilities, including early intervention programs authorized under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: In the state of Kansas, the Kansas Department of Health and Environment oversees Part C of IDEA, and the Kansas State Department of Education oversees Part B of IDEA. On-going planning and consultation occur between the lead agency, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, and Kansas State Department of Education representatives. All three agencies have ex-officio members on the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund, the designated Early Childhood Advisory Council, which is directed to advise, evaluate, and support the prevention of child abuse and neglect through the Children's Initiative Fund and the Children's Trust Fund. The Kansas Children's Cabinet is also directed to assist the Governor in developing and implementing a coordinated, comprehensive delivery system to serve children and families in Kansas. The Kansas Children's Cabinet oversees grants for Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention, and the Early Childhood Block Grants. There is a state Directors' team with members from Kansas Department for Children and Families, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, Kansas State Department of Education and Kansas Children's Cabinet staff that meets every two weeks to lead efforts to implement the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic Plan and oversee other Preschool Development Grant Birth through Five funding. As part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure, there is an Early Childhood Recommendations Panel with the role in providing recommendation around the implementation of the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic plan. This Early Childhood Recommendations Panel has panel members from Kansas Department for Children and Families, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, and Kansas State Department of Education. The recommendations panel meets monthly. Members of the Early Childhood Recommendations Panel had developed a Kindergarten Transition MOU Toolkit, a resource to support active community planning for transitions into kindergarten. This workgroup was comprised of individuals representing our mixed-delivery system, including local educational agencies, institutions of higher education, local providers of early childhood education and development services, Head Start agencies, and other partners. The Kansas Early Learning Standards Core Team also included members from Kansas Department for Children and Families, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, and Kansas State Department of Education, who updated the standards. The Kansas Early Learning Standards are designed to provide high quality care in the least restrictive environment and "reflect the framework from which the general curriculum is aligned and, therefore, provide the starting point from which individual adaptations or modifications can be created to meet the special needs of any child." The All in For Kansas Kids initiative and funding from the Preschool Development Grant has made statewide access to Ages and Stages Questionnaire online system available. The lead agency is part of the Director's team that helps oversee the Preschool Development Grant Birth through Five funding. The lead agency supports the training of providers on how to use the Ages and Stages Questionnaire screening through the CCDF funded workforce development agreement. Shared goals are alignment of state level family engagement practices and increased developmental screenings and services when needed. Lead agency staff participate on the State Interagency Coordinating Council. The goals in the partnership with the State Interagency Coordinating Council is to support and help inform their efforts to ensure that a comprehensive service delivery system of integrated services is available in Kansas to all children with, or at risk of, developmental delays from birth through age five and their families. This coordination is designed to

increased knowledge of various support systems for children with or at risk of developmental delays from birth through age five and their families, increased coordination, and an increase in children reaching developmentally appropriate milestones and that would be how future progress may be measured. It has resulted in a significant increase in developmental screenings in the State of Kansas and increase in utilization. Early detection helps children receive necessary services to support their development and allows for targeted supports for early childhood programs regarding the unique care that individual children need to increase both continuity of care and the quality of care that the children receive.

d. State/Territory office/director for Head Start State collaboration. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: On-going planning and coordination occurs with the Head Start State Collaboration office located within the Economic and Employment Services Section in the Kansas Department for Children and Families. The Director actively participates in the development and completion of the CCDF state plan. The Head Start State Collaboration Director supports and facilitates coordination between the lead agency, Federal Head Start grantees, and the Kansas Head Start Association. The lead agency staff and the Head Start State Collaboration Director serve on the Early Childhood Recommendations Panel, the Early Childhood Workforce Advisory Committee, and to help advise Links to Quality (the QRIS system) when expansion includes Head Start programs. The Head Start State Collaboration Director assists the lead agency in the administration of the Kansas Early Head Start program through supporting the program manager and facilitating information sharing and dialog with the statewide Head Start programs. This coordination helps ensure Head Start representation in decisions impacting the Kansas early childhood system and greater consistency between state and federally funded head start programs. The coordination also helps the overall early childhood system in information and data collection due to existing relationships and connections allowing for better decision around supply and access needs.

e. State/Territory agency responsible for public health, including the agency responsible for immunizations. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: This responsibility is located within the same agency as child care licensing at Kansas Department of Health and Environment. On-going planning and consultation occur between the lead agency and Kansas Department of Health and Environment. Both agencies have ex-officio members on the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund, the designated Early Childhood Advisory Council, which is directed to advise, evaluate, and support the prevention of child abuse and neglect through the Children's Initiative Fund and the Children's Trust Fund. The Kansas Children's Cabinet is also directed to assist the Governor in developing and implementing a coordinated, comprehensive delivery system to serve children and families in Kansas. The Kansas Children's Cabinet oversees grants for Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention, and the Early Childhood Block Grants. There is a state Directors' team with members from Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas Department of Health and Environment that meets every two weeks to lead efforts to implement the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic Plan and oversee other Preschool Development Grant Birth through Five funding. In this Directors' team, the Co-Bureau Directors of Family Health are present, which falls under the Division of Public Health and includes the Bureau of Disease Control and Prevention. As part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure, there is an Early Childhood Recommendations Panel with the role in providing recommendation around the implementation of the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic plan. This Early Childhood Recommendations Panel has panel members from Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas Department of Health and Environment. The recommendations panel meets monthly. The Kansas Department of Health and Environment provides resources regarding immunizations through individual consultations with child care providers as requested during licensing surveys, technical assistance visits and the Kansas CCDF consumer education website, Child Care in Kansas. The lead agency and Kansas Department of Health and Environment promote the 1-800-CHILDREN hotline for families who need information on where to go for immunizations or connect to telehealth or health opportunities. This referral source has increased uptake and the continued utilization is part of the Strategic Plan for Early Childhood. To ensure child care immunization regulations are in alignment with federal rules and relevant/applicable state law(s) there is continued coordination between the Kansas Department of Health and Environment Bureau of Family Health, the Bureau of Disease Control and Prevention and the Kansas Department for Children and Families. This collaboration helps families keep their children safe and allows them to attend care more regularly building stronger relationships with their early childhood professionals, which leads to greater continuity of care.

f. State/Territory agency responsible for employment services/workforce development. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: One of the Co-CCDF Administrators leads a unit that includes staff that oversee policy for Cash Assistance and Cash Assistance employment services and the other Co-CCDF Administrator is the Director for Economic and Employment Services, which includes employment services. Employment services are provided for Cash Assistance recipients and Food Assistant recipients. Both programs are within Economic and Employment Services. Regular meetings discussing policy occur with the staff actively involved in providing services and regarding the state plan. Resource sharing for families is a key concern for both employment services and the CCDF related consumer education requirements, so these efforts have been combined under the same supervision to ensure families have access to the resources they need through things like the resource navigation work that exists throughout the lead agency offices in the state. There is on-going coordination and resource sharing with the employment services staff, resource coordinators, and resource navigators located within the lead agency to ensure continued support for families engaged in employment services through the Child Care Assistance program and continued resource sharing with families about many available services. This collaboration allows those participating in employment services the opportunity to utilize Child Care Assistance, which allows for greater continuity of care and greater access to full-day services.

State/Territory agency responsible for public education, including pre-Kindergarten. g. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: On-going planning and consultation occurs between Department for Children and Families, the lead agency and representatives of Kansas State Department of Education through Early Childhood Directors meetings, the Early Childhood Recommendations Panel monthly meetings, and many other early childhood stakeholder meetings where Kansas State Department of Education and the lead agency staff are present. The Early Childhood Recommendations Panel has panel members from Kansas Department for Children and Families, Kansas State Department of Education and many other agencies and organizations. The recommendations panel meets monthly. Members of the Early Childhood Recommendations Panel had developed a Kindergarten Transition MOU Toolkit, a resource to support active community planning for transitions into kindergarten. This workgroup was comprised of individuals representing our mixed-delivery system, including local educational agencies, institutions of higher education, local providers of early childhood education and development services, Head Start agencies, and other partners. The Kansas Early Learning Standards Core Team also included members from Kansas Department for Children and Families, Kansas State Department of Education, and many other agencies and organizations, who updated the standards. The leads for this work were staff from the Kansas Department for Children and Families and the Kansas State Department of Education. The All in For Kansas Kids initiative made statewide access to Ages and Stages Questionnaire online system available. The lead agency supports the training of providers on how to use the Ages and Stages Questionnaire screening through the CCDF funded workforce development agreement. Staff from both Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas State Department of Education served on Early Childhood Workforce Advisory work groups to update core competencies. Both agencies had members on the Child Care Licensing Systems Improvement team that advises on child care licensing decisions. CCDF funded partners and Kansas State Department of Education staff have served on the Kansas Association for the Education of Young Children Board. Besides the Kindergarten Transition Toolkit development that the lead agency staff assisted with, the same Kansas Head Start Collaboration Office Director staff is focused on increasing Head Start and School District coordination efforts. These coordination efforts reduce barriers for families as they transition into preschool or navigate needed services.

h. State/Territory agency responsible for child care licensing. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: On-going planning and consultation occur between the lead agency and Kansas Department of Health and Environment. Both agencies have ex-officio members on the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund, the designated Early Childhood Advisory Council, which is directed to advise, evaluate, and support the prevention of child abuse and neglect through the Children's Initiative Fund and the Children's Trust Fund. The Kansas Children's Cabinet is also directed to assist the Governor in developing and implementing a coordinated, comprehensive delivery system to serve children and families in Kansas. The Kansas Children's Cabinet oversees grants for Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention, and the Early Childhood Block Grants. There is a state Directors' team with members from Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas Department of Health and Environment that meets every two weeks to lead efforts to implement the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic Plan and oversee other Preschool Development Grant Birth through Five funding. In this Directors' team, the Co-Bureau Directors of Family Health are present, which falls under the Division of Public Health and includes the Bureau of Disease Control and Prevention. As part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure, there is an Early Childhood Recommendations Panel with the role in providing recommendation around the implementation of the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic plan. This Early Childhood Recommendations Panel has panel members from Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas Department of Health and Environment. The recommendations panel meets monthly and has several subgroups with members from both agencies working on Early Childhood related activities. There are many opportunities for collaboration for these agencies through shared membership in groups. These include the Anti Racism Community of Practice group with a focus on equitable services in early intervention. The Kansas Department of Health and Environment has a Child Care Systems Improvement Team that is attended by the lead agency staff and the work of the team is to lead to outcomes that will increase the effectiveness of the Child Care Licensing Program and increase the availability of quality child care. Both agencies attend Early Childhood Higher-Education Options Consortium to enhance the delivery of programs that meet the Kansas Early Childhood Unified License and work towards greater articulation. Both agencies have members on Hoe Visiting State Workgroup working towards the development and advancement of a unified statewide system. The CCDF funded licensing database is being designed to align with the Workforce Registry. The lead agency provides fingerprinting in their local offices for licensing for early childhood. There is shared membership on the Kansas Breastfeeding Coalition, the Kansas Early Learning Standards Core Team, Safe Kids Kansas Coalition Meetings, State Interagency Coordinating Council meetings and many CCDF related meetings and technical assistance opportunities. There are many community-based meetings that are also attended by the Lead agency regional staff and the Kansas Department of Health and Environment county surveyors and staff, including community Child Care Go Teams where work is done to identify community assets, design child care solutions, assist in the navigation of state and local licensing and building regulations and provide supports for subsidy enrollment. This collaboration results in greater shared visioning, understanding and efforts across the early childhood system and reduces duplication as work is done to increase access to high-quality child care.

- i. State/Territory agency responsible for the Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) and other relevant nutrition programs. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: CACFP staff and the lead agency staff both participation in the Kansas Breastfeeding Coalition group. CACFP information is shared on the CCDF consumer education website and promote participation in CACFP with child care providers. This assists more providers in being aware of CACFP, which helps families by offsetting some of the costs related to the nutritional needs of the children in care and provides for healthy options. The lead agency also collaborated with the Kansas State Department of Education to obtain necessary data from the CACFP program to allow for the issuance of Child Care Pandemic EBT benefits.
- j. McKinney-Vento State coordinators for homeless education and other agencies providing services for children experiencing homelessness and, to the extent practicable, local McKinney-Vento liaisons. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: The lead agency, Kansas Department for Children and Families, consulted with the state McKinney Vento Lead and the Kansas Statewide Homeless Coalition to review plans from other organizations for services to unhoused families. This information was used to inform plans for training for child care providers and providing consumer education on the CCDF consumer education website. This has increased consumer education regarding services for the unhoused through child care professional development opportunities to better meet the unique needs for these families.
- k. State/Territory agency responsible for the TANF program. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: One of the Co-CCDF Administrators leads a unit that includes staff that oversee policy for Cash Assistance and Cash Assistance employment services and the other Co-CCDF Administrator is the Director for Economic and Employment Services, which includes Cash Assistance and Cash Assistance employment services. Regular meetings discussing policy occur with the staff actively involved in running the program and regarding the state plan. Resource sharing for families is a key concern for both Cash Assistance employment services and the CCDF related consumer education requirements, so these efforts have been combined under the same supervision to ensure families have access to the resources they need through things like the resource navigation work that exists throughout the lead agency offices in the state. There is on-going coordination and resource sharing with the Cash Assistance employment services staff, resource coordinators, and resource navigators located within the lead agency to ensure continued support for families engaged in Cash Assistance employment services through the Child Care Assistance program and continued resource sharing with families about many available services. There is a shared application, verification provisions, eligibility process, and many shared policies between Cash Assistance and CCDF funded Child Care Assistance and all policy, system, and process decisions are made with staff from all the programs and consideration is made for any impact on other programs. Child Care Assistance is provided to Cash Assistance participants without a family share deduction when they have a qualifying need, and the eligibility is processed by the Cash Assistance employment services staff for those that participate in that program. This coordination helps ensure that families can meet their child care needs as they build on their skills and training to improve their financial situation.

State/Territory agency responsible for Medicaid and the State Children's Health Insurance Program. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: On-going planning and consultation occur between the lead agency and Kansas Department of Health and Environment, the administrators of the Medicaid and the State Children's Health Insurance Program in Kansas. Both agencies have ex-officio members on the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund, the designated Early Childhood Advisory Council, which is directed to advise, evaluate, and support the prevention of child abuse and neglect through the Children's Initiative Fund and the Children's Trust Fund. The Kansas Children's Cabinet is also directed to assist the Governor in developing and implementing a coordinated, comprehensive delivery system to serve children and families in Kansas. The Kansas Children's Cabinet oversees grants for Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention, and the Early Childhood Block Grants. There is a state Directors' team with members from Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas Department of Health and Environment that meets every two weeks to lead efforts to implement the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic Plan and oversee other Preschool Development Grant Birth through Five funding. In this Directors' team, the Co-Bureau Directors of Family Health are present, which falls under the Division of Public Health and includes the Bureau of Disease Control and Prevention. As part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure, there is an Early Childhood Recommendations Panel with the role in providing recommendation around the implementation of the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic plan. This Early Childhood Recommendations Panel has panel members from Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas Department of Health and Environment. The recommendations panel meets monthly and has several subgroups with members from both agencies working on Early Childhood related activities. There are many opportunities for collaboration for these agencies through shared membership in groups. A workgroup exists that is comprised of representatives from the Kansas Department for Children and Families, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, Kansas Department for Aging and Disability Services, Kansas Department of Corrections juvenile services, Family and Child Well-Being Case Management Providers, and Medicaid Managed Care Organizations regarding Medicaid issues that affect children in state custody, or foster care children. Ensuring these children receive necessary medical/mental health services is critical for their development and helps increase continuity of care with child care providers. The Kansas Maternal Child Health Council is part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure and recommendations from this group filter to the Early Childhood Recommendations Panel or State Directors Team when needed. The CCDF consumer education website shares information with families, providers and the public regarding Medicaid, SCHIP program, and immunization resources and the agencies share an eligibility system for Medicaid, SCHIP, Child Care Assistance, Food Assistance, and Cash Assistance to simplify the eligibility process. These shared systems do allow for the sharing of some documentation that is used for verification, which reduces the burden on families and increases their ability to receive child care assistance to help meet their child care needs.

I.

m. State/Territory agency responsible for mental health services. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: The lead agency, Kansas Department for Children and families collaborates with other statewide entities involved in direct mental health services, which includes EHS/HS, Kansas Department of Health and Environment- MIECHV, Part C Infant Toddler Services; KSDE- Part B 619, Parents as Teachers, through the Early Childhood Recommendation Panel work to support children and their families. The lead agency, Kansas Department for Children and Families, has representation on the Governor's Behavioral Health Services Planning Council, which makes recommendations to improve the Kansas public mental health system and ensure the needs of children and families are met. The Governor's Behavioral Health Services Planning Council has a subcommittee on Children's Mental Health, with annual recommendations made to the Secretary of Kansas Department for Aging and Disability Services. The goal of the Children's Mental Health subcommittee is to improve the collaboration and array of behavioral and mental health services offered between the systems of care to children and their families through Kansas Community Mental Health Centers, the education system, and other children's service systems. The lead agency also has representation on a Zero to Three Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health Financing Policy Project with other members representing Part C Early Intervention (Department of Health and Environment), Children's Services (Department for Aging and Disability Services [community mental health centers]), Medicaid and Children's Mental Health (Kansas Department for Children and Families), Kansas Association of Infant and Early Childhood Mental Health (KAIMH), Behavioral Health (Department of Health and Environment), School Mental Health (Kansas State Department of Education), State Interagency Coordinating Council (SICC), and the state supported mental health technical assistance initiative focusing on child care providers (supported by CCDF funding). This work focuses on enhancing Medicaid payments for mental health services for children birth to three and their families, expanding those services, coordinating early childhood settings and systems, developing the professionals in this system, and mapping access. A workgroup exists that is comprised of representatives from the Kansas Department for Children and Families, Kansas Department of Health and Environment, Kansas Department for Aging and Disability Services, Kansas Department of Corrections juvenile services, Family and Child Well-Being Case Management Providers, and Medicaid Managed Care Organizations regarding Medicaid issues that affect children in state custody, or foster care children. Ensuring these children receive necessary medical/mental health services is critical for their development and helps increase continuity of care with child care providers. Kansas Department for Children and Families and Kansas Department for Aging and Disability Services developed a Mobile Response and Stabilization Services. This is a rapid response, home-and community-based, crisis intervention model customized to meet the developmental needs of children, youth, young adults, and their families. Mobile Response and Stabilization Services de-escalates and stabilizes by responding to youth and families in their homes and communities and connecting them to community-based supports. There is a pilot project in a few locations for any child between 0-20 years of age to be provided on-site, in-person, triage, de-escalation, assessment, and referrals as needed. The mental health center team will provide 6 weeks of post call coordination of services and aftercare. Training and technical assistance is available through the CCDF funded Infant-Toddler Specialist Network to support early childhood professionals in early childhood and infant mental health. The outcomes of the project are to: 1) develop training materials for childcare providers to address mental health/social emotional development, 2) provide training and

technical assistance, and 3) support KAIMH in awarding infant mental health endorsements in Kansas. Some related areas of support through this work include challenging behaviors, trauma informed practices, child mental health and wellness, staff mental health and wellness, and attachment. This coordination increases supports for children and early childhood professionals to allow for continuity of care and increase access to care that better meets the needs of individual children and families.

n. Child care resource and referral agencies, child care consumer education organizations, and providers of early childhood education training and professional development. Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: The lead agency, Kansas Department for Children and Families, uses CCDF as the primary funding source for the child care resource and referral agencies, child care consumer education organizations, and providers of early childhood education training and professional development. The CCDF funded agreements tie the work for these organizations to the CCDF regulations and goals. All the work that is done is intended to increase access to high-quality child care. The Workforce Development Advisory group is part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure. Recommendations from this team can be filtered to the Early childhood Recommendations Panel or to the State Directors team to help develop and implement coordinated services when the recommendations need elevated, challenges are encountered, or major decisions are needed. This work and recommendations are filtered up to the Kansas Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund and the Governor when appropriate as part of the governance structure. As part of this Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure, there is an Early Childhood Recommendations Panel with the role in providing recommendation around the implementation of the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic plan. This Early Childhood Recommendations Panel has panel members from Kansas Department for Children and Families and many of the child care resource and referral agencies, the child care consumer education organizations and providers of early childhood education training and professional development. The recommendations panel meets monthly and has several subgroups with members from both agencies working on Early Childhood related activities. There are many opportunities for collaboration with these organizations through shared membership in groups. The Workforce Development Advisory Group (actively funded through CCDF funds through an agreement with the lead agency) have subgroups concerning the development of a library of Equity, Inclusion, and Diversity strategies and resources, work done to revise the core competencies, development of a statewide Individualized Professional Development Plan, work in development of assessment of statewide professional develop needs, collaboration in planning and delivery of training/professional development, and the development of a plan for statewide, collaborative technical assistance referrals. These subgroups consist of many partners throughout the Early Childhood system, including staff among the lead agency and staff with the Child Care resource and referral agencies and child care consumer education organizations. CCDF funding is also being used for the development of a workforce registry for early childhood care and education professionals to access, track, and guide career advancement, which is being worked on and will be used by the Child care resource and referral agencies and the providers of early childhood education training and professional development. The lead agency also has regional staff that participate in various activities that are supported by the different child care resource and referral agencies across the state. These activities include local efforts to discuss child care issues and build supply, support families in applying for Child Care Assistance, and shared Head Start policy council membership. All this coordination helps to increase access to high-quality child care opportunities.

o. Statewide afterschool network or other coordinating entity for out-of-school time care (if applicable). Describe the coordination and results of the coordination: The Consumer Education website for Kansas CCDF information, Child Care in Kansas, shares information on the Kansas Enrichment Network and their quality improvement efforts. Kansas Enrichment Network is the sole recognized After School Network for the State of Kansas. The lead agency has an agreement with a partner to administer the workforce development agreement, which includes the development of the core competencies. Kansas Enrichment Network aligns their quality quidelines with the core competencies. Kansas Enrichment Network shares resource throughout its network and these resources include CCDF funded activities and initiatives. The Director of Kansas Enrichment Network serves on the Workforce Development Advisory Group, which is a group required through the lead agencies CCDF funded agreement with a partner that delivers the Workforce Development activities. The purpose of this group is to advocate for the interests of the early childhood workforce through conversations surrounding quality, continuing education, industry culture, and workforce equity. Through feedback, the workforce development agreement has created more coursework that is targeted for the school-age providers. A member of the Kansas Enrichment Network Executive Advisory Committee has collaborated with Kansas Department of Health and Environment, the CCDF funded licensing agency, to help in the development of the new out-of-school time regulations. These collaborations have helped to ensure that families have higher quality out-of-school time care available for their school age children to help meet their needs.

- Agency responsible for emergency management and response. Describe the coordination p. and results of the coordination: Staff with Kansas Division of Emergency Management share the goal with the Lead Agency and other agencies to address preparedness, response, and recovery efforts specific to child care services and programs through several processes. The main process used to reach this goal is the development and updating of the Kansas Response Plan, which is the framework for the coordination of emergency management plans at all levels and provides the pre-assigned responsibilities to State agencies and organizations to support local agencies. Kansas Division of Emergency Management develops this plan in coordination with representatives from various agency and organizations, including Kansas Department for Children and Families, the Lead Agency and the child care licensing agency, Kansas Department of Health and Environment. Staff with the Kansas Division of Emergency Management have agreed to aid in the development and updating of the Statewide Child Care Disaster Plan to ensure that the plan accurately reflects the division of responsibility and coordination efforts that have been agreed on throughout the state of Kansas. Kansas Department for Children and Families works with Kansas Division of Emergency Management staff regarding continuity of operations planning and feeding and mass care in response to emergencies and disasters that occur in Kansas. Kansas Department for Children and Families is a member of the Kansas Continuation of Operation Plan Committee which is comprised of representatives of state cabinet level agencies. The committee sets standards for state agency Continuation of Operation Plan plans and provides quidance and assistance to state agencies regarding their Continuation of Operation Plan efforts. Kansas Department for Children and Families is also the state agency lead for feeding and mass care during disasters. Kansas Department for Children and Families representatives travel to the State Emergency Operations Center during State Emergency Operations Center trainings, exercises, and activations. In response to a disaster, Kansas Department for Children and Families coordinates with volunteer organizations such as the Red Cross and Salvation Army, as well as Kansas Division of Emergency Management and county emergency management staff. This coordination helps ensure adequate shelters and other necessities such as food, water and clothing are available to all Kansas citizens impacted by a disaster. The citizens assisted include vulnerable populations such as children and those with functional needs. The goals of this coordination are to ensure that specific emergency actions and responsibilities are clear in the event of an emergency. The expected results better preparation, responses, and recovery efforts for emergencies in Kansas.
- q. The following are examples of optional partners a Lead Agency might coordinate with to provide services. Check which optional partners the Lead Agency coordinates with and describe the coordination and results of the coordination.
 - i.
 ☐ State/Territory/local agencies with Early Head Start Child Care Partnership grants. Describe: The lead agency has a Memorandum of Agreement with The Family Conservancy (TFC), the only federal EHS-CCP grantee in Kansas. Per the agreement, the lead agency facilitates relationships within our other divisions, supports The Family Conservancy and the Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership families with a referral process that allows for faster processing of Child Care Assistance cases, waives family share deductions, and provides other assistance as needed to help ensure that these eligible families receive the services they need.

- ii. State/Territory institutions for higher education, including community colleges. Describe: The lead agency staff participate in the Early Childhood Higher education Options consortium (ECHO) which has the goal to support and enhance development and delivery of programs to meet the standards for the Kansas early childhood unified license. This group consist mainly of four-year university faculty. The lead agency also has staff that participate in Early Childhood Quality Instructional Partners (EQIP), which is a consortium of community college faculty collaboratively supporting articulation and the development of early childhood programs that lead to endorsement or certification. Members of these groups are also on the Early Childhood Recommendation Panel. These groups are also working on articulation agreements as part of the career pathway work that is being done through the CCDF funded workforce development agreement. This work helps create a path for additional degree advancement opportunities for early childhood care and education professional.
- iii. ☐ Other federal, State, local, and/or private agencies providing early childhood and school-age/youth-serving developmental services. Describe: Lead agency staff are members of the State Interagency Coordinating Council (SICC) and agency provides funding to support State Interagency Coordinating Council staffing. This council is responsible for advising and assisting the KS Governor and legislature on matters that impact Kansas families with children, ages birth to five who have, or are at risk for, developmental delays. State Interagency Coordinating Council members include state and local level early childhood special education staff, agencies, community members, governor appointments, elected officials, and parents of children with special needs. This partnership with the State Interagency Coordinating Council supports and helps inform their efforts to ensure that a comprehensive service delivery system of integrated services is available in Kansas to all children with, or at risk of, developmental delays from birth through age five and their families. These shared spaces increase knowledge of various support systems for children with or at risk of developmental delays from birth through age five and their families and increase coordination.
- iv. State/Territory agency responsible for implementing the Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting (MIECHV) programs grant. Describe: Lead agency staff are members of the Home Visiting State Workgroup (MIECHV Advisory Group) with the mission goal to develop and advance a unified statewide system of home visiting services to improve outcomes for families and children, prenatal to five years of age. The lead agency continues to support home visiting service options that meet the needs of families either through direct financial support from Cash Assistance funds for various home visitation models or through assistance in the efforts to expand the registry and the coordinated work on the Kansas Early Childhood Integrated Data Systems to assist in the analysis of the impact of the services.

- Agency responsible for Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic, and Treatment ٧. Program. Describe: The lead agency staff are members of the Kansas State Interagency Coordinating Council with Kansas State Department of Education-Part B 619 and Kansas Department of Health and Environment -Part C staff during monthly meetings and thru the development and completion of the CCDF state plan work. Lead agency staff are members of the State Interagency Coordinating Council (SICC), and agency provides funding to support SICC staffing. This council is responsible for advising and assisting the KS Governor and legislature on matters that impact Kansas families with children, ages birth to five who have, or are at risk for, developmental delays. State Interagency Coordinating Council members include state and local level early childhood special education staff, agencies, community members, governor appointments, elected officials, and parents of children with special needs. The goals in the partnership with the State Interagency Coordinating Council is to support and help inform their efforts to ensure that a comprehensive service delivery system of integrated services is available in Kansas to all children with, or at risk of, developmental delays from birth through age five and their families. These shared spaces increase knowledge of various support systems for children with or at risk of developmental delays from birth through age five and their families and increase coordination.
- vi. ☑ State/Territory agency responsible for child welfare. Describe: *The Kansas* Department for Children and Families Protection and Prevention Services (PPS) division and the Economic and Employment Services (EES) division has partnered together to offer child care benefits to foster families who have at least one eligible child who is in the custody of the State. A specialized team of eligibility staff in EES works with PPS staff and by extension the Case Management Providers (CMP's) and Child Placing Agencies (CPA's) to coordinate benefits for foster families that have an eligible child(ren) and demonstrate an allowable need. The goal is to serve foster care families as quickly as possible since this population is typically more transient by comparison and their needs can shift rapidly. An internal goal of the FCCC unit is to fully process any correspondence received to the unit within three business days. This has increased utilization of Child Care Assistance for foster care families. The lead agency has been working on system changes needed to allow for differential payments to be made directly to providers who care for children who reside with foster families. There is a state Directors' team with members from Kansas Department for Children and Families Economic and Employment Services and Protection and Prevention Services that meets every two weeks to lead efforts to implement the All in for Kansas Kids Strategic Plan and oversee other Preschool Development Grant Birth through Five funding.

- vii. A Child care provider groups or associations. Describe: The lead agency participates in many provider groups across the state and have the goal of engaging with the providers to strengthen their voices in the early childhood systems work. There is regular engagement with the Child Care Provider's Coalition of Kansas in shared meetings and as various CCDF funded initiatives are discussed or shared in these meetings. Various CCDF funded partners that provide child care provider services also interact with child care providers as part of the Kansas Association for the Education of Young Children Board meetings. Purposeful engagement of these groups is being done to ensure their voice is present and heard and a part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure. This results in stronger support system for providers to develop and find necessary supports.
- viii. Name Parent groups or organizations. Describe: Members of the lead agency coordinate with staff from the Kansas Parent Information Resource Center (KPIRC). Kansas Parent Information Resource Center promotes meaningful family engagement at all levels of education and resources to help parents, educators and other organizations promote the educational of every Kansas child. Members of the lead agency also participate on the Family Advisory Council through Kansas Department of Health and Environment, the Family First/Kansas Strong Statewide Interagency Advisory Board on a state and local level, Local Interagency Coordinating Councils, and Community and Family Engagement Coalition. The Kansas Family Leadership Team is represented on the Early Childhood Recommendations Panel, which is part of the Kansas Early Childhood Governance Structure, and the voices of the families are critical in the decision-making processes and result in improved programs that better serve family's needs.
- ix.
 ☐ Title IV B 21st Century Community Learning Center Coordinators. Describe: The 21st Century Community Learning Center State Coordinator is in the Kansas State Department of Education agency. On-going planning and consultation occur between Department for Children and Families, the lead agency and representatives of Kansas State Department of Education through Early Childhood Directors meetings, the Early Childhood Recommendations Panel monthly meetings, and many other early childhood stakeholder meetings where Kansas State Department of Education and the lead agency staff are present.
- x. \times Other. Describe: The lead agency coordinates within the agency with the Kansas Department for Children and Families employment services program, currently serving families receiving Cash Assistance and Food Assistance. Child Care services are coordinated to ensure supports are available to families working toward the goal of self-sufficiency. The expected results are the reduction of child care as a barrier to families who are working on their employment or training goals.

8.2 Optional Use of Combined Funds, CCDF Matching, and Maintenance-of-Effort Funds

Lead Agencies may combine CCDF funds with other Federal, State, and local child care and early childhood development programs, including those in 8.1.1. These programs include preschool programs, Tribal child care programs, and other early childhood programs, including those serving

infants and toddlers with disabilities, children experiencing homelessness, and children in foster care.

Combining funds may include blending multiple funding streams, pooling funds, or layering funds from multiple funding streams to expand and/or enhance services for infants, toddlers, preschoolers, and school-age children and families to allow for the delivery of comprehensive quality care that meets the needs of children and families. For example, Lead Agencies may use multiple funding sources to offer grants or contracts to programs to deliver services; a Lead Agency may allow a county/local government to use coordinated funding streams; or policies may be in place that allow local programs to layer CCDF funds with additional funding sources to pay for full-day, full-year child care that meets Early Head Start/Head Start Program Performance Standards or State/Territory pre-Kindergarten requirements in addition to State/Territory child care licensing requirements.

As a reminder, CCDF funds may be used in collaborative efforts with Head Start and Early Head Start programs to provide comprehensive child care and development services for children who are eligible for both programs.

8.2.1 Combining funding for CCDF services

Does the Lead Agency combine funding for CCDF services with Title XX of the Social Services Block Grant (SSBG), Title IV B 21st Century Community Learning Center Funds, State-only child care funds, TANF direct funds for child care not transferred into CCDF, Title IV-B, IV-E funds, or other federal or State programs?

or State	e programs?
\square No.	(If no, skip to question 8.2.2)
⊠ Yes.	
i.	If yes, describe which funds you will combine. Combined funds may include, but are not limited to:
	☐ Title XX (Social Services Block Grant, SSBG)
	$\hfill\Box$ Title IV B 21 $^{\rm st}$ Century Community Learning Center Funds (Every Student Succeeds Act)
	\square State- or Territory-only child care funds
	\square TANF direct funds for child care not transferred into CCDF
	☐ Title IV-B funds (Social Security Act)
	☐ Title IV-E funds (Social Security Act)
	☑ Other. Describe: Federal Early Head Start and Head Start funds and Kansas Preschool Program Funding.

- ii. If yes, what does the Lead Agency use combined funds to support, such as extending the day or year of services available (i.e., full-day, full-year programming for working families), smoothing transitions for children, enhancing and aligning quality of services, linking comprehensive services to children in child care, or developing the supply of child care for vulnerable populations? Funds are combined to support extending the day for services available to children in Head Start and Preschool Programs; increase services to families experiencing homelessness, increase high supply and quality services to infants and toddlers in high need areas (high unemployment, high poverty and high out of home placements); and increasing comprehensive services to children in child care.
- 8.2.2 Funds used to meet CCDF matching and MOE requirements

Lead Agencies may use public funds and donated funds to meet CCDF match and maintenance of effort (matching MOE) requirements.

Note: Lead Agencies that use State pre-Kindergarten funds to meet matching requirements must check State pre-Kindergarten funds and public and/or private funds.

Use of private funds for match or maintenance-of-effort: Donated funds do not need to be under the administrative control of the Lead Agency to qualify as an expenditure for federal match. However, Lead Agencies must identify and designate in the State/Territory CCDF Plan the donated funds given to public or private entities to implement the CCDF child care program.

\square Not	applicable. The Lead Agency is a Territory (skip to 8.3.1).				
a.	Does the Lead Agency use public funds to meet match requirements?				
	☑ Yes. If yes, describe which funds are used: Matching: State General Funds; MOE: Children's Initiative Funds (tobacco settlement funds)/State General Funds.				
	□ No.				
b.	Does the Lead Agency use donated funds to meet match requirements?				
	\square Yes. If yes, identify the entity(ies) designated to receive donated funds:				
	i. \square Donated directly to the state.				

... Donated directly to the state

ii.

Donated to a separate entity(ies) designated to receive donated funds. If checked, identify the name, address, contact, and type of entities designated to receive private donated funds: Click or tap here to enter text.

 \boxtimes No.

- c. Does the Lead Agency certify that, if State expenditures for pre-Kindergarten programs are used to meet the MOE requirements, the following is true:
 - The Lead Agency did not reduce its level of effort in full-day/full-year child care services.
 - The Lead Agency ensures that pre-Kindergarten programs meet the needs of working parents.
 - The estimated percentage of the MOE requirement that will be met with pre-Kindergarten expenditures (does not to exceed 20 percent).

If the percentage is more than 10 percent of the MOE requirement, the State will
coordinate its pre-Kindergarten and child care services to expand the availability of
child care.

Public pre-Kindergarten funds may also serve as MOE funds as long as the State can describe how it will coordinate pre-Kindergarten and child care services to expand the availability of child care while using public pre-Kindergarten funds as no more than 20 percent of the State's MOE or 30 percent of its matching funds in a single fiscal year.

If expenditures for pre-Kindergarten services are used to meet the MOE requirement, does the Lead Agency certify that the State or Territory has not reduced its level of effort in full-day/full-year child care services?

X	Yes.								
	No. If no,	describe:	Click	or to	ap h	ere	to	enter	text.

8.3 Coordination with Child Care Resource and Referral Systems

Lead Agencies may use CCDF funds to establish or support a system or network of local or regional child care resource and referral (CCR&R) organizations that is coordinated, to the extent determined by the Lead Agency, by a statewide public or private non-profit, community-based or regionally based, lead child care resource and referral organization (such as a statewide CCR&R network).

If Lead Agencies use CCDF funds for local CCR&R organizations, the local or regional CCR&R organizations supported by those funds must, at the direction of the Lead Agency:

- Provide parents in the State with consumer education information concerning the full range of child care options (including faith-based and community-based child care providers), analyzed by provider, including child care provided during non-traditional hours and through emergency child care centers, in their area.
- To the extent practicable, work directly with families who receive assistance to offer the
 families support and assistance to make an informed decision about which child care
 providers they will use to ensure that the families are enrolling their children in the most
 appropriate child care setting that suits their needs and one that is of high quality (as
 determined by the Lead Agency).
- Collect data and provide information on the coordination of services and supports, including services under Part B, Section 619 and Part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.
- Collect data and provide information on the supply of and demand for child care services in areas of the State and submit the information to the Lead Agency.
- Work to establish partnerships with public agencies and private entities, including faith-based and community-based child care providers, to increase the supply and quality of child care services in the State and, as appropriate, coordinate their activities with the activities of the Lead Agency and local agencies that administer funds made available through CCDF.
- 8.3.1 Funding a system or network of CCR&R organization(s)

Does the Lead Agency fund a system or network of local or regional CCR&R organization(s)?

\sqcup No. The Lead Agency does not fund a system or network of local or regional CCR&R
organization(s) and has no plans to establish one.
\square No, but the Lead Agency has plans to develop a system or network of local or regional
CCR&R organization(s).

organization(s) with all the responsibilities outlined above. If yes, describe the activities outlined above carried out by the CCR&R organization(s), as directed by the Lead Agency: There is a coordinated network of partner Child Care Resource and referral agencies. There are four agencies divided by regions. Child Care Resource and Referral Services are coordinated statewide through the Lead Agency's (Kansas Department for Children and Families) contract with Child Care Aware of Kansas. Child Care Aware of Kansas subcontracts with three other regional resource and referral agencies offices (CCR&Rs) to form a statewide network that serves all 105 counties of Kansas. These services include consumer resources and services to families searching for child-care, child-care providers, and regional communities. Services to parents, quardians and families include an overall assessment of the family's needs and includes the provision of a customized list of child care referrals based on those unique needs. Consumer education on what to look for and how to select a quality child care environment is provided at the time of the referral. Additionally, information on other state and community resources for which the family may be eligible may also be provided based on the initial assessment of family needs. Services to providers include a system for collecting and updating provider vacancies for parents and consumer education resources that will encourage quality improvement and assist families in meeting their needs. Community services include providing resources and education about child care issues to community and business leaders, support early care and education initiatives throughout the regional service area. Statewide data collected through their web-based system is shared annually in the supply and demand report. Provider profile data is also collected and provided to Lead Agency for the market rate analysis. CCR&Rs provides information to both parents and providers about services under Section 619 and Part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.

8.4 Public-Private Partnerships

Lead Agencies must demonstrate how they encourage partnerships among other public agencies, Tribal organizations, private entities, faith-based organizations, businesses, or organizations that promote business involvement, and/or community-based organizations to leverage existing service delivery (i.e., cooperative agreement among providers to pool resources to pay for shared fixed costs and operation) to leverage existing child care and early education service delivery systems and to increase the supply and quality of child care services for children younger than age 13.

8.4.1 Lead Agency public-private partnerships

Identify and describe any public-private partnerships encouraged by the Lead Agency to leverage public and private resources to further the goals of CCDF: Child Care in Kansas, a website offered by Kansas Department for Children and Families, the lead agency, provides child care providers tools and shared resources to support their continuous quality improvement efforts, supporting their licensing applications and Kansas Department for Children and Families enrollment requirements, helping them find a wide range of resources to support their staff and families,

provide child development information, regulations, and professional development information all in one location. Pages on the Child Care in Kansas site were completed in collaboration with several partner agencies and organizations to provide the most accurate and relevant information. Additionally, Child Care in Kansas provides links to each partner organization so that they control and edit the content delivered. Child Care in Kansas serves as an entry point to connect people to the services provided by partner organizations with a shared purpose of strengthen families and improving children's lives. The lead agency, Kansas Department for Children and Families, continues to coordinate with many partners as it operates a statewide Quality Rating Improvement System (QRIS) known as Links to Quality. As the advisory group has been reinstated after the pilot, this group will consists of representatives from the Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities (KCCTO), Child Care Aware of Kansas, our local Child Care Resource and Referral agencies, Kansas Department of Health and Environment-Part C, Head Start, Children's Cabinet, Mid-America Regional Council (MARC), , and the Preschool Development Grant along with Kansas Department for Children and Families to provide critical input in the QRIS design. These representatives have a wide range of knowledge and expertise, as well as specific agency goals and interests that strengthen the quality of the QRIS system. Currently, Links to Quality is being implemented into a full state rollout which began in May of 2024. Links to Quality also partners closely with other state quality focused projects and programs including the Child Care Health Consultant Network, the Infant Toddler Specialist Network, Mid-America Regional Council (MARC), Child Care Provider Coalition (CCPC), and Kansas Association for the Education of Young Children (KSAEYC). Links to Quality Staff are actively attending meetings, workgroups, and functions to support quality early education including but not limited to All in for Kansas Kids Recommendation Panel, Child Care System Improvement Team (CC SIT), and Community and Family Engagement Coalition (CAFÉ). Involvement in these groups and many more support the trust and relationship building necessary for current and future partnership opportunities. The lead agency, Kansas Department for Children and Families, partners with Early Head Start programs within our state funded Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnership Program. This allows subsidy dollars to be utilized for basic child care cost and additional funds to be used to increase quality. It also allows subsidy payments to be made by parents in a timely manner. These partnerships increase the supply of high-quality child care services. Kansas Department for Children and Families also has a memorandum of agreement with The Family Conservancy, an Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership Federal grantee, to improve coordination of child care services for participating children and reduce duplication of application processes. Kansas Early Head Start Child Care Partnerships work with their child care partners to complete their Child Development Associate Credential, as this is required for their teachers due to the Head Start Performance Standards. The lead agency, Kansas Department for Children and Families, has staff serving on a wide range of committees and groups. Kansas Department for Children and Families staff coordinate with representatives of higher education and community colleges on the state career ladder, early learning quidelines, and professional development opportunities. Kansas Department for Children and Families staff serves on Early Childhood Higher Education Options, Early Childhood Quality Instructional Partners , Kansas Early Head Start Director's meetings, Child Care Licensing System Improvement Team, The Children's Cabinet and Trust Fund, Early Childhood State Directors Team, Early Childhood Recommendations Panel, Kansas Head Start Association Affiliate Program Member meetings, Kansas Head Start Association Board, Kansas Family Leadership Team, Safe Kids Kansas, State Interagency Coordinating Council, Local Interagency Coordinating Council, Kansas Department of Health and Environment and Child and Adult Care Food Program coordination, Kansas Department for Children and Families child care provider enrollment staff

meetings, State Home Visitation Team, Early Child Care and Education Workforce Development Committee, and Region VII Head Start Association Meetings.

8.5 Disaster Preparedness and Response Plan

Lead Agencies must establish a Statewide Child Care Disaster Plan and demonstrate how they will address the needs of children—including the need for safe child care before, during, and after a state of emergency declared by the Governor or a major disaster or emergency (as defined by Section 102 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. 5122)—through a Statewide Disaster Plan.

8.5.1 Statewide Disaster Plan updates

- a. When was the Lead Agency's Child Care Disaster Plan most recently updated and for what reason? *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- b. Please certify compliance by checking the required elements the Lead Agency includes in the current State Disaster Preparedness and Response Plan.
 - i. The plan was developed in collaboration with the following required entities:
 - State human services agency.
 - State emergency management agency.
 - \boxtimes State licensing agency.
 - ☑ State health department or public health department.
 - ☑ Local and State child care resource and referral agencies.
 - \boxtimes State Advisory Council on Early Childhood Education and Care or similar coordinating body.
 - ii.

 The plan includes guidelines for the continuation of child care subsidies.
 - iii. \boxtimes The plan includes guidelines for the continuation of child care services.
 - iv. \boxtimes The plan includes procedures for the coordination of post-disaster recovery of child care services.
 - v. \boxtimes The plan contains requirements for all CCDF providers (both licensed and license-exempt) to have in place:
 - □ Procedures for evacuation.
 - ⊠ Procedures for relocation.
 - ☑ Procedures for shelter-in-place.
 - ☑ Procedures for communication and reunification with families.
 - \boxtimes Procedures for continuity of operations.
 - ☑ Procedures for accommodations of infants and toddlers.
 - ☑ Procedures for accommodations of children with disabilities.

- \boxtimes Procedures for accommodations of children with chronic medical conditions.
- vi. \boxtimes The plan contains procedures for staff and volunteer emergency preparedness training.
- vii. \boxtimes The plan contains procedures for staff and volunteer practice drills.
- viii. If any of the above are not checked, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
- ix. If available, provide the direct URL/website link to the website where the Statewide Child Care Disaster Plan is posted: http://www.dcf.ks.gov/services/ees/Documents/Child_Care/StatewideCC-DisasterPlanCurrent.pdf

9 Family Outreach and Consumer Education

CCDF consumer education requirements facilitate parental choice in child care arrangements, support parents as child care consumers who need information to make informed choices regarding the services that best suit their family's needs, and the delivery of resources that can support child development and well-being. Lead Agency consumer education activities must provide information for parents receiving CCDF assistance, the general public, and, when appropriate, child care providers. Lead Agencies should use targeted strategies for each group to ensure tailored consumer education information and take steps to ensure they are effectively reaching all individuals, including those with limited English proficiency and those with disabilities.

In this section, Lead Agencies address their consumer education practices, including details about their child care consumer education website, and the process for collecting and maintaining a record of parental complaints.

9.1 Parental Complaint Process

Lead Agencies must maintain a record of substantiated parental complaints against child care providers and make information regarding such complaints available to the public on request. Lead Agencies must also provide a detailed description of the hotline or similar reporting process for parents to submit complaints about child care providers; the process for substantiating complaints; the manner in which the Lead Agency maintains a record of substantiated parental complaints; and ways that the Lead Agency makes information on such parental complaints available to the public on request. Lead Agencies are not required to limit the complaint process to parents.

9.1.1 Parental complaint process

- a. Describe the Lead Agency's hotline or similar reporting process through which parents can submit complaints about child care providers, including a link if it is a Web-based process: Complaints about licensed child care providers can be submitted to the local licensing surveyor. Contact information can be found at https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2126/Find-my-Surveyor-PDF. Complaints can also be reported by calling 785-296-1270 or by completing a complaint form online at https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/381/File-a-Complaint---Licensed-Child-Care-F. In addition, the Lead Agency provides a hotline that is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week for individuals to report concerns related to child abuse and neglect. The Protection and Reporting Center (PRC) located within Kansas Department for Children and Families can be contacted at 1-800-922-5330 or online at http://www.dcf.ks.gov/services/PPS/Pages/KIPS/KIPSWebIntake.aspx.
- b. Describe how the parental complaint process ensures broad access to services for families that speak languages other than English: The Kansas Department of Health and Environment website with the online complaint form at https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/381/File-a-Complaint---Licensed-Child-Care-F operate using Google Translate. Users are able to choose their language from a long list of those available, which then translates the compliant form into the selected language. The Protection Reporting Center (PRC) hotline is called for concerns related to child abuse and neglect and customers receive a greeting in English and Spanish when they call the hotline. The message directs them to select an English line, or a Spanish line and staff are assigned to both lines. All staff have access to a translation service for other languages as needed.
- c. Describe how the parental complaint process ensures broad access to services for persons with disabilities: The Kansas Department of Health and Environment website that contains the online complaint form at https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/381/File-a-Complaint---Licensed-Child-Care-F is ADA compliant and therefore accessible for those with disabilities. The Lead Agency's Protection and Reporting Center provides a phone number to the Kansas Relay Center. The Kansas Relay Center can facilitate communication with Kansans that have hearing and/or speech disabilities by calling 1-800-922-5330. The PRC also has an online report form for mandated reporters found at https://www.dcf.ks.gov/services/PPS/Pages/Mandated-Reporter-Portal.aspx.
- d. For complaints about providers, including CCDF providers and non-CCDF providers, does the Lead Agency have a process and timeline for screening, substantiating, and responding to complaints, including information about whether the process includes monitoring?
 - ⊠ Yes. If yes, describe: Complaints about licensed child care providers can be submitted to the local licensing surveyor. Contact information can be found at https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2126/Find-my-Surveyor-PDF.

 Complaints can also be reported by calling (785) 296-1270 or by completing a complaint form online at https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/381/File-a-Complaint---Licensed-Child-Care-F.

 Child care licensing surveyors investigate all complaints related to regulatory noncompliance. Complaint investigations must be initiated within 5 days of receipt unless the seriousness requires immediate investigation and possible emergency order of suspension of the license. A complaint with substantiated results may result in enforcement action including a notice of noncompliance, request for an emergency suspension of the licensee, civil penalty, suspension of the license or revocation of the license. The total time it takes the licensing surveyor to complete a complaint

investigation may vary based on several factors, including the request from Kansas Department for Children and Families or law enforcement to hold the child care licensing investigation pending the completion of an ongoing investigation. However, it is expected that complaint investigations are prioritized, completed and submitted to the department within 30 days. The findings of the investigation are available on the public portal after a review of the compliant has been completed by the department. Investigations involving allegations of abuse/neglect may be conducted jointly with Kansas Department for Children and Families/Law Enforcement. However, the focus of the child care investigation is regulatory compliance. Kansas Department of Health and Environment documentation is to be shared with Kansas Department for Children and Families or other state or local agency officials. K.S.A. 38-2212 allows for the exchange of information between Kansas Department of Health and Environment and Kansas Department for Children and Families. K.S.A. 38-2213 allows for the exchange of information between Kansas Department of Health and Environment and local law enforcement. An unannounced inspection is conducted and a walk through of the facility completed. Child and adult records for compliance, as it pertains to the complaint allegations, are reviewed. If video is available specific to the allegations, it is viewed. It is most frequently necessary to interview staff and parents as part of your complaint investigation, including those no longer employed or parents of children no longer enrolled. Neighbors or other outside parties may also be interviewed, as determined necessary. Individuals interviewed are referred to as collateral contacts and they can provide very relevant and helpful information in most cases. Collateral contacts may provide information that substantiates or unsubstantiated the original allegations and or leads to citing other noncompliance found during the course of the investigation. A substantiated complaint, or a complaint that was unsubstantiated but where other noncompliance was found, may require ongoing compliance/monitoring visits or other enforcement action. Complaints involving license exempt providers can be submitted to the Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Provider Enrollment Unit by calling Customer Service at 1-833-765-2003. The caller will be connected to the provider enrollment specialist who is responsible for that county. The customer service number can be found on the Kansas Department for Children and Families website at http://www.dcf.ks.gov/services/ees/Pages/EEScontacts.aspx. Kansas Department for Children and Families follows the same procedures for investigating complaints related to the health and safety of children and violations of regulations that would involve noncompliance as Kansas Department of Health and Environment. The difference is that Kansas Department for Children and Families would terminate the Provider Agreement giving a 30-day notice of termination. If the violation resulted in a substantiated complaint of child abuse/or neglect by the provider or anyone living or working in the facility, the provider agreement would be terminated immediately. (KEESM:10022 #5) ☐ No.

- e. For substantiated parental complaints, who maintains the record for CCDF and non-CCDF providers? Through a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with Kansas Department of Health and Environment, Kansas Department for Children and Families has access to all complaint inspections and findings through the Kansas Department of Health and Environment web-based system of record (CLARIS). It is expected that Kansas Department of Health and Environment will maintain a record of substantiated facility complaints, including parental complaints. For license exempt child care providers, all substantiated facility complaints including parental complaints and findings are stored in Image Now under the license exempt provider file. All substantiated complaints for license exempt child care providers can be found for a period of 3 years from the date of substantiation on the Child Care in Kansas Consumer Education Website at https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/inspection-reports/.
- f. Describe how information about substantiated parental complaints is made available to the public; this information can include the consumer education website discussed in subsection 9.2: Substantiated Complaints for all licensed providers are available on the Kansas Department of Health and Environment Child Care Licensing Facility Inspection Reports found at https://khap2.kdhe.state.ks.us/OIDS/. Substantiated Complaints about license exempt child care providers for the last 3 years can be found on the Child Care in Kansas website at https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/inspection-reports/.

9.2 Consumer Education Website

Lead Agencies must provide information to parents, the general public, and child care providers through a State or Territory website, which is consumer-friendly and easily accessible for families who speak languages other than English and persons with disabilities. The website must:

- Include information to assist families in understanding the Lead Agency's policies and procedures, including licensing child care providers;
- Include monitoring and inspection reports for each provider and, if available, the quality of each provider;
- Provide the aggregate number of deaths, serious injuries, and the number of cases of substantiated child abuse that have occurred in child care settings;
- Include contact information for local CCR&R organizations to help families access additional information on finding child care; and
- Include information on how parents can contact the Lead Agency and other organizations to better understand the information on the website.

9.2.1 Consumer-friendly website

Does the Lead Agency ensure that its consumer education website is consumer-friendly and easily accessible?

- i. Provide the URL for the Lead Agency's consumer education website homepage: www.childcareinkansas.com
- ii. Does the Lead Agency certify that the consumer education website ensures broad access to services for families who speak languages other than English?

			⊠ Yes.
			☐ No. If no, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
		iii.	Does the Lead Agency certify that the consumer education website ensures broad access to services for persons with disabilities?
			⊠ Yes.
			\square No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
9.2.2	Additio	onal con	sumer education website links
	Provid	e the dir	rect URL/website link for the following:
		i.	Provide the direct URL/website link to how the Lead Agency licenses child care providers: https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/child-care-facility-licensing/
		ii.	Provide the direct URL/website link to the processes for conducting monitoring and inspections of child care providers: https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/inspection-reports/
		iii.	Provide the direct URL/website link to the policies and procedures related to criminal background checks for staff members of child care providers: https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/background-checks/
		iv.	Provide the direct URL/website link to the offenses that prevent individuals from being employed by a child care provider: https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/background-checks/ and https://www.kdhe.ks.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2072/Common-Prohibited-Offenses-PDF?bidId=
9.2.3	Search	able list	of providers
	a.	The co	nsumer education website must include a list of all licensed providers searchable by de.
		i.	Does the Lead Agency certify that the consumer education website includes a list of all licensed providers searchable by ZIP code?
			⊠ Yes.
			\square No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
		ii.	Provide the direct URL/website link to the list of child care providers searchable by ZIP code: This list is provided through our Child Care Resource & Referral contract. The list contains many search factors, including zip code. The CCDF consumer education website links to the searchable list in multiple places, however the direct link is: https://stage.worklifesystems.com/parent/16 To assist us in following up with families who utilize these services and encouraging access for only those with a true need for child care, we ask families to create an account and log-in to search for child care. As part of consumer education, with the understanding that not everyone has consistent internet access or an email address, we have included a toll-free phone number to allow for consumer friendly and easy access to this same information, without the requirement to set up an account or have an email.

iii.	In addition to the licensed child care providers that must be included in the searchable list, are there additional providers included in the Lead Agency's searchable list of child care providers? Check all that apply:
	\square License-exempt center-based CCDF providers.
	\square License-exempt family child care CCDF providers.
	\square License-exempt non-CCDF providers.
	\square Relative CCDF child care providers.
	☑ Other (e.g., summer camps, public pre-Kindergarten). Describe: CCDF eligible providers (non-relative). On the Child Care in Kansas website is a page dedicated to Child Care Inspection Reports. Within that section, there is an explanation that some child care programs in Kansas operate under the jurisdiction of the federal government of Native American tribes and the programs have an established memorandum of agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families that assures they meet licensing requirements. Parents may search the inspection reports for these license-exempt providers. Kansas currently has no providers listed, but all license-exempt center-based or family child care providers that enroll with Kansas Department for Children and Families will have their inspection reports listed and available to the public at https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/inspection-reports/.

b. Identify what additional (optional) information, if any, is available in the searchable results by ZIP code. Check the box when information is provided.

Provider Information Available in Searchable Results								
	All licensed providers	License- exempt CCDF center- based providers	License- exempt CCDF family child care home providers	License- exempt non- CCDF providers	Relative CCDF providers			
Contact information	\boxtimes							
Enrollment capacity	\boxtimes							
Hours, days, and months of operation	\boxtimes							
Provider education and training	\boxtimes							
Languages spoken by the caregiver	\boxtimes							
Quality information	\boxtimes							
Monitoring reports	\boxtimes							

		VVIIIII	certificates	\boxtimes				
		Ages of children served		\boxtimes				
			ization or training for rtain populations	\boxtimes				
			e provided during ntraditional hours					
	c.	Identify any other information searchable on the consumer education webs child care provider type listed below and then, if checked, describe the sear information included on the website.						
	 i.							
		ii.	☐ License-exempt C enter text.	CCDF center-	based provid	ers. Describe:	Click or tap	here to
		iii.	☐ License-exempt C enter text.	CCDF family o	child care pro	viders. Descri	be: <i>Click or</i> t	tap here to
		iv.	☐ License-exempt,	non-CCDF pr	oviders. Desc	ribe: <i>Click or</i>	tap here to e	enter text.
		٧.	☐ Relative CCDF pro	oviders. Desc	cribe: <i>Click or</i>	tap here to e	nter text.	
		vi.	☐ Other. Describe:	Click or tap l	nere to enter	text.		
9.2.4	Provide	r-specif	ic quality information					
	Lead Agencies must identify specific quality information on each child care provider for whom they have this information. Provider-specific quality information must only be posted on the consumer education website if it is available for the individual child care provider.							
	a.	What s	pecific quality inform	ation does tl	he Lead Agen	cy provide on	the website	??
		i.	\square Quality improven	nent system.				
		ii.	☐ National accredit	ation.				
		iii.	☐ Enhanced licensing	ng system.				
		iv.	☐ Meeting Head Sta	art/Early Hea	ad Start Progr	am Performa	nce Standar	ds.
		٧.	\square Meeting pre-Kind	lergarten qu	ality requiren	nents.		
		vi.	☐ School-age stand	ards.				
		vii.	\square Quality framewor	k or quality	improvement	t system.		

- b. For what types of child care providers is quality information available?
 - i. \(\subseteq \text{Licensed CCDF providers. Describe the quality information: } \text{Providers have the option to put their credentials on the website. } \text{Programs who have achieved quality indicators through the state QRIS, or Links to Quality, will also have their awarded badges displayed on their search results. An explanation of Links to Quality and the associated badges will be provided to families.}
 - ii. \(\subseteq \text{ Licensed non-CCDF providers. Describe the quality information: } Providers have the option to put their credentials on the website. Programs who have achieved quality indicators through the state QRIS, or Links to Quality, will also have their awarded badges displayed on their search results. An explanation of Links to Quality and the associated badges will be provided to families.

 - vi. Relative child care providers. Describe the quality information: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

9.2.5 Aggregate data on serious injuries, deaths, and substantiated abuse

Lead Agencies must post aggregate data on serious injuries, deaths, and substantiated cases of child abuse that have occurred in child care settings each year on the consumer education website. This aggregate data must include information about any child in the care of a provider eligible to receive CCDF, not just children receiving subsidies.

This aggregate information on serious injuries and deaths must be separated by category of care (e.g., centers, family child care homes, and in-home care) and licensing status (i.e., licensed or license-exempt) for all eligible CCDF child care providers in the State/Territory. The information on instances of substantiated child abuse does not have to be organized by category of care or licensing status. Information must also include the total number of children in care by provider type and licensing status, so that families can better understand the data presented on serious injuries, deaths, and substantiated cases of abuse.

- a. Certify by checking below that the required elements are included in the Aggregate Data Report on serious incident data that have occurred in child care settings each year.
 - i. \boxtimes The total number of serious injuries of children in care by provider category and licensing status.
 - ii. extstyle extstyle

- iii.

 The total number of substantiated instances of child abuse in child care settings.
- iv. \square The total number of children in care by provider category and licensing status.
- v. If any of the above elements are not included, describe: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

b. Certify by providing:

- The designated entity to which child care providers must submit reports of any serious injuries or deaths of children occurring in child care and describe how the Lead Agency obtains the aggregate data from the entity: Child Care Providers shall report any injury or illness which results in the death of a child in care by the next working day to the county health department or the Kansas Department of Health and Environment. Kansas Department of Health and Environment Child Care Licensing reports to Kansas Department for Children and Families the number of deaths and serious injuries by provider type. Substantiated abuse determinations are made by Kansas Department for Children and Families Prevention and Protection Services). A "substantiated" finding means a reasonable person weighing the facts and circumstances would decide it is more likely than not (preponderance of the evidence) the alleged perpetrator's actions or inactions meet the abuse/ neglect definition per Kansas Statutes Annotated (K.S.A.) and Kansas Administrative Regulations (K.A.R.), and meet criteria indicating the alleged perpetrator should not be permitted to reside, work, or regularly volunteer in a child care facility regulated by Kansas Department of Health and Environment or Kansas Department for Children and Families Foster Care and Residential Facility Licensing. Licensed exempt providers with a Kansas Department for Children and Families agreement are required to follow the state's licensing standards based upon the MOA with Kansas Department for Children and Families that requires Kansas licensing regulations and standards to be adhered to. This includes the reporting of serious injuries or deaths; therefore, their numbers would be reflected with the aggregate data.
- ii. The definition of "substantiated child abuse" used by the Lead Agency for this requirement: This is the definition of substantiated child abuse as found on the CCDF consumer education website childcareinkansas.com: Substantiated Child Abuse Defined as when a reasonable person weighing the facts and circumstances would conclude it is more likely than not (preponderance of the evidence) the alleged perpetrator's actions or inactions meet the abuse and/or neglect definition per applicable K.S.A. and K.A.R. and criterion for a substantiated case finding is met.
- iii. The definition of "serious injury" used by the Lead Agency for this requirement: This is the definition of serious injury as found on the CCDF consumer education website childcareinkansas.com: Serious Injury An injury to a child that requires treatment by a health care professional.

		https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/health-and-safety/		
9.2.6	Contact	t information on referrals to local child care resource and referral organizations		
		d Agency consumer education website must include contact information on referrals to CR&R organizations.		
	a.	Does the consumer education website include contact information on referrals to local CCR&R organizations?		
		⊠ Yes.		
		\square No.		
		\square Not applicable. The Lead Agency does not have local CCR&R organizations.		
	b.	Provide the direct URL/website link to this information: https://childcareinkansas.com/families/additional-resources/		
9.2.7	Lead Ag	gency contact information for parents		
	The Lead Agency consumer and provider education website must include information on how parents can contact the Lead Agency or its designee and other programs that can help the pare understand information included on the website.			
	a.	Does the website provide directions on how parents can contact the Lead Agency or its designee and other programs to help them understand information included on the website?		
		⊠ Yes.		
		□ No.		
	b.	Provide the direct URL/website link to this information: The CCDF consumer education website, childcareinkansas.com, contains a Contact Us feature, by which anyone may contact the Lead Agency to ask questions or request more information. This is located in the footer of the site, at the bottom of every page. https://childcareinkansas.com/		
9.2.8	Posting	sliding fee scale, co-payment amount, and policies for waiving co-payments		
	The consumer education website must include the sliding fee scale for parent co-payments, including the co-payment amount a family may expect to pay and policies for waiving co-payments.			
	a.	Does the Lead Agency certify that their consumer education website includes the sliding fee scale for parent co-payments, including the co-payment amount a family may expect to pay and policies for waiving co-payments?		
		⊠ Yes.		
		□ No.		

Provide the direct URL/website link to the page where the aggregate number of serious

injuries, deaths, and substantiated child abuse, and the total number of children in care by

c.

b. Provide the direct URL/website link to the sliding fee scale. https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fcontent.dcf.ks.gov%2 FEES%2FKEESM%2FAppendix%2FF-1MonthlyFamilyIncomeAndFamilyShareDeductionSchedule.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK

9.3 Increasing Engagement and Access to Information

Lead Agencies must collect and disseminate information about the full range of child care services to promote parental choice to parents of children eligible for CCDF, the general public, and child care providers.

9.3.1 Information about CCDF availability and eligibility

Describe how the Lead Agency shares information with eligible parents, the general public, and child care providers about the availability of child care services provided through CCDF and other programs for which the family may be eligible. The description should include, at a minimum, what is provided (e.g., written materials, the website, and direct communications) and what approaches are used to tailor information to parents, the general public, and child care providers. Kansas Department for Children and Families provides information to the public in a variety of ways. Kansas Department for Children and Families has a public website with services offered through the state, agency information and contact information. A wide range of early education programs are listed under the child care service page. The child care subsidy page provides information about the program, basic eligibility quidelines, types of providers available for the program, and contact information. A self-assessment is available in both English and Spanish to help families determine if they are eligible for services. The phone number for the local resource and referral agency is shared with eligible families when they need assistance selecting a provider. Applications for services are made available through the 38 Kansas Department for Children and Families office locations across the state and through an online self-service portal. Kansas Department for Children and Families also has a Facebook page, Twitter page, and shares videos on Vimeo. The Child Care in Kansas website also provides links to this information. It is the main tool Kansas Department for Children and Families uses to provide child care related consumer and provider education information to parents, providers, and the public. Child Care in Kansas is designed to be user friendly and easy to follow. There are separate sections designed for families where they can find child care and support, for providers with resources to enhance care, and for the community in general. In addition, there is a page on Child Care in Kansas dedicated to child care subsidy. The Kansas Department of Health and Environment Child Care Licensing Parent Page provides a consumer-friendly approach to answering parent's questions regarding child care. This includes a spot to search for child care that takes them to the child care resource and referral website. Consumers can search by zip code or connect to child care. Child Care in Kansas links directly to the child care resource and referral search tool. Further assistance to parents looking for resources to assist with child care is offered through the local Child Care Resource and Referral Agencies and Early Head Start programs across the state. The lead agency contracts with Child Care Aware of Kansas to promote informed child care choices by providing consumer education materials that describe the full range of child care providers, including child care centers, day care homes, group day care homes, preschools, school-age programs, and drop-in programs for school age children and youth. As of October 1, 2018, the consumer education web address is shared with eligible parents on their approval notices. The Parent Provider Partnership Handbook is shared with all parents applying for Child Care Assistance. The handbook is available in both English and Spanish.

9.3.2	Information abou	t child care and	other services	available for	parents

Does the Lead Agency certify that it provides information described in 9.3.1 for the following required programs?

- Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) program.
- Head Start and Early Head Start programs.
- Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
- Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP).
- Women, Infants, and Children Program (WIC) program.
- Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP).
- Medicaid and Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP).
- Programs carried out under IDEA Part B, Section 619 and Part C.

 \boxtimes Yes.

☐ No. If no, describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

9.3.3 Consumer statement for parents receiving CCDF services

Lead Agencies must provide parents receiving CCDF services with a consumer statement in hard copy or electronically that contains general information about the CCDF program and specific information about the child care provider they select.

Please certify if the Lead Agency provides parents receiving CCDF services a consumer statement that contains the following 8 requirements:

- 1. Health and safety requirements met by the provider
- 2. Licensing or regulatory requirements met by the provider
- 3. Date the provider was last inspected
- 4. Any history of violations of these requirements
- 5. Any voluntary quality standards met by the provider
- 6. How CCDF subsidies are designed to promote equal access
- 7. How to submit a complaint through the hotline
- 8. How to contact a local resource and referral agency or other community-based organization to receive assistance in finding and enrolling in quality child care

Does the Lead Agency provide to families, either in hard copy or electronically, a consumer statement that contains the required information about the provider they have selected, including the eight required elements above?

 \boxtimes Yes.

□ No. If no, describe: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

9.3.4 Informing families about best practices on child development

Describe how the Lead Agency makes information available to parents, providers, and the general public on research and best practices concerning children's development, including physical health and development, and information about successful parent and family engagement. At a minimum, the description should include what information is provided; how the information is provided; any distinct activities for sharing this information with parents, providers, the general public; and any partners in providing this information. *Child Care in Kansas, the consumer education website, has a page dedicated to information for families on child development, including physical health and development. Information and resources are designed to promote family education and engagement. The page is found at:*

https://childcareinkansas.com/resource/child-development/. Resources on the page include, but are not limited to, CDC milestones, Help Me Grow—which contains many developmental resources and activities, information on Kansas' home visiting programs, Zero to Three, among others. The Kansas Early Learning Standards

https://www.ksde.org/Portals/0/Early%20Childhood/Kansas_Early_Learning_Standards.pdf contain information on the developmental sequence of learning for children from birth through Kindergarten in areas of approaches to learning, physical development, social and emotional development, communication and literacy, mathematics, science, social studies, and creative arts. Physical development does include healthy eating and physical activities. The lead agency contracts with Child Care Aware of Kansas (CCAK) to administer the statewide Child Care Resource and Referral (CCR&R) network in Kansas. CCAK provides resources for parents/families, child care / education staff, as well as businesses and communities. Additionally, the Kansas Family Engagement and Partnership Standards for Early Childhood has developed standards for early childhood family engagement which can be found here:

https://www.ksde.org/Portals/0/Early%20Childhood/2019%20Kansas_FE_Partnership_Standards_for_EC.pdf.

9.3.5 Unlimited parental access to their children

Does the Lead Agency have procedures to ensure that parents have unlimited access to their children whenever their children are in the care of a provider who receives CCDF funds:

\boxtimes Yes.					
☐ No. If no,	describe: Clic	k or tap	here to	enter	text.

9.3.6 Informing families about best practices in social and emotional health

Describe how the Lead Agency shares information with families, providers, and the general public regarding the social-emotional and behavioral and mental health of young children, including positive behavioral intervention and support models based on research and best practices for those from birth to school age: Parents, providers and the community can access this information and resources on these topics through the Child Care in Kansas website at www.childcareinkansas.com and through the state resource and referral network Child Care Aware of Kansas, website at https://www.ks.childcareaware.org. Parents applying for CCDF benefits are also given a copy of or referred to the website for The Parent-Provider Partnership Handbook. Within these handbooks, there is information around positive behavior management and reducing suspension and expulsion due to behavior. This information is also in the Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Provider Handbook which all providers acknowledge they have received and reviewed when applying to be a CCDF Child Care Provider. Both handbooks are available on Child Care in Kansas. Child Care in Kansas has a wealth of

resources for families and providers at www.childcareinkansas.com. Resources include, yet are not limited to, the Kansas Enrichment Network, a collaboration of agencies and organizations in Kansas that help build and expand school-based programs to enhance learning opportunities for students, https://kansasenrichment.net/map-of-programs-in-kansas/, and share enrichment activities https://kansasenrichment.net/pinterest/, Vroom! - Provides parents and educators with free online tools and activities that are designed to boost early learning in children 0-5, https://www.vroom.org/, and the Kansas Early Learning Standards(KELS) provides a framework for understanding and communicating a common set of developmentally appropriate guidelines for young children within a context of shared responsibility and accountability for helping children meet these guidelines, the KELS

https://www.ksde.org/Portals/0/Early%20Childhood/Kansas_Early_Learning_Standards.pdf. These resources include developmentally appropriate ways to support the social-emotional development of children of different ages. The Kansas Early Learning Standards is available to all parents on Child Care in Kansas. The Kansas Early Learning Standards contain information on the developmental sequence of learning for children from birth through kindergarten in areas of approaches to learning, physical development, social and emotional development, communication and literacy, mathematics, science, social studies, and creative arts. Social and emotional development includes positive interactions to help children gain competence in social skills and self-regulation. The lead agency contracts with Child Care Aware of Kansas (CCAK) to administer the statewide Child Care Resource and Referral (CCR&R) network in Kansas. CCAK provides resources for parents/families, childcare/education staff, as well as businesses and the community. CCAK has social and emotional development staff to provide technical assistance and professional development to child care providers seeking support around this domain. Additionally, the Kansas Family Engagement and Partnership Standards for Early Childhood has developed standards for early childhood family engagement which can be found here:

https://www.ksde.org/Portals/0/Early%20Childhood/2019%20Kansas_FE_Partnership_Standards_for_EC.pdf. The Lead Agency helps fund workforce development opportunities for child care providers and others through Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities (KCCTO) in the area of social emotional development and KCCTO-Kansas In Training Service Infant Toddler Specialist Network which provides in-person community-based training or live-synchronous virtual training. KCCTO-KITS ITSN program also develops individual intensive technical assistance plans with centers, individual teachers, and home providers to address their individual needs that include social emotional development. Some related areas of support through this work include challenging behaviors, trauma informed practices, child mental health and wellness, staff mental health and wellness, and attachment.

9.3.7 Policies on the prevention of the suspension and expulsion of children

a. The Lead Agency must have policies to prevent the suspension and expulsion of children from birth to age 5 in child care and other early childhood programs receiving CCDF funds. Describe those policies and how those policies are shared with families, providers, and the general public: Child Care Providers who have an agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families to accept child care subsidy are required to have a policy to prevent the suspension and expulsion of children in their care. Kansas Department for Children and Families' requirement for provider policy and resource information on Behavior Guidance Policies can be found in the Kansas Department for Children and Families Provider Handbook and in The Parent-Provider Partnership Handbook. Both Handbooks can be found on the Child Care in Kansas website. http://www.dcf.ks.gov/services/ees/Pages/Child_Care/ChildCareProviders.aspx This policy states: "In a child care setting, expulsion may refer to removing a child from of a program for challenging behaviors, such as aggression, tantrums and non-compliance. Research shows that children expelled from an early learning setting are more likely to have issues later in life. Providers are expected to establish preventive, disciplinary, suspension and expulsion policies and administer those policies free of bias and discrimination. Providers

should focus on positive interventions that will prevent expulsion, suspension, and other negative discipline policies. Trainings are available on this topic. Contact your local CCR&R

b. Describe what policies, if any, the Lead Agency has to prevent the suspension and expulsion of school-age children from child or youth care settings receiving CCDF funds: Child Care Providers who have an agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families to accept child care subsidy are required to have a policy to prevent the suspension and expulsion of children in their care. Kansas Department for Children and Families' requirement for provider policy and resource information on Behavior Guidance Policies can be found in the Kansas Department for Children and Families Provider Handbook and in The Parent-Provider Partnership Handbook. Both Handbooks can be found on the Child Care in Kansas website.

http://www.dcf.ks.gov/services/ees/Pages/Child_Care/ChildCareProviders.aspx This policy states: "In a child care setting, expulsion may refer to removing a child from of a program for challenging behaviors, such as aggression, tantrums and non-compliance. Research shows that children expelled from an early learning setting are more likely to have issues

later in life. Providers are expected to establish preventive, disciplinary, suspension and expulsion policies and administer those policies free of bias and discrimination. Providers should focus on positive interventions that will prevent expulsion, suspension, and other negative discipline policies. Trainings are available on this topic. Contact your local CCR&R

9.4 Providing Information on Developmental Screenings

or KCCTO (see page 15) for further information."

or KCCTO (see page 15) for further information."

Lead Agencies must provide information on developmental screenings to parents as part of the intake process for families participating in CCDF and to child care providers through training and education. This information must include:

Existing resources and services that the State can make available in conducting
developmental screenings and providing referrals to services when appropriate for children
who receive child care assistance, including the coordinated use of the Early and Periodic
Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment program under the Medicaid program carried out under

Title XIX of the Social Security Act and developmental screening services available under IDEA Part B, Section 619 and Part C; and,

A description of how a family or child care provider can use these resources and services to
obtain developmental screenings for children who receive subsidies and who might be at risk
of cognitive or other developmental delays, which can include social, emotional, physical, or
linguistic delays.

Information on developmental screenings, as in other consumer education information, must be accessible for individuals with limited English proficiency and individuals with disabilities.

9.4.1 Developmental screenings

Does the Lead Agency collect and disseminate information on the following:

a.	Existing resources and services available for obtaining developmental screening for parents receiving CCDF, the general public, and child care providers.
	⊠ Yes.
	☐ No. If no, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
b.	Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment program under the Medicaid program—carried out under Title XIX of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1396 et seq.)—and developmental screening services available under Part B, Section 619 and Part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1419, 1431 et seq.).
	⊠ Yes.
	\square No. If no, describe: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>
c.	Developmental screenings to parents receiving a subsidy as part of the intake process.
	Yes. If yes, include the information provided, ways it is provided, and any partners in this work: Families applying for child care assistance are provided with a link to the Parent Provider Partnership handbook which contains a link to the Child Care in Kansas website. Information about developmental screenings is included on that website. The website contains links to Part B, Part C, and 619 services, as well as special education preschool programs throughout the state. The website also has links to support services for families who have children with special needs, including Families Together and the State Interagency Coordinating Council. Information for Part B and Part C services are available in English and Spanish. Families referred to Child Care Aware of Kansas may also receive information from their Resource and Referral/Consumer Education Agency
	☐ No. If no, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.
d.	How families receiving CCDF services or child care providers receiving CCDF can use the available resources and services to obtain developmental screenings for children at risk for cognitive or other developmental delays.
	⊠ Yes.
	☐ No. If no, describe: Click or tap here to enter text.

10 Program Integrity and Accountability

Program integrity and accountability activities are integral to the effective administration of the CCDF program. As stewards of federal funds, Lead Agencies must ensure strong and effective internal controls to prevent fraud and maintain continuity of services to meet the needs of children and families. In order to operate and maintain a strong CCDF program, regular evaluation of the program's internal controls as well as comprehensive training for all entities involved in the administration of the program are imperative. In this section, Lead Agencies will describe their internal controls and how those internal controls effectively ensure integrity and accountability. These accountability measures should address reducing fraud, waste, and abuse, including program violations and administrative errors and should apply to all CCDF funds.

10.1 Effective Internal Controls

Lead Agencies must ensure the integrity of the use of CCDF funds through effective fiscal management and must ensure that financial practices are in place. Lead Agencies must have effective fiscal management practices in place for all CCDF expenditures.

10.1.1 Organizational structure to support integrity and internal controls

Describe how the Lead Agency's organizational structure ensures the oversight and implementation of effective internal controls that promote and support program integrity and accountability. Describe: SA 39-708 c(c) authorizes the Department for Children and Families to cooperate with the federal government to qualify for funds. KSA 39-709(b)(16) requires Kansas Department for Children and Families to adopt rules and regulations for the Child Care Subsidy Program. Kansas Department for Children and Families has been designated as the Lead Agency for CCDF funds. KSA 75-5316a authorizes the Secretary to organize the agency and appoint personnel, including division and regional directors. Program and policy activities have been delegated to the Economic and Employment Services (EES) Division. EES established policy regarding the use of CCDF funds including the issuance of Child Care Subsidy benefits. Child Care eligibility workers are located throughout the agency, but eligibility and other policy related to CCDF funding is established at the central administrative level of EES. There is frequent coordination of activities between EES Program personnel and fiscal staff. Budget staff monitors and communicates information regarding federal award allotments, availability of funds, fund balances, expiration of funds, etc. The Grants and Contracts staff work with program staff to establish grants and contract to be awarded ensuring adequate funds and in compliance with federal regulations, approval of invoices for payment, etc. The payables staff work with EES program staff to set up obligations, process payments following program review, reviewing for support documentation, etc. The Federal Reporting Unit prepares and submits required expenditure reports and claiming of funds. Budget staff are included in weekly meetings with EES Leadership. Frequent informal communications occur when determining the availability of funds, etc. Grants and Contracts staff have informal communications related to the receiving and processing of request for payments from contractors and grantees. Other communication is completed as necessary to ensure funds are being spent, spent correctly, to obtain additional information, etc. The processing of administrative expenditures and grant and contract payments are set up to ensure no one person can request, create, and make a payment. Different individuals request and approve payments. Entries are made into the accounting system are made by a different person. Obligations (purchase orders) separately from the person authorizing payments. Expenditure reports from the accounting system are provided no less than monthly and reviewed

by budget staff to see what has been paid. As indicated above, duties have been segregated to reduce the risk of potential fraud. Administrative and grant and contract payment requests go through multiple persons before a payment is made. Payments can be questioned at any time during the processes of establishing an obligation (setting up the accounting system for a future payment to be made against), receiving the invoice information, and processing the payments. Additionally, after the fact actions include the review of the expenditures on reports and ledger documents by individuals who do not enter or process payments, such as program and budget staff.

Include the following elements in your description:

- 1. Assignment of authority and responsibilities related to program integrity.
- 2. Delegation of duties.
- 3. Coordination of activities.
- 4. Communication between fiscal and program staff.
- 5. Segregation of duties.
- 6. Establishment of checks and balances to identify potential fraud risks.
- 7. Other activities that support program integrity.

10.1.2 Fiscal management practices

Describe how the Lead Agency ensures effective fiscal management practices for all CCDF expenditures, including:

Fiscal oversight of CCDF funds, including grants and contracts. Describe: The Procurement a. Services Unit within the Operations Division with Kansas Department for Children and Families, the lead agency, coordinates and processes the procuring of goods and services through contracts and grants. They are responsible for making payments for all encumbered contracts and grants and ensuring they comply for all applicable statues, regulations, and policies. Prior to entering written agreements, the Lead Agency verifies the subrecipients' tax clearance, debarment status and FFATA (Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act) information. The specific work required by a grant must be completed in accordance with the scope of work specified in the notification of grant award and all required reports must be submitted to a designated Kansas Department for Children and Families staff member as agreed on. Written agreements include scope of work; services to be provided; performance measures; deliverables and reporting requirements. The status report, budget transaction report and budget itemization reports are reviewed by multiple Kansas Department for Children and Families staff for completeness and allowability. In addition to monthly financial reports, subrecipients are required to submit quarterly performance goals reports, quarterly outcome reports and annual quality performance reports. Site visits may occur by assigned Kansas Department for Children and Families staff and/or the Kansas Department for Children and Families internal audit services unit to ensure appropriate fiscal practices are being followed. Desk reviews, monthly calls and email communications are examples of other methods used for grant/contract oversight and monitoring. The grantee is responsible for obtaining an independent audit of any grant awarded by Kansas Department for Children and Families. All grantees are subject to federal and state audits.

- b. Tracking systems that ensure reasonable and allowable costs and allow for tracing of funds to a level of expenditure adequate to establish that such funds have not been used in violation of the provision of this part. Describe: Each grant/contract has its own file where copies of all payments processed, budget balances, the grant or agreement, and any important correspondence is stored. All grants/contracts are in an Access database. The database tracks Payments and purchase order balances are reconciled on a regular basis and then reconciled with our accounting system, SMART. Each agreement is tracked and monitored by fiscal year, specific information regarding the length of the term of the grant/contract, if there is a renewal option and address information.
- c. Processes and procedures to prepare and submit required state and federal fiscal reporting. Describe: Federal funds are assigned a fund and budget unit identifying number based on the related CFDA number. Program codes are established to help identify revenue and expenditures by cost center. Program codes are funded by the applicable fund and budget unit. All expenditures are processed quarterly through the cost allocation plan based on the cost center (i.e. program code). Every program code has a cost allocation method to assign those costs to one or more "final receivers" which for federal funds is typically the grant award. Every grant has an excel file which contains quarterly updates based on the cost allocation reports. The file has various tabs as needed which step through the cost's allocation reports to the federal and/or grant report. Reports are submitted quarterly or annually as required and in the applicable federal system or to the applicable awarding entity.
- d. Other. Describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

10.1.3 Effectiveness of fiscal management practices

Describe how the Lead Agency knows there are effective fiscal management practices in place for all CCDF expenditures, including:

- a. How the Lead Agency defines effective fiscal management practices. Describe: Kansas Department for Children and Families follows the fiscal management practices adopted by the State of Kansas which has governance over the agency. Fiscal management practices include having standard operating procedures and internal controls for accounting, financial reporting, budgeting, and other financial related activities. Kansas Department for Children and Families has internal policies and procedures that reference the State of Kansas procedures and enforce any federal regulations. These policies and procedures are in place and supported by management.
- b. How the Lead Agency measures and tracks results of their fiscal management practices.

 Describe: Program and Fiscal staff regularly monitor reports for each program including reports submitted by subrecipients to ensure compliance requirements are being met.

 There is management level review at significant trigger points throughout all programs such as applying penalties or terminating benefits for recipients. Periodic site visits may be performed, and audits are conducted. Any deficiencies within prescribed time frames identified in the audit are documented and corrective action plans developed if needed
- c. How the results inform implementation. Describe: The results from audits and monitoring activities provide support of the effectiveness of these fiscal management practices and identify areas where additional efforts are needed. Implementation of any changes will be reviewed and then determined if additional modifications are needed by management.

d. Other. Describe: *Click or tap here to enter text.*

IO.I.T IUCIIUIIVIIIE IISI	1	0.	1.4	Identifying	risl
---------------------------	---	----	-----	-------------	------

Describe the processes the Lead Agency uses to identify risk in the CCDF program including:

a. Each process used by the Lead Agency to identify risk (including entities responsible for implementing each process). Describe: Kansas Department for Children and Families has established Program Management, Operation, and Support departments to separate functions of the program to ensure checks and balances are in place to support the policies and procedures for the program.

There are various processes Kansas Department for Children and Families has in place with regards to conducting risk assessment of our policies and procedures. The program management, operations, and support departments work independently and together to identify and assess areas at risk in their departments. Each department has a role in evaluating the issues they encounter within the program and presenting the issues in regular meetings which discuss and are related to program integrity and accountability with regards to any systems or software issues, training issues, cross program communications, collections, and procedures and process with regards to eligibility determinations and fraud.

Various employees from each department attend groups which meet regularly to discuss, review, and revise such policies and processes related to program integrity and accountability. These groups include the Policy Planning Team, IPT, KAG, & PA Meeting. All these groups include elements of program integrity and accountability during discussions and are regular steps in the process of reviewing and revising policy. An additional step in policy revision includes KEESM Implementation calls. Policy changes can be initiated in many ways and there is process used to develop policy. As part of this process, the changes are discussed in various work groups and then there is an internal approval process. The Business Process Management team meets regularly to discuss process and procedural changes or possible improvements.

The Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit attends the KEESM implementation calls for updates on policy revisions. In addition, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit has regular monthly meetings to discuss any program issues and to share ideas for potential policy revision and changes related to program integrity and accountability. This unit also meets with the Child Care Enrollment Unit, Foster Care Child Care and Fraud Supervisors regularly, once a month to identify and discuss any policy or procedural issues to collaborate as well as to discuss any changes and updates which may affect their work and process with regards to program integrity and accountability.

Various employees across the department in the units referenced receive the notifications regarding regulatory changes. Individuals overseeing these areas are knowledgeable of the program and the appropriate supervisions are in place to ensure Kansas Department for Children and Families is in compliance with applicable requirements.

In addition, regular case reviews performed within the program at the eligibility level and audits of Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled providers conducted by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit further detects potential risks. The identification of any process, policy or procedural issues are presented to the appropriate departments to further discuss prevention.

b. The frequency of each risk assessment. Describe: The program management, operations, and support departments work independently and together to identify and assess areas at risk in their departments. Each department has a role in evaluating the issues they encounter within the program and presenting the issues in regular meetings which discuss and are related to program integrity and accountability with regards to any systems or software issues, training issues, cross program communications, collections, and procedures and process with regards to eligibility determinations and fraud. The Data Analysts under Management Support reviews system generated data to identify any concerns or problematic inconsistencies. System generated data reports are sent regularly, monthly to the Kansas Department for Children and Families program managers to further assess any potential risks identified from these reports.

The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit as well as the Child Care Enrollment unit receives regular reports from the Data Analyst team to review for any irregularities and potential fraud risks. In addition, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit attends the KEESM implementation calls for updates on policy revisions. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit has regular monthly meetings to discuss any program issues and to share ideas for potential policy revision and changes related to program integrity and accountability. This unit also meets with the Child Care Enrollment Unit, Foster Care Child Care and Fraud Supervisors regularly, once a month to identify and discuss any policy or procedural issues to collaborate as well as to discuss any changes and updates which may affect their work and process with regards to program integrity and accountability.

Various employees from each department attend groups which meet regularly to discuss, review, and revise such policies and processes related to program integrity and accountability. These groups include the Policy Planning Team, IPT, KAG, & PA Meeting. All these groups include elements of program integrity and accountability during discussions and are regular steps in the process of reviewing and revising policy. The Business Process Management team meets regularly to discuss process and procedural changes or possible improvements.

In addition, regular case reviews performed within the program at the eligibility level and audits of Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled providers conducted by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit further detects potential risks. The identification of any process, policy or procedural issues are presented to the appropriate departments to further discuss prevention.

c. How the Lead Agency uses risk assessment results to inform program improvement. Describe: Supervisory case reviews are used to assess error trends and determine additional training needs. Supervisors and program improvement staff complete and record the results of case reads in the Case Review System (CARES), The data is available at the worker, unit, regional, or state level. The eligibility system, KEES, contains edits that prevent the authorization of excessive hours, prevent the overlap of plans for the same child at the same time, determines the hours to be authorized when schedules are entered to prevent and reduce errors. Warnings are also created when the system recognizes something that requires a closer look by the eligibility worker, like child care plans being created for a provider who is almost at capacity or when a child is on another child care program. Provider rates are automated to prevent incorrect rates from being entered on the child care plan. System rules streamline the application of many of the child care policies based on data that is entered by eligibility workers. Data matches are used with Kansas wage and unemployment compensation and Social Security Administration to assist with verifying or identifying income. Eligibility workers also verify various child care eligibility factors, such as employment, income, citizenship, age, residency, etc.) through access to child support services, vital statistics, food assistance program information, Cash Assistance program information, the work number, and the Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements Program. Fraud Navigator is a tool accessed through the EBT system to monitor real-time transactions including child care payments for suspicious payment activity, such as excessive transaction amounts. Discussions regarding error trends and discrepancies are discussed during the Policy Planning Team, IPT, KAG, & PA Meeting. All these groups include elements of program integrity and accountability during discussions. In addition, if policy changes are necessary for program improvement, the discussion is had within KEESM Implementation calls. Policy changes can be initiated in many ways and there is process used to develop policy. As part of this process, the changes are discussed in various work groups and then there is an internal approval process. The Business Process Management team meets regularly to discuss process and procedural changes or possible improvements. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit attends the KEESM implementation calls for updates on policy revisions. In addition, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit has regular monthly meetings to discuss any program issues and to share ideas for potential policy revision and changes related to program integrity and accountability. This unit also meets with the Child Care Enrollment Unit, Foster Care Child Care and Fraud Supervisors regularly, once a month to identify and discuss any policy or procedural issues to collaborate as well as to discuss any changes and updates which may affect their work and process with regards to program integrity and accountability. Various employees across the department in the units referenced receive the notifications regarding regulatory changes. Individuals overseeing these areas are knowledgeable of the program and the appropriate supervisions are in place to ensure Kansas Department for Children and Families is in compliance with applicable requirements. In addition, case reviews performed within the program at the eligibility level and audits of Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled providers conducted by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit further detects potential risks. The identification of any process, policy or procedural issues are presented to the appropriate departments to further discuss prevention.

d. How the Lead Agency knows that the risk assessment processes utilized are effective.

Describe: Regular supervisory case reviews are used to assess error trends and determine additional training needs. Supervisors and program improvement staff complete and record the results of case reads in the Case Review System (CARES), The data is available at the worker, unit, regional, or state level.

In addition, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit reviews child care eligibility cases when conducting a child care provider audit. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit identifies any error trends or inconsistencies and reports them to the child care program and policy managers for prevention and further discussions for training or program improvements.

These case reviews performed within the program at the eligibility level and the audits of Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled providers not only assist in detecting potential risks and assisting with the discussion for prevention, but they also allow the state to identify areas of potential weaknesses to allow further discussions for training or program improvements.

e. Other. Describe: Click or tap here to enter text.

10.1.5 Processes to train about CCDF requirements and program integrity

Describe the processes the Lead Agency uses to train staff of the Lead Agency and other agencies engaged in the administration of CCDF, and child care providers about program requirements and integrity.

a. Describe how the Lead Agency ensures that all staff who administer the CCDF program (including through MOUs, grants, and contracts) are informed and trained regarding program requirements and integrity.

i. Describe the training provided to staff members around CCDF program requirements and program integrity: Each time a policy change takes place, the new information is posted in the Kansas Economic & Employment Services Manual that is available to both agency staff and the general public on the agency's web sites. Summaries of all policy changes made are also posted on the web page that houses the manual. That manual can be viewed at http://content.dcf.ks.gov/EES/KEESM/Keesm.htm. Prior to the effective date of the changes, that information is shared with the lead agency's eligibility staff via the summaries of changes, implementation memos and training calls. Depending on the policy that is being changed, there may be a press release or other announcement made. If it is expected that a policy change could have a significant impact on them, a letter could be sent to providers and others. When needed, information about the changes are shared with our partners at various meetings that are attended by agency staff. Information may also be posted on the Kansas Department for Children and Families Website of the CCDF Consumer Education Website, Child Care in Kansas.

The Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit is also kept up to date on child care policies. They have regular monthly meetings to discuss policy changes, program issues and to share ideas for potential policy revision and changes related to program integrity and accountability.

This unit also meets with the Child Care Enrollment Unit, the Foster Care Child Care Unit and the fraud unit on a regular basis to discuss any changes and updates in policies or process which may affect their work and process with regards to program integrity and accountability. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit staff are required to take the following trainings which include, but are not limited to, KEES overview training, the child care training course, EBT edge system and process, as well as various trainings on tools and techniques for audit interviewing, interviewing, documentation, fraud. They are also required to take the KCCTO training on the Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Subsidy Program. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit also take interviewing, fraud trainings, financial investigation trainings from (NW3C) National White-Collar Crime Center which provides a nationwide support system for law enforcement and regulatory agencies tasked with the prevention, investigation, and prosecution of economic and high-tech crime. The unit also continuously seeks and takes relevant trainings or courses offered by outside agencies, including investigation, welfare fraud or Anti-Fraud agencies to further educate them on federal policies with regards to welfare, fraud, and investigations.

- ii. Describe how staff training is evaluated for effectiveness: When information is shared with the lead agency's eligibility staff via the summaries of changes, implementation memos and training calls, there are opportunities for questions to be asked and clarification is given. These changes are also frequently shared by the field during meetings they have in the mornings and staff can ask clarifying questions at that time, which are answered by the field administration or by centralized policy staff.
- iii. Describe how the Lead Agency uses program integrity data (e.g., error rate results, risk assessment data) to inform ongoing staff training needs: Supervisory case reviews are used to assess error trends and determine additional training needs. Supervisors and program improvement staff complete and record the results of case reads in the Case Review System (CARES), The data is available at the worker, unit, regional, or state level.

Regular case reads determine whether eligibility and provider enrollment cases are processed accurately. Case Reads are completed by using the CARES system which assists supervisor and management staff conduct payment and case management/process errors. This CARES system keeps track of the errors and corrections for management staff.

Random audits and red flag audits are completed for child care providers are completed to ensure they are complying with policies and if further education is necessary for the provider or whether additional training is required for staff.

In addition, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit reviews child care eligibility cases when conducting a child care provider audit. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit identifies any error trends or inconsistencies and reports them to the child care program and policy managers for prevention and further discussions for training or program improvements. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit utilizes the ACF403 as a guide when identifying errors and trends to further assist the program with training needs.

b. Describe how the Lead Agency ensures all providers for children receiving CCDF funds are informed and trained regarding CCDF program requirements and program integrity:

i. Describe the training for providers around CCDF program requirements and program integrity: Regular case reads determine whether eligibility and provider enrollment cases are processed accurately. Case Reads are completed by using the CARES system which assists supervisor and management staff conduct payment and case management/process errors. This CARES system keeps track of the errors and corrections for management staff.

Child Care providers enrolling with Kansas Department for Children and Families are required to complete the "Supporting Kansas Families: Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Subsidy Program" through the Kansas Child Care Training Opportunities as an initial part of their application process. This program provides education with regards to program requirements. Child care providers are given access to the Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care handbook to review and are required to sign off prior to their enrollment they had reviewed and understood the program policies and regulations.

Random audits and red flag audits are completed for child care providers are completed to ensure they are complying with policies and if further education is necessary for the provider or whether additional training is required for staff.

The Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support unit completes facility site visits to enrolled providers to further provide education and understanding of program requirements and program integrity. During a site visit, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support unit reviews the providers business records and procedures to ensure they are in compliance with Kansas Department for Children and Families provider policies. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support unit provides education, support and assistance with regards to questions and issues surrounding program integrity, procedures, policies and regulations.

ii. Describe how provider training is evaluated for effectiveness: The Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes facility site visits to review provider records and procedures to ensure they are complying. After the initial site visit, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit completes a follow up site visit to ensure any discrepancies identified at the initial visit have been corrected. If further support and education is required, Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support continues to provide follow up and education until discrepancies are no longer discovered.

During the site visit education is provided regarding best practices for business records and program integrity is discussed. Effectiveness of this education is evaluated by the increased volume of contact Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit receives from the providers requesting further clarification or assistance on policies, procedures, and education. Furthermore, the increased amount of provider refunds being sent in validate the effectiveness from the education; enrolled providers voluntarily returning subsidies that are not owed to them to return to the parent and/or Kansas Department for Children and Families.

In addition, regular case reads determine whether eligibility and provider enrollment cases are processed accurately. Case Reads are completed by using the CARES system which assists supervisor and management staff conduct payment and case management/process errors. This CARES system keeps track of the errors and corrections for management staff.

Random audits and red flag audits are completed for child care providers are completed to ensure they are complying with policies and if further education is necessary for the provider or whether additional training is required for staff.

iii. Describe how the Lead Agency uses program integrity data (e.g., error rate results, risk assessment data) to inform ongoing provider training needs: *Program Integrity data not only consists of the data reports consists of case reviews from facility site visits, the triennial error rate review as well as child care eligibility and child care enrollment supervisory case reviews utilizing the CARES system; these data identify error trends or inconsistencies for prevention and further discussions for training or program improvements.*

10.1.6 Evaluate internal control activities

Describe how the Lead Agency uses the following to regularly evaluate the effectiveness of Lead Agency internal control activities for all CCDF expenditures.

- a. Error rate review triennial report results (if applicable). Describe who this information is shared with and how the Lead Agency uses the information to evaluate the effectiveness of its internal controls: The triennial report is completed by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit. The information is shared with the Office of Child Care as well as the Kansas Department for Children and Families Child care program and policy manager as well as Kansas Department for Children and Families leadership. Random case reviews are conducted to review child care eligibility cases as well as child care enrollment provider files to determine whether the cases are processed accurately with regards to the elements and factors as given by the Office of Child Care. The reviews assist in identifying any error trends within program eligibility and child care enrollment. These trends are shared with program staff as well as the program and policy manager. If internal errors are discovered, child care program and policy manager is notified to further assess for corrections or additional training. In addition, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit utilizes the ACF403 as a quide when identifying errors and trends to further assist the program with training needs.
- b. Audit results. Describe who this information is shared with and how the Lead Agency uses the information to evaluate the effectiveness of its internal controls: Internal controls consist of Supervisors and management staff conducting random, regular case reads for the child care program to determine whether eligibility and provider enrollment cases are processed accurately. Case Reads are completed by using the CARES system which assists supervisor and management staff conduct payment and case management/process errors. This CARES system keeps track of the errors and corrections for management staff.

Random audits for child care providers are completed to ensure they are complying with policies. The Child Care Provider Integrity, Education and Integrity Support Unit conducts site visits on red flag providers to ensure they are complying with all Kansas Department for Children and Families policies and assess the provider for any questionable activity or fraud for further investigation.

When an audit is completed, provider enrollment files are reviewed first by staff to ensure all of the information gathered at application/review for the providers is accurate and up to date. Child Care Provider Integrity staff also reviews child care recipient cases when they audit providers to ensure plans are processed and written correctly by eligibility staff. During the audit, if internal errors are discovered than the supervisor/staff is notified to further assess the errors for corrections. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit utilizes the ACF403 as a guide when identifying errors and trends to further assist the program with training needs.

c. Other. Describe who this information is shared with and how the Lead Agency uses the information to evaluate the effectiveness of its internal controls: *Click or tap here to enter text*.

10.1.7 Identified weaknesses in internal controls

Has the Lead Agency or other entity identified any weaknesses in its internal controls?

a. \square No. If no, describe when and how it was most recently determined that there were no weaknesses in the Lead Agency's internal controls. *Click or tap here to enter text.*

b. ☑ Yes. If yes, what were the indicators? How did you use the information to strengthen your internal controls? No internal weaknesses were identified as part of the financial audits and audits of the agreements relating to the use of CCDF funding in the SFY2023 Single Audit. Based on the triennial report results, inconsistencies were found in processing child care eligibility cases. It was discovered there were various interpretations with regards to process and policy knowledge. With regards to child care eligibility cases, supervisory case reviews will be completed on a more regular basis, utilizing the Case Action Review system (CAREs) to discover these inconsistencies. Kansas is in the process of upgrading the CARE system to include the elements used in the triennial report to assist in identifying weaknesses. The agency will continue to do the policy meetings/trainings, review reports and results of case reads, and analyzing for any additional training needs for staff. With regards to system identified weaknesses; when reviewing these Kansas Eligibility Enforcement System (KEES) generated reports, system defects may be discovered, which need to be fixed or errors are found which result in further investigation to determine whether additional staff training is necessary, or if changes in the system are necessary to support policy changes.

10.2 Fraud Investigation, Payment Recovery, and Sanctions

Lead Agencies must have the necessary controls to identify fraud and other program violations to ensure program integrity. Program violations can include both intentional and unintentional client and/or provider violations, as defined by the Lead Agency. These violations and errors, identified through the error-rate review process and other review processes, may result in payment or nonpayment (administrative) errors and may or may not be the result of fraud, based on the Lead Agency definition.

10.2.1 Strategies used to identify and prevent program violations

Check the activities the Lead Agency employs to ensure program integrity, and for each checked activity, identify what type of program violations the activity addresses, describe the activity and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis.

a.

Share/match data from other programs (e.g., TANF program, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Food and Nutrition Service (FNS), Medicaid) or other databases (e.g., State Directory of New Hires, Social Security Administration, Public Assistance Reporting Information System (PARIS)).

i. ☐ Intentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: *Eligibility workers verify various* child care eligibility factors, such as employment, income, citizenship, age, residency, etc. through access to shared information from other programs like Cash Assistance, FNS and Medicaid. Other databases are used to assist with verifying or identifying income, such as social security administration. Public Assistance Reporting Information system matches are used to ensure that residency requirements are met and identify duplications in the program with another state. When the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes their audits, they do a thorough review of the parent/recipient case. This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing all child care plans, case processes, information gathered at the time of application/review and any updates or changes made on the case. When these reviews are completed on the child care recipients, the unit utilizes and reviews the information gathered by other programs like Cash Assistance, Food Assistance, Medicaid, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Kansas Department of Health and Environment records, Childcare Licensing And Regulation Information System (CLARIS), Social Security Administration, and Public Assistance Reporting Information system to ensure the household composition, members, and information submitted by the recipient to the program worker is consistent. When a review or audit is completed for child care providers, the reviewer checks to see if the provider receives assistance and ensures that they are reporting this income for Cash Assistance, Food Assistance or Child Care Assistance cases. During a review or audit of a Child Care Assistance case or Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit assesses any information or documentation which may have been misread or miscommunicated by the worker/recipient/provider to determine if it was an agency error or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary.

ii. ☐ Unintentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: *Eligibility workers verify various* child care eligibility factors, such as employment, income, citizenship, age, residency, etc. through access to shared information from other programs like Cash Assistance, FNS and Medicaid. Other databases are used to assist with verifying or identifying income, such as social security administration. Public Assistance Reporting Information system matches are used to ensure that residency requirements are met and identify duplications in the program with another state. When the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes their audits, they do a thorough review of the parent/recipient case. This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing all child care plans, case processes, information gathered at the time of application/review and any updates or changes made on the case. When these reviews are completed on the child care recipients, the unit utilizes and reviews the information gathered by other programs like Cash Assistance, Food Assistance, Medicaid, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Kansas Department of Health and Environment records, Childcare Licensing And Regulation Information System (CLARIS), Social Security Administration, and Public Assistance Reporting Information system to ensure the household composition, members, and information submitted by the recipient to the program worker is consistent. When a review or audit is completed for child care providers, the reviewer checks to see if the provider receives assistance and ensures that they are reporting this income for Cash Assistance, Food Assistance or Child Care Assistance cases. During a review or audit of a Child Care Assistance case or Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit assesses any information or documentation which may have been misread or miscommunicated by the worker/recipient/provider to determine if it was an agency error or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary.

iii. Agency errors. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: Eligibility workers verify various child care eligibility factors, such as employment, income, citizenship, age, residency, etc. through access to shared information from other programs like Cash Assistance, FNS and Medicaid. Other databases are used to assist with verifying or identifying income, such as social security administration. Public Assistance Reporting Information system matches are used to ensure that residency requirements are met and identify duplications in the program with another state.

When the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes their audits, they do a thorough review of the parent/recipient case. This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing all child care plans, case processes, information gathered at the time of application/review and any updates or changes made on the case. When these reviews are completed on the child care recipients, the unit utilizes and reviews the information gathered by other programs like Cash Assistance, Food Assistance, Medicaid, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Kansas Department of Health and Environment records, Childcare Licensing And Regulation Information System (CLARIS), Social Security Administration, and Public Assistance Reporting Information system to ensure the household composition, members, and information submitted by the recipient to the program worker is consistent. When a review or audit is completed for child care providers, the reviewer checks to see if the provider receives assistance and ensures that they are reporting this income for Cash Assistance, Food Assistance or Child Care Assistance cases.

During a review or audit of a Child Care Assistance case or Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit assesses any information or documentation which may have been misread or miscommunicated by the worker/recipient/provider to determine if it was an agency error or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary.

b. \boxtimes Run system reports that flag errors (include types).

☐ Intentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: The Data Analysts under Management Support reviews system generated data to identify any concerns or problematic inconsistencies. System generated data reports are sent regularly, monthly to the Kansas Department for Children and Families program managers to further assess any potential risks identified from these reports. The reports pertaining to the child care program are sent to the Child Care program manager, Child Care Enrollment as well as to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit to review for any irregularities and potential fraud risks. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit receives the following reports: Semi-Annual High Dollar Report for centers and licensed homes. This report is provided yearly. This report is generated annually in January to provide dollar amount received from both centers and licensed homes which were paid over a certain amount. The amount for licensed homes is 20k. When the report is generated, if the daycare provider meets or exceeds that amount, then they will appear on the report to review for red flags and a provider audit review will be completed. Audits are completed with In Person visits as well as by Mail Audits to the daycare provider home or center to review their business records. Records requested consists of attendance, payment, enrollment records. Excessive Large Balance Alerts. This report is sent sporadically when the EBT manager receives an alert. The EBT Manager generates a report and sends it to the CCPIES unit. This is an alert to notify a large EBT subsidy balance on a recipient's card. Generally, with these reports, review of the client's case is completed first to determine what the approved subsidy amount for their household is and when the last payment was made to a daycare provider. A review of the recipients' case is done to determine the status of the case, when payments are being made, who they are being made to. If, after reviewing the case file, it is determined the large balance is not questionable, then there is no need to pursue any further review or investigation. However, if information is found to be questionable, a deeper dive into the recipient case, along with their payment history and providers paid is reviewed. Oftentimes if the balance is found to be questionable, past payments are also questionable, leading to auditing the provider(s) this recipient has used or is requesting. Audits are completed with In Person visits as well as by Mail Audits to the daycare provider home or center to review their business records. Records requested consists of attendance, payment, enrollment records. Unauthorized Payment Report. This report is sent once a month. This report is generated for Kansas Department for Children and Families IN HOME and OUT of HOME Providers. As an INHOME or OUT OF HOME Provider, the provider can only care for and accept EBT Child Care benefits from those they are authorized to care and accept EBT payment from. When the INHOME/OUT OF HOME provider applies, they request care for specific families of whom they are related to. If they meet their requirements, they are approved to care for and accept EBT from only those families. This report lists INHOME and OUT OF HOME providers who accept EBT payment from unauthorized families. When an unauthorized payment is received, a review of the case, payers and payees involved, and transaction is made to determine if the payment was authorized. If it isn't, an overpayment is created. No other investigation would be needed for these types of issues. Providers who are also Recipients Report. This report is sent once a month. This report is

i.

generated to determine if any Kansas Department for Children and Families daycare providers, who are also Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care recipients, pay themselves. Per Kansas Department for Children and Families policy, Providers may apply for child care for their own children but care cannot be paid to their facility if they are the owner. However, an exception has recently been made for Foster Care Child Care (FC CC,) for those situations to be approved on a case-by-case basis by the FC CC Leadership. In these situations, generally after a review of the provider and eligibility file, a determination can be made if there will be an overpayment or not. No other investigation is usually necessary for these types of cases. Fraud Referral Reports. These alerts, referrals or reports are sent when received or ready for the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit to review the recipient or provider. Fraud referrals are sent to our Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support (CCPIES) Unit in various ways. Hotline referrals are received most regularly; however, we receive referrals from within the agency, outside of the agency, 'anonymous' calls/tips, etc. Generally, when a referral from within the agency, client or provider is made, it is emailed directly to the CCPIES unit. Oftentimes it is emailed to the Child Care Enrollment Unit, who then forwards it to the CCPIES unit. When a fraud hotline referral is made, the report goes to the fraud unit and a fraud # or alert is generated by the fraud unit. If the referral is a combined benefits case (Food Assistance/Cash Assistance AND CC), then the fraud unit investigates their Food Assistance/Cash Assistance and then sends it to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support (CCPIES) Unit to review the Child Care portion for potential fraud. IF the case is a child care recipient only or deals with only the child care provider, the referral is immediately sent to the CCPIES Unit to review and investigate for potential fraud and errors and to pursue overpayment and or fraud disqualification. With regards to the daycare providers, an audit is generally done for an initial contact to determine if further investigation is necessary. Audits are completed with In Person visits as well as by Mail Audits to the daycare provider home or center to review their business records. Records requested consists of attendance, payment, enrollment records. Kansas Eligibility Enforcement System (KEES) generated reports. These reports are regularly ran to identify system or potential process concerns. The eligibility system, KEES, contains edits that prevent the authorization of excessive hours, prevent the overlap of plans for the same child at the same time, determines the hours to be authorized when schedules are entered to prevent and reduce errors. Warnings are also created when the system recognizes something that requires a closer look by the eligibility worker, like child care plans being created for a provider who is almost at capacity or when a child is on another child care program. Provider rates are automated to prevent incorrect rates from being entered on the child care plan. System rules streamline the application of many of the child care policies based on data that is entered by eligibility workers. Data matches are used with Kansas wage and unemployment compensation and Social Security Administration to assist with verifying or identifying income. Fraud Navigator is a tool accessed through the EBT system to monitor real- time transactions including child care payments for suspicious payment activity, such as excessive transaction amounts. When an error or inconsistency is identified, a report is generated and assessed to be sent to the appropriate departments for further review and resolution or investigation. The

above reports are reviewed to assess if it was a system error, agency error, or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary. Child Care eligibility staff processes any agency or unintentional program violations within the child care eligibility recipient case. If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment. Whereas If either unintentional or intentional program violations are identified for child care providers, the case is referred to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit.

ii. ☐ Unintentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: The Data Analysts under Management Support reviews system generated data to identify any concerns or problematic inconsistencies. System generated data reports are sent regularly, monthly to the Kansas Department for Children and Families program managers to further assess any potential risks identified from these reports. The reports pertaining to the child care program are sent to the Child Care program manager, Child Care Enrollment as well as to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit to review for any irregularities and potential fraud risks. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit receives the following reports: Semi-Annual High Dollar Report for centers and licensed homes. This report is provided yearly. This report is generated annually in January to provide dollar amount received from both centers and licensed homes which were paid over a certain amount. The amount for licensed homes is 20k. When the report is generated, if the daycare provider meets or exceeds that amount, then they will appear on the report to review for red flags and a provider audit review will be completed. Audits are completed with In Person visits as well as by Mail Audits to the daycare provider home or center to review their business records. Records requested consists of attendance, payment, enrollment records. Excessive Large Balance Alerts. This report is sent sporadically when the EBT manager receives an alert. The EBT Manager generates a report and sends it to the CCPIES unit. This is an alert to notify a large EBT subsidy balance on a recipient's card. Generally, with these reports, review of the client's case is completed first to determine what the approved subsidy amount for their household is and when the last payment was made to a daycare provider. A review of the recipients' case is done to determine the status of the case, when payments are being made, who they are being made to. If, after reviewing the case file, it is determined the large balance is not questionable, then there is no need to pursue any further review or investigation. However, if information is found to be questionable, a deeper dive into the recipient case, along with their payment history and providers paid is reviewed. Oftentimes if the balance is found to be questionable, past payments are also questionable, leading to auditing the provider(s) this recipient has used or is requesting. Audits are completed with In Person visits as well as by Mail Audits to the daycare provider home or center to review their business records. Records requested consists of attendance, payment, enrollment records. Unauthorized Payment Report. This report is sent once a month. This report is generated for Kansas Department for Children and Families IN HOME and OUT of HOME Providers. As an INHOME or OUT OF HOME Provider, the provider can only care for and accept EBT Child Care benefits from those they are authorized to care and accept EBT payment from. When the INHOME/OUT OF HOME provider applies, they request care for specific families of whom they are related to. If they meet their requirements, they are approved to care for and accept EBT from only those families. This report lists INHOME and OUT OF HOME providers who accept EBT payment from unauthorized families. When an unauthorized payment is received, a review of the case, payers and payees involved, and transaction is made to determine if the payment was authorized. If it isn't, an overpayment is created. No other investigation would be needed for these types of issues. Providers who are also Recipients Report. This report is sent once a month. This report is

generated to determine if any Kansas Department for Children and Families daycare providers, who are also Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care recipients, pay themselves. Per Kansas Department for Children and Families policy, Providers may apply for child care for their own children but care cannot be paid to their facility if they are the owner. However, an exception has recently been made for Foster Care Child Care (FC CC,) for those situations to be approved on a case-by-case basis by the FC CC Leadership. In these situations, generally after a review of the provider and eligibility file, a determination can be made if there will be an overpayment or not. No other investigation is usually necessary for these types of cases. Fraud Referral Reports. These alerts, referrals or reports are sent when received or ready for the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit to review the recipient or provider. Fraud referrals are sent to our Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support (CCPIES) Unit in various ways. Hotline referrals are received most regularly; however, we receive referrals from within the agency, outside of the agency, 'anonymous' calls/tips, etc. Generally, when a referral from within the agency, client or provider is made, it is emailed directly to the CCPIES unit. Oftentimes it is emailed to the Child Care Enrollment Unit, who then forwards it to the CCPIES unit. When a fraud hotline referral is made, the report goes to the fraud unit and a fraud # or alert is generated by the fraud unit. If the referral is a combined benefits case (Food Assistance/Cash Assistance AND CC), then the fraud unit investigates their Food Assistance/Cash Assistance and then sends it to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support (CCPIES) Unit to review the Child Care portion for potential fraud. IF the case is a child care recipient only or deals with only the child care provider, the referral is immediately sent to the CCPIES Unit to review and investigate for potential fraud and errors and to pursue overpayment and or fraud disqualification. With regards to the daycare providers, an audit is generally done for an initial contact to determine if further investigation is necessary. Audits are completed with In Person visits as well as by Mail Audits to the daycare provider home or center to review their business records. Records requested consists of attendance, payment, enrollment records. Kansas Eligibility Enforcement System (KEES) generated reports. These reports are regularly ran to identify system or potential process concerns. The eligibility system, KEES, contains edits that prevent the authorization of excessive hours, prevent the overlap of plans for the same child at the same time, determines the hours to be authorized when schedules are entered to prevent and reduce errors. Warnings are also created when the system recognizes something that requires a closer look by the eligibility worker, like child care plans being created for a provider who is almost at capacity or when a child is on another child care program. Provider rates are automated to prevent incorrect rates from being entered on the child care plan. System rules streamline the application of many of the child care policies based on data that is entered by eligibility workers. Data matches are used with Kansas wage and unemployment compensation and Social Security Administration to assist with verifying or identifying income. Fraud Navigator is a tool accessed through the EBT system to monitor real- time transactions including child care payments for suspicious payment activity, such as excessive transaction amounts. When an error or inconsistency is identified, a report is generated and assessed to be sent to the appropriate departments for further review and resolution or investigation. The

above reports are reviewed to assess if it was a system error, agency error, or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary. Child Care eligibility staff processes any agency or unintentional program violations within the child care eligibility recipient case. If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment. Whereas If either unintentional or intentional program violations are identified for child care providers, the case is referred to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit.

iii. Agency errors. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: The Data Analysts under Management Support reviews system generated data to identify any concerns or problematic inconsistencies. System generated data reports are sent regularly, monthly to the Kansas Department for Children and Families program managers to further assess any potential risks identified from these reports. The reports pertaining to the child care program are sent to the Child Care program manager, Child Care Enrollment as well as to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit to review for any irregularities and potential fraud risks. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit receives the following reports: Semi-Annual High Dollar Report for centers and licensed homes. This report is provided yearly. This report is generated annually in January to provide dollar amount received from both centers and licensed homes which were paid over a certain amount. The amount for licensed homes is 20k. When the report is generated, if the daycare provider meets or exceeds that amount, then they will appear on the report to review for red flags and a provider audit review will be completed. Audits are completed with In Person visits as well as by Mail Audits to the daycare provider home or center to review their business records. Records requested consists of attendance, payment, enrollment records. Excessive Large Balance Alerts. This report is sent sporadically when the EBT manager receives an alert. The EBT Manager generates a report and sends it to the CCPIES unit. This is an alert to notify a large EBT subsidy balance on a recipient's card. Generally, with these reports, review of the client's case is completed first to determine what the approved subsidy amount for their household is and when the last payment was made to a daycare provider. A review of the recipients' case is done to determine the status of the case, when payments are being made, who they are being made to. If, after reviewing the case file, it is determined the large balance is not questionable, then there is no need to pursue any further review or investigation. However, if information is found to be questionable, a deeper dive into the recipient case, along with their payment history and providers paid is reviewed. Oftentimes if the balance is found to be questionable, past payments are also questionable, leading to auditing the provider(s) this recipient has used or is requesting. Audits are completed with In Person visits as well as by Mail Audits to the daycare provider home or center to review their business records. Records requested consists of attendance, payment, enrollment records. Unauthorized Payment Report. This report is sent once a month. This report is generated for Kansas Department for Children and Families IN HOME and OUT of HOME Providers. As an INHOME or OUT OF HOME Provider, the provider can only care for and accept EBT Child Care benefits from those they are authorized to care and accept EBT payment from. When the INHOME/OUT OF HOME provider applies, they request care for specific families of whom they are related to. If they meet their requirements, they are approved to care for and accept EBT from only those families. This report lists INHOME and OUT OF HOME providers who accept EBT payment from unauthorized families. When an unauthorized payment is received, a review of the case, payers and payees involved, and transaction is made to determine if the payment was authorized. If it isn't, an overpayment is created. No other investigation would be needed for these types of issues. Providers who are also Recipients Report. This report is sent once a month. This report is generated to determine if any Kansas Department for

Children and Families daycare providers, who are also Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care recipients, pay themselves. Per Kansas Department for Children and Families policy, Providers may apply for child care for their own children but care cannot be paid to their facility if they are the owner. However, an exception has recently been made for Foster Care Child Care (FC CC,) for those situations to be approved on a case-by-case basis by the FC CC Leadership. In these situations, generally after a review of the provider and eligibility file, a determination can be made if there will be an overpayment or not. No other investigation is usually necessary for these types of cases. Fraud Referral Reports. These alerts, referrals or reports are sent when received or ready for the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit to review the recipient or provider. Fraud referrals are sent to our Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support (CCPIES) Unit in various ways. Hotline referrals are received most regularly; however, we receive referrals from within the agency, outside of the agency, 'anonymous' calls/tips, etc. Generally, when a referral from within the agency, client or provider is made, it is emailed directly to the CCPIES unit. Oftentimes it is emailed to the Child Care Enrollment Unit, who then forwards it to the CCPIES unit. When a fraud hotline referral is made, the report goes to the fraud unit and a fraud # or alert is generated by the fraud unit. If the referral is a combined benefits case (Food Assistance/Cash Assistance AND CC), then the fraud unit investigates their Food Assistance/Cash Assistance and then sends it to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support (CCPIES) Unit to review the Child Care portion for potential fraud. IF the case is a child care recipient only or deals with only the child care provider, the referral is immediately sent to the CCPIES Unit to review and investigate for potential fraud and errors and to pursue overpayment and or fraud disqualification. With regards to the daycare providers, an audit is generally done for an initial contact to determine if further investigation is necessary. Audits are completed with In Person visits as well as by Mail Audits to the daycare provider home or center to review their business records. Records requested consists of attendance, payment, enrollment records. Kansas Eligibility Enforcement System (KEES) generated reports. These reports are regularly ran to identify system or potential process concerns. The eligibility system, KEES, contains edits that prevent the authorization of excessive hours, prevent the overlap of plans for the same child at the same time, determines the hours to be authorized when schedules are entered to prevent and reduce errors. Warnings are also created when the system recognizes something that requires a closer look by the eligibility worker, like child care plans being created for a provider who is almost at capacity or when a child is on another child care program. Provider rates are automated to prevent incorrect rates from being entered on the child care plan. System rules streamline the application of many of the child care policies based on data that is entered by eligibility workers. Data matches are used with Kansas wage and unemployment compensation and Social Security Administration to assist with verifying or identifying income. Fraud Navigator is a tool accessed through the EBT system to monitor real-time transactions including child care payments for suspicious payment activity, such as excessive transaction amounts. When an error or inconsistency is identified, a report is generated and assessed to be sent to the appropriate departments for further review and resolution or investigation. The above reports are reviewed to

assess if it was a system error, agency error, or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary. Child Care eligibility staff processes any agency or unintentional program violations within the child care eligibility recipient case. If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment. Whereas If either unintentional or intentional program violations are identified for child care providers, the case is referred to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit.

- c. \boxtimes Review enrollment documents and attendance or billing records.
 - ☐ Intentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: When the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes their audits, they do a thorough review of the parent/recipient case. This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing all child care plans, case processes, information gathered at the time of application/review and any updates or changes made on the case. When these reviews are completed on the child care recipients, the unit utilizes and reviews the information gathered by other programs like Cash Assistance, Food Assistance, Medicaid, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Kansas Department of Health and Environment records, Childcare Licensing And Regulation Information System (CLARIS), Social Security Administration, and Public Assistance Reporting Information system to ensure the household composition, members, and information submitted by the recipient to the program worker is consistent. When a review or audit is completed for child care providers, the reviewer checks to see if the provider receives assistance and ensures that they are reporting this income for Cash Assistance, Food Assistance or Child Care Assistance cases. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit reviews child care enrollment record; all documents submitted by the provider to child care enrollment for their agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families, provider business records which include parent provider contracts, attendance records and payment records. During a review or audit of a Child Care Assistance case or Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit assesses any information or documentation which may have been misread or miscommunicated by the worker/recipient/provider to determine if it was an agency error or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary. When any program violation is identified by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit during a site visit/audit; the Child Care Provider Education Support Unit is responsible for assessing and processing any unintentional or intentional program violations with regards to child care eligibility or child care providers. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit does not take action on Agency errors, rather they notify the child care program and policy manager to take appropriate action providing reminders or requesting training to eligibility staff if warranted.

ii.

\[
\text{\sum} Unintentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: \(\text{When the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes their audits, they do a thorough review of the parent/recipient case. This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing all child care plans, case processes, information gathered at the time of application/review and any updates or changes made on the case. When these reviews are completed on the child care recipients, the unit utilizes and reviews the information gathered by other programs like Cash Assistance, Food Assistance, Medicaid, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Kansas Department of Health and Environment records, Childcare Licensing And Regulation Information System (CLARIS), Social Security Administration, and Public Assistance Reporting Information system to ensure the household composition, members, and information submitted by the recipient to the program worker is consistent.

When a review or audit is completed for child care providers, the reviewer checks to see if the provider receives assistance and ensures that they are reporting this income for Cash Assistance, Food Assistance or Child Care Assistance cases. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit reviews child care enrollment record; all documents submitted by the provider to child care enrollment for their agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families, provider business records which include parent provider contracts, attendance records and payment records.

During a review or audit of a Child Care Assistance case or Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit assesses any information or documentation which may have been misread or miscommunicated by the worker/recipient/provider to determine if it was an agency error or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary.

When any program violation is identified by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit during a site visit/audit; the Child Care Provider Education Support Unit is responsible for assessing and processing any unintentional or intentional program violations with regards to child care eligibility or child care providers. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit does not take action on Agency errors, rather they notify the child care program and policy manager to take appropriate action providing reminders or requesting training to eligibility staff if warranted.

iii. Agency errors. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: When the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes their audits, they do a thorough review of the parent/recipient case. This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing all child care plans, case processes, information gathered at the time of application/review and any updates or changes made on the case. When these reviews are completed on the child care recipients, the unit utilizes and reviews the information gathered by other programs like Cash Assistance, Food Assistance, Medicaid, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Kansas Department of Health and Environment records, Childcare Licensing And Regulation Information System (CLARIS), Social Security Administration, and Public Assistance Reporting Information system to ensure the household composition, members, and information submitted by the recipient to the program worker is consistent.

When a review or audit is completed for child care providers, the reviewer checks to see if the provider receives assistance and ensures that they are reporting this income for Cash Assistance, Food Assistance or Child Care Assistance cases. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit reviews child care enrollment record; all documents submitted by the provider to child care enrollment for their agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families, provider business records which include parent provider contracts, attendance records and payment records.

During a review or audit of a Child Care Assistance case or Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit assesses any information or documentation which may have been misread or miscommunicated by the worker/recipient/provider to determine if it was an agency error or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary.

When any program violation is identified by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit during a site visit/audit; the Child Care Provider Education Support Unit is responsible for assessing and processing any unintentional or intentional program violations with regards to child care eligibility or child care providers. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit does not take action on Agency errors, rather they notify the child care program and policy manager to take appropriate action providing reminders or requesting training to eligibility staff if warranted.

d. \square Conduct supervisory staff reviews or quality assurance reviews.

i.
☐ Intentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: Eligibility workers verify various child care eligibility factors, such as employment, income, citizenship, age, residency, etc. through access to shared information from other programs like Cash Assistance, FNS and Medicaid. Other databases are used to assist with verifying or identifying income, such as social security administration. Public Assistance Reporting Information system matches are used to ensure that residency requirements are met and identify duplications in the program with another state.

Supervisory case reviews are used to assess error trends and determine additional training needs. Supervisors and program improvement staff complete and record the results of case reads in the Case Review System (CARES), The data is available at the worker, unit, regional, or state level.

The case reviews may lead to errors identifying program violations. Child Care eligibility staff processes any agency or unintentional program violations within the child care eligibility recipient case. If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment. Whereas if either unintentional or intentional program violations are identified for child care providers, the case is referred to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit.

ii.

Unintentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: Eligibility workers verify various child care eligibility factors, such as employment, income, citizenship, age, residency, etc. through access to shared information from other programs like Cash Assistance, FNS and Medicaid. Other databases are used to assist with verifying or identifying income, such as social security administration. Public Assistance Reporting Information system matches are used to ensure that residency requirements are met and identify duplications in the program with another state.

Supervisory case reviews are used to assess error trends and determine additional training needs. Supervisors and program improvement staff complete and record the results of case reads in the Case Review System (CARES), The data is available at the worker, unit, regional, or state level.

The case reviews may lead to errors identifying program violations. Child Care eligibility staff processes any agency or unintentional program violations within the child care eligibility recipient case. If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment. Whereas if either unintentional or intentional program violations are identified for child care providers, the case is referred to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit.

iii. Agency errors. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: Eligibility workers verify various child care eligibility factors, such as employment, income, citizenship, age, residency, etc. through access to shared information from other programs like Cash Assistance, FNS and Medicaid. Other databases are used to assist with verifying or identifying income, such as social security administration. Public Assistance Reporting Information system matches are used to ensure that residency requirements are met and identify duplications in the program with another state.

Supervisory case reviews are used to assess error trends and determine additional training needs. Supervisors and program improvement staff complete and record the results of case reads in the Case Review System (CARES), The data is available at the worker, unit, regional, or state level.

The case reviews may lead to errors identifying program violations. Child Care eligibility staff processes any agency or unintentional program violations within the child care eligibility recipient case. If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment. Whereas if either unintentional or intentional program violations are identified for child care providers, the case is referred to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit.

e.

Audit provider records.

i. ☐ Intentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: When the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes their audits, they do a thorough review of the parent/recipient case. This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing all child care plans, case processes, information gathered at the time of application/review and any updates or changes made on the case. When these reviews are completed on the child care recipients, the unit utilizes and reviews the information gathered by other programs like Cash Assistance, Food Assistance, Medicaid, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Kansas Department of Health and Environment records, Childcare Licensing And Regulation Information System (CLARIS), Social Security Administration, and Public Assistance Reporting Information system to ensure the household composition, members, and information submitted by the recipient to the program worker is consistent. When a review or audit is completed for child care providers, the reviewer checks to see if the provider receives assistance and ensures that they are reporting this income for Cash Assistance, Food Assistance or Child Care Assistance cases. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit reviews child care enrollment record; all documents submitted by the provider to child care enrollment for their agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families, provider business records which include parent provider contracts, attendance records and payment records. During a review or audit of a Child Care Assistance case or Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit assesses any information or documentation which may have been misread or miscommunicated by the worker/recipient/provider to determine if it was an agency error or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary. When any program violation is identified by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit during a site visit/audit; the Child Care Provider Education Support Unit is responsible for assessing and processing any unintentional or intentional program violations with regards to child care eligibility or child care providers. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit does not take action on Agency errors, rather they notify the child care program and policy manager to take appropriate action providing reminders or requesting training to eligibility staff if warranted.

ii. ☐ Unintentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: When the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes their audits, they do a thorough review of the parent/recipient case. This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing all child care plans, case processes, information gathered at the time of application/review and any updates or changes made on the case. When these reviews are completed on the child care recipients, the unit utilizes and reviews the information gathered by other programs like Cash Assistance, Food Assistance, Medicaid, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Kansas Department of Health and Environment records, Childcare Licensing And Regulation Information System (CLARIS), Social Security Administration, and Public Assistance Reporting Information system to ensure the household composition, members, and information submitted by the recipient to the program worker is consistent. When a review or audit is completed for child care providers, the reviewer checks to see if the provider receives assistance and ensures that they are reporting this income for Cash Assistance, Food Assistance or Child Care Assistance cases. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit reviews child care enrollment record; all documents submitted by the provider to child care enrollment for their agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families, provider business records which include parent provider contracts, attendance records and payment records. During a review or audit of a Child Care Assistance case or Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit assesses any information or documentation which may have been misread or miscommunicated by the worker/recipient/provider to determine if it was an agency error or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary. When any program violation is identified by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit during a site visit/audit; the Child Care Provider Education Support Unit is responsible for assessing and processing any unintentional or intentional program violations with regards to child care eligibility or child care providers. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit does not take action on Agency errors, rather they notify the child care program and policy manager to take appropriate action providing reminders or requesting training to eligibility staff if warranted.

iii. Agency errors. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: When the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit completes their audits, they do a thorough review of the parent/recipient case. This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing all child care plans, case processes, information gathered at the time of application/review and any updates or changes made on the case. When these reviews are completed on the child care recipients, the unit utilizes and reviews the information gathered by other programs like Cash Assistance, Food Assistance, Medicaid, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Kansas Department of Health and Environment records, Childcare Licensing And Regulation Information System (CLARIS), Social Security Administration, and Public Assistance Reporting Information system to ensure the household composition, members, and information submitted by the recipient to the program worker is consistent.

When a review or audit is completed for child care providers, the reviewer checks to see if the provider receives assistance and ensures that they are reporting this income for Cash Assistance, Food Assistance or Child Care Assistance cases. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit reviews child care enrollment record; all documents submitted by the provider to child care enrollment for their agreement with Kansas Department for Children and Families, provider business records which include parent provider contracts, attendance records and payment records.

During a review or audit of a Child Care Assistance case or Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled provider, the Child Care Provider Integrity Education and Support Unit assesses any information or documentation which may have been misread or miscommunicated by the worker/recipient/provider to determine if it was an agency error or whether it was an unintentional or intentional program violation to decide if further action or investigation is necessary.

When any program violation is identified by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit during a site visit/audit; the Child Care Provider Education Support Unit is responsible for assessing and processing any unintentional or intentional program violations with regards to child care eligibility or child care providers. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit does not take action on Agency errors, rather they notify the child care program and policy manager to take appropriate action providing reminders or requesting training to eligibility staff if warranted.

f. \boxtimes Train staff on policy and/or audits.

i.
☐ Intentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: The KEES eligibility system has built in rules that apply most eligibility factors for a child care assistance determination based on information entered by an eligibility worker. This automates much of the child care policy. The KEES user manual provides detailed instructions on the system. Access to eligibility records is limited to individuals with a job description that requires access. Only limited positions are allowed access to approve eligibility on the system, others are only given read-only access.

Implementation meetings occur when changes are made to the policy log and staff need to be made aware of the new policy, instructions and training materials are developed as needed to help implement new policies, and questions are collected regarding new policies and the answers are shared with all staff. Regional trainers do onsite training on topics when needed, supervisors meet with staff on a regular basis to inform them of new information or known issues, and desk aids staff use for interviews are updated when needed due to policy changes.

Regional trainers do onsite training on topics when needed, supervisors meet with staff on a regular basis to inform them of new information or known issues, and desk aids staff use for interviews are updated when needed due to policy changes. In addition to completing the Child Care Personal Trainer, eligibility staff also attend instructor led training. Instructor led training provides a combination of lecture, collaborative and hands-on learning. In addition to learning these themes, staff complete simulated cases in a practice system environment in order to receive hands-on experience. Following the more structured portion of training, new staff work with either their supervisors or the regional case readers to evaluate ongoing case work for up to 60 days. The supervisors and case readers are able to monitor training needs and provide a refresher if needed.

The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit not only attends the implementation and policy meetings, but they are also required to train on child care eligibility, child care enrollment policies and procedures, and fraud. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit trains with the fraud special investigators and attends regular meetings and conferences with the fraud unit to stay current with fraudulent activities, red flags, and any changes or updates to polices or procedures pertaining to all program violations.

ii.

Unintentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: The KEES eligibility system has built in rules that apply most eligibility factors for a child care assistance determination based on information entered by an eligibility worker. This automates much of the child care policy. The KEES user manual provides detailed instructions on the system. Access to eligibility records is limited to individuals with a job description that requires access. Only limited positions are allowed access to approve eligibility on the system, others are only given read-only access.

Implementation meetings occur when changes are made to the policy log and staff need to be made aware of the new policy, instructions and training materials are developed as needed to help implement new policies, and questions are collected regarding new policies and the answers are shared with all staff. Regional trainers do onsite training on topics when needed, supervisors meet with staff on a regular basis to inform them of new information or known issues, and desk aids staff use for interviews are updated when needed due to policy changes.

Regional trainers do onsite training on topics when needed, supervisors meet with staff on a regular basis to inform them of new information or known issues, and desk aids staff use for interviews are updated when needed due to policy changes. In addition to completing the Child Care Personal Trainer, eligibility staff also attend instructor led training. Instructor led training provides a combination of lecture, collaborative and hands-on learning. In addition to learning these themes, staff complete simulated cases in a practice system environment in order to receive hands-on experience. Following the more structured portion of training, new staff work with either their supervisors or the regional case readers to evaluate ongoing case work for up to 60 days. The supervisors and case readers are able to monitor training needs and provide a refresher if needed.

The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit not only attends the implementation and policy meetings, but they are also required to train on child care eligibility, child care enrollment policies and procedures, and fraud. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit trains with the fraud special investigators and attends regular meetings and conferences with the fraud unit to stay current with fraudulent activities, red flags, and any changes or updates to polices or procedures pertaining to all program violations.

iii. Agency errors. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: The KEES eligibility system has built in rules that apply most eligibility factors for a child care assistance determination based on information entered by an eligibility worker. This automates much of the child care policy. The KEES user manual provides detailed instructions on the system. Access to eligibility records is limited to individuals with a job description that requires access. Only limited positions are allowed access to approve eligibility on the system, others are only given read-only access.

Implementation meetings occur when changes are made to the policy log and staff need to be made aware of the new policy, instructions and training materials are developed as needed to help implement new policies, and questions are collected regarding new policies and the answers are shared with all staff. Regional trainers do onsite training on topics when needed, supervisors meet with staff on a regular basis to inform them of new information or known issues, and desk aids staff use for interviews are updated when needed due to policy changes.

Regional trainers do onsite training on topics when needed, supervisors meet with staff on a regular basis to inform them of new information or known issues, and desk aids staff use for interviews are updated when needed due to policy changes. In addition to completing the Child Care Personal Trainer, eligibility staff also attend instructor led training. Instructor led training provides a combination of lecture, collaborative and hands-on learning. In addition to learning these themes, staff complete simulated cases in a practice system environment in order to receive hands-on experience. Following the more structured portion of training, new staff work with either their supervisors or the regional case readers to evaluate ongoing case work for up to 60 days. The supervisors and case readers are able to monitor training needs and provide a refresher if needed.

The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit not only attends the implementation and policy meetings, but they are also required to train on child care eligibility, child care enrollment policies and procedures, and fraud. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit trains with the fraud special investigators and attends regular meetings and conferences with the fraud unit to stay current with fraudulent activities, red flags, and any changes or updates to polices or procedures pertaining to all program violations.

g. 🗆 Otł		ner. Describe the activity(ies): Click or tap here to enter text.		
	i.	☐ Intentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .		
	ii.	\Box Unintentional program violations. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: Click or tap here to enter text.		
	iii.	\Box Agency errors. Describe the activities, the results of these activities, and how they inform better practice: <i>Click or tap here to enter text</i> .		

Lead Agencies must identify and recover misspent funds that are a result of fraud, and they have the option to recover any misspent funds that are a result of unintentional program violations or agency errors.

a. Identify which agency is responsible for pursuing fraud and overpayments (e.g., State Office of the Inspector General, State Attorney): Kansas Department for Children and Families is responsible for pursuing fraud and overpayments.

If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient or provider, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment.

If the child care recipient or provider has an Food Assistance or Cash Assistance program themselves, or if they are associated with a child care recipient with a combined Food Assistance/Cash Assistance program which the fraud unit is investigating for fraud-the fraud unit collaborates with the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit to pursue fraud and overpayments.

However, if it is a child care program only case, whether recipient or child care providerthe Child Care Provider Integrity Education, Support unit pursues fraud and overpayments.

After an improper payment claim is created, it is sent to Kansas Department for Children and Families Central Collections – The Central Collections Unit monitors the recovery of the claim.

b. Check and describe all activities, including the results of such activity, that the Lead Agency uses to investigate and recover improper payments due to fraud. Consider in your response potential fraud committed by providers, clients, staff, vendors, and contractors. Include in the description how each activity assists in the investigation and recovery of improper payment due to fraud or intentional program violations. Activities can include, but are not limited to, the following:

i. Require recovery after a minimum dollar amount of an improper payment and identify the minimum dollar amount. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: *Kansas Department for Children and Families is responsible for pursuing fraud and overpayments.*

If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient or provider, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment.

If the child care recipient or provider has an Food Assistance or Cash Assistance program themselves, or if they are associated with a child care recipient with a combined Food Assistance/Cash Assistance program which the fraud unit is investigating for fraud- the fraud unit collaborates with the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit to pursue fraud and overpayments.

However, if it is a child care program only case, whether recipient or child care provider- the Child Care Provider Integrity Education, Support unit pursues fraud and overpayments.

After an improper payment claim is created, it is sent to Kansas Department for Children and Families Central Collections – The Central Collections Unit monitors the recovery of the claim.

ii. \(\subseteq \text{Coordinate with and refer to the other State/Territory agencies (e.g., State/Territory collection agency, law enforcement agency). Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Kansas Department for Children and Families is responsible for pursuing fraud and overpayments.

If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient or provider, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment.

If the child care recipient or provider has an Food Assistance or Cash Assistance program themselves, or if they are associated with a child care recipient with a combined Food Assistance/Cash Assistance program which the fraud unit is investigating for fraud- the fraud unit collaborates with the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit to pursue fraud and overpayments.

However, if it is a child care program only case, whether recipient or child care provider- the Child Care Provider Integrity Education, Support unit pursues fraud and overpayments.

iii.
☐ Recover through repayment plans. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Kansas Department for Children and Families Enrolled Child Care Providers have the option through repayment plans to pay via lump sum payments or by installments on their recovery as they do not receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families. Child care recipients have the following options through repayment plans for recovery, as they receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families.

Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM Policy 11126.1 Methods of Collecting Payments - Claims shall be collected in one or more of the following ways:

Lump Sum Payments shall be collected from households in one lump sum cash payment if the household is financially able. However, the household shall not be required to liquidate all of its resources to make this one lump sum payment. If the household is financially unable to pay the entire amount of the claim at one time and prefers to make a lump sum cash payment as partial payment of the claim, it shall be accepted.

Installments - If the household is not currently participating in the program with the overpayment and has insufficient liquid resources or is otherwise financially unable to pay the claim in one lump sum, a payment schedule shall be negotiated by the Central Collections Unit (CCU). Once negotiated, the amount to be repaid each month through installment payments shall remain unchanged. Both the household and the agency shall have the option to initiate renegotiation of the payment schedule if they believe that the household's economic circumstances have changed enough to warrant such an action. If the household requests renegotiation, but the CCU feels that the household's economic circumstances have not changed enough to warrant the requested settlement (such as the fact that the household's source of income has not changed) then the CCU may continue renegotiation until a settlement can be reached.

Offsetting - For collection to be made by offsetting the amount of the claim against restored benefits, the amount of benefits due the household shall be determined and deducted from any outstanding claim balances. Refer to 11115. A notice of action shall be sent to inform the household of the restored benefit amount and the amount still due on the claim or the amount of restored benefits due after applying them to any outstanding claim.

Benefit Reduction - If a household is currently participating in the program with the overpayment, collection action for ALL types of claims shall be accomplished by benefit reduction. When benefit reduction is being utilized the regular benefit shall be reduced as follows; or the client may agree to a larger benefit reduction amount:

Fraud Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 20% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

Client and Agency Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 10% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

NOTE: If benefit reduction is occurring for an agency or client error claim, and the household subsequently has a fraud claim established, the agency should cease benefit collection on the agency/client error claim and initiate benefit reduction on the fraud claim.

EBT Repayments - For cash, child care and food assistance, clients can make payments on a claim using their EBT account. Refer to KEES user manual for EBT repayment procedures.

iv. ☐ Reduce payments in subsequent months. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Kansas Department for Children and Families Enrolled Child Care Providers have the option through repayment plans to pay via lump sum payments or by installments on their recovery as they do not receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families. Child care recipients have the following options through repayment plans for recovery, as they receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families. Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM Policy 11126.1 Methods of Collecting Payments - Claims shall be collected in one or more of the following ways: Lump Sum Payments shall be collected from households in one lump sum cash payment if the household is financially able. However, the household shall not be required to liquidate all of its resources to make this one lump sum payment. If the household is financially unable to pay the entire amount of the claim at one time and prefers to make a lump sum cash payment as partial payment of the claim, it shall be accepted. Installments - If the household is not currently participating in the program with the overpayment and has insufficient liquid resources or is otherwise financially unable to pay the claim in one lump sum, a payment schedule shall be negotiated by the Central Collections Unit (CCU). Once negotiated, the amount to be repaid each month through installment payments shall remain unchanged. Both the household and the agency shall have the option to initiate renegotiation of the payment schedule if they believe that the household's economic circumstances have changed enough to warrant such an action. If the household requests renegotiation, but the CCU feels that the household's economic circumstances have not changed enough to warrant the requested settlement (such as the fact that the household's source of income has not changed) then the CCU may continue renegotiation until a settlement can be reached. Offsetting - For collection to be made by offsetting the amount of the claim against restored benefits, the amount of benefits due the household shall be determined and deducted from any outstanding claim balances. Refer to 11115. A notice of action shall be sent to inform the household of the restored benefit amount and the amount still due on the claim or the amount of restored benefits due after applying them to any outstanding claim. Benefit Reduction - If a household is currently participating in the program with the overpayment, collection action for ALL types of claims shall be accomplished by benefit reduction. When benefit reduction is being utilized the regular benefit shall be reduced as follows; or the client may agree to a larger benefit reduction amount: Fraud Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 20% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month. Client and Agency Claims Cash and Child Care -The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 10% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month. NOTE: If benefit reduction is occurring for an agency or client error claim, and the household subsequently has a fraud claim established, the agency should cease benefit collection on the agency/client error claim and initiate benefit reduction on the fraud claim. EBT Repayments - For cash, child care and food assistance, clients can make payments on a claim using their EBT account. Refer to KEES user manual for EBT repayment procedures. After an improper payment claim is created, it is sent to Kansas Department for

- Children and Families Central Collections The Central Collections Unit monitors the recovery of the claim.
- v. Recover through State/Territory tax intercepts. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Provider debts and all debts except Food Assistance are taken out of State Taxes. Kansas has chosen to use the federal Treasury Offset Program only for our Food Assistance overpayments. Child care debts are placed in the Kansas Debt Recovery System only.
- vi. Recover through other means. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM policy 11126.3 Claims Discharged through Bankruptcy If local agency staff have knowledge of bankruptcy proceedings against any household owing a food assistance, cash or child care claim, Central Office Legal Department and Central Collection Unit shall be notified immediately. Collection activity shall cease immediately pending the outcome of the court proceedings. Collection action should be resumed (or initiated) after and in conformance with the final court action.

Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM policy 11126.6 Expunged Benefits - Expunged food assistance, cash and child care benefits for a client are to be used to reduce the amount of any active claims that the client has. Expunged cash and child care benefits are benefits that have been aged off and not returned to the system and EBT account within 120 days for cash and child care, from the date they were initially made available.

vii.

Establish a unit to investigate and collect improper payments and describe the composition of the unit. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit was created to not only educate child care providers and recipients, this unit also reviews and investigates child care program related fraud, child care program violations and improper payments, both intentional and unintentional.

The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit currently consists of (1) working supervisor and (2) program consultants. All staff within the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit educates, audits, and investigates child care program related fraud, child care program violations and improper payments. This unit is under the Program Integrity department.

If an improper payment (intentional or unintentional) overpayment for a recipient and/or provider is discovered and established by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit, the unit may start the process to recover the overpayment. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit calculates the overpayment, creates the claim on the KEES system, and sends the claim to the Central Collections Unit to recover the overpayment.

The Central Collections Unit monitors the recovery of the claim.

	viii.	\Box Other. Describe the activities and the results of these activities: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>	
c.	Does the Lead Agency investigate and recover improper payments due to unintentional program violations?		
	□ No.		
	⊠ Yes		
	If yes,	check and describe below any activities that the Lead Agency will use to investigate	

If yes, check and describe below any activities that the Lead Agency will use to investigate and recover improper payments due to unintentional program violations. Include in the description how each activity assists in the investigation and recovery of improper payments due to unintentional program violations. Include a description of the results of such activity.

- i. Require recovery after a minimum dollar amount of an improper payment and identify the minimum dollar amount. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM Policy 11120 Overpayments and Claims An overpayment is assistance that is over the amount to which the client is entitled. One or several months of overpayment become a claim when the cause of the overpayment(s) is due to the same or related causes; agency error, unintentional client error, intentional fraud error. A claim shall be established against any household that has received more assistance than it is entitled to receive.
- ii.

 Coordinate with and refer to the other State/Territory agencies (e.g., State/Territory collection agency, law enforcement agency). Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Coordination with outside agencies does not happen often when related to unintentional improper payments.

However, there still may be instances, the state may collaborate with outside agencies. For instance, if medical fraud is involved, the state would collaborate with the Medical Inspector General's office/AG office, or if the safety of children are involved- the state may collaborate with not only the social workers, but also KDHE and law enforcement.

iii.
☐ Recover through repayment plans. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Kansas Department for Children and Families Enrolled Child Care Providers have the option through repayment plans to pay via lump sum payments or by installments on their recovery as they do not receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families. Child care recipients have the following options through repayment plans for recovery, as they receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families.

Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM Policy 11126.1 Methods of Collecting Payments - Claims shall be collected in one or more of the following ways:

Lump Sum Payments shall be collected from households in one lump sum cash payment if the household is financially able. However, the household shall not be required to liquidate all of its resources to make this one lump sum payment. If the household is financially unable to pay the entire amount of the claim at one time and prefers to make a lump sum cash payment as partial payment of the claim, it shall be accepted.

Installments - If the household is not currently participating in the program with the overpayment and has insufficient liquid resources or is otherwise financially unable to pay the claim in one lump sum, a payment schedule shall be negotiated by the Central Collections Unit (CCU). Once negotiated, the amount to be repaid each month through installment payments shall remain unchanged. Both the household and the agency shall have the option to initiate renegotiation of the payment schedule if they believe that the household's economic circumstances have changed enough to warrant such an action. If the household requests renegotiation, but the CCU feels that the household's economic circumstances have not changed enough to warrant the requested settlement (such as the fact that the household's source of income has not changed) then the CCU may continue renegotiation until a settlement can be reached.

Offsetting - For collection to be made by offsetting the amount of the claim against restored benefits, the amount of benefits due the household shall be determined and deducted from any outstanding claim balances. Refer to 11115. A notice of action shall be sent to inform the household of the restored benefit amount and the amount still due on the claim or the amount of restored benefits due after applying them to any outstanding claim.

Benefit Reduction - If a household is currently participating in the program with the overpayment, collection action for ALL types of claims shall be accomplished by benefit reduction. When benefit reduction is being utilized the regular benefit shall be reduced as follows; or the client may agree to a larger benefit reduction amount:

Fraud Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 20% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

Client and Agency Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 10% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

NOTE: If benefit reduction is occurring for an agency or client error claim, and the household subsequently has a fraud claim established, the agency should cease benefit collection on the agency/client error claim and initiate benefit reduction on the fraud claim.

EBT Repayments - For cash, child care and food assistance, clients can make payments on a claim using their EBT account. Refer to KEES user manual for EBT repayment procedures.

After an improper payment claim is created, it is sent to Kansas Department for Children and Families Central Collections – The Central Collections Unit monitors the recovery of the claim.

iv. Reduce payments in subsequent months. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: *Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM Policy 11126.1 Methods of Collecting Payments:*

Benefit Reduction - If a household is currently participating in the program with the overpayment, collection action for ALL types of claims shall be accomplished by benefit reduction. When benefit reduction is being utilized the regular benefit shall be reduced as follows; or the client may agree to a larger benefit reduction amount:

Fraud Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 20% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

Client and Agency Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 10% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

NOTE: If benefit reduction is occurring for an agency or client error claim, and the household subsequently has a fraud claim established, the agency should cease benefit collection on the agency/client error claim and initiate benefit reduction on the fraud claim.

Kansas Department for Children and Families Enrolled Child Care Providers have the option through repayment plans to pay via lump sum payments or by installments on their recovery as they do not receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families. Child care recipients, however, have the option to reduce payments for recovery, as they receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families.

- v. Recover through State/Territory tax intercepts. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Provider debts and all debts except Food Assistance are taken out of State Taxes. Kansas has chosen to use the federal Treasury Offset Program only for our Food Assistance overpayments. Child care debts are placed in the Kansas Debt Recovery System only.
- vi. Recover through other means. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM policy 11126.3 Claims Discharged through Bankruptcy If local agency staff have knowledge of bankruptcy proceedings against any household owing a food assistance, cash or child care claim, Central Office Legal Department and Central Collection Unit shall be notified immediately. Collection activity shall cease immediately pending the outcome of the court proceedings. Collection action should be resumed (or initiated) after and in conformance with the final court action.

Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM policy 11126.6 Expunged Benefits - Expunged food assistance, cash and child care benefits for a client are to be used to reduce the amount of any active claims that the client has. Expunged cash and child care benefits are benefits that have been aged off and not returned to the system and EBT account within 120 days for cash and child care, from the date they were initially made available.

vii. ☑ Establish a unit to investigate and collect improper payments and describe the composition of the unit. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit was created to not only educate child care providers and recipients, this unit also reviews and investigates child care program related fraud, child care program violations and improper payments, both intentional and unintentional.

The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit currently consists of (1) working supervisor and (2) program consultants. All staff within the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit educates, audits, and investigates child care program related fraud, child care program violations and improper payments. This unit is under the Program Integrity department.

If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient or provider, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment.

If the child care recipient or provider has an Food Assistance or Cash Assistance program themselves, or if they are associated with a child care recipient with a combined Food Assistance/Cash Assistance program which the fraud unit is investigating for fraud- the fraud unit collaborates with the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit to pursue fraud and overpayments..

If an improper payment (intentional or unintentional) overpayment for a recipient and/or provider is discovered and established by the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit, the unit may start the process to recover the overpayment. The Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit calculates the overpayment, creates the claim on the KEES system, and sends the claim to the Central Collections Unit to recover the overpayment.

		The Central Collections Unit monitors the recovery of the claim.		
	viii.	\Box Other. Describe the activities and the results of these activities: <i>Click or tap here to enter text.</i>		
d. Does the Lead Agency investigate and recover improper payments due		ne Lead Agency investigate and recover improper payments due to agency errors?		
	□ No.			
	⊠ Yes			
	If yes,	check and describe all activities that the Lead Agency will use to investigate and		

recover improper payments due to agency errors. Include in the description how each activity assists in the investigation and recovery of improper payments due to administrative errors. Include a description of the results of such activity.

- i. Require recovery after a minimum dollar amount of an improper payment and identify the minimum dollar amount. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM Policy 11120 Overpayments and Claims An overpayment is assistance that is over the amount to which the client is entitled. One or several months of overpayment become a claim when the cause of the overpayment(s) are due to the same or related causes; agency error, unintentional client error, intentional fraud error. A claim shall be established against any household that has received more assistance than it is entitled to receive.
- ii.

 Coordinate with and refer to the other State/Territory agencies (e.g., State/Territory collection agency, law enforcement agency). Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Click or tap here to enter text.

iii.
☐ Recover through repayment plans. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Kansas Department for Children and Families Enrolled Child Care Providers have the option through repayment plans to pay via lump sum payments or by installments on their recovery as they do not receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families. Child care recipients have the following options through repayment plans for recovery, as they receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families.

Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM Policy 11126.1 Methods of Collecting Payments - Claims shall be collected in one or more of the following ways:

Lump Sum Payments shall be collected from households in one lump sum cash payment if the household is financially able. However, the household shall not be required to liquidate all of its resources to make this one lump sum payment. If the household is financially unable to pay the entire amount of the claim at one time and prefers to make a lump sum cash payment as partial payment of the claim, it shall be accepted.

Installments - If the household is not currently participating in the program with the overpayment and has insufficient liquid resources or is otherwise financially unable to pay the claim in one lump sum, a payment schedule shall be negotiated by the Central Collections Unit (CCU). Once negotiated, the amount to be repaid each month through installment payments shall remain unchanged. Both the household and the agency shall have the option to initiate renegotiation of the payment schedule if they believe that the household's economic circumstances have changed enough to warrant such an action. If the household requests renegotiation, but the CCU feels that the household's economic circumstances have not changed enough to warrant the requested settlement (such as the fact that the household's source of income has not changed) then the CCU may continue renegotiation until a settlement can be reached.

Offsetting - For collection to be made by offsetting the amount of the claim against restored benefits, the amount of benefits due the household shall be determined and deducted from any outstanding claim balances. Refer to 11115. A notice of action shall be sent to inform the household of the restored benefit amount and the amount still due on the claim or the amount of restored benefits due after applying them to any outstanding claim.

Benefit Reduction - If a household is currently participating in the program with the overpayment, collection action for ALL types of claims shall be accomplished by benefit reduction. When benefit reduction is being utilized the regular benefit shall be reduced as follows; or the client may agree to a larger benefit reduction amount:

Fraud Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 20% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

Client and Agency Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 10% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

NOTE: If benefit reduction is occurring for an agency or client error claim, and the household subsequently has a fraud claim established, the agency should cease benefit collection on the agency/client error claim and initiate benefit reduction on the fraud claim.

EBT Repayments - For cash, child care and food assistance, clients can make payments on a claim using their EBT account. Refer to KEES user manual for EBT repayment procedures.

After an improper payment claim is created, it is sent to Kansas Department for Children and Families Central Collections – The Central Collections Unit monitors the recovery of the claim.

iv. Reduce payments in subsequent months. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: *Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM Policy 11126.1 Methods of Collecting Payments:*

Benefit Reduction - If a household is currently participating in the program with the overpayment, collection action for ALL types of claims shall be accomplished by benefit reduction. When benefit reduction is being utilized the regular benefit shall be reduced as follows; or the client may agree to a larger benefit reduction amount:

Fraud Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 20% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

Client and Agency Claims Cash and Child Care - The benefit shall be reduced by the greater of 10% of the household's monthly benefit or \$10 per month.

NOTE: If benefit reduction is occurring for an agency or client error claim, and the household subsequently has a fraud claim established, the agency should cease benefit collection on the agency/client error claim and initiate benefit reduction on the fraud claim.

Kansas Department for Children and Families Enrolled Child Care Providers have the option through repayment plans to pay via lump sum payments or by installments on their recovery as they do not receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families. Child care recipients however, have the option to reduce payments for recovery, as they receive subsidy directly from Kansas Department for Children and Families.

- v. Recover through State/Territory tax intercepts. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Provider debts and all debts except Food Assistance are taken out of State Taxes. Kansas has chosen to use the federal Treasury Offset Program only for our Food Assistance overpayments. Child care debts are placed in the Kansas Debt Recovery System only.
- vi. Recover through other means. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM policy 11126.3 Claims Discharged through Bankruptcy If local agency staff have knowledge of bankruptcy proceedings against any household owing a food assistance, cash or child care claim, Central Office Legal Department and Central Collection Unit shall be notified immediately. Collection activity shall cease immediately pending the outcome of the court proceedings. Collection action should be resumed (or initiated) after and in conformance with the final court action.

Per Kansas Department for Children and Families KEESM policy 11126.6 Expunged Benefits - Expunged food assistance, cash and child care benefits for a client are to be used to reduce the amount of any active claims that the client has. Expunged cash and child care benefits are benefits that have been aged off and not returned to the system and EBT account within 120 days for cash and child care, from the date they were initially made available.

vii.

Establish a unit to investigate and collect improper payments and describe the composition of the unit. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Child Care eligibility staff processes any agency or unintentional program violations within the child care eligibility recipient case.

If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment.

If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient or provider, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment.

If the child care recipient or provider has an Food Assistance or Cash Assistance program themselves, or if they are associated with a child care recipient with a combined Food Assistance/Cash Assistance program which the fraud unit is investigating for fraud- the fraud unit collaborates with the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit to pursue fraud and overpayments..

Whereas if either unintentional or intentional program violations are identified for child care providers, the case is referred to the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit.

The Central Collections Unit monitors the recovery of the claim.

- viii. Other. Describe the activities and the results of these activities: *Click or tap here to enter text.*
- e. What type of sanction will the Lead Agency place on clients and providers to help reduce improper payments due to intentional program violations or fraud? Check and describe all that apply:

i. ☐ Disqualify the client. Describe this process, including a description of the appeal process for clients who are disqualified. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Administrative Disqualification hearings are only for Kansas Department for Children and Families child care subsidy recipients. They cannot be for Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled child care providers as the provider accepts subsidy from clients and not directly receiving subsidy from Kansas Department for Children and Families. Once Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support Unit establishes program violations for intentional improper payments, an Administrative Disqualification Hearing request is submitted to the Kansas Department for Children and Families Office of Administrative Hearings, using the ES-3112, Kansas Department for Children and Families form. There is no dollar threshold to take the recipient to Administrative Disqualification Hearing. It is up to agency discretion with regards to the amount and supporting evidence obtained whether to submit the request for Administrative Disqualification Hearing. For Administrative Disqualification Hearings, there is no limitation of how far back you can go to request fraud disqualification. If a referral for Administrative Disqualification is being sent, the improper payment claim is set to 'pending' status until a finding is returned from the administrative judge.

Once a request for Administrative Disqualification is submitted, the agency and recipient/household member is notified within 90days that an Administrative Disqualification Hearing has been scheduled. The hearing is often held via conference call or TEAMS virtual meeting. The recipient/household member has the option to waive their rights to an Administrative Disqualification Hearing. Persons who waive their rights are to be disqualified and a fraud judgement is set. After the hearing is held, the administrative judge will send the judgement finding to the agency and recipient/household member. If the judgement is found to be disqualification, the claim will be changed from 'pending' to 'fraud' and the child care case will show a fraud judgement penalty has been imposed and recovery will begin. Child Care recipients have the option to appeal their disqualification and their improper payment claims (intentional or unintentional.)

The child care recipient may provide the request by submitting it in writing. Once a recipient has requested an appeal, the agency must take immediate action. Within 15 days after the appellant has filed a request for a fair hearing, the agency shall furnish the appellant, or appellant's representative, and the Office of Administrative Hearings with a copy of the summary. Once the request for an appeal has been submitted to the Kansas Department for Children and Families Office of Administrative Hearings, the agency and recipient/household member is notified within 90days that an Appeal hearing has been scheduled. The hearing is often held via conference call or TEAMS virtual meeting.

After the hearing is held, the administrative judge will send the judgement finding to the agency and recipient/household member. If the judgement is found to uphold the initial judgement/agency action, a findings letter will be sent and there will be no changes to the claim or disqualification. However, if the hearing decision is favorable to the recipient, the agency shall promptly make corrective payments or remove the fraud finding. If the recipient disagrees with the administrative

judge finding, they also have the option to request for a State Appeals Committee review, where the committee reviews the decision of the hearing officer. This request to the State Appeals Committee must be made within 18 days of the date of the administrative hearing decision. Per KEESM policies 11221.2, 11250, 1600, 1613, 1614, 1617

ii. Disqualify the provider. Describe this process, including a description of the appeal process for providers who are disqualified. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: Administrative Disqualification hearings are only for Kansas Department for Children and Families child care subsidy recipients. They cannot be for Kansas Department for Children and Families enrolled child care providers as the provider accepts subsidy from clients and not directly receiving subsidy from Kansas Department for Children and Families.

Currently, there is no sanction to disqualify a Kansas Department for Children and Families Child Care Enrolled provider.

Child Care providers, however- have the option to appeal their improper payment claims (intentional or unintentional.)

The child care provider may provide the request by submitting it in writing. Once a recipient has requested an appeal, the agency must take immediate action. Within 15 days after the appellant has filed a request for a fair hearing, the agency shall furnish the appellant, or appellant's representative, and the Office of Administrative Hearings with a copy of the summary. Once the request for an appeal has been submitted to the Kansas Department for Children and Families Office of Administrative Hearings, the agency and child care provider is notified within 90days that an Appeal hearing has been scheduled. The hearing is often held via conference call or TEAMS virtual meeting.

After the hearing is held, the administrative judge will send the judgement finding to the agency and child care provider. If the judgement is found to uphold the initial judgement/agency action, a findings letter will be sent and there will be no changes to the claim. However, if the hearing decision is favorable to the child care provider, the agency shall promptly make correct the claim. If the child care provider disagrees with the administrative judge finding, they also have the option to request for a State Appeals Committee review, where the committee reviews the decision of the hearing officer. This request to the State Appeals Committee must be made within 18 days of the date of the administrative hearing decision.

iii. Prosecute criminally. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the most recent analysis: If a potential intentional program violation is identified for a child care eligibility recipient or provider, the case is referred to the fraud and Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit for further assessment.

If the child care recipient or provider has an Food Assistance or Cash Assistance program themselves, or if they are associated with a child care recipient with a combined Food Assistance/Cash Assistance program which the fraud unit is investigating for fraud- the fraud unit collaborates with the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit to pursue fraud and overpayments..

If the fraud unit wishes to prosecute criminally, the fraud unit will take the combined case and proceed with requesting the case be prosecuted criminally. It is with the discretion of the fraud unit, Chief of Investigations and legal whether the case should be prosecuted criminally. If it is decided to prosecute criminally, the case must be presented to the county District Attorneys office to review. It is then at the discretion of the county District Attorneys office whether they want to prosecute criminally. If the county District Attorneys office agrees to prosecute criminally, the state is responsible for typing up the affidavit for the county district attorney and obtaining additional evidence and witness statements to assist the district attorney with their case. Criminal hearings take place at the county courthouse, where the case would be located.

However, if it is a child care program only case, whether recipient or child care provider- the Child Care Provider Integrity Education, Support unit pursues fraud and overpayments. If the Child Care Provider Integrity Education Support unit believes the case should be prosecuted criminally, they would need to request the fraud unit, Chief of Investigations and legal to review the case. It would be at the discretion of the fraud unit, Chief of Investigations and legal whether the case could be prosecuted criminally, as the fraud unit would have to assist with taking the case to criminal court.

iv.	☐ Other. Describe the activities and the results of these activities based on the
	most recent analysis: Click or tap here to enter text.

Appendix 1: Lead Agency Implementation Plan

For each non-compliance, Lead Agencies must describe the following:

- Action Steps: List the action steps needed to correct the finding (e.g., update policy manual, legislative approval, IT system changes, etc.). For each action step list the:
 - Responsible Entity: Indicate the entity (e.g., agency, team, etc.) responsible for completing the action step.
 - o **Expected Completion Date:** List the expected completion date for the action step.
- Overall Target Date for Compliance: List date Lead Agency anticipates completing implementation, achieving full compliance with all aspects of the findings. (Note: Compliance will not be determined until the FFY 2025-2027 CCDF Plan is amended and approved).

Appendix 1: Form

[Plan question with non-compliance and associated provision will pre-populate based on preliminary notice of non-compliance]

A. Action Steps for Implementation	B. Responsible Entity(ies)	C. Expected Completion Date
Step 1:		
Step 2 (as necessary):		
[Additional steps added as necessary]		
Overall Target Date for Compliance:		